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THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

10:15 a.m. CST/11:15 a.m. EST Boling University Center, Duncan Ballroom
Friday 11 Wayne Fisher Drive
March 1, 2019 Martin, Tennessee

AGENDA

I. Call to Order and Opening Remarks

II. Roll Call

III. Requests to Address the Board (if appropriate for this Committee)

IV. Consent Agenda—Action (unless otherwise indicated) .............................................................Tab 1
A. Minutes of the Last Meeting...................................................................................................Tab 1.1
B. KUB Gas Line Easement, Chamique Holdsclaw at Lake Loudoun (UTK) ....................Tab 1.2
C. Water Line Easement along Elk River Dam Road (UTSI) .................................................Tab 1.3
D. Easements for Sidewalk Improvements along University Street (UTM) .......................Tab 1.4
E. Transfer of Jurisdiction along Alcoa Highway and Cherokee Trail Interchange to

TDOT (UT/UHS) ....................................................................................................................Tab 1.5
F. Long-term Lease of Real Property, Coon Creek Science Center (UTM)..........................Tab 1.6
G. Acquisition by Gift of Real Property in Franklin County for UTIA Use .........................Tab 1.7
H. Disclosure of Additional Revenue/Institutionally Funded Capital Projects for

FY 2018-19―Information .........................................................................................................Tab 1.8
I. Fiscal Policy on Unclaimed Property ― Promulgation as a UAPA Rule ........................Tab 1.9
J. Fiscal Policy on Surplus Property― Promulgation as a UAPA Rule .............................Tab 1.10
K. Revised Board Policy on the Process for Submitting Legislative Proposals and 

Funding Requests to the General Assembly ......................................................................Tab 1.11
L. Revised Board Policy on Related Foundations..................................................................Tab 1.12
M. First Amendment to the UCF-UT-UTFI Affiliation and Services Agreement ..............Tab 1.13
N. Second Amendment to the 2014 UT-UTFI Affiliation and Services Agreement ........ Tab 1.141

O. Request for Annual Redemption of Principal from the UTK Mary Ann Little 
Music Scholarship Quasi-Endowment ...............................................................................Tab 1.15

P. Naming of the UT Knoxville Center for Leadership and Service in Honor of
Clay and Debbie Jones...........................................................................................................Tab 1.16

Q. Report on Endowment Investment Performance―Information .....................................Tab 1.17

1 Items IV.L., M., and N. were deferred to a later meeting.   
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R. Annual Report on Tuition and Fee Revenues—Information .........................................Tab 1.18
S. Update on Review of Year-End Carry Forward Unrestricted Funds—Information ...Tab 1.19

V. Revised FY 2018-19 Operating Budget―Action............................................................................Tab 2

VI. Process for the Campus Advisory Board to Submit a Recommendation to the 
President on the Proposed Annual Operating Budget, Including Tuition and Fees, as 
Related to the Campus—Action .....................................................................................................Tab 3

VII. FY 2019-20 Tuition and Fees for the Health Science Center—Action .......................................Tab 4

VIII. Use of UHS Proceeds as Supplemental Funding for Renovation of the UT Conference
Center in Knoxville for the UTHSC Department of Audiology and Speech Pathology—
Action..................................................................................................................................................Tab 5

IX. Long-term Ground Lease for a Private Housing Development on the Campus of the
Health Science Center—Action.......................................................................................................Tab 6

X. Acquisition of Real Properties on Lindsay Place in Knoxville for UTIA Use and Revision 
of the UTK/UTIA Main Campus Master Plan to Include the Properties--Action .................Tab 7

XI. Report on the Composite Financial Index for FY 2017-18―Information ..................................Tab 8

XII. Treasurer’s Financial Report, FY 2017-18―Information..............................................................Tab 9

XIII. Update on the Task Force on Effective Administration and Management―Information....Tab 10

XIV. Committee Discussion of Agenda Items for Future Meetings .................................................Tab 11

XV. Other Business [Note:  Under the Bylaws of the Board, items not appearing on the agenda may 
be considered only upon an affirmative vote representing a majority of the total voting 
membership of the committee.  Other business necessary to come before the committee at this 
meeting should be brought to the committee chair’s attention before the meeting.]

XVI. Adjournment
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Consent Agenda

Type: Action

Presenter: Bill Rhodes, Committee Chair

Certain action items and information items have been placed on the Committee Consent Agenda.  
These items will not be presented or discussed in the Committee unless a Committee member 
requests removal of an item from the Consent Agenda.  In accordance with the Bylaws, before 
calling for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, the Committee Chair will ask if any member 
of the Committee requests that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda.  The Bylaws provide 
that an item will not be removed from the Consent Agenda solely for the purpose of asking 
questions for clarification.  Those questions should be presented to the Secretary before the 
meeting.

Committee Action

If there are no requests to remove an item from the Consent Agenda, the Committee Chair will call 
for the prepared motion below, a second, and a voice vote.  If the motion passes, the items requiring 
Board approval will go forward to the Consent Agenda of the full Board meeting.

Motion:  I move that 

1. Minutes of the November 2, 2018 meeting of the Committee be approved as presented in 
the meeting materials, provided that the Secretary be authorized to make any necessary 
edits to correct spelling errors, grammatical errors, format errors, or other technical errors 
subsequently identified; and

2. Resolutions presented in the meeting materials for the action items on the Consent 
Agenda of the Committee be recommended for adoption by the Board of Trustees.   
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Minutes of the Last Meeting

Type: Action

Minutes of the November 2, 2018 meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee are 
included in the meeting materials.  If no corrections to the minutes are needed, the Committee will 
approve the minutes by unanimous consent upon approval of the consent agenda for the 
Committee.  

1.1 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING

November 2, 2018
Knoxville, Tennessee

The Finance and Administration Committee of The University of Tennessee Board of 
Trustees met at 11:00 a.m. EDT on Friday, November 2, 2018, in the Hollingsworth 
Auditorium on the campus of The University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture campus 
in Knoxville.

I. CALL TO ORDER

Committee Chair Bill Rhodes called the meeting to order and noted that it was the first
meeting of the new Finance and Administration Committee under the reconstituted Board 
of Trustees. He thanked Amy Miles and Kim White for serving on the Committee and said 
he was excited to work with them and with David Miller and his staff.  

II. ROLL CALL

Chief Financial Officer David L. Miller called the roll, and the following members were 
present:

Bill Rhodes, Chair
John Compton
Joe DiPietro
Amy Miles
Kim White

Mr. Miller announced the presence of a quorum. Administrative staff, faculty, students, 
members of the public, and media representatives were also present.  

III. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

The Chair recognized Tom Anderson, an employee in with UT Knoxville Facilities Services 
and a member of United Campus Workers, who had requested to address the subject of 
campus/system relations. Mr. Anderson said he asked to speak in order to welcome the 
new Board and help the Trustees to understand the importance of the work done by UT 
Knoxville Facilities Services.  To the employees in Facilities Services, he said, their work is 
a calling to public service and is important to creating a positive learning environment for 
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the students, faculty, and staff and a positive image to the local community, state, nation, 
and world.  He described the broad scope of work performed by Facilities Services staff
and said they are loyal to the University and committed to serving its mission.  He 
encouraged the Trustees to stop and talk with Facilities Services employees wherever they 
may come across them.   

The Chair thanked Mr. Anderson for making time to speak to the Trustees and 
complemented the Facilities Services staff at all campuses for their work.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

Calling the Committee’s attention to the consent agenda, the Chair asked if any Trustee 
wanted to remove an item from the consent agenda.  Hearing no request, the Chair said he 
would like to remove information items K and L simply to allow the Committee to learn 
more about differential tuition and how the campuses use the funds.  He then recognized 
CFO Miller, who explained that differential tuition is an increase above the standard 
maintenance fee for students in a targeted program to fund specific initiatives and that 
upon approving the nine differential tuition programs (five at UTC and four at UTK), the 
former Board required the campuses to report annually on use of the funds. Mr. Miller 
called the Committee’s attention to the five-year summary and fund balance for each 
program and added that the Chair had requested the summary so the Committee would 
see more than just a one-year snapshot.  Noting the substantial fund balance in the business 
college at both institutions, he reported that UTC plans to use the unspent funds for
upgrading classrooms and improvements in Fletcher Hall and advancing the new 
Entrepreneurial Center in the Mapp Building.  At UTK, the Haslam College of Business has 
reserved $2.2 million for three-year’s worth of compensation for newly recruited faculty 
members and $2.1 million for building renovations.  

The Chair then called for any questions or discussion about differential tuition.  Ms. Miles 
said she was familiar with the concept and purpose of differential tuition through serving
on the UTK College of Business advisory board, and Ms. White said she has been a part of 
discussions about differential tuition at UTC. Mr. Compton said he understands that 
differential tuition is necessary to recruit exceptional faculty members but questioned 
whether the funds should be used for building renovations. Dr. DiPietro explained that 
the planned renovations are new delivery systems around educational platforms to help 
students learn more efficiently and effectively.  Mr. Miller added that at UTK, the building 
renovation is for a student success center, including advising with respect to international 
programs and professional development. The Chair closed the discussion by saying that 
future annual reports on use of differential tuition should continue to provide a five-year 
summary so the committee can be informed of future plans for fund balances.     
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There being no other requests to remove an item from the consent agenda, the Chair asked 
whether a Trustee would make the following prepared motion:  

I move that the Committee recommend the Resolutions presented in the 
meeting materials relating to items on the Committee Consent Agenda for 
adoption by the Board of Trustees by unanimous consent.

Ms. Miles so moved, and Ms. White seconded.  The Chair called for a voice vote, and the 
motion passed unanimously.  

[Note:  Prior to the meeting, the administration withdrew the item titled 
“Transfer of Jurisdiction of Property at Alcoa Highway and Cherokee Trail 
Interchange to TDOT (UTK/UTIA/Cherokee Farm/UHS).”]

V. FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Chair recognized CFO Miller to present the proposed Finance and Administration 
Committee charter.  Mr. Miller explained that the Bylaws of the Board adopted on August 
1, 2018 require each standing committee to submit for Board approval a charter detailing 
committee responsibilities. He said that with the assistance of the Secretary and in 
consultation with the Committee Chair, he developed the proposed charter detailing 19
specific responsibilities but added that the charter is broad enough to allow the Committee 
to address any University financial matter.  He explained that one specific responsibility is 
derived from the UT FOCUS Act and involves creation of a process for the new campus 
advisory boards to make budget recommendations to the President.

The Chair called for any questions or concerns about the charter.  Ms. Miles asked that a
mechanism be created to track the Committee’s responsibilities to ensure they are carried 
out.  The Chair concurred, stating there should be an annual calendar listing each matter
and the meeting at which it will be on the agenda.  Hearing no other questions or 
discussion, the Chair asked whether a member of the Committee would make the 
following prepared motion:

I move that the Finance and Administration Committee approve and 
recommend the committee charter to the Board of Trustees for approval by 
adoption of the Resolution presented in the meeting materials.

Ms. White so moved, and Ms. Miles seconded.  Hearing no request for further discussion, 
the Chair called for a voice vote, and the motion passed unanimously.

1.1 
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VI. FY 2019-20 OPERATING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS REQUEST FOR NON-
FORMULA UNITS

The Chair recognized CFO Miller to present the FY 2019-20 Operating Budget 
Appropriations Request for Non-Formula Units and asked him to define a non-formula 
unit.  Mr. Miller explained that the state provides incremental funding to the campuses at 
Knoxville, Chattanooga, and Martin through a competitive performance-based funding
formula under the Complete College Tennessee Act, which, together with state 
appropriations for salary increases, is the primary funding mechanism for those traditional 
academic campuses.  

The non-formula units—Institute of Agriculture, Institute of Public Service, and the Health 
Science Center—are not included in performance-based funding process, he explained, but 
may request improvement funding through the normal budget process.  He added that the 
Tennessee Higher Education Commission is transitioning to referring to these units as 
“specialized units,” a term used more frequently across the nation.  Funding requests by 
these units are submitted to the President, who reviews the programmatic and financial 
need, discusses the request with the unit and government relations staff, and then makes 
recommendations to the Finance and Administration Committee in a priority order.  This 
year’s list of the prioritized requests totals $13.3 million. The total THEC recommendation 
for all specialized units for all universities will likely be about $10 million.  

Dr. DiPietro added that requests must be in the realm of reasonableness and that being on 
the list allows the units, if not included in the Governor’s budget, to lobby the legislature 
for them as long as the respective governing boards have endorsed the requests.  The first 
priority is the Health Science Center program for addiction medicine, which is a repeat 
request from last year when $2 million of non-recurring funding was appropriated.  The 
current request is for recurring funding.  

The Chair asked for an example of an item that was brought forward to the Committee last 
year, and Mr. Miller mention a request of $12 million for IT infrastructure at the Health 
Science Center.  He added that although the infrastructure improvement is a genuine need, 
it is not the kind of request typically funded through this process because it is an operating 
expense. The Chair asked whether that means Chancellor Schwab and his team would 
have to find savings in their operating budget to pay for it, and Mr. Miller said it does.  

The Chair asked that next year the Committee receive a list of the requests that are funded
for FY 2019-20.  Mr. Miller agreed to do so and added that the President has pressed to
obtain operating budget increases for these specialized units because they currently do not 
have a mechanism to request general operating increases. Dr. DiPietro noted there might 
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be good news in the recommendation from THEC to include some operating money for 
the specialized units this year.

Hearing no other questions or discussion, the Chair asked whether a member of the 
Committee would make the following prepared motion:

I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend Board 
approval of the FY 2019-20 operating budget appropriations request for non-
formula units by adoption of the Resolution presented in the meeting 
materials.

Ms. Miles so moved, and Ms. White seconded.  The Chair called for a voice vote, and the 
motion passed unanimously.  

VII. FISCAL YEAR 2018 REPORT ON YEAR-END FUND BALANCES

CFO Miller explained that each annual budget assumes some carry-forward reserves from 
current year funds, but the budgeting process does not include carry-forward funds from 
prior years.  He then presented the following table showing carry-forward, year-end funds 
divided into (1) current year funds included in the Board-approved annual operating 
budget and (2) carry-forward funds from prior years reported in the annual financial 
statements and included in the annual Treasurer’s Report: 

Balances budgeted in the annual operating budget (year-end actuals)
Fund FY 2015 FY 2016 FY2017 FY2018 

Working Capital $37,378,371 $33,663,961 $30,269,859 $29,104,516
Revolving Fund 19,839,529 13,095,645 14,434,335 24,571,945
Encumbrances 5,662,983 5,097,097 4,427,733 3,436,957
Reappropriations 54,206,226 12,257,820 12,232,441 11,890,693
Unallocated Auxiliaries 11,382,335 10,361,765 9,871,218 10,324,635
Unallocated E&G 45,369,579 45,898,716 46,926,158 56,306,804
Subtotal $173,839,023 $120,375,004 $118,161,744 $135,635,551

[table continued on next page]
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Balances reported in annual financial statements
Fund FY 2015 FY 2016 FY2017 FY2018 

Renewal and Replacement $384,753,461 $478,984,943 $553,567,335 $515,054,687
Unexpended Plant Funds 41,070,884 46,309,851 54,607,375 138,317,754
Debt Service 19,864,359 29,752,074 32,630,910 44,346,627
Quasi-Endowments 14,469,639 13,380,327 13,964,620 14,107,006
Subtotal $460,158,343 $568,427,195 $654,770,240 $711,826,074
Total Year-end $633,997,366 $688,802,199 $772,931,984 $847,461,625

Less Investment in Plant and 
Interest Payable (6,448,107) (6,682,846) (6,161,641) (8,381,080)
Less Benefits Liability (324,487,517) (288,343,738) (314,847,503) (420,261,497)

Total $303,061,742 $393,775,615 $451,922,840 $418,819,048

Concerning carry-forward funds from prior years, Mr. Miller explained that Unexpended 
Plant Funds, Debt Service Payments, and Quasi-Endowments are encumbered funds, 
while Renewal and Replacement are funds held from year to year for long-range 
obligations, planning, and reserves.  He noted that Renewal and Replacement is a 
significant dollar amount at each institution and is broken down into a variety of accounts 
determined by the campus or institute for the purpose for which it is carried forward.  The 
fund totals for all ten accounts in the table are reported to the legislature every year during 
the budget making process.  The legislature’s finance staff accumulates totals for all the 
universities and provides it to the House and Senate finance committees.  Legislators 
routinely ask questions about the sources and uses of carry-forward funds. While the four-
year trend shows the total has been growing each year, the balance as a percentage of total 
expenses has remained constant at about 24%.

Mr. Miller announced that a better process to describe and account for Renewal and 
Replacement funds is now in place. The new process categorizes the funds according to 
the level of commitment supporting each account—obligated, planned, reserved, or 
discretionary—and definitions for each category have been established.  Over the past year, 
the chief business officers have led an initiative to follow these definitions and categorize 
these funds.  He asked the Committee to consider this first report as a trial, adding that he 
will be working with the auditors, through sampling, to review the obligations and test the 
process. The report will be on the Committee’s agenda for the fall meeting each year.  

Mr. Miller then directed the Committee’s attention to the following summary table:  
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Mr. Miller noted that of E&G Renewal and Replacement funds across all units, 20% is
obligated, 43% is planned, 27% is in reserves, and approximately 10% is discretionary.  In 
2017, the total renewal and replacement fund was about 25% of expenditures in 2018 it 
came down to about 22% of expenditures. 

The Chair commended Mr. Miller and all involved for the tremendous effort to create the 
report, noting that it brings clarity and explains that approximately $330 million of the total
in carry-forward funds is committed, either obligated or planned for the future.  Looking
forward, he suggested consideration should be given to aggregating funds in larger 
buckets and reducing the amount in the Reserved category. 

Ms. White agreed that the report provides a great deal of transparency and asked whether 
there is a typical reserve amount for an institution of UT’s size and whether other 
institutions are reporting this way.  Mr. Miller said this way of reporting is not widespread 
in higher education, but THEC staff has asked him to present the reporting method to a 
statewide meeting of higher education CFOs.  He added that primary reserves are 35% 
overall in the University’s Composition Financial Index (CFI) and that falling below 25% 
in that category would hurt the financial health of the institution.  This begs the question, 
he said, of whether there be targeted numbers for the categories, but further study is 
needed before that determination can be made.  According to the National Association of 
College and University Business Officers, which is the preeminent guidance for 
universities, the reserve target for public and private institutions is 40% but somewhat 
lower for public institutions.  

1.1 
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The Chair asked whether the University would be able to manage resources if another great 
recession occurred. Mr. Miller responded that the 26% Reserved category would be the 
first draw, and then each campus would reprioritize the Planned category, but restricted 
or designated accounts could not be repurposed. Mr. Compton said he sees the Obligated 
and Planned categories as shovels in the ground and the Reserved and Discretionary as 
about $180 million, which on a total budget of $2.4 billion is approximately 7-8%.  He 
cautioned that the nine-year expansion economy will eventually slow or end, and the 
University needs to maintain at least that amount in reserve.  He acknowledged that the 
former Board was concerned about the expenditure of funds in the Discretionary category 
without Board approval but said in his view receiving an annual report from the CFO with 
an assessment of whether the funds are being spent properly should be sufficient.  The 
Chair added that the next item of business is a policy on expenditure of carry-forward 
funds that will provide visibility and required approval to shift funds above a certain level.  

VIII. NEW POLICY ON EXPENDITURE OF YEAR-END CARRY FORWARD 
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS

CFO Miller informed the Committee that the Resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees 
in June 2018 approving the 2018-19 operating budget includes the following language:

The Chief Financial Officer is directed to develop and submit to the Board of 
Trustees at the fall 2018 meeting a proposed Board policy to govern the 
approval of expenditures from year-end carry forward unrestricted funds.

Mr. Miller noted that the Chief Audit and Compliance Officer, Sandy Jansen, worked with 
former Board leadership to clarify Board questions and concerns on this subject and then 
conducted an audit based on a sampling of expenditures.  He went on to explain that the 
former Board’s primary concern was to ensure that funds were being used for the intended 
purpose and not being reallocated for other purposes without review and approval. Mr. 
Miller said the proposed policy would require each institution to obtain approval from the 
Chief Financial Officer before executing the following transactions:

A. Transferring Renewal and Replacement monies from one account to another which 
thereby changes the purpose for which the monies were accrued; or

B. Making a transfer from a Renewal and Replacement account to fund expenditures 
other than those for which the monies in the account were accrued; or

C. Making a single transfer out of any Renewal and Replacement account greater than 
$1,000,000.

1.1 
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The Chair noted that the proposed policy does not provide a threshold amount for CFO 
approval of transfers between accounts.  Mr. Compton noted that the former Board 
requested a much more granular approach than is recommended in the proposed policy.  
The Chair voiced concern about wasting the CFO’s time on minimal amounts and said 
there should be some reasonable threshold amount so that every dollar transferred does 
not require CFO approval.  Mr. Miller recommended the amount of $500,000 be set for 
transfers under items A and B of the proposed policy.  The Chair said he was willing to 
start with that threshold and look at examples above and below the threshold.  Dr. DiPietro 
agreed with that approach.  The Chair then asked Chris Cimino, Vice Chancellor for 
Finance and Administration at UTK, for his opinion.  Mr. Cimino said on some projects,
larger amounts are routinely transferred in short timeframes to meet project demands. He 
added that although he understands the need for some oversight, expenditures already go 
through a workflow process in the System accounting office. Mr. Miller explained, 
however, that review by the System accounting office is only for proper accounting and
not an evaluation of judgment or purpose.  Mr. Cimino said requiring approval prior to 
transfer could cause delays, but the Chair responded that the approval must be prior to 
transfer to be of any value.  Mr. Cimino suggested that the threshold be set at $1.0 million
for UTK, but noted that for the other campus, expenditures might be much lower.   Mr. 
Cimino also argued that when projects have already been approved by the Board and the 
State Building Commission, merely moving money out of a reserve fund back to a plant 
fund to pay for the approved project should not need further approval.  

Ms. White suggested that the Committee should receive a report of expenditures for a 
while before adopting a policy requiring an approval process that delays campus activity.  
Chair Compton reiterated that former Board wanted to go much deeper than is now being 
proposed. Mr. Smith suggested lowering the threshold if only a report would be required, 
adding that a lower threshold would provide better information on which to base a 
decision about the need for a policy.  

Mr. Wiseman said the Committee seems to be trying to solve a problem without knowing 
exactly what it is.  Chief Audit and Compliance Officer Sandy Jansen explained that the 
former Board had questions and concerns because in the past, information was not been 
presented using the categories of Obligated, Planned, Reserved, and Discretionary.  The 
Chair then suggested the Committee should ask the CFO and chief business officers to 
brainstorm to figure out best practices to ensure unnecessary work is not being imposed, 
but he added that the Committee needs to see some examples of these transactions.  The 
Chair then directed Mr. Miller to place this item on the agenda for the next Committee 
meeting and to present some clarity on current campus practices, what may be best 
practices, and possible thresholds varying by institution.  He emphasized that the Board 
needs to ensure there are ample eyes on usage of $180 million and to ensure there are 
proper controls. 
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The Chair called for a motion to defer action on the proposed New Policy on Expenditure 
of Year-end Carry Forward Unrestricted Funds.  Chair Compton asked that deferral be 
specified to the March 1, 2019 meeting.  Ms. Miles so moved, and Ms. White seconded.  
Hearing no further questions or discussion, the Chair called for a voice vote, and the 
motion passed unanimously.  

IX. REVISED POLICY ON APPROVAL OF STUDENT FEES TO INCLUDE 
FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED WHEN DEVELOPING 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO INCREASE TUITION AND MANDATORY FEES

CFO Miller informed the Committee that a new state law, the Tuition Transparency and 
Accountability Act, requires each university governing board to determine factors to be 
considered when increasing tuition and mandatory fees and to submit the factors to the 
legislature by January 1, 2019.  The Chair said the new law seems to be aimed at providing 
greater control and visibility with respect to tuition and other mandatory fee increases.  
Mr. Miller agreed and directed the Committee’s attention to the following factors proposed 
for approval:  

a. Tennessee Higher Education Commission (THEC) binding tuition and mandatory 
fee increase ranges;

b. Level of state support;
c. Total cost of attendance;
d. Efforts to mitigate the financial effect on students; and 
e. Other factors deemed appropriate by University administration such as student 

demand; campus enrollment goals; market factors; and cost factors related to 
general campus operations, programs of study, or individual courses.

The Chair asked whether a member of the Committee would make the following prepared 
motion:

I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend that the 
Board of Trustees approve the Revised Policy on Approval of Student Fees
by adoption of the Resolution presented in the meeting materials.

Ms. White so moved, and Ms. Miles seconded.  Hearing no questions or a request for 
discussion, the Chair called for a voice vote, and the motion passed unanimously.  
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X. REVISED INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

CFO Miller called the Committee’s attention to proposed revisions to the Investment 
Policies and Procedures detailed in the meeting materials.  He explained that in the past, 
the policy delegated administration of the investment program to the Treasurer with 
support from an advisory group.  The revised policy provides that the advisory group (to 
be known as the Investment Advisory Council) will advise the President and his staff; 
specifies that the Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee (or a member of the 
committee designated by the Committee Chair) will serve as Chair of the advisory group; 
and makes various changes in membership of the advisory group.  

The Chair asked whether a member of the Committee would make the following prepared 
motion:

I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend that the 
Board of Trustees approve the revised Investment Policies and Procedures 
by adoption of the Resolution presented in the meeting materials.

Ms. Miles so moved, and Ms. White seconded.  Hearing no questions or a request for 
discussion, the Chair called for a voice vote, and the motion passed unanimously.

XI. SECOND AMENDMENT OF LEASE AND TRANSFER AGREEMENT WITH 
UNIVERSITY HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.

CFO Miller explained that in 1999, University Health System, Inc. (UHS) entered into a 50-
year Lease and Transfer Agreement (LTA) with the University and the State of Tennessee 
for management and operation of the UT Medical Center in Knoxville.  The agreement 
required UHS to defease University debt of approximately $149 million, make a $25 million 
cash payment at closing, and annual payments in years 2000-2020 determined by a formula, 
and a final payment by March 15, 2021 of $50 million less the cumulative annual payments 
made.  He reported that the current balance due on the $50 million payment is 
approximately $14 million and is expected to be approximately $10 million by March 2021.
He explained that the LTA required renegotiation of the annual lease payment in 2019 for 
the final 30 years of the original lease term.  

Mr. Miller said Dr. DiPietro asked him to work with Joe Landsman, CEO of UHS, to carry 
out the required renegotiation.  Mr. Landsman was present at the meeting, and Dr. DiPietro 
recognized him and thanked him for his cooperation in finding a path forward that is 
beneficial for both parties.  Mr. Miller said the first element of the proposed amendment 
deals with the payment due on March 15, 2021. The proposed amendment allows UHS to 
pay a lump sum or amortize it over five years at the interest rate earned by the University’s 
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Consolidated Investment Pool, which ensures there would be no loss to the University if 
the payment is amortized over five years.  The second element requires UHS to make an 
annual payment equivalent to 20% of its net operating revenue after UHS achieves an A-
bond rating or equivalent. Mr. Miller explained that this provision derives from language 
in the original LTA designed to ensure that any continued annual lease payment for the 
final 30 years of the original 50-year term would be based on the financial position and 
bond rating and debt obligations of UHS and would not result in withdrawal, suspension, 
or lowering of the UHS bond rating.  The third element extends the LTA for a second 50-
year term through 2099, which is consistent with the original agreement’s provision for 
automatic extension absent notice to the contrary by either party.  Mr. Miller explained that 
extending for a second 50-year term will allow UHS to engage in long-term debt beyond 
2049.  

The Chair noted that if UHS, Inc. does not achieve the bond rating of an A- for a calendar 
year of the term, future lease payment would not be due that year and asked whether the
20% payment is pushed out another year or would lapse in that event.  Mr. Miller 
responded that the payment would lapse because the original agreement stipulated that 
making the payment should not worsen the financial condition of UHS.  He added that it 
is in the University’s interest for the UT Medical Center to be a strong and viable affiliate 
for graduate medical education.  He added that the incentive for UHS to achieve the A-
bond rating is financially greater than avoidance of the payment to the University.  Dr. 
DiPietro added that the University has representation on the UHS board and Mr. 
Landsman has led UHS to a much more positive position than it was four year ago.  In 
response to a question, Mr. Miller confirmed that the new payment is 20% of UHS net 
operating profit.  He said the balance of the $50 million due in March 2021 is payable by 
UHS regardless of the annual payment thereafter but added that if making that payment 
would put UHS in a worse financial situation, the proposed amendment would allow the 
payment to be amortized at the University’s Consolidated Investment Pool rate over five 
years.

The Chair asked whether a member of the Committee would make the following prepared 
motion:

I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend that the 
Board of Trustees approve the Second Amendment to the Lease and Transfer 
Agreement by adoption of the Resolution presented in the meeting materials.

Ms. Miles so moved, and Ms. White seconded. Hearing no further questions or discussion, 
the Chair called for a voice vote, and the motion passed unanimously.
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XII. AUTHORIZATION FOR THE PRESIDENT TO APPROVE AN AFFILIATION 
AGREEMENT WITH WEST TENNESSEE MEDICAL GROUP, INC. RELATED 
TO THE FACULTY PRACTICE PLAN FOR FAMILY MEDICINE IN JACKSON, 
TENNESSEE

CFO Miller explained that the UT Health Science Center is changing its Family Medicine 
practice in Jackson, Tennessee, from an owned and operated clinic to a physician practice 
plan in affiliation with Jackson General Hospital.  The former Board approved designation 
of the West Tennessee Medical Group as a faculty practice plan for Family Medicine in the 
Jackson service area, subject to final negotiation of an affiliation agreement.  Negotiation of 
the agreement was not completed before the last meeting of the former Board in June 2018. 
Negotiation of the agreement has now been completed as outlined in the meeting materials, 
and the administration requests authorization for the President to approve the agreement 
after review and approval by the Chief Financial Officer and the General Counsel.  

The Chair asked whether a member of the Committee would make the following prepared 
motion:

I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend that the 
Board authorize the President to approve an affiliation agreement with the 
West Tennessee Medical Group, Inc., by adoption of the Resolution presented 
in the meeting materials.

Ms. White so moved, and Ms. Miles seconded. Hearing no questions or a request for 
discussion, the Chair called for a voice vote, and the motion passed unanimously.  

XIII. FY 2018 REPORT ON ENDOWMENT AND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

CFO Miller informed the Committee that the investment advisory group receives detailed 
information on investment performance at each quarterly meeting and that the report in 
the meeting materials represents key highlights.  He said the report is as of the end of FY 
2018 (June 30) and that the benchmark is the annual payout of 4.5%, plus 1% administrative 
cost and the annual inflation rate. He introduced Rip Mecherle, the Chief Investment 
Officer, who said that the Consolidated Investment Pool is around $982 million currently 
after the market sell off over the last few weeks. Mr. Miller said a 60/40 strategy of stocks
to bonds has been in effect, but when the Investment Advisory Council reconvenes in 
December, the new Fund Manager will advise on a possible change in that strategy to be 
more aggressive.  In response to a question from Mr. Compton, Mr. Miller explained that 
the endowment held by the UC Foundation, for the benefit of UT Chattanooga, is not 
included in the report and its returns are not reviewed by the Investment Advisory Council 
because the UC Foundation is an independent foundation, and UT does not hold those 
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funds.  This report was provided for the Committee’s information and no action was 
required.  

XIV. BOARD-APPROVED PEER AND ASPIRATIONAL INSTITUTIONS/
COMPREHENSIVE SALARY STUDY

Mr. Miller noted that the former Board directed an initiative to establish peers by which to 
measure performance for all purposes and to be used in all studies reported to the Board.  
He explained that in June 2017, the Board approved the criteria that would be used to 
determine whether an institution is a peer.  The criteria were then applied to determine 
two sets for each campus—a set of comparable peers and a set of aspirational institutions—
which the former Executive and Compensation Committee, authorized to act on behalf of 
the Board, approved in August 2017.  He directed the Committee’s attention to the listing 
of comparable peers and aspirational institutions for each campus in the meeting materials.
He explained that these institutions were used to conduct the first phase of a 
comprehensive salary study the Board requested to evaluate the competitiveness of 
compensation for all faculty and staff.  He directed the Committee’s attention to highlights 
of the salary study presented in the meeting materials.  This item was presented for the 
Committee’s information, and no action was required.     

XV. OTHER BUSINESS 

No other business was brought before the Committee.

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the Chair adjourned the meeting.

Respectfully Submitted,

___________________________________
David L. Miller
Chief Financial Officer
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: KUB Gas Line Easement, Chamique Holdsclaw at Lake Loudoun (UTK)

Type: Action

The University of Tennessee, Knoxville proposes that the University grant an easement to 
Knoxville Utilities Board (KUB) for up to 0.33+/- acres located on Chamique Holdsclaw 
Drive at Lake Loudoun Boulevard in Knoxville, Tennessee (see attached map).

The easement is necessary for a utility system improvement that will provide redundancy 
by connecting existing gas lines on Chamique Holdsclaw Drive and Phillip Fulmer Way and 
the installation of a regulator station.  

The easement will allow KUB and their contractors to enter upon, construct, operate, repair 
and maintain utilities within the defined area.  The University reserves the right to relocate 
the easement in the future at the expense of the University.

Because the easement would benefit UT Knoxville, the University is not seeking further 
consideration from KUB.  Upon approval by the Board of Trustees, the University will seek 
all required state approvals.

[Resolution follows]
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Resolution 00_-2019*

Grant of Easement to Knoxville Utilities Board for a
Gas Line on Chamique Holdsclaw Drive at Lake Loudoun Boulevard

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the grant of an easement to the Knoxville 
Utilities Board for a gas line on certain property located on Chamique Holdsclaw Drive 
at Lake Loudoun Boulevard in Knoxville, Tennessee, the description of which shall be 
attached to this Resolution after adoption.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.  

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Water Line Easement along Elk River Dam Road (UTSI)

Type: Action

The University of Tennessee Space Institute proposes that the University grant an 
easement of approximately 0.82 acres located along Elk River Dam Road in Estill Springs, 
Tennessee, (see attached map) to adjoining property owners John Donald Plattenburg
and Bonnie C. Plattenburg.

The easement is necessary to allow the property owners to tie in to the existing water 
service at Research Park Drive.  The easement will not interfere with UTSI operations.

The easement will allow the property owners and their contractors to enter upon, 
construct, operate, repair and maintain utilities within the defined area. The University 
reserves the right to relocate the easement at the expense of the University. 

The University will request fair market value consideration from the property owners. 
Upon approval by the Board of Trustees, the University will seek all required State 
approvals.

[Resolution follows]
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Resolution 00_-2019*

Grant of an Easement to John Donald Plattenburg and Bonnie C. Plattenburg for a
Water Line along Elk River Dam Road in Estill Springs, Tennessee

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the grant of an easement to John Donald 
Plattenburg and Bonnie C. Plattenburg, subject to the payment of fair market value 
consideration, for a water line on certain property located along Elk River Dam Road in 
Estill Springs, Tennessee, the description of which shall be attached to this Resolution 
after adoption.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.  

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Easements for Sidewalk Improvements along University Street (UTM)

Type: Action

The University of Tennessee at Martin proposes that easements be granted to the City of 
Martin of approximately 0.43 acres located along University Street in Martin, Tennessee (see 
attached map).

The easements are necessary for a city sidewalk project along University Street.  The majority 
of the work will take place within an existing right-of-way but the easements will allow 
connections between the new sidewalk and existing University stairs/sidewalks.  Steps and 
steep non-compliant sidewalks will be reworked to meet ADA accessibility requirements.  In 
addition, pedestrian level lighting will be installed. 

The easements will allow the City of Martin and their contractors to enter upon, construct, 
operate, repair and maintain the sidewalks and associated improvements within the defined 
area. The University reserves the right to relocate the easements at the expense of the 
University.

The University will bear no cost for these improvements, and because they will benefit the UT 
Martin campus, the University will not request further consideration from the City of Martin. 
Upon approval by the Board of Trustees, the University will seek all required state approvals.

[Resolution follows]
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Resolution 00_-2019*

Grant of Easements to the City of Martin for Sidewalk Improvements along
University Street in Martin, Tennessee

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the grant of easements to the City of Martin, 
Tennessee, for sidewalk improvements on certain property along University Street in 
Martin, Tennessee, the description of which shall be attached to this Resolution after 
adoption.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.  

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Transfer of Jurisdiction along Alcoa Highway and 
Cherokee Trail Interchange to TDOT (UT/UHS)

Type: Action

The University proposes to dispose of the property described below, located along Alcoa Highway 
and the Cherokee Trail interchange, through a Transfer of Jurisdiction (TOJ) to the Tennessee 
Department of Transportation (TDOT) (see attached map):

∑ 26.7 +/- acres in fee
∑ 0.8 +/- acres in permanent drainage easement
∑ 5.0 +/- acres in slope easement
∑ 2.5 +/- acres in construction easement

This TOJ affects property located on Cherokee Farm, UT Knoxville Golf Practice Facility, and the UT 
Institute of Agriculture Cherokee Woodlot and College of Veterinary Medicine properties.  The TOJ 
also affects property located on the UT Medical Center campus that falls under the Lease and Transfer 
Agreement between University Health System, Inc. and the University.

TDOT is realigning and widening the existing State Route 115 (Alcoa Highway) to accommodate three 
travel lanes in each direction. A center median barrier wall will be constructed throughout the project 
limits, eliminating left turns from State Route 115.

In addition to the proposed widening on State Route 115, improvements will also be made to the 
Cherokee Trail interchange to provide improved access to Cherokee Trail, UT Medical Center, and 
Cherokee Farm. 

The irregularly shaped easements will allow TDOT and their contractors to enter upon, construct, 
operate and repair the highway and associated improvements within the defined area. The University 
reserves the right to relocate the easements in the future at the expense of the University.  

The administration requests approval to transfer the property to TDOT at a price equal to or above the 
appraised value. Upon approval by the Board of Trustees, the administration will seek all required 
state approvals.

[Resolution follows]
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Transfer of Jurisdiction along Alcoa Highway and Cherokee Trail Interchange to
Tennessee Department of Transportation

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves disposal of certain property described in the 
meeting materials, which shall be attached to this Resolution after adoption, located 
along Alcoa Highway and the Cherokee Trail Interchange in Knoxville, Tennessee,
through a Transfer of Jurisdiction to the Tennessee Department of Transportation.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Long-term Lease of Real Property, Coon Creek Science Center (UTM)

Type: Action

The University of Tennessee at Martin proposes that the University enter into a long-term lease of 
up to twenty (20) years, with the option to extend for an additional twenty (20) years, for 232+/-
acres located at 2983 Hardin Graveyard Road in Adamsville, Tennessee, and commonly known as 
the Coon Creek Science Center (see attached map).  

The Coon Creek Science Center is one of a dozen of the most significant fossil sites in North America 
and has yielded over 600 different species of marine creatures, preserved as unaltered fossils.  The 
University currently conducts research and education at the site and would use the property to offer 
enhanced undergraduate and graduate courses, public summer programming, Eco- and Paleo-
tourism, and research.

Improvements at the property include a small residence, cabins, dining hall/classroom, and storage 
sheds.  The University is performing due diligence on the property including a facility condition 
assessment, environmental review, and code compliance review.

The University would pay $1 per year in rental payments and would be responsible for maintenance 
of the property and improvements.  The State of Tennessee standard lease template will be the basis 
for the lease agreement.

The administration requests approval of the proposed lease in principle, subject to satisfactory 
results of all due diligence reviews, and requests delegation of final approval of the lease terms and 
conditions to the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Chair of the Finance and 
Administration Committee, after which all required state approvals would be sought.

Motion:  I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption of the 
Resolution presented in the meeting materials to approve in principle a long-term lease of the 
Coon Creek Science Center, subject to satisfactory results of all due diligence reviews, and to 
delegate final approval of the lease terms and conditions to the Chief Financial Officer, in 
consultation with the Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee.
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Long-term Lease of Real Property, Coon Creek Science Center 

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves in principle a long-term lease of the Coon 
Creek Science Center, as described in the meeting materials, for use by The University of 
Tennessee at Martin, subject to satisfactory results of all due diligence reviews; and

Further resolved:  The Board of Trustees delegates authority for final approval of the lease 
terms and conditions to the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Chair of the 
Finance and Administration Committee.  

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Acquisition by Gift of Real Property in Franklin County for 
UTIA Use

Type: Action

The University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture (UTIA) seeks approval to acquire by
gift approximately 4.5 acres of property located on Tullahoma Highway in Estill Springs, 
Tennessee (see attached map).  The property would be acquired and held for institutional 
use by UTIA.

The property adjoins UTIA’s 860-acre Highland Rim Forest Research and Education 
Center.   The property is unimproved forest land and will be used for research and 
demonstration projects aimed at identifying optimum tree species and forest production 
systems to increase forest productivity on similar sites.

The University administration requests approval to acquire the property located at 
Tullahoma Highway, Estill Springs, Tennessee, by gift for institutional use.  Upon 
approval by the Board, the University will seek all required state government approvals.

Motion:  I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption 
of the Resolution presented in the meeting materials to approve acquisition by gift of 
certain property in Franklin County, Tennessee.
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Resolution 00_-2019*

Acquisition by Gift of Real Property in Franklin County, Tennessee
for Use by the Institute of Agriculture

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the acquisition by gift of certain real property 
located on Tullahoma Highway in Estill Springs, Franklin County, Tennessee, to be held 
for use by the Institute of Agriculture; the description of the property included in the 
meeting materials shall be attached to this Resolution after adoption.  

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Disclosure of Additional Revenue/Institutionally Funded Capital 
Projects for FY 2018-19

Type: Information 

The University administration has identified additional revenue/institutionally funded 
capital projects for FY 2018-19.  The projects, totaling $12,050,000, are as follows:

1. UTHSC Pharmacy Nuclear Lab - $300,000
2. UTK 4848 Lyons View – Programming - $50,000
3.  UTK Campus Roadway Paving (18/19) - $1,000,000
4.  UTK Carousel Theatre - Programming - $100,000
5.  UTK Carrick Hall Mold Remediation - $800,000
6.  UTK Clement Hall Water Remediation - $800,000
7.  UTK Laurel Hall Mold Remediation - $8,000,000
8.  UTK Student Union Space Buildout - $1,000,000

These projects are in addition to the list of FY 2018-19 revenue/institutionally funded 
projects approved by the Board on November 3, 2017.  The Board’s action in 2017 
included authorization, with the President’s approval, to enter into design and 
construction contracts for additional revenue/institutionally funded projects identified 
during the fiscal year.  Accordingly, with the President’s approval, the University sought
approval by the Tennessee Higher Education Commission and the State Department of 
Finance and Administration for these additional projects.

In accordance with the Board’s November 3, 2017 authorization, these additional projects 
are reported for information, and no action is required.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Fiscal Policy on Unclaimed Property ― Promulgation as a UAPA Rule

Type: Action

The University of Tennessee is subject to the State of Tennessee’s “Uniform Unclaimed 
Property Act,” Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 66-29-101 et seq., and related regulations. To comply with 
that Act, the University has for many years maintained a fiscal policy referred to as “FI0140 
Unclaimed Property.” As a result of a new state law, Public Chapter 929 (2018), the 
administration requests that the Board act to convert the Unclaimed Property policy to a rule 
in accordance with the rulemaking procedures of the Uniform Administrative Procedures 
Act (UAPA). Upon adoption by the Board, the rule will be submitted to the Tennessee 
Attorney General for approval and, if approved, filed with the Tennessee Secretary of State 
under the rulemaking procedures of the UAPA.

The policy in the required UAPA rule format appears in the meeting materials; no revisions 
other than format are proposed.    

[Resolution follows]
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Fiscal Policy on Unclaimed Property ― Promulgation as a UAPA Rule

Resolved:  The unclaimed property rule for The University of Tennessee, Chapter 1720-
01-14 of the Rules of The University of Tennessee, is approved as presented in the meeting 
materials, which shall be attached to this Resolution after adoption and shall become 
effective after completion of the rulemaking procedures under the Uniform 
Administrative Procedures Act; and

Further resolved: The Unclaimed Property fiscal policy (FI0140) shall be repealed upon 
the effective date of Chapter 1720-01-14 of the Rules of The University of Tennessee.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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Rules of
The University of Tennessee 

(All Campuses)

Chapter 1720-01-14
Unclaimed Property

Table of Contents

1720-01-14-.01
1720-01-14-.02
1720-01-14-.03
1720-01-14-.04
1720-01-14-.05

1720-01-14-.06
1720-01-14-.07
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Due Diligence
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Accounts Receivable Credit 
Balances 
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Timetable for Unclaimed 
Property

1720-01-14-.08

1720-01-14-.09
1720-01-14-.10
1720-01-14-.11
1720-01-14-.12
1720-01-14-.13

Disposition of Non-Cash Items 
(Lost and Found)
Payment of Claims
Confiscated Property 
Procedures
Contacts 
Related Policies

1720-01-14-.01  General

The University of Tennessee (“the University”) is subject to the state of Tennessee’s “Uniform Unclaimed 
Property Act,” T.C.A. § 66-29-101 et seq. (the “Act”) and Regulations 1700-02-01-.01 through 1700-02-01-
.37, when it is a holder of property that is unclaimed and presumed to be abandoned by the apparent owner 
of the property, if the last known address of the apparent owner, as shown on the University’s records, is 
in Tennessee or is unknown.  This Act requires the University to exercise due diligence in attempting to 
locate apparent owners of unclaimed property in its custody and to annually report certain unclaimed 
property to the state.  Additionally, the state of Tennessee accepts unclaimed property for which the 
apparent owner’s last known address is in another state or commonwealth of the U.S.  The state reciprocally 
reports this property on behalf of the University to the appropriate state or commonwealth.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-14-.02  Unclaimed Property  

(1) The Act applies to unclaimed property 

(a) that the University owes to or is holding for other organizations or individuals and 

(b) for which the University has had no contact with the apparent owner for a minimum of 
one (1) year up to the maximum statutory period.  

(2) Unclaimed property includes, but is not limited to:

(a) Uncashed payroll checks

(b) Uncashed disbursement checks

(c) Uncashed refund checks

(d) Uncashed miscellaneous checks

(e) Unidentified remittances
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(f) Credit balances in accounts receivable

(g) Stored Value Cards (VolCard, Mocs, Skyhawk Card, etc.)

(3) Non-cash items are considered “lost and found” items.  These items are not considered to 
be unclaimed property and should not be reported to the state.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720.01-14-.03  Due Diligence

(1) Before reporting unclaimed property as described above, the University is required to 
exercise due diligence in attempting to notify the apparent owner of amounts of $50 or 
greater with information on how to claim property.  “Due diligence” is defined under 
applicable Tennessee law as the degree of care which a reasonably prudent person would 
exercise in the normal course of business operations and sending a written notice via first-
class or registered mail to the last known address of the apparent owner.  Such written 
notice must be sent not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, nor less than sixty (60) 
days, before filing the report with the state Treasurer.  If an apparent owner of unclaimed 
property has consented to receive electronic mail communications from the University, the 
University shall send the notice by both first-class mail to the apparent owner’s last known 
mailing address and by electronic mail, unless the University has reason to believe that the 
apparent owner’s electronic mail address is not valid.  (Property under $50 requires no due 
diligence notice letter and is submitted to the state along with other unclaimed amounts 
from the same calendar year.)  

(2) The University’s notice to the apparent owner of unclaimed property must contain a 
heading that reads substantially as follows “Notice: The State of Tennessee requires us to 
notify you that your property may be transferred to the custody of the treasure if you do not 
contact us within thirty (30) days after the date of this notice.”  

(3) Mail returned as “undeliverable” is evidence that the apparent owner cannot be located.  If 
the apparent owner cannot be located, the property should be considered abandoned and 
be reported to the state as unclaimed property.  

(4) Unreturned mail is considered a contact (presumably, the apparent owner has received the 
notification and is now aware of the property’s location).  If contact is established, the 
property is no longer considered to be abandoned and should not be reported to the state.  
If the apparent owner does not claim the property or provide the University with directions 
for disposing of the property within ninety (90) days of the date of contact, the University 
may then assume ownership of the property.  The Controller’s Office will account for these 
funds in claimed property funds that remain available should the funds be claimed by 
owners.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-14-.04  Stored Value Cards

Each campus or institute business office is responsible for performing due diligence on all stored value 
cards (VolCard, Mocs Card, Skyhawk Card, etc.) that have been inactive for at least one (1) year and a 
maximum of five (5) years and that have a balance of $50 or greater.  Detailed information associated with 
these cards must be maintained at the campus or institute level.  Each campus or institute must compile 
and transmit a file of names, addresses, and social security numbers of dormant account owners, along 
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with amounts to the Controller’s Office by October 1 of each year.  The list will also include balances under 
$50 for which due diligence is not required.  This effort must be coordinated with the Controller’s Office.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-14-.05  Accounts Receivable Credit Balances

Each campus or institute business office is responsible for performing due diligence on all credit balances 
in accounts receivable that have been inactive for at least one (1) year and a maximum of five (5) years 
and that have a balance of $50 or greater.  Detailed information associated with these balances must be 
maintained at the campus or institute level.  Each campus or institute must compile and transmit a file of 
names, addresses, and social security numbers of dormant account owners, along with amounts to the 
Controller’s Office by October 1 of each year.  The list will also include credit balances under $50 for which 
due diligence is not required.  This effort must be coordinated with the Controller’s Office.  As an alternative, 
credit balances under $50 and inactive for one (1) year may be reported through the Accounts Receivable 
Write-Off Request (Form T-35).  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-14-.06  Unclaimed Property Report

(1) The Act requires the annual filing of the Unclaimed Property Report for all unclaimed 
property.  The report must be submitted electronically through the “Report It TN,” the 
Tennessee Unclaimed Property online reporting portal, in the required NAUPA format.  No 
paper reports are accepted.  More information can be found on the state Treasurer’s Office 
website.  

(2) The University Controller’s Office should compile the list of all cash items (i.e., uncashed 
checks, unidentified remittances, credit balances in accounts receivable, stored value 
cards) for the entire university and report it to the state Treasurer’s Office.  Reports must 
be filed with the state Treasurer on or before November 1 of each year and must include 
property presumed abandoned held as of June 30 of the appropriate reporting year.  The 
state Treasurer may grant one 30-day extension provided a written request is received on 
or before November 1.  

(3) The University must retain supporting records relating to the reports for ten (10) years after 
the later of the date each report was filed or the last date a timely report was due to be 
filed, unless a shorter period is prescribed by the state Treasurer.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720 -01-14-.07  Timetable for Unclaimed Property

The following timetable describes the year’s schedule for reporting unclaimed property.  

June 30
End of reporting year.  

July 1 – August 31
Controller’s Office and campus or institute business offices (stored value cards and credit 
balances in accounts receivable) perform required due diligence on appropriate items 
considered abandoned.  
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October 1
Deadline for campus or institute business offices to transmit excel file of abandoned 
property to the Controller’s Office (stored value card and credit balances in accounts 
receivable).  

November 1
Reports, verification forms and unclaimed property (cash) are due in the state Treasurer’s 
Office.  

Note: The University will require proper proof of ownership when individuals claim property 
items.  The Controller’s Office and campus or institute business offices have developed 
procedures for handling claims.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-14-.08  Disposition of Non-Cash Items (Lost and Found)

(1) Abandoned non-cash items may be:

(a) Sold at a public auction or by sealed bids in accordance with F10610 – Surplus 
Property;

(b) Donated to a local charity (if not purchased through a public sale); or

(c) Discarded or destroyed if not valuable.  

(2) The following provisions apply to certain types of valuable property:

(a) Jewelry must be appraised and a minimum sales price established.  If appraised 
at little or no value, the jewelry should be discarded.  

(b) Coins that appear to have a market value substantially higher than face value 
should be appraised and a minimum sales price set.  

(c) Firearms should be disposed of in accordance with local statutes.  

(d) Dangerous items (items of a combustible nature that are dangerous to store) 
should be safely disposed of as soon as possible.  

(e) Illegal items should be disposed of in accordance with instructions from the proper 
legal authorities.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-14-.09  Payment of Claims

Since 1990, the University has annually remitted unclaimed property funds to the state Treasurer.  Before 
receiving payment for claims, apparent owners must present property proof of ownership to the state 
Treasurer or the university.  Accordingly, payment of claims for reported unclaimed property subsequent to 
1990 is the responsibility of the state Treasurer.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.
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1720-01-14-.10  Confiscated Property

Confiscated property will not be considered abandoned and should be treated as University surplus 
property for disposal purposes.  Confiscated firearms and other hazardous items should be disposed of in 
accordance with local statutes.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.  
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Fiscal Policy on Surplus Property ─ Promulgation as a UAPA Rule

Type: Action

The University of Tennessee occasionally has property that a department determines to 
be obsolete, unusable, or for which future needs do not justify the cost of maintenance 
and/or storage. To provide guidelines for handling such surplus property, the University 
has for many years maintained a fiscal policy referred to as “FI0610 Surplus Property.” 
As a result of a new state law, Public Chapter 929 (2018), the administration requests that 
the Board act to convert the Surplus Property policy to a rule in accordance with the 
rulemaking procedures of the Uniform Administrative Procedures Act (UAPA). Upon 
adoption by the Board, the rule will be submitted to the Tennessee Attorney General for 
approval and, if approved, filed with the Tennessee Secretary of State under the
rulemaking procedures of the UAPA.

The policy in the required UAPA rule format appears in the meeting materials; no 
revisions other than format are proposed.    

[Resolution follows]
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Fiscal Policy on Surplus Property ― Promulgation as a UAPA Rule

Resolved:  The surplus property rule for The University of Tennessee, Chapter 1720-01-
15 of the Rules of The University of Tennessee, is approved as presented in the meeting 
materials, which shall be attached to this Resolution after adoption and shall become 
effective after completion of the rulemaking procedures under the Uniform 
Administrative Procedures Act; and 

Further resolved:  The Surplus Property policy (FI0610) shall be repealed upon the 
effective date of Chapter 1720-01-15 of the Rules of The University of Tennessee.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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Rules of
The University of Tennessee 

(All Campuses)

Chapter 1720-01-15
Surplus Property

Table of Contents

1720-01-15-.01
1720-01-15-.02
1720-01-15-.03

1720-01-15-.04

Definition
General Policy
Responsibilities of the 
Department
Responsibilities of Surplus 
Property Personnel

1720-01-15-.05

1720-01-15-.06

1720-01-15-.07

Responsibilities of the 
Controller’s Office
Sanctions Relating to the Sale 
of Surplus Property
Exceptions

1720-01-15.01  Definition

Surplus property means any property such as movable equipment or supplies (opposed to real property 
such as land or building) a department of The University of Tennessee determines to be obsolete, or 
unusable or property for which future needs do not justify the cost of maintenance and/or storage.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-15-.02  General Policy

The Chancellors or designee for each University campus or institute shall designate a department or 
individual responsible for the disposal of all surplus property and the communications of applicable policies 
and procedures for their location.  For purposes of this rule, the designated department or individual is 
referred to as the surplus property personnel or department.  University departments not physically located 
on a campus will use the surplus property personnel located closest to them or they will work remotely with 
the personnel from their campus/institute to dispose of surplus property in the most efficient manner that 
complies with this regulation.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.

1720-01-15-.03  Responsibilities of the Department

(1) When feasible a department should attempt to determine if their surplus property can be 
used by another university department.  If the two (2) departments agree on a transfer, the 
issuing department should prepare Form T-64, Equipment Inventory Change/Delete 
Request, to transfer ownership and accountability to the receiving department.  If financial 
consideration is involved, the two (2) departments shall determine the amount and transfer 
the funds through a transfer voucher.  

(2) If the property can be traded-in to reduce the cost of replacement equipment, the 
department must work with their purchasing department on this transaction.  If purchasing 
determines that trading-in the property is more advantageous than selling it, the purchasing 
department will issue a purchase order for the purchase of the new equipment.  The 
department is then responsible for completing Form T-64 to remove the traded-in 
equipment from their official inventory records.  
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(3) If the property cannot be transferred to another university department or traded-in, the 
department must contact their surplus property personnel and follow their policies and 
procedures for the disposal of the property.  Departments are not authorized to dispose of 
property, sell it, or permanently transfer it to an external organization (even if it is another 
governmental agency or non-profit).  

(4) The form must require the signature of the department head or designee declaring the 
property surplus.  Electronic or digital signatures are acceptable.  

(5) The department is responsible for retaining a copy of all surplus property documents for 
six (6) years, including signed forms transferring the surplus property from their 
possession.  The department is also responsible for verifying that the surplus property has 
been removed from their inventory records.  This should be done annually.  

(6) Surplus property, which the federal government or other entity owns, should be transferred 
to that entity when no longer needed.  If applicable, Form T-64 should be completed by the 
department to remove this property from the University’s inventory records.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.  

1720-01-15-.04  Responsibilities of Surplus Property Personnel

(1) Each surplus property department is responsible for completing a form(s) for departments 
to declare property as surplus.  The forms must be approved by the Controller’s Office, and 
at a minimum contain the following: 

(a) Name and location of the department declaring the property as surplus.  

(b) Location of the property such as building and room number.  

(c) Departmental contact information including e-mail and telephone.  

(d) Itemized description of each piece of equipment that has a UT tag number. Non-
tagged items do not have to be itemized, if impractical (i.e., 100 classroom chairs). 

(e) The form must require the signature of the department head or designee that is 
declaring the property surplus and the campus surplus department personnel who 
are picking up the property.  Electronic or digital signatures are acceptable. 

(f) The form(s) must require the identification of all computers or other devices that 
may potentially store confidential information.  

(g) The form(s) must require the identification of any chemicals or equipment that may 
be considered radioactive, hazardous, toxic, or require special handling to comply 
with applicable environmental regulations.  

(h) The form must allow for routing to the Controller’s office for removal or transfer of 
surplus property.  

(2) The surplus property personnel are responsible for developing procedures to ensure that 
all computers, hard drivers or other equipment that may store university data have been 
sanitized and the data is unreadable before the equipment is disposed of or sold.  

(3) The surplus property personnel are responsible for contacting their safety officer(s) or other 
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appropriate personnel whenever property is being declared surplus from a lab or whenever 
any equipment may contain hazardous material that may pose a safety concern.  Surplus 
property personnel are responsible for developing procedures with their safety officer(s) to 
ensure that all potentially hazardous chemicals and equipment are disposed of in a manner 
that complies with applicable federal, state and university regulations.  

(4) Surplus property personnel are responsible for ensuring that an adequate audit and 
inventory trail exists for all items of surplus property.  This would include from the time that 
property is transferred to their possession until the sale or disposal of the item.  

(5) Surplus property personnel are responsible for determining which of the following disposal 
methods is the most advantageous.  One (1) of these methods must be used:

(a) Publicly advertised auction.  

(b) Transfer to another university department.

(c) Publicly advertised sale under sealed bids.  

(d) Internet auction.  

(e) Negotiated contract for sale at arm’s length (conducted among unrelated parties), 
but only for property that becomes surplus regularly, such as livestock, forestry 
products, and marketable waste products, but not motor vehicles.  

(f) Transfer to other state agencies, student association or public school systems.  

(g) Sale to state and other governmental entities. 

(h) Transfer to non-profit entities approved by the Tennessee Department of General 
Services.  

(i) The property may be destroyed by an appropriate method, if it is determined that 
it has no salvage or economic value.  

(6) The System Risk Management Office must approve of the disposal method for any 
property involved in an insurance claim.  

(7) The surplus property department is responsible for forwarding all applicable documents to 
the Controller’s office for all university tagged equipment that is disposed of by them or 
transferred by them to another university department.  This must occur as soon as the 
property is no longer in their possession.  

(8) When a surplus property department (or designee) decides to dispose of surplus property 
by public auctions or sealed bids, these proposed sales must be publicly advertised and 
publicly held.  The surplus property department (or designee) conducting the sale must 
advertise it in at least two (2) public places in the county or counties in which the sale is to 
be made.  The notice must describe the property, date, time, place, manner, and conditions 
of the sale.  The sale must not be held sooner than seven (7), nor later than fifteen,(15)
days after the last day of the public notice (excluding weekends and holidays).  

(9) No person, firm, or corporation may be sent invitations to bid on proposed sales unless no 
other market has been found for the property without requesting such bids.  Prospective 
buyers for various types of surplus property may be sent copies of the published notice, or 
they may be notified that a public notice has been posted on a stated date.  
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Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.  

1720-01-15-.05  Responsibilities of the Controller’s Office

The equipment records section of the Controller’s Office is responsible for removing and transferring all 
surplus property items reported to them.  They are also responsible for distributing annual equipment 
inventory verification reports to each department for their review and approval.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.  

1720-01-15-.06  Sanctions Relating to the Sale of Surplus Property

(1) The surplus property department (or designee) conducting the sale must ensure that all 
prospective purchasers are aware of the following sanctions:

(a) It is a felony punishable by a fine of $5,000 to $10,000 and/or imprisonment from one 
(1) to ten (10) years for any person to make any arrangement, contract, agreement, 
trust, or combination of these among persons or corporations which is designed to 
or tends to control the price the university receives for such property or the cost to 
the purchaser of such property.  In addition to this penalty, a state or university 
employee who violates this provision may be removed from employment and 
prohibited from such employment for five (5) years.  

(b) It is also a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of $500 or two-and-one-half times the 
value of the property bought, whichever is greater, for any state/university official or 
employee to purchase any surplus property from the university (except by bid at public 
auction) during his or her tenure of office or employment and for six (6) months 
thereafter.  For all sales except public auctions, the surplus property department (or 
designee) conducting the sale must obtain from each purchaser a signed disclaimer 
certifying that the purchaser is not a state or university employee and that the 
purchaser is not buying the property for or on behalf of any state or university 
employee.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.  

1720-01-15-.07  Exceptions

Surplus property may be disposed of by a method other than those listed in this regulation upon approval 
of the campus/institute’s chief business officer (or designee) and the university’s chief financial officer.  

Authority: T.C.A. § 49-9-209(e) and Public Acts of Tennessee, 1839-1840, Chapter 98, Section 5, and 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1807, Chapter 64.  
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Revised Board Policy on the Process for Submitting Legislative 
Proposals and Funding Requests to the General Assembly

Type: Action

In its 2014 session, the General Assembly enacted Public Chapter 538, now codified at 
Tennessee Code Annotated § 49-7-1002, which established certain mandatory provisions 
concerning the process for submitting legislative proposals and requests for state funding 
for public higher education to the General Assembly. The law required that those 
provisions “be made a formal part of the policies and procedures of the board of regents 
and the University of Tennessee.”

Accordingly, at a meeting on October 3, 2014, the Board adopted a new Board policy
titled “Policy on Process for Submitting Legislative Proposals and Funding Requests to 
the General Assembly.” The administration proposes that a sentence be added to the 
third paragraph of the policy to clarify that the policy applies only to requests made in 
an employee’s official capacity. The proposed revision appears in redlined form in the 
meeting materials.  

[Resolution follows]
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Revised Board Policy on the Process for Submitting Legislative Proposals and 
Funding Requests to the General Assembly

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the revised Board Policy on the Process for 
Submitting Legislative Proposals and Funding Requests to the General Assembly as 
presented in the meeting materials, which shall be attached to this Resolution after 
adoption.  

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
POLICY ON THE PROCESS FOR SUBMITTING LEGISLATIVE PROPOSALS AND 

FUNDING REQUESTS TO THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

SECTION 1. OBJECTIVE

This policy implements Tennessee Code Annotated § 49-7-1002, which aims to protect 
and maintain the integrity of current prioritization and strategic planning processes 
established to best use limited state funds for public higher education toward greatest 
need and opportunity and to ensure prudent fiscal policy. 

SECTION 2. POLICY

1. All legislative proposals or requests for state funding toward public higher 
education capital projects, maintenance, new academic programs, public service, 
research activities and engagement opportunities or operational support to be 
submitted to the General Assembly shall first be considered and acted upon 
through established processes and procedures to review such requests; provided, 
however, that if such consideration or action through established processes and 
procedures is not possible, then such legislative proposals or requests shall be 
made with the knowledge of the President and the chief executive officer of the 
campus/institute for which the proposal or request for state funding is made. 

2. The President is expected to advance legislative proposals and state funding 
requests through existing processes and procedures established in the spirit of 
maximizing the state’s ability to strategically plan, execute and maintain the state’s 
public higher education obligations. The President shall be accountable for 
ensuring that the established processes for considering and evaluating such 
requests are followed to the greatest extent possible.

3. At no time shall an employee of the University advance state legislative funding 
requests for the University without the knowledge of the President and the chief 
executive officer of the campus/institute. This policy applies only to legislative 
proposals and requests for state funding advanced by a University employee in 
his or her official capacity.

4. Legislative proposals or requests for state funding toward public higher education 
capital projects, maintenance, new academic programs, public service, research 
activities and engagement opportunities or operational support must be 
submitted to the Office of the Chief Financial Officer for inclusion in the University 
of Tennessee System’s proposals to the General Assembly.  Each year, the Office 
of the Chief Financial Officer will request that this information be provided as part 
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of either the operating budget or capital budget process.  Any legislative proposal 
or request for state funding that arises outside the budgeting process must be 
submitted to the Office of the Chief Financial Officer for review with the President 
and the chief executive officer of the campus/institute prior to submission to the 
General Assembly. 

History:

Adopted 10/03/2014
Revised 03/01/2019
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Request for Annual Redemption of Principal from the UTK Mary Ann Little 
Music Scholarship Quasi-Endowment

Type: Action

BACKGROUND

Under the Board of Trustees’ Investment Policies and Procedures (Policy BT0020), quasi-endowments
are defined as funds that the Board, rather than a donor, has determined should be retained and 
invested like an endowment.  These funds primarily represent gifts or bequests for which the donor 
has not designated a specific use or has specified optional uses.  By resolution adopted on September 
22, 1995, the Board of Trustees authorized the President and Treasurer to approve the establishment of 
a quasi-endowment, subject to subsequent ratification by the Board upon receipt of an annual report 
of the name and amount of all quasi-endowments established during the previous fiscal year.  

Under University Fiscal Policy FI0340, a quasi-endowment must be initiated within the University, 
typically as a request at the campus/unit level; donors cannot direct gifts to establish a quasi-
endowment. A quasi-endowment can be funded with unrestricted gift funds, institutional funds, and 
in some cases, restricted gift funds. The policy allows 15% of the principal of a quasi-endowment to be 
redeemed annually. All redemption requests must be submitted to the Office of the Treasurer in 
writing and are subject to approval by the Board of Trustees.  

SUMMARY

The Mary Ann Little Music Scholarship Quasi-Endowment was established with funds received under 
a will with no designation as to use of the funds.  The Director of the School of Music has requested to 
transfer $45,422.44 of the quasi-endowment principal annually to the School of Music Enrichment 
Fund.  The funds then would be used to provide students with competition and performance 
opportunities nationally and internationally.  

The December 31, 2018 balance of the quasi-endowment fund is $302,816.27.  The School of Music 
recently received a $350,000.00 endowed gift for scholarships, which would replace the quasi-
endowment funds and avoid any adverse effect on students.   

The Chief Financial Officer and the Treasurer recommend approval of the requested redemption, and 
Interim Chancellor Davis concurs.  

[Resolution follows]
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Request for Annual Redemption of Principal from the UTK Mary Ann Little 
Music Scholarship Quasi-Endowment

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the request for annual redemption of 15% of 
the principal of the Mary Ann Little Music Scholarship Quasi-Endowment for transfer to 
the School of Music Enrichment Fund.  

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Naming of the UT Knoxville Center for Leadership and Service in 
Honor of Clay and Debbie Jones

Type: Action

Interim Chancellor Wayne Davis requests approval to name the UT Knoxville Center for 
Leadership and Service in honor of one of its most distinguished and generous alumni, 
Clay Jones and his wife, Debbie.  The meeting materials include a letter from Interim 
Chancellor Davis describing the many ways in which Clay and Debbie Jones have served 
and supported UT Knoxville for many years, including a $1 million dollar endowment 
established in 2009 to provide funding for the Center for Leadership and Service and a
subsequent additional gift of $4 million to the endowment.  

Interim President Randy Boyd and Interim Vice President Kerry Witcher have approved 
the naming request, and by their signatures have signified that the proposed naming is 
consistent with the guidelines approved by the Board for naming a program like the 
Center for Leadership and Service.

[Resolution follows]
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Naming of the UT Knoxville Center for Leadership and Service in Honor of
Clay and Debbie Jones

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves naming the Center for Leadership and Service 
at The University of Tennessee, Knoxville as the “Clay and Debbie Jones Center for 
Leadership and Service.”

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Report on Endowment Investment Performance

Type: Information 

Investment of University funds is under the jurisdiction of the Finance and 
Administration Committee of the Board of Trustees, which makes recommendations to 
the Board on matters requiring Board action.  Prior to each regularly scheduled Board 
meeting, the Finance and Administration Committee receives for review an investment 
report provided by the Treasurer and recommends to the Board any actions deemed 
necessary.  At each regularly scheduled Board meeting, the Committee reports its finding 
and recommendations, if any, to the Board for such actions as the Board deems 
appropriate.

The Treasurer’s Report on Endowment Investment Performance for the quarter ended 
December 31, 2018 is included in the meeting materials.
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• Consolidated Investment Pool (CIP) Cash-flow Activity for 12-month Period:
o $66 million in New Gifts

o $43 million in Spending Plan Distributions

o $9 million in Administrative Support

• Consolidated Investment Pool (CIP) and Market Returns:
o Trailed CPI+5.5% (Inflation + Spend): -2.9%(est.) vs. +6.6%

o Outperformed Broad Policy B-mark (60/40 stock & bond mix): -2.9%(est.) vs -6.4%

Investment Summary as of December 2018
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Index/Benchmark Summary
Broad Policy Benchmark =    60.0% MSCI ACWI IMI Index 

+ 39.0% Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Bond Index 
+ 1.0% U.S. 91-Day Treasury Bills 

This benchmark is intended to assess the risk profile of the portfolio and evaluate strategic, 
tactical, and active manager decisions.

CPI + 5.5%
This is the 1-year inflation-measuring Consumer Price Index + 5.5%.

Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Bond Index
This index consists of a wide range of global investment grade bonds, including sovereigns, 
corporate bonds, and various asset-backed securities.

MSCI ACWI IMI Index
This index captures large, mid, and small cap stock market exposure across 23 Developed 
Markets and 23 Emerging Markets countries.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Annual Report on Tuition and Fee Revenues, Academic Year 2017-18

Type: Information 

The Tuition Transparency and Accountability Act enacted by the General Assembly in 
2018 requires that by February 1 of each year, an annual report for each public higher 
education institution be submitted to the Office of Legislative Budget Analysis, for 
distribution to the General Assembly, including the following information:

 expenditures of revenues derived from any increases to in-state 
undergraduate tuition and mandatory fees in the previous full 
academic year;

 how revenues were used;
 effect on student financial aid; and
 effect on the average total cost of attendance per student.    

The University’s report for Academic Year 2017-18 was submitted by the System Budget 
Office and is included in the meeting materials for information.
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The University of Tennessee 

Annual Report on Tuition and Fee Revenues 

Academic Year 2017-18 

 

1 
 

Fall 2017 was the second year in a row of historically low tuition and fee increases at all UT campuses 

statewide. Percentage increases for in-state undergraduate tuition and mandatory fees were 1.4% at UT 

Chattanooga, 1.6% at UT Martin, 1.9% at UT Knoxville, and 1.8% at the UT Health Science Center; well 

below the 4.0% allowed by THEC for 2017-18. Tuition and fee increases for graduate and professional 

programs at all campuses were also low. Examples included increases of 1.7% at the UTK College of Law, 

2.0% in the UT Health Science Center’s College of Medicine, and 1.1% at the UT College of Veterinary 

Medicine. Detailed schedules of tuition and fee changes at each UT campus can be found online in UT’s 

2017-18 Budget Document beginning on page C-9: 

 http://tennessee.edu/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/FY2018-Budget-Document.pdf 

 

The ability to hold tuition and fee increases to modest levels for the second year in a row was the result 

of President DiPietro’s initiative to maintain affordability by finding efficiencies and reallocating existing 

resources. Another important factor was the commitment on the part of THEC, the administration, and 

the General Assembly to provide funding to support the state’s “Drive-to-55” efforts. This partnership 

between the university and the state worked well in 2017-18 to ensure affordability for students at all 

UT campuses. 

 
 
All in-state students pay a “maintenance fee,” which is commonly referred to as “in-state tuition,” as well as other 

mandatory fees. The terms “tuition” and “in-state tuition” are used in this report to refer to the “maintenance fee.” 
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In-State Undergraduate Tuition & Mandatory Fee Increases
Over the last 3 years, annual tuition & fee increases at UT campuses averaged from 1.2%  at UTC to 2.1% 

at UTM, well below the average THEC cap of 3.3%. This was the result of efficiency efforts at UT and 
funding commitments made by THEC, the administration, and the General Assembly.
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The University of Tennessee 

Annual Report on Tuition and Fee Revenues 

Academic Year 2017-18 
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How Revenues Were Used 
 

Tuition and mandatory fees for in-state undergraduate students increased modestly at each campus 

from 2016-17 to 2017-18. 

 

The UT Health Science Center offers primarily graduate degrees and professional programs, but has four  

specialized undergraduate programs that enrolled 265 in-state undergraduates in 2017-18. Each has a  

unique tuition/fee structure. 

 

Tuition and fee revenues and state appropriations are the two major sources of funding for general 

campus operations. While some fees are earmarked for specific purposes, most tuition and fee revenues 

are combined with state appropriations to fund general unrestricted educational and general (E&G) 

expenditures such as faculty and staff compensation, technology, supplies, equipment, campus 

improvements, facilities operations, grounds maintenance, and utilities. They also support expenditures 

for institutionally funded scholarships and financial aid. While it is not possible to identify precisely 

which general fund expenditures are paid for with revenues from tuition, fees, or state appropriations, it 

is possible to produce accurate estimates of how revenue growth from tuition and fees was allocated in 

FY 2017-18. These estimates are shown in the table below. 

 

Does not include revenue gains from graduate students, out-of-state students, enrollment growth, or non-

mandatory fees such as course fees, lab fees, housing, meal plans, and other fees that depend on student choice.  

 

 

Campus 
Change in In-state UG 

Tuition & Fees 
Revenues Generated by Tuition & Fee 

Increase 

UT Chattanooga $  120 $1,250,000 

UT Knoxville $  246 $4,820,000 

UT Martin $  148 $650,000 

UT Health Science Center $142 - $225 $50,000 

Uses of Revenue Growth UT Chattanooga UT Knoxville UT Martin 
UT Health 

Science Center 

Institutionally funded 
scholarships and financial aid $200,000 $3,660,000 $173,000  

Portion of 3% salary pool not 
funded by the state $750,000    

Faculty/staff positions, 
promotions, and start-ups $120,000  $320,000  

Student services and 
instructional support $180,000 $560,000 $150,000 $50,000 

Misc. facilities, equipment, 
debt, etc.  $600,000 $7,000  

Total $1,250,000 $4,820,000 $650,000 $50,000 
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The University of Tennessee 

Annual Report on Tuition and Fee Revenues 

Academic Year 2017-18 
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The Effect on Financial Aid 
 

Few UT students pay the full level of tuition and fees without some kind of financial aid. Most receive 

one or more scholarships, grants, waivers, or discounts. The percentage of undergraduate students 

receiving some form of financial aid in 2017-18 was 83% at UT Chattanooga, 86% at UT Knoxville, and 

92% at UT Martin. The average amount of financial aid per undergraduate student in 2016-17 was 

$7,187 at UT Chattanooga, $8,964 at UT Knoxville, and $7,629 at UT Martin. 

 

78% of the revenue growth ($4,033,000) resulting from increases to in-state undergraduate tuition and 

mandatory fees was used to help fund increases in institutionally funded scholarships and financial aid. 

Other revenue sources such as grants, gifts, and endowments were added to these funds, resulting in a 

total increase of $22.8 million in financial aid provided to students in FY 2017-18. 

 

The Effect on Total Cost of Attendance 

 

Below is a summary of how increases to in-state tuition and mandatory fees affected the typical total 

cost of attendance. A student’s total cost of attendance goes beyond tuition and mandatory fees. 

Students also pay for housing, meals, books and supplies, transportation, and various incidental 

expenditures. These costs can vary widely from one student to another based on choices they make 

regarding living arrangements, meal plans, commuting, and academic programs. Each campus publishes 

an estimate of the typical cost of attendance to assist prospective students and families in financial 

planning. Estimated total cost of attendance of the typical in-state undergraduate student residing on 

campus for 2017-18 were $22,764 at UT Chattanooga, $30,930 at UT Knoxville, and $22,346 at UT 

Martin. These costs ranged from $31,698 to $42,893 for the Health Science Center’s four undergraduate 

programs.  

 

 

 

 

 

Campus 
Change in In-state 
UG Tuition & Fees 

As a % of 2016-17 
Tuition & Fees 

As a % of 2016-17 
Total Cost of 
Attendance 

UT Chattanooga $  120 1.4% 0.5% 

UT Knoxville $  246 1.9% 0.8% 

UT Martin $  148 1.6% 0.7% 

UT Health Science Center $142 - $225 1.8% 0.4% - 0.6% 
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Update on Review of Year-End Carry Forward Unrestricted Funds

Type: Information 

BACKGROUND

The Board of Trustees resolution approving the 2018-19 annual operating budget in June 
2018 included the following language:

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is directed to develop and submit to the 
Board of Trustees at the fall 2018 meeting a proposed Board policy to 
govern the approval of expenditures from year-end carry forward 
unrestricted funds.

At the end of each fiscal year, some University unrestricted revenue is carried forward 
into the next fiscal year for a variety of purposes.  The primary concern expressed by the 
former Board in directing the creation of a policy was the potential to move monies 
among various accounts or expenditures for purposes other than those for which the 
funds are accrued.

At the fall meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee on November 2, 2018, 
the CFO presented a report on the amount and purpose of all unrestricted carry forward 
funds.  The Renewal and Replacement fund at each institution has many separately 
numbered accounts, ranging from six (6) at the Institute of Public Service to fifty-two (52) 
at UT Knoxville. The report included a designation of the level of commitment of all 
Renewal and Replacement funds—obligated, planned, reserves, or discretionary. This 
will be an annual report at each fall meeting.

At the November 2 meeting, the CFO also presented a draft of a proposed policy to 
govern approval of expenditures from year-end carry forward unrestricted funds. The 
proposed policy required approval from the CFO before execution of the following 
transactions:

A. Transferring Renewal and Replacement monies from one account to another 
which thereby changes the purpose for which the monies were accrued; or

1.19 

70
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Consent Agenda 

B. Making a transfer from a Renewal and Replacement account to fund expenditures 
other than those for which the monies in the account were accrued; or

C. Making a single transfer out of any Renewal and Replacement account greater 
than $1,000,000.

The Committee discussed the proposed policy and expressed concern about the 
workload the policy might place on the CFO and institutional staff in timely processing 
of transactions.  The Committee stressed the need for oversight and transparency of carry 
forward funds without implementing overly burdensome approval processes.  

The Committee decided to defer action on the proposed policy and directed the CFO to 
continue consultation with the institutional chief business officers to determine whether 
the proposed policy could be modified to include an appropriate level of materiality. The 
Committee directed the CFO to report on his additional work and analysis at the March 
2019 meeting.

UPDATE

At the request of the CFO, the new process of reporting on year-end fund balances 
includes a review by the University Office of Audit and Compliance of the institutions’ 
allocation of funds.  The audit staff began a review of the 2018 report and expects to 
provide the CFO with an analysis later in March 2019.  The CFO will review the report 
with the institutional chief business officers with a goal of standardizing compliance with 
the four definitions used for allocating Renewal and Replacement funds (obligated, 
planned, reserves, and discretionary).

The CFO will continue to consult with the Committee Chair upon receipt of the audit 
staff analysis and report to the committee at the June 2019 meeting as part of the 2019-20 
annual operating budget recommendation.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Revised FY 2018-19 Operating Budget

Type: Action

Presenter: David L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer

The University develops a revised operating budget proposal each fiscal year to adjust for 
changes that occur after the original budget is adopted in June. The primary revisions made 
each year include updating beginning net asset balances to reflect actual rather than 
projected beginning balances; state appropriations adjustments made by the state 
Department of Finance and Administration; and mid-year adjustments to enrollment 
projections, operating plans, organizational structure, revenue projections, and fixed costs.

The revised Unrestricted Educational and General (E&G) Operating Budget is in the amount 
of $1,480,989,950, an increase of 0.7% over the original budget,  and the revised Unrestricted 
Auxiliary Operating Budget is in the amount of $263,872,353, a decrease of 0.2% from the 
original budget.

Unit
Unrestricted 

E&G
Unrestricted 

Auxiliary Restricted Total
Chattanooga $   173,756,729 $     18,796,704 $    52,854,128 $   245,407,561
Knoxville 721,408,239 232,468,692 257,884,678 1,211,761,609
Martin 99,300,897 10,290,846 34,932,389 144,524,132
Health Science Center 284,059,226 2,316,111 283,778,550 570,153,887
Institute of Agriculture 147,295,917 48,100,404 195,396,321
Institute for Public Service 25,314,939 5,931,012 31,245,951
System Administration 29,854,003 1,850,000 31,704,003
Total $1,480,989,950 $  263,872,353 $  685,331,161 $2,430,193,464

A formal Resolution of approval and detailed information on the revised operating budget 
are included in the meeting materials.  

Motion:  I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption of 
the Resolution to Approve the FY 2018-19 Revised Operating Budget as presented in the 
meeting materials.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Resolution 00_-2019*

Resolution to Approve the
FY 2018-19 Revised Operating Budget

WHEREAS, by state law, the Board of Trustees must approve an annual operating budget 
for the University; and

WHEREAS, the Board approved the FY 2018-19 operating budget on June 22, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the operating budget must be revised during the year to update revenue and 
expenditure projections for the remainder of the fiscal year, taking into consideration 
final fall enrollments (which are estimated when the original budget is prepared), the 
impact of the prior year’s activities carried forward into the current year, and adjustments 
in state appropriations occurring since the budget was approved on June 22, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the 2018-19 Revised Operating Budget includes adjustments allocating 
revisions to budgeted revenues and carry forward of unexpended non-recurring funds 
from 2017-18; and

WHEREAS, further adjustments may be required if material changes in revenues or 
expenditures arise during the remainder of FY 2018-19; and

WHEREAS, the FY 2018-19 Revised Budgets for Unrestricted Education and General 
(E&G) and Auxiliary Enterprises are balanced, and within available resources and 
comply with all applicable policies and guidelines;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that:

1. The FY 2018-19 Revised Unrestricted, Educational and General Operating 
Budget in the amount of $1,480,989,950 and the Revised Unrestricted Auxiliary 
Operating Budget in the amount of $263,872,353 are approved with the 
understanding that if the General Assembly or the Department of Finance and
Administration further alters the FY 2018-19 appropriations, or if changes in 
estimated resources require, the budget shall be modified accordingly so 
expenditures will not exceed available resources.

2. Any additional general salary increases that exceed the FY 2019 salary and wage 
plan may only be granted upon approval by the Board of Trustees. 

3. Any remaining  balance of unrestricted net assets may be considered as a reserve 
for contingencies to be used for:

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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a. Employing additional staff where enrollments, operational plans, or 
reorganization requirements warrant;

b. Modifying departmental operating budgets where changing conditions 
during the year require funding adjustments;

c. Funding to make salary adjustments for personnel as may be necessary 
during the year in keeping with state and university salary guidelines;

d. Improving  physical  facilities  for  academic  and  research  departments  
as opportunities arise;

e. Mandated cost increases; and
f. State impoundment of funds or appropriations rescission during the 

budget year.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.  
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FY 2018-19
Revised Operating Budget

March 1, 2019
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2 

• Minor mid-year adjustments to revenue & expenditure budgets

• Recurring revenue budgets up $9.8 M (0.7%)
• Tuition and fee revenue up $8.3 M (1/.2%) 

• Recurring expenditure budgets up $16.8 M (1.1%)
• Recurring funds for scholarships/fellowships up $9.5 M (7.8%) 

• $108.5 M added to non-recurring expenditure budgets
• Carryovers available for one-time projects
• Typical adjustment made after fiscal-year close in late summer
• Carefully managed; much of this funding will carryover to next year

FY 2019 Revised Operating Budget Highlights
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FY 2018-19 Unrestricted 
E&G Revenues

Tuition & Fees
$720
49%

State 
Appropriations

$593
40%

Other
$169
11%

FY19 Unrestricted E&G Revenues
$-millions

Tuition & Fees: maintenance fee (in-
state tuition), out-of-state tuition, 
mandatory fees, differential tuition, 
course & program fees.

State Appropriations: UTC, UTK, and 
UTM funding determined by 
performance metrics; specialized unit 
funding adjusted incrementally each 
year.

Other: grant/contract overhead (F&A), 
clinics, theaters, 4-H camps, sports 
camps, conferences, interest earnings, 
ORNL management fee, etc.
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FY 2018-19 Operating 
Revenues

Unrestricted E&G
$1,481

61%

Restricted 
E&G
$685
28%

Auxiliaries
$264
11%

FY19 Revised Revenue Budgets
$-millions

Unrestricted Educational & General 
(E&G): funding for core operations; 
includes all tuition/fee revenues and 
most state appropriations.

Restricted E&G: primarily grants, 
contracts, gifts, and endowments; 
major funding source for research and 
financial aid.

Auxiliaries: self-supporting enterprises 
such as housing, dining, bookstores, 
parking and UTK athletics.
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Mid-Year Budget Revisions
Unrestricted E&G Funds

$-millions

Original Revised Change

Beginning Balance $          88.2 $          110.3 $        22.1 25.1%

Revenues 1,471.2 1,481.0 9.8 0.7%

AVAILABLE FUNDS $    1,559.4 $     1,591.3 $       31.9 2.0%

Expenditures 1,462.8 1,588.0 125.2 8.6%

Net Transfers 8.7 (98.7) (107.4) NA

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS $    1,471.5 $    1,489.3 $      17.8 1.2%

ENDING BALANCE $          87.9 $       102.0 $      14.1 16.0%
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Changes in Recurring & Nonrecurring Budgets
$-millions

Changes in Unrestricted E&G Fund 
Budgets Since July 1

Changes in 
Recurring 
Budgets

Changes in 
Non-Recurring 

Budgets
TOTAL 

CHANGES

Beginning Balance $               - $         22.1 $         22.1

Revenues 18.2 (8.4) 9.8

AVAILABLE FUNDS $         18.2 $         13.7 $         31.9

Expenditures 16.8 108.4 125.2

Net Transfers 0.2 (107.6) (107.4)

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS $         17.0 $           0.8 $         17.8

ENDING BALANCE $           1.2 $         12.9 $         14.1
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Recurring Unrestricted E&G Expenditures
Natural Classifications

$-millions

Original Revised Change

Salaries & Wages $        730.6 $      738.6 $         8.0 1.1%

Employee Benefits 252.7 259.0 6.3 2.5%

Personnel $       983.3 $      997.6 $       14.3 1.4%

Operating & Equipment 478.5 481.0 2.5 0.5%

Total Expenditures $    1,461.8 $   1,478.6 $      16.8 1.1%

Transfers 8.0 8.2 0.2 2.5%

Total Allocations $   1,469.8 $   1,486.8 $      17.0 1.2%
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Mid-Year Budget Update
Unrestricted E&G Funds

$-millions

Budget
YTD thru 
12/31/18

%-of-
budget

Same date 
last year

Tuition & Fees $         719.5 $         701.0 97.4% 97.9%

State Appropriations 592.8 297.5 50.2% 49.5%

Other Revenue 168.7 91.4 54.2% 50.1%

Total Revenue $     1,481.0 $     1,089.9 73.6% 73.0%

Expenditures 1,588.0 704.6 44.4 % 44.1%
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Revised 
Budget 

Document 
FY 2018 – 2019 
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THE UNIVERSITY of TENNESSEE 
 

 
Chattanooga 

 
Knoxville 

Knoxville 
Space Institute 

 
Martin 

 
Health Science Center 

 
Institute of Agriculture 
Agricultural Experiment Station 

Extension 
College of Veterinary Medicine 

 
Institute for Public Service 

Institute for Public Service 
Municipal Technical Advisory Service 
County Technical Assistance Service 

Tennessee Language Center 
 

System Administration
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Message from the CFO 

The FY 2018-19 revised operating 
budget reflects operating plans and 
financial projections as of October 31, 
2018. The University develops a 
revised budget each fiscal year to 
adjust to the following changes that 
occur during the year after the 
original budget is adopted in June: 
1. The university’s original budget is 

developed before the end of the 
previous fiscal year and uses 
budgeted net assets as its starting 
point. The revised budget uses 
actual net assets as its starting 
point. In most years, this change in 
net assets is offset by an increase to 
non-recurring expenditure budgets. 

2. State appropriations are adjusted in 
September, requiring minor 
adjustments in most years. 

3. Other adjustments may be needed 
if there are material changes to 
operating plans, organizational 
structure, revenue projections, or 
fixed costs. 

 
Revised revenue budgets total $2.43 
billion, a 0.5% increase over the 
original budget. Revised expense 
budgets total $2.47 billion, a 5.3% 
increase. These revisions include all 
current funds: unrestricted 
educational and general (E&G) funds, 
restricted E&G funds, and auxiliary 
funds. Most of the 0.5% increase are 
adjustments to miscellaneous 
unrestricted E&G revenues, most 
notably the addition of the Tennessee 
Language Center to the Institute of 
Public Service. 
 
Unrestricted E&G funds finance the 
university’s core operations and are 
the primary focus of this budget 

proposal. Adjustments totaling $9.8 million 
(0.7%) have been added to our unrestricted 
E&G revenue budgets since July 1, 2018. 
Most of the increase is due to revised 
expectations for tuition and fee revenue from 
stronger than expected enrollments.  
 
Recurring unrestricted E&G expenditures 
increased by $16.8 million (1.1%), indicating 
no material changes to recurring programs 
and operations. Total unrestricted E&G 
expenditure budgets are up $125.2 million 
(8.6%), reflecting carry-overs of unspent 
non-recurring funds from FY 2017-18. 
Campuses and institutes are using these funds 
for projects such as classroom technology 
upgrades, energy efficiency projects, faculty 
start-up packages, and critical maintenance 
needs; prudent one-time investments that 
increase capacity and improve long-term 
effectiveness and efficiency. Unspent non-
recurring funds will be carried forward to the 
next fiscal year and presented to the Board in 
the 2019-20 revised budget proposal. 
 
Each campus and institute has implemented 
the salary plans described in the FY 2018-
2019 Proposed Budget Document approved 
by the Board of Trustees last June.  
 
Revenue and expenditure data for each 
operating unit is provided in this budget 
document. Also included is information on 
athletics and auxiliary budgets. A separate 
publication containing detailed supporting 
schedules is available in electronic format. 
 
Respectfully, 

 
David L. Miller 
Chief Financial Officer 

 

A-2
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FY2018-19 REVISED BUDGET  

 

 

Overview 
 
The University of Tennessee FY 2018-19 revised budget revenues 
total $2.43 billion: $1.48 billion in unrestricted educational and 
general (E&G) funds, $685 million in restricted E&G funds and 
$264 million in auxiliary funds.  This is a 0.5% increase from the 
FY 2018-19 original budget.  
 
A change of this magnitude is typical for the annual revised budget 
and reflects no material changes to plans or operations for FY 2018-
19. The adjustments ensure that the university’s revised 
expenditure and transfer budgets for FY 2018-19 remain within 
available resources. 
                                      TOTAL REVENUE 
                                                           ($ millions) 

 Amounts may not add due to rounding. 
 
Unrestricted education and general funds (unrestricted E&G) 
support the core operations of the university:  instruction, research, 
public service, academic support, student services, institutional 
support, facilities operations and maintenance, and scholarships 
and fellowships.  They are funded primarily through tuition and 
student fees, state appropriations, and other sources including 
grants and contracts, federal and local appropriations, sales and 
services, and investment income. 
 
Restricted funds must be used in accordance with purposes 
established by an external party; primarily grants, contracts, gifts 
and endowments. These funds are the major revenue sources for 
research, scholarships, and fellowships. 
 
Auxiliaries are self-supporting enterprises which furnish services 
to students, faculty, and staff such as housing, bookstores, food 
services and UTK athletics. They complement the core operations 
of each campus and are a vital component in student life and 
campus culture. 
 

Revenue Source 
FY2019 
Original 

FY2019 
Revised Change 

Unrestricted E&G  $ 1,471.2   $ 1,481.0 $    9.8  0.7 % 
Restricted E&G 681.7 685.1    3.4  0.5 % 
Auxiliaries 264.6 264.1 (0.5) (0.2)%  

Total $ 2,417.5 $ 2,430.2 $ 12.7 0.5% 

 

Unrestricted E&G Revenues 
FY 2011-12 $1.08B 
FY 2012-13  $1.14B  
FY 2013-14 $1.20B 
FY 2014-15  $1.26B  
FY 2015-16 $1.33B 
FY 2016-17  $1.39B  
FY 2017-18 $1.47B 
FY 2018-19 $1.48B 

 

FY 2018-19 Quick Facts 

Enrollment (Fall 2018) 50,810 

Capital Outlay $ 12.1M 

Capital Maintenance $ 47.5M 

 

Total Current Funds  
Revenues  $2.43B  

State Appropriations $610.9M  

   % of Revenues 25% 

Tuition & Fees $719.5M 

   % of Revenues 30% 

Positions 13,781 

 

Unrestricted E&G Funds  
Revenues  $1.48B  
State Appropriations $592.8M  
   % of Revenues 40% 
Tuition & Fees $719.5M 
   % of Revenues 49% 
Positions 10,349 
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Unrestricted E&G Revenues 

Unrestricted E&G Revenue Summary 

Revenue Source 
FY 2019  
Original 

FY 2019 
Revised Change 

Tuition & Fees $711,215,155      $719,498,584      $   8,283,429   1.2 % 
State Appropriations 595,792,552 592,754,052    (3,038,500) (0.5) % 
Other Revenues  164,158,418 168,737,314      4,578,896   2.8 % 

 Total E&G Revenues $   1,471,166,125  $   1,480,989,950   $ 9,823,825  0.7 % 

FY 2018-19 revised budget unrestricted E&G revenues increased slightly from the original budget. 
State appropriation budgets decreased 0.5%, primarily as a result of non-recurring adjustments to 
health insurance premiums and other post-employment benefits (OPEB). This reduction is 
partially offset by reductions in these expenditures. These kinds of adjustments are normally 
reflected in the July 1 original budget, but the state provided its final numbers later than normal 
this year. Tuition and fee revenue budgets were adjusted upward 1.2% based on actual enrollments. 
Other revenues are up 2.8%. Additional details are discussed in the following pages. 

Trends in state appropriations and tuition and fees are critical to the core operations of the 
university. Their percentage share of total unrestricted E&G revenues has increased slightly over 
recent years, from 85% in FY 2012-13 to 89% in FY 2018-19. 

 $-
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Tuition and Fee Revenues 

Fee Type 
FY2018-19   

Original 
FY2018-19   

Revised 
Change 

Maintenance Fees $501,812,146  $500,490,240 ($1,321,906)     (0.3)% 

Non-Resident Tuition 72,414,553 81,747,268     9,332,715     12.9% 

Program and Service Fees 73,844,290      73,660,263 (184,027)      (0.2)% 

Extension Enrollment Fees          7,987,374 7,992,586 5,212     0.1% 

Other Student Fees 55,156,792 55,608,227 451,435      0.8% 

    Total Tuition and Fees $711,215,155  $719,498,584  $8,283,429         1.2% 
 
The primary source of tuition and fee revenues are maintenance fees, commonly referred to as in-
state tuition.  The maintenance fee is paid by all students, including out-of-state students. Non-
resident tuition is a differential paid only by out-of-state students, not the full amount paid by out-
of-state students. The term “out-of-state tuition” typically refers to the maintenance fee plus non-
resident tuition. Programs and services fees are mandatory fees paid by all students and include 
fees for student activities, health services, debt service, capital improvements, student counseling, 
and other programs. Extension enrollment fees are for non-credit personal and professional 
development courses. Examples of other student fees include technology fees, facilities fees, 
library fees, differential tuition, lab fees, and course fees. 
 
The revenue budget for non-resident tuition was adjusted upward to reflect the fact that actual 
enrollments of out-of-state students at UT Knoxville exceeded expectations. Most of this increase 
was allocated to scholarships and fellowships, improving access and affordability. 
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Unrestricted State Appropriations 

Adjustments Total 
FY 2019 Original Budget   $  595,792,552  
Increase in partial funding for state-mandated tuition waivers & discounts            162,600 
Reduction in health insurance premium costs       (14,806,100) 
NEW: payments into state’s trust fund for retiree health benefit costs (OPEB)           9,800,400 
State retirement plan cost increases              838,700 
Claims premium cost increase                58,100            
Property insurance premium cost increase              627,100 
Tennessee Language Center transferred from state to UTIPS              678,800            
State CCTA formula funding adjustment            (398,100)          
FY 2019 Revised Budget  $592,754,052    

 
Unrestricted state appropriations decreased $3.039 million (0.5%) from the original budget.  
Recurring appropriations increased $10.7 million (1.8%), while non-recurring decreased $13.8 
million. The state reduced appropriations for health insurance by $14.8 million due to a significant 
drop in premiums. This was partially offset by $9.8 million in state funding for new expenditures 
for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) to fund retiree health benefits. Recurring funds of 
$678,800 were added to fund the Tennessee Language Center, a state program that was transferred 
to UT’s Institute for Public Service (IPS) this year. 

 
Other Unrestricted Revenues 

Revenue Source 
FY19      

Original 
FY19      

Revised Change 
Grants & Contracts $ 43,237,280  $43,371,046  $        133,766          0.3% 
Sales & Services     63,329,502 63,200,011 (129,491)      (0.2)% 
Miscellaneous Sources 57,591,636 62,166,257 4,574,621       7.9% 
Total Other Revenues $164,158,418  $168,737,314  $     4,578,896        2.8% 

 
Unrestricted E&G grant and contract revenues are the portion of payments from grant and contract 
sponsors allocated to cover general facilities and administration costs incurred to support grant and 
contract programs. Sales and services revenues are generated by operations that provide fee-based 
services to the public such as medical clinics, 4-H camps, theaters, child development centers, and 
sports camps. There are only minor adjustment to these budget categories. 
 
Miscellaneous sources include interest earnings, conference revenues, federal appropriations, local 
appropriations, UT-Battelle management fees, licensing revenues, and unrestricted gifts 
endowments. Most of the $4.57 million increase is from the new IPS Tennessee Language Center 
interpretation and translation services and projections for increased interest earnings.   
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Unrestricted E&G Expenditures by Function 

Functional Category 
FY 2019    
Original 

FY 2019 
Revised 

Change 
Amount 

Change 
% 

Instruction $568,982,253  $592,522,806  $23,540,553  4.1% 
Research 108,656,998 152,303,268 43,646,270 40.2% 
Public Service 86,506,110 94,542,919 8,036,809 9.3% 
Academic Support 171,593,592 187,496,335 15,902,743 9.3% 
Student Services 91,907,823 97,483,098 5,575,275 6.1% 
Institutional Support 163,417,869 173,003,012 9,585,143 5.9% 
Operation/Maint. of Plant 148,986,294 150,593,215 1,606,921 1.1% 
Scholarships and Fellowships 122,709,656 140,043,211 17,333,555 14.1% 
   Total E&G Expenditures $1,462,760,595  $1,587,987,864  $125,227,269  8.6% 

 
Budgeted expenditures increased $125.2 million. These are primarily non-recurring funds and do 
not reflect changes in recurring plans and operations.  Most of the increase is offset by budgeted 
transfers from non-recurring renewal and replacement fund balances. The large increase in 
research is typical since a good portion of these funds come from non-recurring facilities and 
administration recoveries generated in previous years by research grants and contracts. 
 
These increases were allocated through campus and institute budgeting procedures to non-
recurring projects and programs such as facility maintenance, equipment replacements, faculty 
start-up packages, bridge funding for research operations, lab upgrades, faculty incentives, campus 
improvements, energy conservation projects, and information technology infrastructure.  Unused 
non-recurring funds will be carried forward to FY 2019-20 for use on similar non-recurring 
projects and improvements in the future. 
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Recurring Unrestricted E&G Expenditures 

The relatively large amount of non-recurring funds in mid-year revised expense budgets shown on the 
previous page can distort comparisons to July 1 original expense budgets. The following tables 
avoid this problem by showing only recurring budgets. These are funds allocated to recurring 
operations and exclude non-recurring budgets allocated to one-time projects. None of these 
adjustments reflect material changes in strategy, operations, or financial conditions 
other than the $9.5 million increase in budgets for scholarships and fellowships. This is 
being funded by stronger than expected out-of-state tuition revenues. 

Recurring Unrestricted E&G Expenditures by Function 

Functional Area 
FY 2019 
Original 

FY 2019 
Revised Change 

Instruction $568,267,900 $571,445,291      3,177,391  0.6% 
Research 108,136,764 110,171,053      2,034,289  1.9% 
Public Service 86,313,338 85,319,156         (994,182)     (1.2)% 
Academic Support 171,586,192 170,520,177     (1,066,015) (0.6)% 
Student Services 91,907,823           93,987,649 2,079,826     2.3% 
Institutional Support     162,162,035 165,901,667 3,739,632     2.3% 
Operation/Maint. of Plant 151,764,047 150,079,015 (1,685,032)     (1.1)% 
Scholarships and Fellowships 121,644,056 131,124,854 9,480,798     7.8% 
Total E&G Expenditures $1,461,782,155 $1,478,548,862 $16,766,707      1.1% 
Transfers 8,035,099 8,249,649 214,550     2.7% 
Expenditures & Transfers $1,469,817,254 $1,1,486,798,511 $16,981,257      1.2% 

Recurring Unrestricted E&G Expenditures by Natural Classification 

Natural Classification 
FY 2019 
Original 

FY 2019 
Revised Change 

Academic Salaries $   362,692,446 $365,377,838 $2,685,392 0.7% 
Non-Academic Salaries 359,376,812 364,671,265 $5,294,453 1.5% 
Student Employees 8,561,574 8,511,782 ($49,792) (0.6)% 
Total Salaries $730,630,832 $738,560,885 $7,930,053 1.1% 
Staff Benefits      252,706,041 259,001,432 6,295,391 2.5% 
Total Salaries & Benefits $983,336,873 $997,562,317 $14,225,444 1.4% 
Operating & Equipment 478,445,282 480,986,545 2,541,263 0.5% 
Total Expenditures $1,461,782,155 $1,478,548,862 $16,766,707 1.1% 

A-8

2 

92
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Revised FY 2018-19 Operating Budget 

FY2018-19 REVISED BUDGET  

 

 

Auxiliary Enterprises 
 
Auxiliary enterprises complement core campus operations by furnishing services to students, 
faculty, and staff.  Each auxiliary enterprise is self-funded through sales, fees, and private gifts.  
These stand-alone operations include housing, food services, bookstores, parking, and other 
miscellaneous operations. It also includes UT Knoxville athletics since it is a self-supporting 
operation. (The athletic programs at Chattanooga and Martin are included in unrestricted E&G 
funds.)  
 
These budgets are virtually unchanged compared to July 1. Revised budgets for unrestricted 
auxiliary revenues dropped $507,330 (0.2%). This is consistent with a $482,855 (0.2%) decrease 
in budgeted expenditures and transfers. 

 
Auxiliary Revenues by Enterprise 

($ millions) 

 
 

Auxiliary Fund Summary 
Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Transfers 
FY 2019 
Original 

FY 2019 
Revised Change 

Revenues $ 264,379,683  $ 263,872,353  $ (507,330)  (0.2)% 
   Expenditures 198,430,261 198,622,468 192,207 0.1% 
   Transfers 65,929,422 65,254,360 (675,062) (1.0)% 
Expenditures and Transfers $ 264,359,683  $ 263,876,828  $ (482,855)  (0.2)% 
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Restricted Funds 
 
Many of the budget tables and schedules in this document include information on restricted fund 
budgets. This information is not part of the proposed Board resolution. It is presented for 
information purposes to provide a complete picture of funds available for current operations in 
2018-19. 
 
Restricted funds are the largest revenue sources for research and financial aid and play an 
important role in funding the university’s public service initiatives. Externally funded projects in 
research, public service, and instruction are vital components of the university’s core mission. 
They support jobs directly at University of Tennessee campuses and indirectly in surrounding 
communities; provide partial funding for overhead; develop innovative technologies that improve 
healthcare, strengthen national security, and drive economic development; provide services to 
Tennessee citizens, manufacturers, agribusiness, and communities; support graduate education; 
and enrich undergraduate education through exposure to cutting edge science in the classroom and 
direct involvement in undergraduate research opportunities. Funding from the federal government, 
State of Tennessee, gifts, and endowments provide scholarships and fellowships that significantly 
improve student access and affordability.  
 
Restricted funds must be used for purposes established by an external party and in accordance with 
the contractual terms and conditions negotiated with the sponsor of each grant and contract and 
the administrative provisions set by donors for each gift fund and endowment. University 
administration has limited discretion on the use of restricted funds once a grant, contract, or gift 
agreement is executed. All proposed grants, contracts, gifts, and endowments are carefully 
reviewed before any agreement is finalized to ensure that the proposed use of funds, terms, and 
conditions further the mission of the university; directly or indirectly support and enhance general 
operations; and conform to all university policies, generally accepted accounting standards, and 
state and federal regulations. 
 
The information presented for restricted fund budgets are projections for likely revenues and 
expenditures during the current fiscal year. They are not revenue targets and authorized spending 
levels set by management. The budget for each grant, contract, gift, and endowment is unique and 
often applies to time periods that do not coincide with the university’s fiscal year. Budgetary 
control of these funds is exercised by university administration at the project level. Budgets and 
financial activity for these funds are tracked in over 11,000 accounts in the university’s official 
chart of accounts and subject to external audit by federal agencies and the State Comptroller. 
 
The following page includes information on actual restricted fund expenditures for educational 
and general (E&G) operations in 2017-18. It shows how restricted revenues from each major 
funding source supported different functions of the university in 2017-18. 
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2017-18 Restricted E&G Expenditures by Function and Funding Source 
($-millions) 
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Instruction $132.0 $5.0 $31.9 $16.0 $5.1 $2.7 $192.7  28.8% 

Research 43.4 105.6 17.4 3.0 7.3 15.6 192.4  27.9% 

Scholarships/Fellowships 0.3 64.0 94.4 16.6 4.9 - 180.1  26.1% 

Public Service 11.0 18.0 35.8 0.8 5.0 - 70.8  10.3% 

Academic Support 29.9 1.1 0.9 5.1 10.1 - 47.2 6.8% 

Stdt.Svcs./Inst.Spt./Phys.Plant 0.2 0.7 0.1 0.5 4.0 0.8 6.2  0.9% 

    Total $216.9 $194.4 $180.5 $42.0 $36.4 $19.1 $689.3 100.0% 

      % 31.5% 28.2% 26.2% 6.1% 5.3% 2.8% 100.0%  

 
Most of the $192.7 million spent on instruction was not traditional classroom education; nearly all 
of the $132 million of private entity revenue expended for instruction was graduate medical 
education (GME) funding for Health Science Center interns and residents. Over half of the $192.4 
million expended on externally funded research came from the federal government; around 23% 
was funded by private entities. The largest funding sources for public service sponsored projects 
were state and local governments (51%), the federal government (25%), and private entities (16%). 
Most of the $29.9 million from private entities for academic support were mission support 
payments to the Health Science Center generated by hospital affiliation agreements. 
 
The largest sources of restricted scholarship and fellowship funding are the State of Tennessee, 
federal government, and endowments. Almost all of the $94.4 million spent on scholarships from 
state and local governments was state funding from the Tennessee Student Assistance Corporation 
(TSAC) for the HOPE Lottery Scholarship and other state-funded financial aid. Most of the $64.0 
million in federal funding was for need-based financial aid such as Pell grants, federal work study, 
and Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants. (The university also funded $115.0 million of 
scholarships and fellowships from unrestricted general operating funds in 2017-18, bringing total 
funding scholarships and fellowship funding in 2017-18 to $295.2 million.) 
 
The two primary uses of endowment income are financial aid and instruction. Endowments support 
several endowed chairs and professors, bringing exceptionally talented faculty into the classroom; 
this is an important supplement to unrestricted appropriations and tuition revenues allocated to 
faculty salaries. Gift funds are spread over all functional areas. The $10.1 million spent in academic 
support provided important discretionary funds for deans and department heads in several colleges, 
programs, and departments. (This does not include gifts for construction, which play an important 
role in capital development at each campus.) Restricted state appropriations include funding for 
UT’s Centers of Excellence and Governor’s Chairs; these funds are leveraged to acquire federal 
and private research funding and support dozens of graduate assistants and post-docs.  
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Unrestricted Net Assets 
 
The university maintains sufficient levels of unrestricted net assets to 
comply with state regulations on working capital, properly account for 
revolving funds related to unique operations and fund allocation 
mechanisms, and meet contractual obligations and operational plans for 
the next year. University fiscal policy requires current fund operating 
budgets to provide year-end net asset fund balances sufficient to ensure 
adequate financial resources for the next fiscal year. 
 
Working capital is set aside to provide sufficient liquidity to fund 
accounts receivable, inventories, and petty cash. These set asides are 
required by state regulations and are considered to be non-expendable 

during the fiscal year.  
 
Revolving funds are set aside for unique functions. Some are operating fund balances tied to 
revenue-generating units that are expected to operate as independent business operations (e.g., 
service centers, motor pools, conference centers, medical clinics). Others are used to allocate 
university-wide costs or revenues among campuses and institutes in order to meet certain 
accounting requirements or support specialized internal cost-distribution models. Examples 
include funds related to unemployment compensation, unpaid wages & salaries, COBRA 
adjustments, and workers compensation liabilities. 
 
Encumbrances are funds carried over to fund commitments for purchases of goods and services 
that were not received before the close of the fiscal year. These funds are budgeted in the 
appropriate expenditure accounts as the goods and services are received. They are typically fully 
expended during the fiscal year.   
 
Reappropriations are funds carried forward from the previous fiscal year for specific programs 
and initiatives. The most common example is a project that was planned for the previous fiscal 
year but delayed until the next fiscal year. Most reappropriations are fully expended during the 
current year, but it is common to see some of these funds carried forward to future years if plans 
change or projects are completed below budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A-12

2 

96
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Revised FY 2018-19 Operating Budget 

FY2018-19 REVISED BUDGET  

 

 

Unrestricted Net Assets (continued) 
 
Unallocated net asset fund balances are needed to adjust to minor fluctuations in revenues and 
expenditures that occur each year. It is university practice to limit these fund balances to avoid 
building excessive levels of unallocated current funds. The target range for unrestricted 
educational and general (E&G) funds is 2% to 5% of total expenditures and transfers. The auxiliary 
fund target range is 3% to 5% of auxiliary expenditures and transfers. 
  
The revised budget projects a June 30 unrestricted E&G unallocated fund balance of $56.8 million, 
or 3.82% of expenditures and transfers. The unrestricted auxiliary enterprises unallocated balance 
is $10.3 million, 3.92% of expenditures and transfers. The total unallocated balance projected for 
June 30 is $67.1million, which is 3.84% of expenditures and transfers. 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Resolution to Approve the FY 2018-19 Revised Operating Budget 

 
WHEREAS, by state law, the Board of Trustees must approve an annual operating budget for the 
University; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board approved the FY 2018-19 operating budget on June 22, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the operating budget must be revised during the year to update revenue and expenditure 
projections for the remainder of the fiscal year, taking into consideration final fall enrollments (which are 
estimated when the original budget is prepared), the impact of the prior year’s activities carried forward 
into the current year, and adjustments in state appropriations occurring since the budget was approved on 
June 22, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2018-19 Revised Operating Budget includes adjustments allocating revisions to budgeted 
revenues and carry forward of unexpended non-recurring funds from 2017-18; and 
 
WHEREAS, further adjustments may be required if material changes in revenues or expenditures arise 
during the remainder of FY 2018-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FY 2018-19 Revised Budgets for Unrestricted Education and General (E&G) and Auxiliary 
Enterprises are balanced, and within available resources and comply with all applicable policies and 
guidelines; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 

1. The FY 2018-19 Revised Unrestricted, Educational and General Operating Budget in the amount 
of $1,480,989,950 and the Revised Unrestricted Auxiliary Operating Budget in the amount of 
$263,872,353 are approved with the understanding that if the General Assembly or the 
Department of Finance and Administration further alters the FY 2018-19 appropriations, or if 
changes in estimated resources require, the budget shall be modified accordingly so 
expenditures will not exceed available resources. 

 
2. Any additional general salary increases that exceed the FY 2019 salary and wage plan may only 

be granted upon approval by the Board of Trustees. 
 

3. Any remaining  balance of unrestricted net assets may be considered as a reserve for 
contingencies to be used for: 

a. Employing additional staff where enrollments, operational plans, or reorganization 
requirements warrant; 

b. Modifying departmental operating budgets where changing conditions during the year 
require funding adjustments; 

c. Funding to make salary adjustments for personnel as may be necessary during the year 
in keeping with state and university salary guidelines; 

d. Improving  physical  facilities  for  academic  and  research  departments  as 
opportunities arise; 

e. Mandated cost increases; and 
f. State impoundment of funds or appropriations rescission during the budget year. 

 
Adopted  this 1st day of March, 2019.  
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Unrestricted & Restricted Current Funds

State 
Appropriations

$610.9
25%

Grants & 
Contracts

$643.7
26%Other

$128.8
5%

Auxiliaries
$264.1…

Sales & 
Services

$63.2
3%

Tuition & 
Fees

$719.5
30%

Revenues
$2.4  b i l l ion

Instruction
$782.3

32%

Research
$341.0

14%Public 
Service
$168.5

7%

Institutional 
Support
$175.1
7%

Scholarships
$318.5

13%

Student 
Services
$100.8
4%

Academic 
Support
$235.9

10%

Oper./Maint.
$151.0

6%

Auxiliaries
$198.9

8%

Expenditures
$2.5  b i l l ion

Faculty 4,133

Administrative 944

Professional 3,319

Cler/Tech/Maint 5,384

TOTAL 13,781

FTE Positions                      
(Unrestricted & Restricted)

October 31, 2018

Knoxville 28,894

Chattanooga 11,588

Martin 7,048

Health Science Center 3,280

Vet Med 369

Space Institute 104

TOTAL 50,810

Fall 2018 Headcount 
Enrollment

Unrestricted & Restricted 
Revenues

($millions)

Chattanooga $245.4

Knoxville 1,211.8

Martin 144.5

Health Science Center 570.2

Institute of Agriculture 195.4

Inst. for Public Service 31.2

System Administration 31.7

TOTAL $2,430.2
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The University of Tennessee
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget

Unrestricted Current Funds

State 
Appropriations

$592.8
34%

Grants & 
Contracts

$43.4
2%Other

$62.2
4%

Auxiliaries
$263.9…

Sales & 
Services

$63.2
4%

Tuition & 
Fees

$719.5
41%

Revenues
$1.7  b i l l ion

Instruction
$592.5

33%

Research
$152.3

9%Public 
Service
$94.5

5%

Institutional 
Support
$173.0
10%

Scholarships
$140.0

8%

Student 
Services
$97.5
5%

Academic 
Support
$187.5

10%

Oper./Maint.
$150.6

8%

Auxiliaries
$198.6

11%

Expenditures
$1.8  b i l l ion

Faculty 3,376

Administrative 812

Professional 2,171

Cler/Tech/Maint 3,990

TOTAL 10,349

FTE Positions        
(Unrestricted & Restricted)

October 31, 2018

Knoxville 27,840

Chattanooga 11,587

Martin 6,772

Health Science Center 3,199

Vet Med 373

Space Institute 108

TOTAL 49,879

Fall 2018 (Fall) Headcount 
Enrollment

Current Fund Revenues
($millions)

Chattanooga $192.6

Knoxville 953.9

Martin 109.6

Health Science Center 286.4

Institute of Agriculture 147.3

Inst. for Public Service 25.3

System Administration 29.9

TOTAL $1,744.9
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Schedule 1 

University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget State Appropriations Summary

Unrestricted Educational and General Funds

CHANGE
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

STATE APPROPRIATIONS
Chattanooga 51,840,105$    55,663,705$    55,440,405$    (223,300)$    (0.4)     %
Knoxville

Knoxville 226,290,355$            233,325,655$            232,458,655$            (867,000)$  (0.4)             %
Space Institute 8,990,803 9,213,503 9,135,403 (78,100) (0.8)             %

Subtotal Knoxville 235,281,158$      242,539,158$    241,594,058$    (945,100)$    0.4  %

Martin 33,208,097    35,102,197    34,409,997    (692,200) (2.0)    %
Health Science Center 149,955,324 155,492,224 154,579,424 (912,800) (0.6)    %
Institute of Agriculture

Agricultural Experiment Station 29,161,888$              30,322,198$              30,008,688$              (313,510)$  (1.0)             %
Extension 35,701,417 36,973,697 36,651,817 (321,880) (0.9)             %
College of Veterinary Medicine 20,036,359 21,315,569 21,236,259 (79,310) (0.4)             %

Subtotal Institute of Agriculture 84,899,664$    88,611,464$    87,896,764$    (714,700)$    0.8  %

Institute for Public Service
Institute for Public Service 5,841,485$  5,968,185$  5,929,385$  (38,800)$  (0.7)             %
Municipal Technical Advisory Service 3,410,551 3,546,651 3,535,751 (10,900) (0.3)             %
County Technical Assistance Service 2,964,551 3,075,451 3,056,451 (19,000) (0.6)             %
Tennessee Language Center 657,800 657,800           100.0 %

Subtotal Institute for Public Service 12,216,587$    12,590,287$    13,179,387$    589,100$      4.7  %

System Administration 5,615,617 5,793,517 5,654,017 (139,500) (2.4)     %
Total State Appropriations 573,016,552$    595,792,552$    592,754,052$    (3,038,500)$    (0.5)    %

State appropriations budgeted to restricted funds are not included in this schedule.
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Schedule 2

University of Tennessee System
State Appropriations Five Year History

Unrestricted Educational and General Funds

CHANGE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 FY 2015 TO FY 2019

Actual Actual Actual Actual Revised Amount %
STATE APPROPRIATIONS

Chattanooga 38,442,081$         42,637,305$      46,671,705$        51,840,105$        55,440,405$        16,998,324$        44.2      %
Knoxville

Knoxville 182,310,443$             191,219,955$         202,989,655$            226,290,355$            232,458,655$            50,148,212$             27.5         %
Space Institute 8,012,212 8,289,803 8,583,903 8,990,803 9,135,403 1,123,191 14.0         %

Subtotal Knoxville 190,322,655$       199,509,758$    211,573,558$      235,281,158$      241,594,058$      51,271,403$        27.0      %

Martin 27,025,867           28,673,797        31,508,097          33,208,097          34,409,997          7,384,130            27.3      %
Health Science Center 129,958,440         135,670,521      141,084,321        149,955,324        154,579,424        24,620,984          18.9      %
Institute of Agriculture

Agricultural Experiment Station 25,698,486$  26,529,588$           27,745,788$              29,161,888$              30,008,688$              4,310,202$  16.8         %
Extension 31,195,267 32,546,817 33,950,817 35,701,417 36,651,817 5,456,550 17.5         %
College of Veterinary Medicine 16,874,254 17,733,159 18,453,659 20,036,359 21,236,259 4,362,005 25.9         %

Subtotal Institute of Agriculture 73,768,007$         76,809,564$      80,150,264$        84,899,664$        87,896,764$        14,128,757$        19.2      %

Institute for Public Service
Institute for Public Service 5,265,298$  5,439,285$             5,643,985$  5,841,485$  5,929,385$  664,087$  12.6         %
Municipal Technical Advisory Service 2,903,313 3,039,651 3,159,551 3,410,551 3,535,751 632,438 21.8         %
County Technical Assistance Service 1,767,913 1,863,251 2,238,651 2,964,551 3,056,451 1,288,538 72.9         %
Tennessee Language Center 657,800 657,800 100.0       %

Subtotal Institute for Public Service 9,936,524$           10,342,187$      11,042,187$        12,216,587$        13,179,387$        3,242,863$          32.6      %

System Administration 4,794,038             4,995,217          5,531,417 5,615,617 5,654,017 859,979 17.9      %
Total State Appropriations 474,247,612$       498,638,349$    527,561,549$      573,016,552$      592,754,052$      118,506,440$      25.0      %
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Schedule 3     

University of Tennessee System
FY 2019 Revised State Appropriations Summary

Access & Diversity

CHANGE
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

STATE APPROPRIATIONS (Access & Diversity)
Chattanooga 661,705$                661,705$                661,705$                
Knoxville

Knoxville 2,317,355$                   2,317,355$                   2,317,355$                   
Space Institute 88,303                         88,303                         88,303                         

Subtotal Knoxville 2,405,658$             2,405,658$             2,405,658$             

Martin 558,497                  558,497                  558,497                  
Health Science Center 1,535,172               1,535,172               1,535,172               
Institute of Agriculture

Agricultural Experiment Station 113,488$                      113,488$                      113,488$                      
Extension 110,917                        110,917                        110,917                        
College of Veterinary Medicine 325,559                        325,559                        325,559                        

Subtotal Institute of Agriculture 549,964$                549,964$                549,964$                

Institute for Public Service
Institute for Public Service 14,185$                        14,185$                        14,185$                        
Municipal Technical Advisory Service 1,851                           1,851                           1,851                           
County Technical Assistance Service 1,851                           1,851                           1,851                           

Subtotal Institute for Public Service 17,887$                  17,887$                  17,887$                  

System Administration 77,817                    77,817                    77,817                    
 Total State Appropriations - Access & Diversity 5,806,700$             5,806,700$             5,806,700$             
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Schedule 04A - Net Assets

University of Tennessee
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget

Unrestricted Net Assets
E&G AUXILIARIES TOTAL

Net Assets - June 30, 2016 99,743,364$          20,601,966$          120,345,330$        
Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers * 3.34% 4.15% 4.80%

FY 2016-17 Actual
Revenue 1,387,281,184$     254,223,902$        1,641,505,086$     
Less:

Expenditures 1,327,164,814$     186,136,905$        1,513,301,719$     
Mandatory Transfers 10,203,193            42,169,834            52,373,027            
Non-Mandatory Transfers 52,585,255            25,428,665            78,013,920            

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,389,953,262$     253,735,404$        1,643,688,666$     
Net Change (2,672,078)$           488,498$               (2,183,580)$           
Unrestricted Net Assets

Working Capital 20,238,169$            10,031,692$          30,269,861$          
Revolving Funds 13,337,479            1,122,366              14,459,845            
Encumbrances 4,337,038              65,185                   4,402,223              
Reappropriations 12,232,441            12,232,441            
Unallocated 46,926,160            9,871,221              56,797,381            

Net Assets - June 30, 2017 97,071,286$          21,090,463$          118,161,748$        
Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers * 3.38% 3.89% 3.46%

FY 2017-18 Actual
Revenue 1,467,347,589$       266,172,939$        1,733,520,528$     
Less:

Expenditures 1,407,623,932$       206,098,534$        1,613,722,466$     
Mandatory Transfers 10,733,175            46,326,750            57,059,925            
Non-Mandatory Transfers 35,756,137            9,507,965              45,264,102            

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,454,113,244$     261,933,249$        1,716,046,493$     
Net Change 13,234,345$          4,239,690$            17,474,035$          
Unrestricted Net Assets

Working Capital 22,444,263$            6,660,481$            29,104,744$          
Revolving Funds 16,251,387            8,320,559              24,571,946            
Encumbrances 3,412,482              24,475                   3,436,957              
Reappropriations 11,890,693            11,890,693            
Unallocated 56,306,806            10,324,636            66,631,442            

Net Assets - June 30, 2018 110,305,631$        25,330,153$          135,635,783$        
Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers * 3.87% 3.94% 3.88%

FY 2018-19 Revised Budget
Revenue 1,480,989,950$     263,872,353$        1,744,862,303$     
Less:

Expenditures 1,587,987,864$     198,622,468$        1,786,610,332$     
Mandatory Transfers 11,637,487            47,597,203            $59,234,690
Non-Mandatory Transfers (110,287,904)         17,657,157            ($92,630,747)

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,489,337,447$     263,876,828$        1,753,214,275$     
Net Change (8,347,497)$           (4,475)$                  (8,351,972)$           
Unrestricted Net Assets

Working Capital 20,664,003$          6,660,481$            27,324,484$          
Revolving Funds 16,251,387            8,320,559              24,571,946            
Encumbrances 3,324,425              3,324,425              
Reappropriations 4,890,693              4,890,693              
Unallocated 56,827,626            10,344,635            67,172,261            

Estimated Net Assets - June 30, 2019 101,958,134$        25,325,678$          127,283,811$        
Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers * 3.82% 3.92% 3.83%

* Recommended percent for unallocated expenditures is 2% to 5% for E&G and 3% to 5% for auxiliaries.
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Schedule 4

University of Tennessee System
Educational and General Unrestricted Net Assets

Total System Chattanooga Knoxville  Martin
Health Science 

Center
Institute of 
Agriculture

Institute for 
Public Service

System 
Administration

FY 2016-17 Actual
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 99,743,364$           9,655,944$         27,526,933$         9,929,301$         16,653,665$       13,934,144$            1,438,220$         20,605,158$           
Operating Funds

Revenue 1,387,281,184$      161,550,152$     680,752,817$       92,403,576$       267,819,381$     137,705,563$          19,539,151$       27,510,544$           
Less:  Expenditures and Transfers (1,389,953,262)       (161,073,648)      (680,692,866)        (92,884,376)        (270,169,825)      (137,587,917)           (19,559,608)        (27,985,022)            

Carryover Funds To/(From) Net Assets (2,672,078)$            476,504$            59,951$                (480,800)$           (2,350,444)$        117,646$                 (20,457)$             (474,478)$               

Net Assets Detail:
ALLOCATED

Working Capital 18,968,486$           3,632,449$         2,871,647$           1,490,179$         5,194,550$         1,161,634$              35,600$              4,582,427$             
Revolving Funds 13,337,479             474,531                12,862,948             
Encumbrances 4,337,038               1,742,596             129,468              1,483,152           981,822                   
Unexpended Gifts
Reserve for Reappropriations 12,232,441             3,250,000           6,750,000                650,000              1,582,441               

Total Allocated Net Assets 48,875,444$           3,632,449$         5,088,774$           4,869,647$         6,677,702$         8,893,456$              685,600$            19,027,816$           
UNALLOCATED 48,195,843             6,500,000           22,498,110           4,578,854           6,355,836           5,158,334                732,163              1,102,864               

Total Net Assets - June 30, 2017 97,071,286$           10,132,448$       27,586,884$         9,448,501$         14,303,221$       14,051,790$            1,417,763$         20,130,680$           
 Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers 3.47% 4.04% 3.31% 4.93% 2.35% 3.75% 3.74% 2.46%

FY 2017-18 Actual
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 97,071,286$           10,132,448$       27,586,884$         9,448,501$         14,303,221$       14,051,790$            1,417,763$         20,130,680$           
Operating Funds

Revenue 1,467,347,589$      168,948,706$     723,787,046$  96,332,689$       282,028,840$     145,147,879$          21,250,273$       29,852,156$           
Less:  Expenditures and Transfers (1,454,113,244)       (168,478,289)      (717,872,765)        (97,115,848)        (279,221,014)      (143,394,747)           (21,146,667)        (26,883,914)            

Carryover Funds To/(From) Net Assets 13,234,346$           470,418$            5,914,281$           (783,160)$           2,807,826$         1,753,132$              103,606$            2,968,242$             

Net Assets Detail:
ALLOCATED

Working Capital 22,444,263$           3,602,866$         2,109,934$           1,629,197$         7,036,865$         2,443,307$              94,456$              5,527,638$             
Revolving Funds 16,251,387             1,788,892             14,462,495             
Encumbrances 3,412,482               1,806,165             85,823                525,692              959,802                   35,000                
Unexpended Gifts
Reserve for Reappropriations 11,890,693             2,400,000           7,000,000                700,000              1,790,693               

Total Allocated Net Assets 53,998,825$           3,602,866$         5,704,991$           4,115,020$         7,562,557$         10,403,109$            829,456$            21,780,826$           
UNALLOCATED 56,306,806             7,000,000           27,796,173           4,550,321           9,548,490           5,401,812                691,914              1,318,096               

Total Net Assets - June 30, 2018 110,305,633$         10,602,866$       33,501,165$         8,665,341$         17,111,047$       15,804,922$            1,521,370$         23,098,922$           
 Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers 3.87% 4.15% 3.87% 4.69% 3.42% 3.77% 3.27% 2.92%

FY 2018-19 Revised Budget
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 110,305,633$         10,602,866$       33,501,165$         8,665,341$         17,111,047$       15,804,922$            1,521,370$         23,098,922$           
Operating Funds

Revenue 1,480,989,950$      173,756,729$     721,408,239$       99,300,897$       284,059,226$     147,295,917$          25,314,939$       29,854,003$           
Less:  Expenditures and Transfers (1,489,337,447)       (173,756,729)      (721,408,239)        (99,300,897)        (284,537,218)      (154,622,978)           (25,251,606)        (30,459,780)            

Carryover Funds To/(From) Net Assets (8,347,497)$            -$                        -$                          -$                        (477,992)$           (7,327,061)$             63,333$              (605,777)$               

Net Assets Detail:
ALLOCATED

Working Capital 20,664,002$           3,602,866$         2,109,934$           1,629,197$         7,036,865$         1,268,822$              94,456$              4,921,861$             
Revolving Funds 16,251,387             1,788,892             14,462,495             
Encumbrances 3,324,425               1,806,165             85,823                67,700                1,329,737                35,000                
Unexpended Gifts
Reserve for Reappropriations 4,890,693               2,400,000           700,000$            1,790,693               

Total Allocated Net Assets 45,130,507$           3,602,866$         5,704,991$           4,115,020$         7,104,565$         2,598,559$              829,456$            21,175,049$           
UNALLOCATED 56,827,626             7,000,000           27,796,173           4,550,321           9,528,489           5,879,301                755,246              1,318,096               

Estimated Total Net Assets - June 30, 2019 101,958,136$         10,602,866$       33,501,165$         8,665,341$         16,633,055$       8,477,861$              1,584,703$         22,493,145$           
 Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers 3.82% 4.03% 3.85% 4.58% 3.35% 3.80% 2.99% 2.66%

Recommended percent unallocated of expenditures and transfers is 2% to 5%.  For System Administration, transfers-in for system charge is excluded from the calculation.
Knoxville includes UT Knoxville and UT Space Institute.
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Schedule 5

Total System Chattanooga Knoxville  Martin
Health Science 

Center
FY 2016-17  ACTUAL
Estimated Net Assets at Beginning of Year 20,601,967$         1,605,267$           17,741,774$         1,020,972$           233,955$              
Operating Funds

Revenue 254,223,901$       15,592,359$         228,117,470$       9,031,683$           1,482,389$           
Less:  Expenditures and Transfers (253,735,406)        (15,431,319)          (227,498,310)        (9,276,714)            (1,529,063)            

Carryover Funds To/(From) Net Assets 488,495$              161,040$              619,160$              (245,031)$             (46,674)$               
Net Assets at End of Year 21,090,462$         1,766,307$           18,360,934$         775,941$              187,281$              

Net Assets Detail:
ALLOCATED

Working Capital 10,031,692$         1,066,306$           8,427,100$           468,777$              69,509$                
Revolving Funds 1,122,366             1,122,366             
Encumbrances 65,185                  10,712                  54,473                  

Total Allocated Net Assets 11,219,243$         1,066,306$           9,549,466$           479,489$              123,982$              
UNALLOCATED 9,871,219             700,001$              8,811,468$           296,452$              63,299$                

Total Net Assets - June 30, 2017 21,090,462$         1,766,307$           18,360,934$         775,941$              187,281$              
 Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers 3.89% 4.54% 3.87% 3.20% 4.14%

FY 2017-18  Actual
Estimated Net Assets at Beginning of Year 21,090,462$         1,766,307$           18,360,934$         775,941$              187,281$              
Operating Funds

Revenue 266,172,939$       16,231,712$         238,573,010$       9,496,343$           1,871,874$           
Less:  Expenditures and Transfers (261,933,250)        (16,124,937)          (234,425,824)        (9,432,755)            (1,949,734)            

Carryover Funds To/(From) Net Assets 4,239,689$           106,775$              4,147,186$           63,588$                (77,860)$               
Net Assets at End of Year 25,330,152$         1,873,082$           22,508,120$         839,529$              109,421$              

Net Assets Detail:
ALLOCATED

Working Capital 6,660,481$           1,073,080$           5,145,568$           426,355$              15,478$                
Revolving Funds 8,320,559             8,320,559             
Encumbrances 24,475                  24,475                  

Total Allocated Net Assets 15,005,515$         1,073,080$           13,466,127$         426,355$              39,953$                
UNALLOCATED 10,324,636           800,002$              9,041,994$           413,172$              69,468$                

Total Net Assets - June 30, 2018 25,330,151$         1,873,082$           22,508,121$         839,529$              109,421$              
 Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers 3.94% 4.96% 3.86% 4.38% 3.56%

FY 2018-19  Revised  Budget
Estimated Net Assets at Beginning of Year 25,330,151$         1,873,082$           22,508,121$         839,529$              109,421$              
Operating Funds

Revenue 263,872,353$       18,796,704$         232,468,692$       10,290,846$         2,316,111$           
Less:  Expenditures and Transfers (263,876,828)        (18,796,704)          (232,468,692)        (10,290,846)          (2,320,586)            

Carryover Funds To/(From) Net Assets (4,475)$                 -$                          -$                          -$                          (4,475)$                 
Net Assets at End of Year 25,325,676$         1,873,082$           22,508,121$         839,529$              104,946$              

Net Assets Detail:
ALLOCATED

Working Capital 6,660,481$           1,073,080$           5,145,568$           426,355$              15,478$                
Revolving Funds 8,320,559             8,320,559             
Encumbrances -                        

Total Allocated Net Assets 14,981,040$         1,073,080$           13,466,127$         426,355$              15,478$                
UNALLOCATED 10,344,635           800,000$              9,041,993$           413,172$              89,470$                

Estimated Total Net Assets - June 30, 2019 25,325,675$         1,873,080$           22,508,120$         839,527$              104,948$              
 Percent Unallocated of Expend. & Transfers 3.92% 4.26% 3.89% 4.01% 3.86%

Recommended percent unallocated of expenditures and transfers is 2% to 5%. 
Knoxville includes UT Knoxville and UT Space Institute.

University of Tennessee System
Auxiliary Unrestricted Current Fund Balances
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Schedule 6

University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers - UNRESTRICTED

Total System Chattanooga Knoxville Martin
Health Science 

Center
Institute of 
Agriculture

Institute for 
Public Service

System 
Administration

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 719,498,584$       112,698,369$       444,431,263$       59,740,130$         89,605,034$         13,023,788$         
State Appropriations 592,754,052         55,440,405           241,594,058         34,409,997           154,579,424         87,896,764           13,179,387$         5,654,017$           
Grants & Contracts 43,371,046           530,443                22,960,000           241,400                15,039,876           4,320,571             278,756                
Sales & Service 63,200,011           4,818,012             4,762,089             4,138,370             23,622,134           25,859,406           
Other Sources 62,166,257           269,500                7,660,829             771,000                1,212,758             16,195,388           11,856,796           24,199,986           

Total Revenues 1,480,989,950$    173,756,729$       721,408,239$       99,300,897$         284,059,226$       147,295,917$       25,314,939$         29,854,003$         

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 592,522,806$       79,010,179$         279,671,724$       44,184,929$         148,755,315$       40,900,659$         
Research 152,303,268         3,126,083             91,802,477           306,588                7,611,671             49,456,449           
Public Service 94,542,919           2,682,332             10,262,351           809,208                103,000                57,591,301           23,094,727$         
Academic Support 187,496,335         17,075,728           85,259,986           10,893,356           64,878,984           9,162,777             225,504                
Student Services 97,483,098           26,393,789           49,742,373           13,803,387           7,543,549             
Institutional Support 173,003,012         16,587,922           59,100,841           6,988,181             31,127,071           2,575,804             1,033,280             55,589,913$         
Op/Maint Physical Plant 150,593,215         20,580,378           83,029,198           11,098,634           32,130,544           3,754,461             
Scholarships & Fellowships 140,043,211         13,027,373           104,356,479         12,721,685           9,872,670             65,004                  

Subtotal Expenditures 1,587,987,864$    178,483,784$       763,225,429$       100,805,968$       302,022,804$       163,506,455$       24,353,511$         55,589,913$         
Mandatory Transfers 11,637,487           3,987,165             738,268 590,064                6,191,990             130,000                
Non Mandatory Transfers (110,287,904)        (8,714,220)            (42,555,458)          (2,095,135)            (23,677,576)          (8,883,477)            898,095                (25,260,133)          

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,489,337,447$    173,756,729$       721,408,239$       99,300,897$         284,537,218$       154,622,978$       25,251,606$         30,459,780$         
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (8,347,497)$          (477,992)$             (7,327,061)$          63,333$                (605,777)$             

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 263,872,353$       18,796,704$         232,468,692$       10,290,846$         2,316,111$           
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 198,622,468$       10,672,593$         179,046,736$       6,933,053$           1,970,086$           
Mandatory Transfers 47,597,203           6,104,333             38,461,367           2,661,003             370,500                
Non-Mandatory Transfers 17,657,157           2,019,778             14,960,589           696,790                (20,000)                 

Total Expenditures & Transfers 263,876,828$       18,796,704$         232,468,692$       10,290,846$         2,320,586$           
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (4,475)$                 (4,475)$                 

TOTALS
Revenues 1,744,862,303$    192,553,433$       953,876,931$       109,591,743$       286,375,337$       147,295,917$       25,314,939$         29,854,003$         
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 1,786,610,332$    189,156,377$       942,272,165$       107,739,021$       303,992,890$       163,506,455$       24,353,511$         55,589,913$         
Mandatory Transfers 59,234,690 10,091,498           39,199,635 3,251,067             6,562,490             130,000
Non-Mandatory Transfers (92,630,747) (6,694,442)            (27,594,869) (1,398,345)            (23,697,576)          (8,883,477)            898,095 (25,260,133)          

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,753,214,275$    192,553,433$       953,876,931$       109,591,743$       286,857,804$       154,622,978$       25,251,606$         30,459,780$         
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (8,351,972)$          (482,467)$             (7,327,061)$          63,333$                (605,777)$             

Knoxville includes UT Knoxville and UT Space Institute.

B-10

108
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Revised FY 2018-19 Operating Budget 

2 

Schedule 7

University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Transfers - Unrestricted and Restricted

Total System Chattanooga Knoxville Martin
Health Science 

Center
Institute of 
Agriculture

Institute for 
Public Service

System 
Administration

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 719,498,584$                112,698,369$      444,431,263$              59,740,130$        89,605,034$        13,023,788$        
State Appropriations 610,871,779                  56,222,001          253,048,487                34,710,473          159,644,246        88,413,168          13,179,387$        5,654,017$          
Grants  &  Contracts 643,674,286                  46,471,556          240,185,049                30,851,400          272,789,876        46,520,571          5,605,834            1,250,000            
Sales & Service 63,200,011                    4,818,012            4,762,089                    4,138,370            23,622,134          25,859,406          
Other Sources 128,816,451                  6,400,919            36,606,029                  4,792,913            22,176,486          21,579,388          12,460,730          24,799,986          

Total Revenues 2,166,061,111$             226,610,857$      979,032,917$              134,233,286$      567,837,776$      195,396,321$      31,245,951$        31,704,003$        

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 782,304,551$                82,889,992$        290,785,924$              46,634,929$        320,755,315$      41,227,659$        2,732.00$            8,000$                 
Research 341,035,312                  5,819,439            202,853,055                486,588               59,667,377          71,526,853          682,000               
Public Service 168,502,165                  3,778,659            30,762,351                  2,125,208            19,567,000          82,668,301          29,000,646$        600,000               
Academic Support 235,860,733                  19,488,192          95,264,886                  11,743,356          99,878,984          9,252,777            232,538               
Student Services 100,804,719                  28,457,166          50,542,373                  14,253,387          7,551,793            
Institutional Support 175,105,323                  16,827,944          59,403,041                  7,163,181            31,877,671          2,681,804            1,041,769            56,109,913          
Op/Maint Physical Plant 150,968,392                  20,580,555          83,379,198                  11,108,634          32,130,544          3,769,461            
Scholarships/Fellowships 318,477,830                  53,495,965          207,859,279                42,223,074          14,372,670          480,004               6,838                   40,000                 

Subtotal Expenditures 2,273,059,025$             231,337,912$      1,020,850,107$           135,738,357$      585,801,354$      211,606,859$      30,284,523$        57,439,913$        
Mandatory Transfers 11,637,487                    3,987,165            738,268                       590,064               6,191,990            130,000               
Non Mandatory Transfers (110,287,904)                 (8,714,220)           (42,555,458)                 (2,095,135)           (23,677,576)         (8,883,477)           898,095               (25,260,133)         

Total Expenditures & Transfers 2,174,408,608$             226,610,857$      979,032,917$              134,233,286$      568,315,768$      202,723,382$      31,182,618$        32,309,780$        
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (8,347,497)$                   (477,992)$            (7,327,061)$         63,333$               (605,777)$            

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 264,132,353$                18,796,704$        232,728,692$              10,290,846$        2,316,111$          
Expenditures & Transfers

Expenditures 198,882,468$                10,672,593$        179,306,736$              6,933,053$          1,970,086$          
Mandatory Transfers 47,597,203                    6,104,333            38,461,367                  2,661,003            370,500               
Non Mandatory Transfers 17,657,157                    2,019,778            14,960,589                  696,790               (20,000)                

Total Expenditures & Transfers 264,136,828$                18,796,704$        232,728,692$              10,290,846$        2,320,586$          
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (4,475)$                          (4,475)$                

TOTALS
Revenues 2,430,193,464$             245,407,561$      1,211,761,609$           144,524,132$      570,153,887$      195,396,321$      31,245,951$        31,704,003$        
Expenditures & Transfers

Expenditures 2,471,941,493$             242,010,505$      1,200,156,843$           142,671,410$      587,771,440$      211,606,859$      30,284,523$        57,439,913$        
Mandatory Transfers 59,234,690                    10,091,498          39,199,635                  3,251,067            6,562,490            130,000               
Non Mandatory Transfers (92,630,747)                   (6,694,442)           (27,594,869)                 (1,398,345)           (23,697,576)         (8,883,477)           898,095               (25,260,133)         

Total Expenditures & Transfers 2,438,545,436$             245,407,561$      1,211,761,609$           144,524,132$      570,636,354$      202,723,382$      31,182,618$        32,309,780$        
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (8,351,972)$                   (482,467)$            (7,327,061)$         63,333$               (605,777)$            

Knoxville includes UT Knoxville and UT Space Institute.
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Schedule 8 - UT Total

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
Actual Actual Actual Actual Revised Amount

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 615,545,784$        655,160,210$        681,407,238$        710,190,418$        719,498,584$        103,952,800$        16.9 %
State Appropriations 474,247,612 498,638,349 527,561,549 573,016,552 592,754,052 118,506,440 25.0 %
Grants & Contracts 46,798,665 47,776,120 49,379,698 51,045,254 43,371,046 (3,427,619) (7.3) %
Sales & Service 60,095,439 63,277,345 67,209,889 69,851,826 63,200,011 3,104,572 5.2 %
Other Sources 62,148,888 63,237,010 61,722,810 63,243,539 62,166,257 17,369 0.0 %

Total Revenues 1,258,836,388$     1,328,089,034$     1,387,281,183$     1,467,347,589$     1,480,989,950$     222,153,562$        17.6 %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 492,336,269$        507,785,919$        528,475,592$        498,578,427$        592,522,806$        100,186,537$        20.3 %
Research 83,487,974 85,108,045 82,089,147 131,121,213 152,303,268 68,815,294 82.4 %
Public Service 71,365,049 75,848,480 77,402,864 79,639,156 94,542,919 23,177,870 32.5 %
Academic Support 140,629,850 144,873,052 154,939,269 171,075,686 187,496,335 46,866,485 33.3 %
Student Services 87,447,751 90,151,545 95,228,666 96,897,429 97,483,098 10,035,347 11.5 %
Institutional Support 133,117,858 143,813,604 147,400,379 164,355,023 173,003,012 39,885,154 30.0 %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 125,493,000 129,125,389 140,923,628 150,918,426 150,593,215 25,100,215 20.0 %
Scholarships & Fellowships 88,984,234 95,852,388 100,705,270 115,038,571 140,043,211 51,058,977 57.4 %

Subtotal Expenditures 1,222,861,986$     1,272,558,422$     1,327,164,814$     1,407,623,932$     1,587,987,864$     365,125,878$        29.9 %
Mandatory Transfers 7,702,456 9,116,648 10,203,193 10,733,175 11,637,487 3,935,031 51.1 %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 26,736,499 93,603,560 52,585,255 35,756,137 (110,287,904) (137,024,403) (512.5) %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,257,300,941$     1,375,278,630$     1,389,953,262$     1,454,113,244$     1,489,337,447$     232,036,506$        18.5 %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 1,535,447$            (47,189,596)$         (2,672,078)$           13,234,345$          (8,347,497)$           

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 229,998,450$        243,291,225$        254,223,902$        266,172,939$        263,872,353$        33,873,903$          14.7 %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 162,487,928$        179,801,559$        186,136,905$        206,098,534$        198,622,468$        36,134,540$          22.2 %
Mandatory Transfers 30,475,329 35,921,341 42,169,835 46,326,750 47,597,203 17,121,874 56.2 %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 27,175,190 34,109,650 25,428,666 9,507,965 17,657,157 (9,518,033) (35.0) %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 220,138,447$        249,832,550$        253,735,406$        261,933,249$        263,876,828$        43,738,381$          19.9 %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 9,860,002$            (6,541,325)$           488,496$  4,239,690$            (4,475)$  

TOTALS
Revenues 1,488,834,838$     1,571,380,259$     1,641,505,085$     1,733,520,528$     1,744,862,303$     256,027,465$        17.2 %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 1,385,349,915$     1,452,359,981$     1,513,301,719$     1,613,722,467$     1,786,610,332$     401,260,417$        29.0 %
Mandatory Transfers 38,177,785 45,037,989 52,373,028 57,059,925 59,234,690 21,056,905 55.2 %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 53,911,689 127,713,210 78,013,921 45,264,102 (92,630,747) (146,542,436) (271.8) %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,477,439,389$     1,625,111,180$     1,643,688,668$     1,716,046,494$     1,753,214,275$     275,774,886$        18.7 %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 11,395,449$          (53,730,921)$         (2,183,583)$           17,474,035$          (8,351,972)$           

%

University of Tennessee System
Five Year FY2018-19  Revised Budget Summary Comparison

Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Transfers - Unrestricted 

FY 2015 to FY 2019
Change
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Schedule 9 - UT Total

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
Actual Actual Actual Actual Revised Amount

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 615,545,784$        655,160,210$        681,407,238$        710,190,418$        719,498,584$        103,952,800$        16.9 %
State Appropriations 498,835,055 517,432,168 546,284,768 592,062,887 610,871,779 112,036,724 22.5 %
Grants & Contracts 579,397,127 594,898,136 683,228,016 638,606,948 643,674,286 64,277,159 11.1 %
Sales & Service 60,095,439 63,277,345 67,209,889 69,851,826 63,200,011 3,104,572 5.2 %
Other Sources 135,054,622 139,646,158 137,649,683 139,504,137 128,816,451 (6,238,171) (4.6) %

Total Revenues 1,888,928,027$     1,970,414,018$     2,115,779,593$     2,150,216,217$     2,166,061,111$     277,133,084$        14.7 %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 661,945,281$        675,193,890$        705,777,228$        691,271,544$        782,304,551$        120,359,270$        18.2 %
Research 256,779,818 261,427,977 266,074,863 323,493,599 341,035,312 84,255,494 32.8 %
Public Service 130,087,649 143,797,743 146,770,348 150,391,428 168,502,165 38,414,516 29.5 %
Academic Support 179,856,422 190,896,151 207,096,268 218,247,500 235,860,733 56,004,311 31.1 %
Student Services 89,692,660 92,750,862 97,803,344 100,380,026 100,804,719 11,112,059 12.4 %
Institutional Support 135,132,492 146,540,103 149,261,875 166,685,771 175,105,323 39,972,831 29.6 %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 125,906,243 129,513,235 141,350,370 151,286,259 150,968,392 25,062,149 19.9 %
Scholarships & Fellowships 263,845,171 268,865,652 272,381,517 295,164,163 318,477,830 54,632,659 20.7 %

Subtotal Expenditures 1,843,245,736$     1,908,985,614$     1,986,515,814$     2,096,920,290$     2,273,059,025$     429,813,289$        23.3 %
Mandatory Transfers 7,702,456 9,116,648 10,203,193 10,733,175 11,637,487 3,935,031 51.1 %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 26,736,499 93,603,560 52,585,255 35,756,137 (110,287,904) (137,024,403) (512.5) %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,877,684,691$     2,011,705,822$     2,049,304,262$     2,143,409,602$     2,174,408,608$     296,723,917$        15.8 %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 11,243,336$          (41,291,804)$         66,475,332$          6,806,615$            (8,347,497)$           

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 230,256,055$        243,882,965$        255,189,378$        266,956,202$        264,132,353$        33,876,298$          14.7 %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 162,769,238$        180,136,338$        186,905,317$        207,035,549$        198,882,468$        36,113,230$          22.2 %
Mandatory Transfers 30,475,329 35,921,341 42,169,835 46,326,750 47,597,203 17,121,874 56.2 %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 27,175,190 34,109,650 25,428,666 9,507,965 17,657,157 (9,518,033) (35.0) %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 220,419,757$        250,167,329$        254,503,818$        262,870,264$        264,136,828$        43,717,071$          19.8 %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 9,836,298$            (6,284,365)$           685,560$               4,085,938$            (4,475)$                 

TOTALS
Revenues 2,119,184,082$     2,214,296,982$     2,370,968,971$     2,417,172,419$     2,430,193,464$     311,009,382$        14.7 %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 2,006,014,974$     2,089,121,952$     2,173,421,131$     2,303,955,839$     2,471,941,493$     465,926,519$        23.2 %
Mandatory Transfers 38,177,785 45,037,989 52,373,028 57,059,925 59,234,690 21,056,905 55.2 %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 53,911,689 127,713,210 78,013,921 45,264,102 (92,630,747) (146,542,436) (271.8) %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 2,098,104,448$     2,261,873,151$     2,303,808,080$     2,406,279,866$     2,438,545,436$     340,440,988$        16.2 %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 21,079,634$          (47,576,169)$         67,160,891$          10,892,552$          (8,351,972)$           

%

University of Tennessee System
Five Year FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary Comparison

Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Transfers - Unrestricted and Restricted

FY 2015 TO FY 2019
CHANGE
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Schedule 10 - UT Total

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total Amount
EDUCATION AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 710,190,418$      710,190,418$      711,215,155$      711,215,155$      719,498,584$      719,498,584$      8,283,429$             1.2            %
State Appropriations 573,016,552        19,046,335$        592,062,887        595,792,552        16,111,441$        611,903,993        592,754,052        18,117,727$        610,871,779        (1,032,214)             (0.2)           %
Grants  &  Contracts 51,045,254           587,561,694        638,606,948        43,237,280           597,381,250        640,618,530        43,371,046           600,303,240        643,674,286        3,055,756               0.5            %
Sales & Service 69,851,826           69,851,826           63,329,502           63,329,502           63,200,011           63,200,011           (129,491)                 (0.2)           %
Other Sources 63,243,539           76,260,598           139,504,137        57,591,636           68,190,604           125,782,240        62,166,257           66,650,194           128,816,451        3,034,211               2.4            %

Total Revenues 1,467,347,589$   682,868,627$      2,150,216,217$   1,471,166,125$   681,683,295$      2,152,849,420$   1,480,989,950$   685,071,161$      2,166,061,111$   13,211,691$           0.6            %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 498,578,427$      192,693,116$      691,271,544$      568,982,253        186,731,001$      755,713,254$      592,522,806$      189,781,745$      782,304,551$      26,591,297$           3.5            %
Research 131,121,213        192,372,385        323,493,599        108,656,998        188,607,643        297,264,641        152,303,268        188,732,044        341,035,312        43,770,671             14.7          %
Public Service 79,639,156           70,752,273           150,391,428        86,506,110           71,251,878           157,757,988        94,542,919           73,959,246           168,502,165        10,744,177             6.8            %
Academic Support 171,075,686        47,171,813           218,247,500        171,593,592        52,595,457           224,189,049        187,496,335        48,364,398           235,860,733        11,671,684             5.2            %
Student Services 96,897,429           3,482,597             100,380,026        91,907,823           2,285,892             94,193,715           97,483,098           3,321,621             100,804,719        6,611,004               7.0            %
Institutional Support 164,355,023        2,330,748             166,685,771        163,417,869        1,887,431             165,305,300        173,003,012        2,102,311             175,105,323        9,800,023               5.9            %
Operations & Maintenance of Plant 150,918,426        367,834                151,286,259        148,986,294        535,000                149,521,294        150,593,215        375,177                150,968,392        1,447,098               1.0            %
Scholarships & Fellowships 115,038,571        180,125,592        295,164,163        122,709,656        181,126,972        303,836,628        140,043,211        178,434,619        318,477,830        14,641,202             4.8            %

Subtotal Expenditures 1,407,623,932$   689,296,358$      2,096,920,290$   1,462,760,595$   685,021,274$      2,147,781,869$   1,587,987,864$   685,071,161$      2,273,059,025$   125,277,156$        5.8            %
Mandatory Transfers 10,733,175           10,733,175           11,617,487           11,617,487           11,637,487           11,637,487           20,000                    0.2            %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 35,756,137           35,756,137           (2,875,056)           (2,875,056)           (110,287,904)       (110,287,904)       (107,412,848)         (3,736.0)    %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,454,113,244$   689,296,358$      2,143,409,602$   1,471,503,026$   685,021,274$      2,156,524,300$   1,489,337,447$   685,071,161$      2,174,408,608$   17,884,308$           0.8            %
Fund Balance Addition / (Reduction) 13,234,345$        (6,427,730)$         6,806,615$           (336,901)$            (3,337,979)$         (3,674,880)$         (8,347,497)$         (8,347,497)$         

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 266,172,939$      783,263$              266,956,202$      264,379,683$      260,000$              264,639,683$      263,872,353$      260,000$              264,132,353$      (507,330)$              (0.2) %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 206,098,534$      937,015$              207,035,549$      198,430,261$      260,000$              198,690,261$      198,622,468$      260,000$              198,882,468$      192,207$                0.1            %
Mandatory Transfers 46,326,750           46,326,750           47,597,204           47,597,204           47,597,203           47,597,203           %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 9,507,965             9,507,965             18,332,218           18,332,218           17,657,157           17,657,157           (675,061)                 (3.7)           %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 261,933,249$      937,015$              262,870,264$      264,359,683$      260,000$              264,619,683$      263,876,828$      260,000$              264,136,828$      (482,855)$              (0.2)           %
Fund Balance Addition / (Reduction) 4,239,690$           (153,752)$            4,085,938$           20,000$                20,000$                (4,475)$                 (4,475)$                 

TOTALS
Revenues 1,733,520,528$   683,651,890$      2,417,172,419$   1,735,545,808$   681,943,295$      2,417,489,103$   1,744,862,303$   685,331,161$      2,430,193,464$   12,704,361$           0.5            %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 1,613,722,467$   690,233,373$      2,303,955,839$   1,661,190,856$   685,281,274$      2,346,472,130$   1,786,610,332$   685,331,161$      2,471,941,493$   125,469,363$        5.3            %
Mandatory Transfers 57,059,925           57,059,925           59,214,691           59,214,691           59,234,690           59,234,690           19,999                    -            %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 45,264,102           45,264,102           15,457,162           15,457,162           (92,630,747)         (92,630,747)         (108,087,909)         (699.3)       %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,716,046,494$   690,233,373$      2,406,279,866$   1,735,862,709$   685,281,274$      2,421,143,983$   1,753,214,275$   685,331,161$      2,438,545,436$   17,401,453$           0.7            %
Fund Balance Addition / (Reduction) 17,474,035$        (6,581,482)$         10,892,552$        (316,901)$            (3,337,979)$         (3,654,880)$         (8,351,972)$         (8,351,972)$         

FY 2018 Actual FY 2018 Original FY 2019 Revised
%

Original to Revised
Change

University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted and Restricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Transfers
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Schedule 11

University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget - Natural Classifications

Unrestricted Current Funds Expenditures 

Total System Chattanooga Knoxville Martin
Health Science 

Center
Institute of 
Agriculture

Institute for Public 
Service

System 
Administration

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries
Academic 363,179,316$  44,955,493$       174,031,540$     24,355,496$       87,108,401$       32,028,887$       552,529$            146,970$            
Non-Academic 365,334,119 40,808,827 144,515,867 22,278,925 72,282,969 46,998,490 11,745,155 26,703,886
Students 8,578,548 910,404 4,908,900 1,322,791 849,168 398,922 20,800 167,563

Total Salaries 737,091,983$  86,674,724$       323,456,307$     47,957,212$       160,240,538$     79,426,299$       12,318,484$       27,018,419$       
Staff Benefits 246,661,248 31,353,568 108,815,232 17,749,099 45,548,585 29,872,343 4,549,352 8,773,069

Total Salaries and Benefits 983,753,231$  118,028,292$     432,271,539$     65,706,311$       205,789,123$     109,298,642$     16,867,836$       35,791,488$       
Operating 579,535,704 59,415,753 317,560,694 33,386,952 89,389,463 52,612,214 7,372,203 19,798,425
Equipment and Capital Outlay 24,698,929 1,039,739 13,393,196 1,712,705 6,844,218 1,595,599 113,472

Total Expenditures 1,587,987,864$              178,483,784$     763,225,429$     100,805,968$     302,022,804$     163,506,455$     24,353,511$       55,589,913$       

AUXILIARIES
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries
Academic 706,658$  7,000$  699,658$            
Non-Academic 56,911,566 2,616,965 52,221,992 1,472,503$         600,106$            
Students 4,824,298 95,484 4,189,154 539,660

Total Salaries 62,442,522$  2,719,449$         57,110,804$       2,012,163$         600,106$            
Staff Benefits 15,789,031 713,125 14,128,018 682,960 264,928

Total Salaries and Benefits 78,231,553$  3,432,574$         71,238,822$       2,695,123$         865,034$            
Operating 119,546,470 7,232,549 107,000,414 4,232,930 1,080,577
Equipment and Capital Outlay 844,445 7,470 807,500 5,000 24,475

Total Expenditures 198,622,468$  10,672,593$       179,046,736$     6,933,053$         1,970,086$         

TOTALS
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries
Academic 363,885,974$  44,962,493$       174,731,198$     24,355,496$       87,108,401$       32,028,887$       552,529$            146,970$            
Non-Academic 422,245,685 43,425,792 196,737,859 23,751,428 72,883,075 46,998,490 11,745,155 26,703,886
Students 13,402,846 1,005,888 9,098,054 1,862,451 849,168 398,922 20,800 167,563

Total Salaries 799,534,505$  89,394,173$       380,567,111$     49,969,375$       160,840,644$     79,426,299$       12,318,484$       27,018,419$       
Staff Benefits 262,450,279 32,066,693 122,943,250 18,432,059 45,813,513 29,872,343 4,549,352 8,773,069

Total Salaries and Benefits 1,061,984,784$              121,460,866$     503,510,361$     68,401,434$       206,654,157$     109,298,642$     16,867,836$       35,791,488$       
Operating 699,082,174 66,648,302 424,561,108 37,619,882 90,470,040 52,612,214 7,372,203 19,798,425
Equipment and Capital Outlay 25,543,374 1,047,209 14,200,696 1,717,705 6,868,693 1,595,599 113,472

Total Expenditures 1,786,610,332$              189,156,377$     942,272,165$     107,739,021$     303,992,890$     163,506,455$     24,353,511$       55,589,913$       

Knoxville includes UTK Knoxville and UT Space Institute.
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FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019
Actual Original Revised Amount

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries
Academic 360,128,943$   363,138,411$   363,179,316$   40,905$   - %

Non-Academic 352,270,860 359,702,939 365,334,119 5,631,180 1.6  %

Students 11,206,795 8,567,574 8,578,548 10,974 0.1  %

Total Salaries 723,606,598$   731,408,924$   737,091,983$   5,683,059$   0.8  %

Staff Benefits 252,540,103 252,934,010 246,661,248 (6,272,762) (2.5)  %

Total Salaries and Benefits 976,146,701$   984,342,934$   983,753,231$   (589,703)$   (0.1)  %

Operating 401,637,430 455,965,004 579,535,704 123,570,700 27.1  %

Equipment and Capital Outlay 29,839,801 22,452,657 24,698,929 2,246,272 10.0  %

Total Expenditures 1,407,623,932$   1,462,760,595$   1,587,987,864$   125,227,269$   8.6  %

AUXILIARIES
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries
Academic 493,366$   670,423$   706,658$   36,235$   5.4  %

Non-Academic 67,966,203 55,516,800 56,911,566 1,394,766  2.5  %

Students 4,877,620 4,823,667 4,824,298 631 - %

Total Salaries 73,337,189$   61,010,890$   62,442,522$   1,431,632$   2.3  %

Staff Benefits 16,374,188 15,751,987 15,789,031 37,044 0.2  %

Total Salaries and Benefits 89,711,377$     76,762,877$     78,231,553$     1,468,676$   1.9  %

Operating 115,582,692 120,835,714 119,546,470 (1,289,244) (1.1)  %

Equipment and Capital Outlay 804,465 831,670 844,445 12,775 1.5  %

Total Expenditures 206,098,534$   198,430,261$   198,622,468$   192,207$   0.1  %

TOTALS
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries
Academic 360,622,308$   363,808,834$   363,885,974$   77,140$   - %

Non-Academic 420,237,064 415,219,739 422,245,685 7,025,946 1.7  %

Students 16,084,415 13,391,241 13,402,846 11,605 0.1  %

Total Salaries 796,943,788$   792,419,814$   799,534,505$   7,114,691$   0.9  %

Staff Benefits 268,914,291 268,685,997 262,450,279 (6,235,718) (2.3)  %

Total Salaries and Benefits 1,065,858,078$     1,061,105,811$   1,061,984,784$   878,973$   0.1  %

Operating 517,220,122 576,800,718 699,082,174 122,281,456 21.2  %

Equipment and Capital Outlay 30,644,267 23,284,327 25,543,374 2,259,047 9.7  %

Total Expenditures 1,613,722,467$     1,661,190,856$     1,786,610,332$     125,419,476$   7.5  %

%

University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary - Natural Classifications

Unrestricted Current Funds Expenditures 

Change
Original to Revised
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University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Auxiliary Enterprises Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Transfers

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019
Actual Original Revised Amount %

HOUSING
Revenues 70,671,371$          75,821,031$          75,319,351$         (501,680)$         (0.7) %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 41,752,153$          44,821,005$          44,319,327$         (501,680)$         (1.1)                %
Mandatory Transfers 19,957,336            26,701,876            26,701,876           
Non-Mandatory Transfers 8,236,713              4,298,150              4,298,150             

Total Expenditures and Transfers 69,946,202$          75,821,031$          75,319,351$         (501,680)$         (0.7)                %

Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 725,169$               

FOOD SERVICE
Revenues 10,729,108$          11,228,420$          11,235,503$         7,083$              0.1 %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 2,370,644$            3,499,822$            3,506,905$           7,083$              0.2 %
Mandatory Transfers 7,918,837              
Non-Mandatory Transfers 2,049,822              7,719,292              7,719,292             

Total Expenditures and Transfers 12,339,303$          11,219,114$          11,226,197$         7,083$              0.1 %

Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (1,610,195)$           9,306$                   9,306$                  

BOOKSTORES
Revenues 24,926,822$          25,010,352$          25,010,352$         
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 24,260,597$          23,257,014$          23,257,014$         
Mandatory Transfers 109,418                 109,418                
Non-Mandatory Transfers 1,527,966              1,644,920              1,644,920             

Total Expenditures and Transfers 25,788,563$          25,011,352$          25,011,352$         
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (861,741)$              (1,000)$                  (1,000)$                 

PARKING
Revenues 14,196,183$          15,199,720$          15,208,041$         8,321$              0.1 %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 7,516,920$            8,373,872$            8,406,668$           32,796$            0.4 %
Mandatory Transfers 4,543,671              6,346,538              6,346,538             
Non-Mandatory Transfers 3,014,013              479,310                 479,310                

Total Expenditures and Transfers 15,074,604$          15,199,720$          15,232,516$         32,796$            0.2 %

Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (878,421)$              (24,475)$               

ATHLETICS
Revenues 142,186,180$        133,678,897$        133,678,897$       
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 126,590,279$        115,007,485$        115,682,546$       675,061$          0.6 %
Mandatory Transfers 13,906,906            14,439,372            14,439,372           
Non-Mandatory Transfers (4,268,743)             4,232,040              3,556,979             (675,061)           (16.0) %

Total Expenditures and Transfers 136,228,442$        133,678,897$        133,678,897$       
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 5,957,738$            

OTHER
Revenues 3,463,275$            3,441,263$            3,420,209$           (21,054)$           (0.0) %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 3,607,941$            3,471,063$            3,450,009$           (21,054)$           (0.0) %
Mandatory Transfers
Non-Mandatory Transfers (1,051,806)             (41,494)                  (41,494)                 

Total Expenditures and Transfers 2,556,135$            3,429,569$            3,408,515$           (21,054)$           (0.0) %

Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 907,140$               11,694$                 11,694$                

TOTAL
Revenues 266,172,939$        264,379,683$        263,872,353$       (507,330)$         (0.2) %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 206,098,534$        198,430,261$        198,622,468$       192,207$          0.1 %
Mandatory Transfers 46,326,750            47,597,204            47,597,204           
Non-Mandatory Transfers 9,507,965              18,332,218            17,657,157           (675,061)           (3.7) %

Total Expenditures and Transfers 261,933,249$        264,359,683$        263,876,828$       (482,855)$         (0.2) %

Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 4,239,690$            20,000$                 (4,475)$                 

Original to Revised
Change
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University of Tennessee System
E&G and Auxiliary Funds for Men's and Women's Athletics

CHANGE
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

KNOXVILLE
Revenues

General Funds
Student Fees for Athletics 1,000,000$          1,000,000$          1,000,000$          
Ticket Sales 34,537,848 34,259,384 34,259,384
Gifts 38,562,310 30,620,000 30,620,000
Other 69,430,822 68,797,013 68,797,013

Total Revenues 143,530,980$      134,676,397$      134,676,397$      

Expenditures and Transfers  
Salaries and Benefits 59,052,374$        46,637,431$        47,312,492$        675,061$             1.4%
Travel 11,265,154 11,215,509 11,215,509
Student Aid 14,466,372 15,384,069 15,384,069
Other Operating 42,304,453 42,161,976 42,161,976

Subtotal Expenditures 127,088,353$      115,398,985$      116,074,046$      675,061$             0.6%
Debt Service Transfers 13,906,906 14,439,372 14,439,372
Other Transfers (3,268,742) 4,838,040 4,162,979 (675,061)$            -14.0%

Total Expenditures and Transfers 137,726,517$      134,676,397$      134,676,397$      -$                         
Fund Balance Addition / (Reduction) 5,804,463$          

CHATTANOOGA
Revenues

General Funds 8,529,645$          5,953,054$          7,745,166$          1,792,112$          30.1%
Student Fees for Athletics 4,472,079 4,991,503 4,991,503
Ticket Sales 804,218 936,046 825,023 (111,023)$            -11.9%
Gifts 1,847,990 1,500,000 1,500,000
Other 2,167,544 2,036,891 1,990,000 (46,891)$              -2.3%

Total Revenues 17,821,476$        15,417,494$        17,051,692$        1,634,198$          10.6%

Expenditures and Transfers  
Salaries and Benefits 7,684,282$          7,110,666$          7,354,469$          243,803$             3.4%
Travel 1,350,366 1,777,205 1,697,205 (80,000)                -4.5%
Student Aid 4,874,916 5,233,939 5,181,888 (52,051)                -1.0%
Other Operating 4,285,589 660,684 2,183,130 1,522,446            230.4%

Subtotal Expenditures 18,195,153$        14,782,494$        16,416,692$        1,634,198$          11.1%
Debt Service Transfers 161,696 635,000 635,000
Other Transfers

Total Expenditures and Transfers 18,356,849$        15,417,494$        17,051,692$        1,634,198$          10.6%
Fund Balance Addition / (Reduction) (535,372)$            

MARTIN
Revenues

General Funds 6,282,278$          6,272,505$          6,262,785$          (9,720)$                -0.2%
Student Fees for Athletics 2,183,442 2,032,000 2,102,000 70,000                 3.4%
Ticket Sales 170,623 140,000 160,000 20,000                 14.3%
Gifts 953,230 646,039 779,929 133,890               20.7%
Other 2,099,923 1,958,694 2,278,860 320,166               16.3%

Total Revenues 11,689,496$        11,049,238$        11,583,574$        534,336$             4.8%

Expenditures and Transfers  
Salaries and Benefits 4,290,771$          4,545,644$          4,393,050$          (152,594)$            -3.4%
Travel 964,843 576,943 640,240 63,297                 11.0%
Student Aid 4,203,953 4,515,973 4,516,494 521                      0.0%
Other Operating 2,043,518 1,294,448 1,821,395 526,947               40.7%

Subtotal Expenditures 11,503,085$        10,933,008$        11,371,179$        438,171$             4.0%
Debt Service Transfers 186,411               116,230 212,395 96,165                 82.7%
Other Transfers

Total Expenditures and Transfers 11,689,496$        11,049,238$        11,583,574$        534,336$             4.8%
Fund Balance Addition / (Reduction) -$                         

TOTAL ATHLETICS
Revenues

General Funds 14,811,923$        12,225,559$        14,007,951$        1,782,392$          14.6%
Student Fees for Athletics 7,655,521            8,023,503 8,093,503
Ticket Sales 35,512,689          35,335,430 35,244,407 (91,023)                -0.3%
Gifts 41,363,530          32,766,039 32,899,929 133,890               0.4%
Other 73,698,289          72,792,598 73,065,873 273,275               0.4%

Total Revenues 173,041,952$      161,143,129$      163,311,663$      2,098,534$          1.3%

Expenditures and Transfers    
Salaries and Benefits 71,027,427$        58,293,741$        59,060,011$        766,270$             1.3%
Travel 13,580,363 13,569,657 13,552,954 (16,703)                -0.1%
Student Aid 23,545,241 25,133,981 25,082,451 (51,530)                -0.2%
Other Operating 48,633,560 44,117,108 46,166,501 2,049,393            4.6%

Subtotal Expenditures 156,786,591$      141,114,487$      143,861,917$      2,747,430$          1.9%
Debt Service Transfers 14,255,013 15,190,602 15,286,767 96,165                 0.6%
Other Transfers (3,268,742) 4,838,040 4,162,979 (675,061)              -14.0%

Total Expenditures and Transfers 167,772,862$      161,143,129$      163,311,663$      2,168,534$          1.3%
Fund Balance Addition / (Reduction) 5,269,091$          

Includes unrestricted and restricted funds.  Other revenue sources include NCAA conference income, tournament income, program sales, 
concessions, parking, broadcasting, television, radio, internet, endowments, investments, royalties, advertisements, sponsorships, game guarantees,   
licensing fees, and sports camps.    

Athletics FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary
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University of Tennessee System
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 710,190,418$       711,215,155$   719,498,584$   8,283,429$   1.2  %
State Appropriations 573,016,552  595,792,552  592,754,052  (3,038,500)  (0.5)  %
Grants & Contracts 51,045,254    43,237,280  43,371,046  133,766  0.3  %
Sales & Service 69,851,826    63,329,502  63,200,011  (129,491)  (0.2)  %
Other Sources 63,243,539    57,591,636  62,166,257  4,574,621  7.9  %

Total Revenues 1,467,347,589$    1,471,166,125$   1,480,989,950$   9,823,825$   0.7  %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 498,578,427$   568,982,253$   592,522,806$   23,540,553$   4.1  %
Research 131,121,213  108,656,998  152,303,268  43,646,270  40.2  %
Public Service 79,639,156  86,506,110  94,542,919  8,036,809  9.3  %
Academic Support 171,075,686  171,593,592  187,496,335  15,902,743  9.3  %
Student Services 96,897,429  91,907,823  97,483,098  5,575,275  6.1  %
Institutional Support 164,355,023  163,417,869  173,003,012  9,585,143  5.9  %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 150,918,426  148,986,294  150,593,215  1,606,921  1.1  %
Scholarships & Fellowships 115,038,571  122,709,656  140,043,211  17,333,555  14.1  %

Subtotal Expenditures 1,407,623,932$   1,462,760,595$   1,587,987,864$   125,227,269$   8.6  %
Mandatory Transfers 10,733,175  11,617,487  11,637,487  20,000  0.2  %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 35,756,137  (2,875,056)  (110,287,904) (107,412,848) (3,736.0)  %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,454,113,244$   1,471,503,026$   1,489,337,447$   17,834,421$   1.2  %

Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 13,234,345$   (336,901)$   (8,347,497)$   

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 266,172,939$   264,379,683$   263,872,353$   (507,330)$   (0.20)  %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 206,098,534  198,430,261  198,622,468  192,207  0.1  %
Mandatory Transfers 46,326,750  47,597,204  47,597,204  
Non-Mandatory Transfers 9,507,965  18,332,218  17,657,157  (675,061)  (3.7)  %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 261,933,249$   264,359,683$   263,876,828$   (482,855)$   (0.2)  %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 4,239,690$   20,000$   (4,475)$   

TOTALS
Revenues 1,733,520,528$    1,735,545,808$    1,744,862,303$    9,316,495$   0.5  %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 1,613,722,467$    1,661,190,856$    1,786,610,332$    125,419,476$   7.5  %
Mandatory Transfers 57,059,925 59,214,691 59,234,690 19,999 - %
Non-Mandatory Transfers 45,264,102 15,457,162 (92,630,747) (108,087,909) (699.3)  %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,716,046,494$    1,735,862,709$    1,753,214,275$    17,351,566$   1.0  %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 17,474,035$   (316,901)$   (8,351,972)$   
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Schedule 15 - UTC

Chattanooga
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 110,755,036$      112,672,503$   112,698,369$   25,866$   - %
State Appropriations 51,840,105  55,663,705  55,440,405  (223,300)  (0.4) %
Grants & Contracts 724,121       453,856  530,443  76,587  16.9 %
Sales & Service 5,230,462    5,125,324  4,818,012  (307,312)  (6.0) %
Other Sources 398,984       239,500  269,500  30,000  12.5 %

Total Revenues 168,948,706$   174,154,888$   173,756,729$   (398,159)$   (0.2)  %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 67,759,772$   75,139,063$   79,010,179$   3,871,116$   5.2  %
Research 3,912,746  2,545,028  3,126,083  581,055  22.8  %
Public Service 2,150,254  2,727,856  2,682,332  (45,524)  (1.7)  %
Academic Support 17,226,039  14,344,882  17,075,728  2,730,846  19.0  %
Student Services 27,117,364  26,308,232  26,393,789  85,557  0.3  %
Institutional Support 13,286,203  13,055,249  16,587,922  3,532,673  27.1  %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 16,143,824  21,528,231  20,580,378  (947,853)  (4.4)  %
Scholarships & Fellowships 12,204,630  12,916,824  13,027,373  110,549  0.9  %

Subtotal Expenditures 159,800,832$   168,565,365$   178,483,784$   9,918,419$   5.9  %
Mandatory Transfers 572,738  3,987,165  3,987,165  
Non-Mandatory Transfers 8,104,718  1,602,358  (8,714,220) (10,316,578) (643.8)  %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 168,478,288$   174,154,888$   173,756,729$   (398,159)$   (0.2)  %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 470,418$   

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 16,231,712$   18,796,704$   18,796,704$   
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 10,534,579  10,672,593  10,672,593  
Mandatory Transfers 1,391,143  6,104,333  6,104,333  
Non-Mandatory Transfers 4,199,214  2,019,778  2,019,778  

Total Expenditures & Transfers 16,124,936$   18,796,704$   18,796,704$   
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 106,775$   

TOTALS
Revenues 185,180,418$   192,951,592$   192,553,433$   (398,159)$   (0.2)  %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 170,335,412$   179,237,958$   189,156,377$   9,918,419$   5.5  %
Mandatory Transfers 1,963,881  10,091,498  10,091,498  
Non-Mandatory Transfers 12,303,932 3,622,136 (6,694,442) (10,316,578) (284.8)  %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 184,603,225$   192,951,592$   192,553,433$   (398,159)$   (0.2)  %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 577,193$   

B-20

2 

118
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Revised FY 2018-19 Operating Budget 

Schedule 15 - UT / UTSI

Knoxville
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 439,107,940$       433,862,306$       444,431,263$       10,568,957$   2.4       %
State Appropriations 235,281,158         242,539,158         241,594,058         (945,100)         (0.4)      %
Grants & Contracts 28,828,264           22,960,000           22,960,000           
Sales & Service 7,737,474             4,671,984             4,762,089             90,105            1.9       %
Other Sources 12,832,210           11,843,078           7,660,829             (4,182,249)      (35.3)    %

Total Revenues 723,787,046$       715,876,526$       721,408,239$       5,531,713$     0.8       %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 228,835,586$       270,655,349$       279,671,724$       9,016,375$     3.3       %
Research 77,969,562           59,378,052           91,802,477           32,424,425     54.6     %
Public Service 13,242,351           12,252,190           10,262,351           (1,989,839)      (16.2)    %
Academic Support 74,170,135           83,630,986           85,259,986           1,629,000       1.9       %
Student Services 50,139,522           46,429,042           49,742,373           3,313,331       7.1       %
Institutional Support 53,645,727           58,390,917           59,100,841           709,924          1.2       %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 79,506,218           79,744,284           83,029,198           3,284,914       4.1       %
Scholarships & Fellowships 81,290,597           88,317,301           104,356,479         16,039,178     18.2     %

Subtotal Expenditures 658,799,697$       698,798,121$       763,225,429$       64,427,308$   9.2       %
Mandatory Transfers 3,923,772             738,268                738,268                
Non-Mandatory Transfers 55,149,296           16,340,137           (42,555,458) (58,895,595) (360.4)  %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 717,872,765$       715,876,526$       721,408,239$       5,531,713$     0.8       %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 5,914,281$           

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 238,573,010$       232,462,988$       232,468,692$       5,704$            -       %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 187,789,599         178,365,971         179,046,736         680,765          0.4       %
Mandatory Transfers 42,521,115           38,461,367           38,461,367           
Non-Mandatory Transfers 4,115,110             15,635,650           14,960,589           (675,061)         (4.3)      %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 234,425,824$       232,462,988$       232,468,692$       5,704$            -       %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 4,147,187$           

TOTALS
Revenues 962,360,056$       948,339,514$       953,876,931$       5,537,417$     0.6       %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 846,589,296$       877,164,092$       942,272,165$       65,108,073$   7.4       %
Mandatory Transfers 46,444,887 39,199,635 39,199,635
Non-Mandatory Transfers 59,264,406 31,975,787 (27,594,869) (59,570,656) (186.3)  %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 952,298,589$       948,339,514$       953,876,931$       5,537,417$     0.6       %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 10,061,467$         

Knoxville includes UT Knoxville and the UT Space Institute.
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Schedule 15 - UTM

Martin
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 57,986,775$         61,859,798$         59,740,130$         (2,119,668)$    (3.4)       %
State Appropriations 33,208,097           35,102,197           34,409,997           (692,200)         (2.0)       %
Grants & Contracts 216,486                211,400                241,400                30,000            14.2      %
Sales & Service 4,053,553             3,543,297             4,138,370             595,073          16.8      %
Other Sources 867,778                817,400                771,000                (46,400)           (5.7)       %

Total Revenues 96,332,689$         101,534,092$       99,300,897$         (2,233,195)$    (2.2)       %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 42,283,223$         43,795,524$         44,184,929$         389,405$        0.9        %
Research 374,754                321,886                306,588                (15,298)           (4.8)       %
Public Service 760,940                768,092                809,208                41,116            5.4        %
Academic Support 10,716,889           11,263,531           10,893,356           (370,175)         (3.3)       %
Student Services 13,354,643           12,649,847           13,803,387           1,153,540       9.1        %
Institutional Support 6,622,594             6,894,545             6,988,181             93,636            1.4        %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 11,061,120           11,902,427           11,098,634           (803,793)         (6.8)       %
Scholarships & Fellowships 11,069,445           12,094,327           12,721,685           627,358          5.2        %

Subtotal Expenditures 96,243,608$         99,690,179$         100,805,968$       1,115,789$     1.1        %
Mandatory Transfers 250,392                590,064                590,064                
Non-Mandatory Transfers 621,848                1,253,849             (2,095,135)           (3,348,984)      (267.1)   %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 97,115,848$         101,534,092$       99,300,897$         (2,233,195)$    (2.2)       %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (783,159)$            

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 9,496,343$           10,818,526$         10,290,846$         (527,680)         (4.90)     %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 6,074,248$           7,460,732$           6,933,053$           (527,679)         (7.1)       %
Mandatory Transfers 2,046,047             2,661,004             2,661,004             
Non-Mandatory Transfers 1,312,460             696,790                696,790                

Total Expenditures & Transfers 9,432,755$           10,818,526$         10,290,846$         (527,680)         (4.9)       
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 63,589$                

TOTALS
Revenues 105,829,032$       112,352,618$       109,591,743$       (2,760,875)$    (2.5)       %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 102,317,855         107,150,911         107,739,021         588,110          0.5        %
Mandatory Transfers 2,296,439             3,251,068             3,251,068             
Non-Mandatory Transfers 1,934,308             1,950,639             (1,398,345)           (3,348,984)      (171.7)   %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 106,548,602$       112,352,618$       109,591,743$       (2,760,875)$    (2.5)       %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (719,570)$            
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Schedule 15 - HSC Total

Health Science Center
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 89,199,896$         89,554,372$         89,605,034$         50,662$           0.1        %
State Appropriations 149,955,324         155,492,224         154,579,424         (912,800)          (0.6)       %
Grants & Contracts 15,973,759           15,012,697           15,039,876           27,179             0.2        %
Sales & Service 25,993,411           24,000,581           23,622,134           (378,447)          (1.6)       %
Other Sources 906,450                1,212,758             1,212,758             

Total Revenues 282,028,840$       285,272,632$       284,059,226$       (1,213,406)$     (0.4)       %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 126,418,758$       139,184,061$       148,755,315$       9,571,254$      6.9        %
Research 8,980,044             5,397,773             7,611,671             2,213,898        41.0      %
Public Service 7,710                    103,000                103,000                
Academic Support 58,815,755           53,573,166           64,878,984           11,305,818      21.1      %
Student Services 6,285,900             6,520,702             7,543,549             1,022,847        15.7      %
Institutional Support 33,960,690           27,521,263           31,127,071           3,605,808        13.1      %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 40,422,433           32,117,263           32,130,544           13,281             -        %
Scholarships & Fellowships 10,425,717           9,306,714             9,872,670             565,956           6.1        %

Subtotal Expenditures 285,317,007$       273,723,942$       302,022,804$       28,298,862$    10.3      %
Mandatory Transfers 5,860,533             6,191,990             6,191,990             
Non-Mandatory Transfers (11,956,526)         5,376,700             (23,677,576) (29,054,276)     (540.4)   %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 279,221,014$       285,292,632$       284,537,218$       (755,414)$        (0.3)       %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 2,807,826$           (20,000)$              (477,992)$            

AUXILIARIES
Revenues 1,871,874$           2,301,465$           2,316,111$           14,646$           0.60      %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 1,700,108             1,930,965             1,970,086             39,121             2.0        %
Mandatory Transfers 368,445                370,500                370,500                
Non-Mandatory Transfers (118,819)              (20,000)                (20,000)                

Total Expenditures & Transfers 1,949,734$           2,281,465$           2,320,586$           39,121$           1.7        %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) (77,861)$              20,000$                (4,475)$                

TOTALS
Revenues 283,900,714$       287,574,097$       286,375,337$       (1,198,760)$     (0.4)       %
Expenditures and Transfers

Expenditures 287,017,116$       275,654,907$       303,992,890$       28,337,983$    10.3      %
Mandatory Transfers 6,228,978             6,562,490             6,562,490             
Non-Mandatory Transfers (12,075,345) 5,356,700 (23,697,576) (29,054,276)     (542.4)   %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 281,170,749$       287,574,097$       286,857,804$       (716,293)$        (0.2)       %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 2,729,965$           (482,467)$            
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Institute of Agriculture
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 13,037,090$         13,266,176$         13,023,788$         (242,388)$        (1.8)       %
State Appropriations 84,899,664           88,611,464           87,896,764           (714,700)          (0.8)       %
Grants & Contracts 4,991,798             4,320,571             4,320,571             
Sales & Service 26,836,927           25,988,316           25,859,406           (128,910)          (0.5)       %
Other Sources 15,382,400           16,211,361           16,195,388           (15,973)            (0.1)       %

Total Revenues 145,147,879$       148,397,888$       147,295,917$       (1,101,971)$     (0.7)       %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction 33,281,089$         40,208,256$         40,900,658$         692,402$         1.7        %
Research 39,884,108           41,014,259           49,456,449           8,442,190        20.6      %
Public Service 45,695,358           50,985,345           57,591,301           6,605,956        13.0      %
Academic Support 9,956,420             8,558,458             9,162,777             604,319           7.1        %
Student Services
Institutional Support 2,535,882             2,562,877             2,575,804             12,927             0.5        %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 3,784,830             3,694,089             3,754,461             60,372             1.6        %
Scholarships & Fellowships 48,182                  74,490                  65,004                  (9,486)              (12.7)     %

Subtotal Expenditures 135,185,869$       147,097,774$       163,506,454$       16,408,680$    11.2      %
Mandatory Transfers
Non-Mandatory Transfers 8,208,878             1,392,295             (8,883,477) (10,275,772) (738.0)   %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 143,394,747$       148,490,069$       154,622,977$       6,132,908$      4.1        %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 1,753,131$           (92,181)$              (7,327,060)$         
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Institute for Public Service Total
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees 103,681$             
State Appropriations 12,216,587          12,590,287$        13,179,387$        589,100$      4.7     %
Grants & Contracts 310,827               278,756               278,756               
Sales & Service
Other Sources 8,619,179            9,027,963            11,856,796          2,828,833     31.3   %

Total Revenues 21,250,273$        21,897,006$        25,314,939$        3,417,933$   15.6   %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction
Research
Public Service 17,782,542$        19,669,627$        23,094,727$        3,425,100$   17.4   %
Academic Support 190,449               222,569               225,504               2,935            1.3     %
Student Services
Institutional Support 1,011,157            1,036,287            1,033,280            (3,007)           (0.3)    %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships & Fellowships

Subtotal Expenditures 18,984,148$        20,928,483$        24,353,511$        3,425,028$   16.4   %
Mandatory Transfers
Non-Mandatory Transfers 2,162,519            909,082               898,095 (10,987) (1.2)    %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 21,146,667$        21,837,565$        25,251,606$        3,414,041$   15.6   %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 103,606$             59,441$               63,333$               
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System Administration
FY 2018-19 Revised Budget Summary

Unrestricted Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Transfers

Change
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2019 Original to Revised
Actual Original Revised Amount %

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL
Revenues

Tuition & Fees
State Appropriations 5,615,617$          5,793,517$          5,654,017$          (139,500)$            (2.4)    %
Grants & Contracts
Sales & Service
Other Sources 24,236,539          18,239,576          24,199,986          5,960,410            32.7   %

Total Revenues 29,852,156$         24,033,093$         29,854,003$         5,820,910$          24.2   %

Expenditures and Transfers
Instruction
Research
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support 53,292,770$         53,956,731$         55,589,913$         1,633,182$          3.0     %
Operation & Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships & Fellowships

Subtotal Expenditures 53,292,770$         53,956,731$         55,589,913$         1,633,182$          3.0     %
Mandatory Transfers 125,740               110,000               130,000               20,000                 18.2   %
Non-Mandatory Transfers (26,534,596)         (29,749,477)         (25,260,133) 4,489,344 15.1   %

Total Expenditures & Transfers 26,883,914$         24,317,254$         30,459,780$         6,142,526$          25.3   %
Fund Balance Addition/(Reduction) 2,968,242$          (284,161)$            (605,777)$            
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campus and unit budget staff and the IRIS staff who contribute to 
the preparation of the University budget. 
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James Price 
Keith Thomas 
Suzan Thompson 
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Richard Brown, Executive Vice Chancellor of Administration 
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The University of Tennessee does not discriminate on the basis of race, 
sex, color, religion, national origin, age, disability or veteran status in 
provision of educational programs and services or employment 
opportunities and benefits.  This policy extends to both employment by 
and admission to the University. 

The University does not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, or 
disability in its education programs and activities pursuant to the 
requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990. 

Inquiries and charges of violation concerning Title VI, Title IX, Section 
504, ADA or the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA) or 
any of the other above referenced policies should be directed to the 
Office of Equity and Diversity (OED), 1840 Melrose Avenue, 
Knoxville, TN 37996-3560, telephone (865) 974-2498 (V/TTY 
available) or 974-2440.  Requests for accommodation of a disability 
should be directed to the ADA Coordinator at the UT Knoxville Office 
of Human Resources, 600 Henley Street, Knoxville, TN 37996-4125. 
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Process for the Campus Advisory Board to Submit a Recommendation 
to the President on the Proposed Annual Operating Budget, Including 
Tuition and Fees, as Related to the Campus

Type: Action

Presenter(s): David L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer

Under the UT FOCUS Act, Public Chapter 653 (2018), the advisory boards established for 
UTC, UTHSC, UTK, and UTM have the responsibility to submit a recommendation to the 
President on the proposed annual operating budget, including tuition and fees, as it 
relates to the respective campus prior to adoption of the annual operating budget by the 
Board of Trustees.  The UT FOCUS Act requires that the advisory board recommendation 
be submitted in accordance with the process established by the Board of Trustee.  

The Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Chancellors and Chief Business 
Officers, has developed the process presented in the meeting materials for each advisory 
board to submit its recommendation to the President.  The process provides for the Chief 
Financial Officer to distribute instructions to the Chancellors each year regarding the 
format and timing of the advisory board recommendation to ensure consistency with the 
date and agenda of the annual meeting of the Board of Trustees and the format of the 
University’s proposed budget document. The meeting materials also include an example 
of the format for the campus budget proposal each Chancellor would submit to the 
respective advisory board. 

The Chief Financial Officer recommends approval of the process presented in the meeting 
materials, and the Chancellors concur.  

Motion: I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption 
of the Resolution presented in the meeting materials to establish the process for each 
campus advisory board to submit a recommendation to the President on the proposed 
annual operating budget, including tuition and fees, as related to the campus.  
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Process for the Campus Advisory Board to Submit a Recommendation to the President 
on the Proposed Annual Operating Budget, Including Tuition and Fees, as 

Related to the Campus

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the Process for the Campus Advisory Board 
to Submit a Recommendation to the President on the Proposed Annual Operating 
Budget, Including Tuition and Fees, as Related to the Campus as presented in the meeting 
materials, which shall be attached to this Resolution after adoption.  

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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University of Tennessee, Knoxville
Fiscal Year 2019-20 Advisory Board Operating Budget Recommendation

Proposed Current Operating Fund Budgets
Fund Group Revenues Expenditures & Transfers
Unrestricted Educational & 
General (E&G) Funds

Unrestricted Auxiliary Funds

Subtotal: Unrestricted Funds

Restricted Funds

Total Current Operating Funds

Proposed Percentage Tuition & Fee Changes

Tuition & Mandatory Fees In-State Out-of-State

Undergraduate Maintenance Fee

Undergraduate Tuition & Mandatory Fees

Graduate Maintenance Fee

Graduate Tuition & Mandatory Fees

College of Law Maintenance Fee

College of Law Tuition & Mandatory Fees

UT Space Institute Maintenance Fee

UT Space Institute Tuition & Mandatory Fees

The Chancellor shall submit the Advisory Board recommendation and the Chancellor’s original budget 
recommendation to the President for review no later than May 22, 2019.
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PROCESS FOR THE CAMPUS ADVISORY BOARD TO SUBMIT A 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE PRESIDENT ON THE 
PROPOSED ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET AS RELATED TO THE CAMPUS

SECTION 1. PURPOSE

Under Tennessee law and the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees, the Board is responsible 
for approving the annual operating budget for the University of Tennessee, including 
tuition and fees for each campus. Tennessee law requires the campus Advisory Board to 
submit a recommendation to the President on the proposed annual operating budget, 
including tuition and fees, as it relates to the campus prior to adoption of the annual 
operating budget for the University by the Board of Trustees. Tennessee law also requires 
that the Advisory Board submit the recommendation to the President in accordance with 
the process established by the Board of Trustees.  

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS

“Advisory Board” means the separate advisory board established under Tennessee Code 
Annotated § 49-9-501 for each of the following:  University of Tennessee, Knoxville,
University of Tennessee at Martin, University of Tennessee at Chattanooga, and 
University of Tennessee Health Science Center.

“Board” means the Board of Trustees of the University of Tennessee.

SECTION 3. PROCESS

1. The Chief Financial Officer shall distribute instructions to Chancellors during the 
annual budget development process regarding the format and timing of Advisory 
Board budget recommendations to ensure consistency with the date and agenda 
of the annual meeting of the Board of Trustees and format of the University’s 
proposed budget document.

2. In accordance with University fiscal policy and instructions distributed by the 
system budget office, the Chancellor and campus budget personnel shall develop 
the campus proposal for revenues, expenditures and transfers, and tuition and 
mandatory fees (hereinafter “campus proposal”) for inclusion in the proposed 
annual operating budget for the University.

3. The Chancellor shall present the campus proposal to the Advisory Board in the 
format and in accordance with the instructions issued by the Chief Financial 
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Officer (see item 1 above). The Advisory Board shall make a recommendation on 
the campus proposal at a regular or special meeting of the Advisory Board.

4. The Chancellor shall submit the Advisory Board recommendation on the campus 
proposal to the President for review, along with the original campus proposal.

5. The President and Chief Financial Officer shall consider the Advisory Board 
recommendations on the campus proposals while finalizing the annual operating 
budget proposal for the University. The President has sole authority over the 
annual operating budget proposal presented by the Chief Financial Officer to the 
Board of Trustees.  

6. The Board shall consider the annual operating budget proposal for the University 
and act on it in accordance with its Bylaws, applicable policies, and applicable 
committee charters.

History:

Adopted 03/01/2019
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: FY 2019-20 Tuition and Fees for the Health Science Center

Type: Action

Presenter: David L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer

The Health Science Center is presenting its proposed FY 2019-20 student tuition and fee 
schedules at this meeting rather than waiting until the Board meeting in June. Although 
the academic year for the other campuses begins in August of each year, for UTSHC it 
begins on July 1. Waiting until the June meeting for tuition and fees to be approved 
creates a challenge for UTHSC students to have financial plans in place before the 
academic year begins.

UTHSC proposes to increase the maintenance fee by $200 for graduate and professional 
programs. This will result in percentage increases ranging from 0.3% to 2.0% depending 
on the current tuition level of each program. Both in-state and out-of-state students will 
pay the $200 maintenance fee increase, but there is no increase proposed for additional 
tuition paid by out-of-state students. UTHSC proposes reductions of out-of-state tuition 
for three programs where competitive pressures for out-of-state students are increasing. 
There is an adjustment to online tuition for the Doctor of Nursing Practice program that 
is expected to be revenue neutral. The net revenue gain of these changes is projected to 
be $451,200, which will be allocated to library acquisitions.

Details of the proposal are presented in the following schedules. The Chief Financial 
Officer recommends approval.

Motion:  I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption 
of the Resolution in the meeting materials to approve FY 2019-20 tuition and fees for 
the Health Science Center.  
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

FY 2019-20 Tuition and Fees for the Health Science Center

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves the FY 2019-20 tuition and fees for the Health 
Science Center as presented in the meeting materials, which shall be attached to this 
Resolution after adoption.  

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER

FY 2019-20 PROPOSED TUITION AND FEES

This section presents anticipated tuition1 and fee revenue growth that will result from the
proposed fee adjustments recommended to the Board of Trustees for FY 2019-20. It is provided
to inform Board members in their consideration of the Health Science Center’s tuition and fee
proposal. It includes revenue projections for specific fee changes, a discussion on how the
additional revenues are planned to be used, and detailed schedules.

PROPOSED CHANGES

Maintenance Fees & Tuition Maintenance Fee1 Out-of-State 
Tuition

New 
Revenues

College of Dentistry – DDS $200 0.7% 0 69,000

College of Dentistry – Transitional DDS2 $200 0.3% 0 0

College of Dentistry – DH (Undergraduate) $0 0.0% (13,620) (62,200)

College of Graduate Health Sciences $200 1.9% (13,322) 45,800

College of Graduate Health Sciences-Pharmacology $200 1.2% 0 3,700

College of Health Professions – Advanced Degree $200 1.5% 0 50,700

College of Health Professions – Audiology 
Advanced Degree

$200 1.1% 0 34,200

College of Health Professions – Post-Professional $200 2.0% 0 2,000

College of Medicine – MD $200 0.6% 0 118,100

College of Medicine – PA $200 0.9% 0 10,200

College of Pharmacy $200 0.9% (14,806) 140,100

College of Nursing – Graduate $200 1.1% 0 39,600

Subtotal $451,200

Grand Total $ 451,200

1 For the purposes of this document, tuition refers to both maintenance fees and out-of-state tuition. 
In-state students pay only for the maintenance fee, which is commonly referred to as ‘in-state tuition’.
Out-of-state students pay the maintenance fee plus out-of-state tuition. The combined amount of these
two fees is commonly referred to as ‘out-of-state tuition’.

2 There are currently no students enrolled in this program; there will be no new revenues at this time.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER

FY 2019-20 PROPOSED TUITION AND FEES

PROPOSED USES OF NEW REVENUES

Maintenance Fee – There is no proposed increase for Undergraduate programs.  There is a general 
$200 proposed maintenance fee increase this year for Graduate / Professional Programs.  There will 
be no increase in out of state graduate / professional tuition rates beyond the $200 noted.  Tuition 
increases will generate $451,200 in new revenues which will be allocated to library acquisitions, 
pending the Governor’s Budget proposal.    

Out-of-State Tuition – UTHSC proposes reductions in out-of-state tuition charges for the Pharmacy, 
Graduate Health Sciences, and Dental Hygiene programs in order to maintain and, in some cases, 
grow enrollment.  In all proposals, no qualified Tennessee applicant will be disadvantaged.  It is 
anticipated that out of state enrollment will increase in order to offset the revenue losses from the 
reductions. Applications to Pharmacy schools are declining across the nation.  However, as the 
ranking of the HSC College of Pharmacy continues to climb (currently ranked as #17 in the nation), 
enrollment remains strong and many out of state applicants who are accepted do not enroll due to 
high out of state tuition rates.

Online Tuition – The College of Nursing proposes to reclassify the Doctor of Nursing Practice 
program to the online category.  The program has always been primarily online with specific periods 
of required on-campus seminar work.  The standard for similar programs nationally is to classify 
these programs as online.  It is expected a 10% increase in enrollment will maintain the current 
tuition revenue for the program. 
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Health Science Center
FY 2019-20 Annual Tuition and Fees

Tuition

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 Amount Percent

Graduate Health Sciences 10,694$      10,894$      200$        1.9%
MS Pharmacology 16,512        16,712        200          1.2%

Medicine 
Doctor of Medicine 34,366        34,566        200          0.6%
Physician Assistant 22,724        22,924        200          0.9%

Dentistry  
General DDS 30,188        30,388        200          0.7%
Transitional DDS 72,828        73,028        200          0.3%
Dental Hygiene Bachelor of Science 9,988          9,988          

Pharmacy 22,170        22,370        200          0.9%

Nursing 
Bachelors 12,705        12,705        
Graduate 18,498        18,698        200          1.1%

Health Professions 
Entry Level Bachelor of Science

Medical Technology 7,990          7,990          
Audiology & Speech Pathology **** 11,110        11,110        

Entry Level Advanced Degrees * 13,614        13,814        200          1.5%
Entry Lev Adv Degrees Audiology/Speech Path** 18,620        18,820        200          1.1%
Post-Professional Degrees *** 9,868          10,068        200          2.0%

Graduate Health Sciences 29,864        16,542        (13,322)    -44.6%
MS Pharmacology 24,940        25,140        200          0.8%

Medicine 
Doctor of Medicine 67,458        67,658        200          0.3%
Physician Assistant 38,762        38,962        200          0.5%

Dentistry 
General DDS 68,948        69,148        200          0.3%
Transitional DDS 72,828        73,028        200          0.3%
Dental Hygiene Bachelor of Science 33,596        19,976        (13,620)    -40.5%

Pharmacy 42,180        27,374        (14,806)    -35.1%

Nursing 
Bachelors 36,930        36,930        
Graduate 43,338        43,538        200          0.5%

Health Professions 
Entry Level Bachelor of Science

Medical Technology 26,156        26,156        
Audiology & Speech Pathology **** 29,300        29,300        

Entry Level Advanced Degrees * 31,596        31,796        200          0.6%
Entry Lev Adv Degrees Audiology/Speech Path** 43,196        43,396        200          0.5%
Post-Professional Degrees *** 27,808        28,008        200          0.7%

* Entry Level Advanced Degrees ** Entry Level Advanced Degrees Audiology/Speech Path
Doctor of Physical Therapy Doctor of Audiology
Master of Cytopathology Master of Science in Speech-Language Pathology
Master of Occupational Therapy Transitional Doctor of Audiology
 

*** Post-Professional Degrees **** Bachelor of Audiology & Speech Pathology
Doctor of Science in Physical Therapy This is a joint degree with UTK where UTHSC will teach 
Master of Science in Physical Therapy the 4th year of the Bachelor's program but charge the
Transitional Doctor of Physical Therapy  UTK tuition rate. 
Master of Science in Clinical Lab Sciences 

 University Fees are set by the Board of Trustees and are subject to change at any regular or called meeting of the Board.

Change

IN-STATE

OUT-OF-STATE
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Health Science Center
FY 2019-20 Annual Tuition and Fees

Online Fees
 

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 Amount Percent
HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER ONLINE

UNDERGRADUATE (Medical Technology)
IN-STATE

Course Fee 350$            350$             
Online Support 46 46

Total 396$            396$             

OUT-OF-STATE
Course Fee 415$            415$             
Online Support 46 46

Total 461$            461$             

GRADUATE
IN-STATE

Course Fee 640$            640$             
Online Support 46 46

Total 686$            686$             

OUT-OF-STATE
Course Fee 705$            705$             
Online Support 46 46

Total 751$            751$             

HEALTH INFORMATICS AND INFORMATION MANAGEMENT
IN-STATE

Course Fee 500$            500$             
Online Support 50 50

Total 550$            550$             

OUT-OF-STATE
Course Fee 550$            550$             
Online Support 50 50

Total 600$            600$             

Nursing Doctorate
IN-STATE

Course Fee -$                600$             600$          New
Online Support 50 50              New

Total -$                650$             650$          New

OUT-OF-STATE
Course Fee -$                650$             650$          New
Online Support 50 50              New

Total -$                700$             700$          New

Change

HSC online course fees are charged per credit hour with no maximum credit hour cap.  

University Fees are set by the Board of Trustees and are subject to change at any regular or called meeting of the Board.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Use of UHS Proceeds as Supplemental Funding for Renovation of the UT 
Conference Center in Knoxville for the UTHSC Department of Audiology 
and Speech Pathology

Type: Action

Presenter(s): David L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer

Background

In 1999, with legislative authorization, the Board of Trustees approved a Lease and Transfer 
Agreement to transfer management and operation of the UT Memorial Research Center and 
Hospital in Knoxville (commonly known as UT Medical Center) to a newly created non-profit 
entity, University Health System, Inc. (UHS). The agreement included the grant of a license to UHS 
for continued use of the University’s name and trademarks in business, marketing, and promotion. 
The consideration to be paid by UHS under the agreement includes an annual payment based on 
a formula.  The annual payment was originally due to expire in 2021, but in November 2018, the 
Board of Trustees approved an amendment to the agreement modifying and extending the 
payment of consideration through the original lease period ending in 2049.  The amendment also 
extended the lease through 2099.

In its sole discretion, the Board of Trustees determines how proceeds received from UHS under the 
agreement will be used for the benefit of the University; use of the proceeds is not limited to any 
particular campus or unit. A significant portion of the proceeds has been used to fund at least one 
research center of excellence at each of the four campuses, the Institute of Agriculture, and the 
Space Institute. The UT system administration must submit specific requests for use of UHS 
proceeds to the Board for approval. A spreadsheet showing previous Board-approved uses and 
the current balance of the UHS proceeds account is included in the meeting materials.

Summary

The administration requests authorization to use $3,000,000 of UHS proceeds to supplement the 
funding needed to renovate and remodel the UT Conference Center in Knoxville to accommodate 
the needs of the Department of Audiology and Speech Pathology. This funding, along with an 
equal amount from UT Knoxville, will accommodate moving the Department from within Neyland 
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Stadium to a location much better suited for the clinical practice.  Funding for additional 
renovations beyond this first effort will be requested from the State of Tennessee in the FY 2020 
Capital Maintenance budget request.

Motion:  I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption of the 
Resolution presented in the meeting materials to approve the allocation of $3,000,000 of 
proceeds from UHS as supplemental funding for renovation of the UT Conference Center in 
Knoxville to accommodate the needs of the UTHSC Department of Audiology and Speech 
Pathology.  
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Use of UHS Proceeds as Supplemental Funding for Renovation of the 
UT Conference Center for the UTHSC Department of Speech and Audiology

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees authorizes the allocation of $3,000,000 of proceeds 
received from University Health System, Inc., as supplemental funding for renovation of
the UT Conference Center in Knoxville to accommodate the needs of the UT Health 
Science Center Department of Speech and Audiology.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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SUMMARY

SOURCES
ORIGINAL PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF HOSPITAL 25,000,000.00$             
ANNUAL PROCEEDS FROM SALE 35,896,163.00
INTEREST INCOME 4,705,686.97

65,601,849.97$             
USES
LAND ACQUISITIONS (4,105,079.64)
GERWIN METABOLIC BONE ENDOWMENT (250,000.00)
RESEARCH CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE FUNDING (26,690,672.09)
BOWLD HOSPITAL CLOSEOUT (7,000,000.00)
PHARMACY BUILDING (2,668,513.65)
HSC CHANCELLORS RESIDENCE (net) -
HAMILTON EYE INSTITUTE RENOVATIONS (1,143,313.00)
FUND AUDIOLOGY (4,000,000.00)
Fund RBL & PA program (1,500,000.00)
Complete & enhance Plough Center (1,600,000.00)
UTRF-CTN2 affilitation agreement (1,250,000.00)
Fund Leased Employee Fee Waivers (2,388,767.97)

(52,596,346.35)$            

TOTAL 01/25/2019 13,005,503.62$             

DETAIL

FY 2000 Transaction Balance Annual Change
6/30/2000 JV4204 Proceeds from sale of hospital 25,000,000.00$   25,000,000.00$             26,265,200.00$     
6/30/2000 JV4399 To fund deficit in J010001261 - Land Acquisition (61,675.00) 24,938,325.00
6/30/2000 JV4424 Interest earnings 1,326,875.00 26,265,200.00

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
TRANSACTION DETAIL

J170001170 - Hospital Proceeds 5 
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FY 2001
10/31/2000 JV2678 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 2,265,066.00 28,530,266.00 1,699,907.86
6/30/2001 100107068 Interest earnings 1,663,551.00 30,193,817.00
6/30/2001 100107625 Transfer to J010001261 - Land Acquisition (2,228,709.14) 27,965,107.86

FY 2002
2/20/2002 100014557 Transfer to J010001261 - Land Acquisition (1,814,695.50) 26,150,412.36 (3,337,828.53)
3/6/2002 1300022743 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 3,074,544.00 29,224,956.36

6/30/2002 100018880 Interest earnings 1,715,260.97 30,940,217.33
6/30/2002 100017464 Match D. Gerwin Metabolic Bone Endowment (250,000.00) 30,690,217.33
6/30/2002 100018861 To fund Rearch Centers of Excellence (5,326,897.00) 25,363,320.33
6/30/2002 100018879 To fund Rearch Centers of Excellence (765,043.00) 24,598,277.33
6/30/2002 100018903 To correct RCE funding - Knoxville 29,002.00 24,627,279.33

FY 2003
3/14/2003 1300023153 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 456,818.00 25,084,097.33 (4,670,660.01)
6/30/2003 1000007830 FY 2003 RCE Funding (5,130,638.01) 19,953,459.32
6/30/2003 1000007950 FY 2003 RCE Funding - Correction 3,160.00 19,956,619.32

FY 2004
3/17/2004 1300023153 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 2,070,344.00 22,026,963.32 (5,185,880.41)
6/30/2004 1000007569 FY 2004 RCE Funding (7,251,425.00) 14,775,538.32
6/30/2004 1000008050 FY 2004 RCE Funding (4,799.41) 14,770,738.91

FY 2005
3/22/2005 1300024507 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 1,108,651.00 15,879,389.91 (2,826,929.88)
6/30/2005 100007829 FY 2005 RCE Funding (3,935,580.88) 11,943,809.03

FY 2006
6/30/2005 100008223 Annual hospital proceeds - corrected amt 69,367.00 12,013,176.03 (8,978,601.90)
3/15/2006 1300023202 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 1,595,668.00 13,608,844.03
6/30/2006 100007446 To Fund Bowld Hospital Closeout (7,000,000.00) 6,608,844.03
6/30/2006 100008331 HSC Chancellor's Residence Loan (1,377,800.00) 5,231,044.03
6/30/2006 100008643 FY 2006 RCE Funding (2,265,836.90) 2,965,207.13

FY 2007
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3/15/2007 1300023202 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 2,385,268.00 5,350,475.13 (948,478.26)
6/30/2007 100007446 Net proceeds from sale of 549 Goodwyn 544,655.00 5,895,130.13
6/30/2007 100008331 Fund contstruction on Pharmacy building (2,440,378.00) 3,454,752.13
6/30/2007 100008643 FY 2006 RCE Funding (1,438,023.26) 2,016,728.87

FY 2008
3/15/2008 1300023202 Annual hospital proceeds per contract 3,537,047.00 5,553,775.87 2,932,456.37
6/30/2008 100008643 FY 2006 RCE Funding (604,590.63) 4,949,185.24

FY 2009
10/27/2008 100002376 Fund contstruction on Pharmacy building (300,000.00) 4,649,185.24 (610,168.00)
4/14/2009 100005187 Fund Hamilton Eye Institute renovation (1,143,313.00) 3,505,872.24
4/29/2009 100006232 Proceeds from sale of Chancellor's residence 807,500.00 4,313,372.24
5/26/2009 100006886 Recovery - balance on Chancellor's residence 25,645.00 4,339,017.24

FY 2010
3/12/2010 1300023180 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 2,763,348.00 7,102,365.24 1,763,348.00
6/30/2010 100009743 Interim funds for trns Audiology/SP to UTHSC #1 (1,000,000.00) 6,102,365.24

FY 2011
3/22/2011 1300023694 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 1,791,627.00 7,893,992.24 791,627.00
6/30/2010 100010052 Interim funds for trns Audiology/SP to UTHSC #2 (1,000,000.00) 6,893,992.24

FY 2012
3/9/2012 100007378 Return excess funding for Pharmacy Bldg 71,864.35 6,965,856.59 (1,595,226.65)

3/19/2012 1300023418 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 2,432,909.00 9,398,765.59
4/30/2012 100008344 Interim funds for trns Audiology/SP to HSC 3of4 (1,000,000.00) 8,398,765.59
4/30/2012 100008345 Fund RBL & PA program at HSC [1 of 1] (1,500,000.00) 6,898,765.59
6/30/2012 100012905 Complete & enhance GMP Center at HSC [1 of 1] (1,600,000.00) 5,298,765.59

FY 2013
8/13/2013 100012583 Interim funds for trns Audiology/SP to HSC 4of4 (1,000,000.00) 4,298,765.59 932,294.51

11/27/2012 100003989 Fund fee waivers for leased employees (557,367.67) 3,741,397.92
8/6/2013 100012349 Fund fee waivers for leased employees (382,104.82) 3,359,293.10

3/18/2013 1300023253 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 2,871,767.00 6,231,060.10

FY 2014
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3/21/2014 1300024140 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 2,466,104.00 8,697,164.10 2,121,529.06
6/30/2014 100012714 R170145004-Fund deficit from Hospital (344,574.94) 8,352,589.16

FY 2015
3/16/2015 1300023815 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 3,195,587.00 11,548,176.16 2,869,412.81
6/30/2015 100013048 R170145004-Fund deficit from Hospital (326,174.19) 11,222,001.97

FY 2016
3/16/2016 1300023768 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 2,801,835.00 14,023,836.97 2,494,378.49
6/30/2016 100014768 R170145004-Fund deficit from Hospital (307,456.51) 13,716,380.46

FY 2017
3/22/2017 1300024163 Annual Hospital proceeds per contract 1,010,213.00 14,726,593.46 759,342.08
6/30/2017 100017098 R170145004-Fund deficit from Hospital (250,870.92) 14,475,722.54

FY 2018
4/18/2018 100012326 04/01-06/30/18 UTRF-CTN2 (250,000.00) 14,225,722.54 (470,218.92)
6/30/2018 100017267 R170145004-Fund deficit from Hospital (220,218.92) 14,005,503.62

FY 2019
7/1/2018 100000075 07/01-06/30/19 UTRF-CTN2 (1,000,000.00) 13,005,503.62 (1,000,000.00)
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Long-term Ground Lease for a Private Housing Development on the 
Campus of the Health Science Center

Type: Action

Presenter: Kennard D. Brown, Executive Vice Chancellor, UT Health Science Center

The UT Health Science Center proposes to transfer approximately 9.7 acres through a ground 
lease to an entity to be known as Memphis Medical District Apartments, GP, with Henry 
Turley, Jr., a Memphis developer, as the managing partner.  The entity will retain  the Henry 
Turley Company to plan, design, finance, construct, and operate a residential multi-family 
housing development.  The University would have no financial obligation for the 
development, nor would it guarantee occupancy.

Quality housing in close proximity to campus has been a concern for UTHSC for several years.  
A 2016 UTHSC Student Housing Survey analyzed the supply of market rental rate properties 
within a half-mile radius of the campus.  The survey found the supply is limited (just over 700 
units), and rarely more than 40 to 50 units are available at one time.  Most of the housing units 
are more than three blocks from the core of campus, and safety is a concern.  Further, over 90% 
of the units are located in buildings more than 50 years old, and most suffer from poor 
maintenance.

Approximately 90% of students attending UTHSC do not come from the Memphis area.  A 
fundamental question for those students is “where will I live?”  The development would fulfill 
this need by providing quality, residential housing within the footprint of the campus and 
provide easy access to University services, the library, and the fitness center.  The development 
would serve students, faculty, and staff who desire to live near the campus, but it would also
be open to the general public.  The development would serve as a recruitment tool for the 
University as the developer has prepared a UT First program that will give preference to 
UTHSC students and offer accommodations at other properties owned by the developer if this 
one becomes fully occupied. Having quality housing adjacent to the campus is important to 
our students and to the improvement of the neighborhood.

A Request for Proposals was issued and respondents were evaluated in two phases.  A finalist 
has been selected, and the University is currently in the lease negotiation phase.  The initial 
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lease term would be thirty (30) years and the developer would have two (2), fifteen (15) year 
options to extend.  Although the primary benefit to the University is the availability of housing 
on campus, the developer would pay ground rent in the amount of $207,500 annually, with a 
CPI increase every five years.   

The University would have the right to approve the design.  A limited amount of the 
development (not to exceed 5% of the total square footage constructed excluding garages) 
could be utilized for retail or commercial uses.  Prohibited uses are listed below:

1. Any so-called “adult” or “XXX” business including, without limitation, any store 
featuring or specializing in pornography, sexual books or sexual literature, sex toys, or 
sexual paraphernalia, excluding sales of mass market magazines, books and other 
products commonly sold in general interest book stores, grocery stores, convenience 
stores and drug stores, and which are included in other permitted retail sales.

2. Any so-called “head shop” or similar business including without limitation any store 
featuring or specializing in recreational or illegal drugs, books or literature oriented 
towards illegal drugs or the use of such drugs, paraphernalia or clothing associated with 
recreational or illegal drugs, excluding sales of mass market magazines, books and other 
products commonly sold in general interest book stores, grocery stores, convenience 
stores and drug stores, and which are included in other permitted retail sales. 

3. Any business or use oriented toward, specializing in, promoting or selling (1) firearms 
or other weapons (excluding pocket knives or other common household knives or self-
defense products such as pepper spray or similar items), or (2) any military cause or 
militia or paramilitary or similar organization or activity; provided, that this shall not 
prohibit leasing to any branch of the United States military or armed forces or to any 
other federal, state or local governmental office or agency.

4. Any bar, nightclub, liquor store, or other business selling exclusively or primarily 
packaged (or by-the-drink) liquor, wine or beer for on-site consumption or take-out; 
provided that this shall exclude restaurants or other businesses with liquor, wine or beer 
sales that are incidental to their sales of food or other permitted retail sales.

5. Any business selling exclusively or primarily cigar or cigarette or other tobacco 
products or so-called “vaping” products; provided that this shall exclude businesses 
(such as groceries, convenience stores and drug stores) with tobacco or “vaping” 
product sales that are incidental to other permitted retail sales.

6. Any business that operates primarily as a fire or bankruptcy sale or auction house 
operation; provided that this shall exclude a bona fide going out of business or 
bankruptcy sale by an otherwise permitted retail sales business. 
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7. Any pet store or any store that involves in a material way the presence on the premises 
of any animals, insects or fish (the presence of seeing eye dogs for visually impaired 
employees, licensees, customers or patients shall not be deemed to violate this 
restriction); provided that this excludes pet supply stores. 

8. Any sexually oriented massage parlor or “strip” club, excluding however the 
following: (i) first class and reputable massage establishments such as “Massage Envy”; 
and (ii) massage operations that are incidental to “day spa,” hair salon or similar 
businesses.

9. Any business or use which (a) creates strong, unusual or offensive odors, fumes, dust 
or vapors, (b) is a public or private nuisance, (c) emits noise or sounds which are 
objectionable due to intermittence, beat, frequency, shrillness or loudness (other than 
from medical equipment), (d) creates unusual fire, explosive or other hazards, or (e) has 
flashing lights or signs, strobe lights, search lights or loudspeakers. 

10. An off-track betting parlor.

Although not prohibited, uses requiring the prior consent of the University are listed below:  

1. Convenience stores (excluding grocery stores and drug stores).

2. Any “second hand” store or resale or used goods shop.

3. Tanning salons, excluding however tanning salon operations that are incidental to “day 
spa”, hair salon or similar businesses.

4. Any business that operates exclusively or primarily as a bowling alley, billiard parlor, 
pool hall, amusement gallery, video game arcade, so-called “virtual reality” game or 
game room; provided that shall exclude any such activities that are incidental to any 
otherwise permitted retail sales or service business.

Additional information concerning lease provisions related to maintenance and repair and 
long-range succession planning for the Henry Turley Company is included in the meeting 
material.  

The administration requests approval of the proposed ground lease in principle as outlined in 
the meeting materials and further requests delegation of final approval of the ground lease 
terms and conditions to the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Chair of the 
Finance and Administration Committee, after which all required state approvals would be 
sought.  

Chancellor Schwab and the Chief Financial Officer recommend approval.  

[Motion follows]
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Motion:  I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption of 
the Resolution in the meeting materials to approve in principle the proposed ground lease, 
subject to satisfactory results of all due diligence reviews, and to delegate final approval of 
the ground lease terms and conditions to the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with 
the Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee.
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Proposed Ground Lease at the Health Science Center for Private Housing 
Development

Summary of Lease Provisions Related to Maintenance and Repair

Proposed Tenant – Memphis Medical District Apartments, GP with Henry Turley, Jr. 
as General Partner

∑ Repair and Maintenance. Section 5a of the lease requires tenant, at its sole cost 
and expense, shall keep and maintain all of the Leased Premises and Development 
in good repair and condition in a manner comparable to other first class 
apartment projects in midtown and downtown Memphis, Tennessee and shall 
make all repairs, replacements and renewals, foreseen or unforeseen, ordinary or 
extraordinary, necessary to put or maintain the Leased Premises and Development 
in such state of repair and condition, subject to ordinary wear and tear. Tenant
acknowledges Landlord’s concern that, because the Development is located on the 
University’s campus, it must be operated, repaired, maintained and managed in a 
first class condition and in a manner comparable to other first class apartment 
projects in midtown and downtown Memphis, Tennessee.  Tenant further 
acknowledges that University, in agreeing to the terms of this Lease Agreement, 
is relying on the expertise, experience and reputation of tenant, and its constituent 
partners, officers, and directors, to cause the Development to be operated, 
maintained and managed in said first class condition.”  

This section goes on to state that the University shall not be required to maintain, 
repair or rebuild all or any part of the Leased Premises and Development or tenant
parking pursuant to this Lease.

∑ Capital Replacement/Reserve. Section 5b requires tenant to comply with any 
capital replacement or capital expense reserve requirements imposed by any 
Mortgagee.  

During any period when tenant is not subject to any such Mortgagee capital 
replacement or expense reserve requirements, tenant shall establish and maintain 
a capital replacement reserve of $250.00 per apartment unit per year.

Exhibit F of the lease includes a Development Renewal Plan for key components 
of the Development.

In addition, tenant provided a letter from Bellwether Enterprise (commercial 
mortgage lender) regarding the typical underwriting terms as it relates to 
replacement reserves for a new market rate multi-family project.  It states it is 
common practice to underwrite $250 per unit for replacement reserves and this is 
the standard as it relates to Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae.
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∑ Approval of Plans and Specifications. Per Section 14 of the lease, the University 
has the right to approve the plans and specifications of the Development prior to 
construction.  tenant is to present stamped plans which shall be complete in all 
material respects for the determination of a specific scope of the development for 
the University’s review.  If either party cannot resolve objections and comments 
on the plans after one hundred twenty (120) days, then either party may terminate 
the lease.

Development concepts are provided in Exhibit F of the lease including site plan, 
building size and configuration, general finishes and materials.  

∑ Alterations. Section 15 of the lease requires University consent for repairs or 
alterations over $100,000 and tenant is prohibited from making any alterations that 
may in any material respect weaken or impair the structural strength of the 
development or lessen the fair market value of all or any portion of the 
development.

∑ Default. Tenant’s failure to comply with any terms of the lease, including proper 
maintenance, and failure to cure is an event of default under Section 16(a)(3) and 
give rise to termination.

∑ Assignment.  Section 8a of the lease restricts assignment to an assignee with at 
least ten (10) years of experience in owning, managing and operating generally 
comparable multi-family apartment projects.  In addition, the Assignee must meet 
a Required Net Worth test.  The “Required Net Worth” shall mean owner’s equity, 
determined in accordance with GAAP or tax accounting principles, equal to the 
sum of Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) plus the CPI Adjustment from the 
Effective Date of the lease until the applicable date of determination of Required 
Net Worth. The restrictions on assignees also apply to assignees in foreclosure.

∑ Completion Guaranty.  The guarantors to Tenant’s lender for a completion 
guaranty will also be required to provide a substantially comparable guaranty in 
favor of the University.

For information, the following Succession Planning information was provided by 
Henry Turley Company –

∑ Long-Range Corporate Succession Plan For Henry Turley Co. 

One of the great strengths that enables Henry Turley Company to engage in long-
term community building is the fact that we have no outside investors for whom 
we are obligated to produce short-term profits. We are committed to the long-term 
interests of our partners and our residents and then ourselves. 
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Currently the company is owned by Henry Turley individually. Corporate 
earnings in excess of adequate working capital reserves are divided annually 
among ownership and employees. Our corporate succession plan calls for Mr. 
Turley’s interest is to be sold on favorable terms to the 5 other members of our 
Executive Committee. 

Our Executive Committee is comprised of the following members: 
o Elizabeth Tagg: Age: 31 VP of Communications 
o Michelle Risher: Age: 33 VP of Property Management 
o Alex Turley: Age: 40 VP of Real Estate 
o Lance Henderson: Age: 50 VP of Operations 
o Pete Evans: Age: 60 VP of Facilities and Construction 

Ownership requires active employment, so should any member of the Executive 
Committee leave our employment they will sell their interest to a trust 
representing the existing and new members. The Executive Committee plans to 
continue to operate and grow the company. 

We at Henry Turley Company are united in our commitment to the deployment 
of private capital and initiative where development is most needed within the 
target city. Our overwhelming focus is Memphis. This has led us into Memphis’ 
Downtown, its inner city and now its Medical District. We often find ourselves 
allied with government or institutions where we effectively partner in achieving 
agreed upon goals. 

The ownership of properties we develop is offered to the Executive Committee 
members and varies from property to property. When we believe that over the 
long term the community we are developing will benefit from the inclusion of 
additional partners, we invite others to join us on the same terms as we enjoy. 
These partners may be called upon to provide capital, a unique talent or the 
strength of diversity. 

We have been developing community according to the principles outlined above 
for over 40 years. Our partners are uniformly pleased with our results and eager 
to invest further and our internal team remains committed to our company’s 
mission. 

Our company currently has land leases that exceed 60 years with the City of 
Memphis, The Memphis Housing Authority, and The Jackson Community 
Redevelopment Agency.
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Long-term Ground Lease for a Private Housing Development on the Campus of the 
Health Science Center

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves in principle the proposed ground lease for a 
private housing development on the campus of the Health Science Center, subject to 
satisfactory results of all due diligence reviews; and

Further resolved:  The Board of Trustees delegates authority for final approval of the
ground lease terms and conditions to the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the 
Chair of the Finance and Administration Committee.  

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Acquisition of Real Properties on Lindsay Place in Knoxville for 
UTIA Use and Revision of the UTK/UTIA Main Campus Master 
Plan to Include the Properties

Type: Action

Presenter: Tim Cross, Chancellor, Institute of Agriculture

The UT Institute of Agriculture seeks approval for the University to acquire 0.96 +/- acres 
of property and improvements located at 0 Lindsay Place and 623 Lindsay Place in
Knoxville, Tennessee (see attached map).  

UT Extension, the outreach unit of UTIA is in need of additional space, and space on 
UTIA’s main campus is limited.  UT Extension is found in each of Tennessee’s 95 counties 
and serves as the link between Tennesseans, both urban and rural, and University 
specialists, scientists and researchers.  The acquisition of this facility would support UT 
Extension’s work in the surrounding counties by providing space for education, training, 
events and regional meetings with students, faculty, staff and stakeholders.  

The properties are less than one-half mile from the UTIA main campus and are improved 
with an 11,400+/- square foot, two-story office building with a basement and adequate 
parking for the proposed uses.

These properties are currently under option by another party.  If the properties do not 
sell, the University requests approval to acquire the properties located at 0 Lindsay Place 
and 623 Lindsay Place in Knoxville, Tennessee, at a purchase price equal to or less than 
the appraised value. The University also requests approval of revision of the UTK/UTIA 
Main Campus Master Plan to include these properties. Upon approval by the Board, the 
University will seek all required state approvals.

Motion:  I move that the Finance and Administration Committee recommend adoption 
of the Resolution in the meeting materials to approve acquisition of the Lindsay Place 
properties as described in the meeting materials and to revise the UTK/UTIA Main 
Campus Master Plan to include the properties.
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The University of Tennessee
Board of Trustees

Resolution 00_-2019*

Acquisition of Real Properties on Lindsay Place in Knoxville for UTIA Use and Revision 
of the UTK/UTIA Main Campus Master Plan to Include the Properties

Resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves acquisition of the properties located at 0 
Lindsay Place and 623 Lindsay Place in Knoxville, Tennessee, at a purchase price equal 
to or less that the appraised value for use by the UT Institute of Agriculture; and

Further resolved:  The Board of Trustees approves revision of the UTK/UTIA Main 
Campus Master Plan to include the properties located at 0 Lindsay Place and 623 Lindsay 
Place in Knoxville, Tennessee.

Adopted this 1st day of March, 2019.  

* Number will be inserted after adoption.
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Report on the Composite Financial Index for FY 2017-18

Type: Information

Presenter: David L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer

BACKGROUND

The Composite Financial Index (CFI) developed by Prager, Sealy & Co. and KPMG, 
utilizes four strategic ratios to provide an overall picture of an institution’s financial 
health.  The CFI can also be used in shorter term planning and budgeting.

Traditional accounting methods are useful for developing historical sources and uses of 
funds, however they do not facilitate comparison to peers or benchmarks or provide easy 
measures for stakeholders. The selected ratios used in the CFI can be a critical part of the 
institution’s year-end reporting process to certain stakeholders and for the following 
year’s budget planning. The comparative analysis may be calculated using an 
institution’s peer group or other universities it competes with for students or research 
funds or a group to which the institution aspires.  Differences among peer institutions, 
both public and private, must be understood and considered before making any 
conclusions from the information.  The industry standard for the appropriate zone for 
each ratio is recommended in Strategic Financial Analysis for Higher Education: Identifying, 
Measuring & Reporting Financial Risks (Seventh Edition), by KPMG LLP; Prager, Sealy & 
Co., LLC; Attain LLC.

The four ratios are the primary reserve, net operating revenue, return on net assets, and 
viability.

Primary Reserve Ratio
The primary reserve ratio measures the financial strength and sufficiency of resources of 
the institution by comparing expendable net assets to total expenses.

Expendable Net Assets
Total Expenses
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Expendable net assets represent those funds an institution can access quickly and spend 
to satisfy its obligations.  Expendable net assets is calculated by total net assets less 
permanently restricted net assets.

This ratio indicates how long an institution could function by using expendable assets 
without additional operating revenue which provides a measure of financial strength and 
flexibility.  Year-to-year analysis can indicate whether an institution is increasing net 
worth in relation to its growth in operations. It is recommended this ratio be at least 0.40.  
However, a lower ratio for public institutions is acceptable. A negative ratio or a decrease 
over time indicates a weakening financial condition.

Net Operating Revenue Ratio
The net operating revenues ratio indicates whether total operating activities resulted in a 
surplus or deficit.

Operating Surplus or Deficit
Operating Revenue

This ratio is an indicator of whether an institution is living within available resources.  A 
large surplus or deficit directly impacts the amount of funds an institution adds to, or 
subtracts from, net assets.  This activity directly affects the primary reserve ratio, the
return on net assets ratio, and the viability ratio.  Large surpluses may indicate strong 
financial performance from the year’s activities, but may indicate under-spending on 
mission-critical investments. An operating loss for the year results in a negative ratio and 
may be relatively unimportant if the institution is financially strong.  The institution 
should be aware of the causes of the deficit, and implement remedies. Similar to the 
return on net assets ratio, volatility should be measured over a two to three-year average.  
A recommended zone is 2% to 4% over the long term.

Return on Net Assets Ratio
The return on net assets ratio indicates an institution’s financial strength compared to 
previous years by measuring total economic return.

Change in Net Assets
Beginning Total Net Assets

The ratio may reasonably be volatile from year-to-year due to several factors.  The ratio 
may temporarily decline if it reflects a strategy to better fulfill the institution’s mission. 
However, an increasing trend may be the result of planned savings for future planned 
expansion. Therefore, it is better applied over an extended period. It is recommended the 
zone be 3% above the consumer price index over the long term; the watch metric isCPI.

Viability Ratio
The viability ratio is fundamental to measuring financial health because it reveals the 
capacity to repay total debt through available funds.

Expendable Net Assets
Long-term Debt
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A ratio of 1:1 or greater indicates that an institution has sufficient expendable net assets 
to satisfy debt obligations, however this is insufficient for long-term strategic 
management.  There is no absolute threshold that will indicate whether the institution 
is financially viable. As the viability ratio falls below 1:1, the institution’s ability to
respond to adverse conditions from internal resources diminishes, as does its ability to 
attract capital from external sources and its flexibility to fund new objectives. It is
recommended the ratio be at least 1.25:1.

SUMMARY

Analysis of the University of Tennessee System
This report provides a summary of fiscal years 2016 and 2017 for comparison and a full 
report for FY 2018.  Because monitoring trends in these ratios is critical, each annual 
report will include three years of CFI analysis.

This report provides each of the four ratios and the weighted CFI for UTC, UTK,
UTHSC, UTM and the entire UT System. Campus averages, benchmarks and watch
indicators are also provided.

Fiscal Year 2016
∑ All institutions and the UT System as a whole have acceptable to strong CFIs.
∑ Only one of the 20 ratios calculated falls in the watch zone.

o Net operating revenue ratio at UT Martin.
o UT Martin’s overall CFI is in the acceptable zone (>1).

Fiscal Year 2017
∑ All institutions and the UT System as a whole, except UT Martin, have a

strong CFI.
∑ Only two of the 20 ratios calculated fall in the watch zone.

o Net operating revenue ratio and return on net assets at UT Martin.
ß While the primary reserve remained strong the CFI slipped 

below 1 into the watch zone.
ß While one year does not indicate a serious financial distress, it 

does indicate that attention must be paid to enhancing revenue 
relative to expenditures.

Fiscal Year 2018
This fiscal year the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) implemented a 
rule change which requires public institutions to include a new liability for Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB).  Because University staff are employees of the state and 
enjoy state health care and retirement benefits, this is not a liability the University has 
ever been required to fund.  However, including the liability skews our CFI somewhat.
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∑ UTC, UTHSC, and the System as a whole have an adequate CFI.  UTK has 
a strong CFI, and UTM has a weak CFI for the second year.

∑ Of the total 20 ratios calculated, the number in the watch zone increased from 
two to six.

∑ Two of the ratios are each weighted at 35% and comprise 70% of the CFI 
(primary reserve and viability).  Both depend heavily on unrestricted net
assets.

∑ The strong CFI of UTK is largely due to above benchmark reserves.  
Although UTK is at or above the benchmark in three of the four ratios, it is 
below the benchmark in the viability (debt service coverage) ratio.

∑ UTM has adequate reserves for a public university.  However, if unrestricted 
net assets increased from $30.5 million to just $33 million they would be at the 
target benchmark for the primary reserve and achieve a positive CFI of 1.07.

CONCLUSION

While each institution is measured separately and it is critical to monitor each one, in
the end the UT System is a single entity and the Board of Trustees has authority to 
manage all resources system-wide. The UT System as a whole has solid financial
strength to meet its obligations and has a healthy CFI of 2.29 compared to acceptable 
zone of 1 to 3. The average CFI for the four campuses did decrease from 2.45 in FY 2017 
to 1.6 in FY2018.  Three of the four campuses achieved a positive CFI individually.
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University of Tennessee
Composite Financial Index

2018
Weight Knoxville* Chattanooga Martin Health Science Ctr Total University**

1 PRIMARY RESERVE 35% 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
667,856,744 54,199,721 30,469,380 111,925,277 936,289,984

1,244,096,807 193,811,790 121,092,432 585,488,925 2,258,882,772
RATIO = 0.537 0.280 0.252 0.191 0.414 0.315 0.400 .0.130

2 NET OPERATING REVENUE RATIO 10%
53,915,776 (1,301,862) (7,243,352) (19,832,388) 8,977,325

1,379,405,837 207,199,215 119,474,909 583,249,726 2,391,755,639
RATIO = 0.039 -0.006 -0.061 -0.034 0.004 -0.015 .02 to .04 0.000

3 RETURN ON NET ASSETS 20%
135,309,030 13,387,425 (1,617,523) (2,239,199) 132,872,866

2,027,293,375 248,922,837 124,928,073 458,499,427 2,992,265,415
RATIO = 0.067 0.054 -0.013 -0.005 0.044 0.026 0.059 0.029

4 VIABILITY 35%
667,856,744 54,199,721 30,469,380 111,925,277 936,289,984
813,063,649 116,696,335 68,137,142 80,016,520 1,087,661,698

RATIO = 0.821 0.464 0.447 1.399 0.861 0.8X 1.25X 0.41X

Knoxville* Chattanooga Martin Health Science Ctr Total University**
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018

CFI SCORE CFI SCORE CFI SCORE CFI SCORE CFI SCORE

1.41 0.74 0.66 0.50 1.09
0.30 -0.05 -0.47 -0.26 0.03
0.67 0.54 -0.13 -0.05 0.44
0.69 0.39 0.38 1.17 0.72
3.07 1.62 0.44 1.37 2.29 1.623 1 to 3+ < 1

WatchBench-
Mark

*Knoxville includes UT Institute of Agriculture **Inlcudes UT System Admistration and Institute for Public Service

Total net assets (beginning of year)

Total expendable net assets
Long-term debt

Campus 
Average

Total expendable net assets
Total expenses

Operating revenue (loss) + non-oper. Revenue
Total operating revenue

 Change in net assets 

 CFI SCORE (Total of Last Column)

STRENGTHS AND WEIGHTS WORKSHEET 

 Primary Reserve

 Return on Net Assets
 Viability

 Net Operating Revenue
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CFI Ratios FY 2016, 2016, and 2018 
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Treasurer’s Financial Report, FY 2017-18

Type: Information 

Presenter: David L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer on behalf of James R. Maples, 
Treasurer

The Report of the Treasurer 2018 (“Report”) provides a comprehensive entity-wide 
perspective of the University’s assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, expenses, 
changes in net position and cash flows. The financial statements in the Report have been 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The management of the University of 
Tennessee is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements.

The financial statements have been audited by the State of Tennessee, Comptroller of the 
Treasury, Division of State Audit. The auditor’s opinion is based on audit procedures 
described in their letter on page 3 of the Report, which include understanding University 
systems, procedures, and internal controls and performing tests and other auditing 
procedures sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are 
not materially misleading nor do they contain material errors.
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2018 FINANCIAL REPORT

PRESENTATION TO

THE UNIVERSITY OF
TENNESSEE

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
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Liabilities 
$2.045B

Net Position  
$3.113B

The University of Tennessee
Comparative Financial Statement Summaries
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

increase in total assets was offset by an increase of $274M in liabilities.

Liabilities 
$2.319B

Net Position  
$3.125B

FY 2018
Total Assets $5.444B

FY 2017 
Total Assets $5.158B
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The University of Tennessee 
Comparative Financial Statement Summaries
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

FY2018
Total Assets $5.444B

Capital 
Assets 

$2.590B

Cash  
$1.173B 

Investments  
$966.5M

Receivables  
$268.0M 

Net Pension 
Asset &

Deferred 
Outflows
$147.6M

Prepaids $4.7M
Inventories  $8.1M

FY 2017
Total Assets $5.158B

Comments

• Cash, investments & receivables collectively increased by $132.0M
• Capital assets increased by $146M
• Deferred outflows increased by $9.2 M related to OPEB.

Composition of Assets

Capital 
Assets 

$2.736B

Cash  
$1.278B 

Investments  
$1.024B

Receivables  
$237.5M 

Net Pension 
Asset &

Deferred 
Outflows
$156.8M

Prepaids $4.4M
Inventories  $7.0M
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The University of Tennessee
Comparative Financial Statement Summaries
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Composition of Liabilities

Comments

• Bonds payable increased by $95.0M.
• Net pensions and Deferred inflows increased $25.5 M
• OPEB increased $103.4 M
• Due to Component Units increased by $51.2M

FY 2018
Total Liabilities $2.318B

Bonds 
Payable  
$1.096B 

Net Pension 
Obligation & 

Deferred Inflows  
$277.9M

Accounts 
Payable & 
Accrued 
Liabilities  
$202.0M 

Unearned 
Revenue  
$84.1M 

Due to Grantors $20.4M

OPEB
$213.8M

Due to 
Component Units

$311.4M 

Compensated 
Absences  
$81.7M

Other 
Payables
$658.1M 

Annuities&Deposits $30.8M

Bonds 
Payable  
$1.001B 

Net Pension
Obligation 

& Deferred Inflows
$252.4M

Accounts 
Payable & 
Accrued 
Liabilities  
$190.7M 

Unearned 
Revenue  
$84.7M 

Due to Grantors $33.3M

OPEB
$110.4M

Due to 
Component Units

$260.2M 

Compensated 
Absences  
$82.6 M

Other 
Payables
$515.9M 

Annuities&Deposits $29.4M

FY 2017
Total Liabilities $2.045B
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The University of Tennessee
Comparative Financial Statement Summaries
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

State Appr
$599.5M 

Grants and 
Contracts
$698.1M 

Tuition
and Fees
$501.4M Auxiliaries

$255.7M 

Inv Inc
$63.6M

Fed Appr $14.4M 

Gifts $45.3M 

SS-Educ Dep
$67.6M

Op Rev $22.2M 

Non-Op Rev
$123.9M 

Other
$337.0M 

State Appr
$553.8M 

Grants and 
Contracts
$706.9M 

Tuition
and Fees
$485.9M Auxiliaries

$244.4M 

Inv Inc
$84.0M

Fed Appr $13.5M

Gifts $34.4M 

SS-Educ Dep
$64.8M

Op Rev $23.5M 

Non-Op Rev
$144.1M 

Other
$364.3M 

Source of Revenues

FY 2018
Total Revenues $2.391B

FY2017
Total Revenues $2.355B

• State appropriations increased $45.7M
• Student fees increased $15.5M
• Auxiliaries increased $11.3 M.
• Investment income decreased  $20.4M
• Non-operating revenue decreased $20.2M

Comments
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The University of Tennessee
Comparative Financial Statement Summaries
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Major Expense Categories

Salaries
$1.113B 

Benefits
$379.9M 

Operating 
Expenses 
$531.5M

Scholarships  
$64.4M 

Depreciation
$123.6M 

Non-Op Exp
$46.1M

Other  
$234.1M 

Salaries
$1.067B 

Benefits
$362.6M 

Operating 
Expenses
$511.3M

Scholarships  
$56.0M 

Depreciation
$117.9M 

Non-Op Exp
$38.9M

Other  
$212.8M 

FY 2018
Total Expenses $2.259B

FY 2017 
Total Expenses $2.153B

Comments

• Salaries and benefits represent 66% of total expenses
• Salaries increased $46M (4.3%)
• Benefits increased $17.3M (4.8%)
• Operating Expenses increased $20.2M (4.0%)
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Report of the Treasurer 2018

Brief History of the University of Tennessee
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The University of Tennessee is one of the nation’s oldest 
institutions of higher education, in operation since 1794. 
Two years before Tennessee achieved statehood in 1796, the 
legislature of the Southwest Territory—which later became 
Tennessee—granted a charter to Blount College, named in honor 
of the territorial governor, William Blount. Located in Knoxville 
near today’s downtown area, Blount College was nonsectarian, 
which was unusual for an institution of higher education at that 
time. The university has remained nondenominational and is 
believed to be the oldest such institution west of the Appalachian 
Divide. Blount College was all male, typical for colleges of the 
late 18th century, a restriction that remained in force for almost a 
century until the first female students were admitted in 1892.

In 1807 the state legislature changed the name of Blount College 
to East Tennessee College, and in 1826 the 40-acre tract known 
as “the Hill” became part of its campus. The name of the school 
changed again in 1840 to East Tennessee University. But 21 
years later, the Civil War forced the university to close, and its 
buildings were used as a hospital for Confederate troops, then 
later occupied by Union soldiers.

When the war ended, East Tennessee University reopened, and 
in 1869 the state legislature selected the university as the state’s 
federal land-grant institution under the Morrill Act of 1862. To 
comply with the terms of the act, ETU broadened its offerings 
to include agricultural, engineering, and military science courses.

Ten years later, East Tennessee University was chosen by the 
legislature to be the state university of Tennessee, and its name 
was changed to the University of Tennessee. The university 
pledged itself to the service and interest of the entire state, 
and the state pledged its name and reputation to the university, 
promising the institution a vital role in the progress of the state. 

Today, the university serves the people of Tennessee from 
locations across the state. The medical campus, founded in 
Nashville and acquired by the university in 1879, was moved to 
Memphis in 1911. The Martin campus, established in 1900 as a 
private institution, became part of the University of Tennessee 
in 1927. In 1969 the private University of Chattanooga merged 
with the public university to become its fourth primary campus. 

The University of Tennessee Space Institute, a graduate 
education and research center near Tullahoma, was established 
in 1964.

Three statewide units of the university—the Institute of 
Agriculture, the Institute for Public Service, and the Division 
of Continuing Education—extend the university beyond its 
various campuses to serve the entire state.

The administration of the university is headquartered in 
Knoxville, where the offices of the president and the central 
staff are located. A chancellor directs each primary campus.

Traditionally, Tennessee’s governors and members of the state 
legislature have shown active interest in the development of 
the University of Tennessee by providing the support it needs 
to meet the increasing educational, research, and service 
needs of the people of Tennessee. As a result, many university 
programs have earned both national and global recognition.
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Letter from the
Treasurer
The financial statements on the following pages have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. The management of the University of Tennessee is 
responsible for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements.

Management believes that the university’s highly developed system of internal 
accounting controls provides reasonable assurance that assets are protected and 
that transactions and events are properly recorded. Establishing sound fiscal 
policies and procedures and communicating them clearly, carefully selecting 
qualified financial staff, and implementing an extensive program of internal audits 
and management reviews ensure that the system of internal controls is maintained.

The financial statements herein have been audited by the State of Tennessee, 
Comptroller of the Treasury, Division of State Audit. The auditor’s opinion is 
based on audit procedures described in their letter on page 3, which include 
understanding university systems, procedures, and internal controls and 
performing tests and other auditing procedures sufficient to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are not materially misleading nor do they 
contain material errors.

The statements contained in this report describe the university’s overall financial 
condition and the financial performance for the year ended June 30, 2018. A 
separate publication, “Report of the Treasurer 2018 Supplemental Schedules and 
Appendices,” contains detailed supporting schedules and appendices and 
is available for those who wish to make a more extensive analysis of university 
operations. The supporting schedules and appendices are designed to enable 
analysis of important items summarized or consolidated in the financial statements 
of this report. 

Respectfully submitted,

James R. Maples, CPA 
Treasurer
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

The Honorable Bill Haslam, Governor 
Members of the General Assembly 
Mr. Randy Boyd, President

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the University of Tennessee, which is a component unit of the State of Tennessee, and 
its discretely presented component units as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We did not audit the financial statements of the 
University of Chattanooga Foundation, Inc.; the University of Tennessee Foundation, Inc.; and the University of Tennessee Research Foundation, 
Inc., discretely presented component units.  Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us.  Our 
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the foundations, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the university’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the University of Tennessee and its discretely presented component units as of June 30, 2018; and the 
respective changes in financial position; and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matters 

As discussed in Note 22, the university implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 81, Irrevocable Split 
Interest Agreements, during the year ended June 30, 2018.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.   

As discussed in Note 3, the financial statements of the university include investments valued at $641,846,570 (20% of net position), whose fair 
values have been estimated by management in the absence of readily determinable fair values.  Management’s estimates are based on information 
provided by the fund managers or the general partners.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis; the schedule of the 
University of Tennessee’s proportionate share of the net pension liability - Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan within TCRS; the 
schedule of the University of Tennessee’s proportionate share of the net pension asset - State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan within 
TCRS; the schedule of the University of Tennessee’s contributions -  Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan within TCRS; the 
schedule of the University of Tennessee’s contributions - State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan within TCRS; the schedule of the 
University of Tennessee’s contributions for the Federal Retirement Plans administered by the U.S. Office of Personnel Management; the schedule of the 
University of Tennessee’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability – Closed State Employee Group OPEB Plan; and the schedule of the 
University of Tennessee’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability – Closed Tennessee OPEB Plan be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the 
audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the university’s basic financial 
statements.  The supplementary combining schedule of net position, the supplementary combining schedule of revenues, expenses, and changes 
in net position, and the supplementary schedule of unrestricted net position are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements.   

The supplementary combining schedule of net position, the supplementary combining schedule of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, 
and the supplementary schedule of unrestricted net position are the responsibility of the university’s management and were derived from, and 
relate directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the supplementary combining schedule of net position, the supplementary combining schedule of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position, and the supplementary schedule of unrestricted net position are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole.   

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements as a whole.  The five-year summary presented 
outside of the basic financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 2018, on our consideration of the university’s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the university’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Deborah V. Loveless, CPA, Director 
Division of State Audit 
December 21, 2018 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Introduction 

This section of the University of Tennessee’s annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the financial 
performance of the university during the year ended June 30, 2018, with comparative information presented for the 
year ended June 30, 2017. This discussion has been prepared by management along with the financial statements and 
related note disclosures and should be read in conjunction with the independent auditor’s report, the financial 
statements, and the notes to the financial statements. 

The university is a component unit of the State of Tennessee and an integral part of the state’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR).  The financial reporting entity for the financial statements is comprised of the university 
and three component units.  The component units are discretely presented based on the nature and significance of their 
relationship to the university.  The reader may refer to Note 1 for detailed information on the financial reporting entity. 
More detailed information about the foundations is presented in Notes 23, 24, and 25 to the financial statements. This 
discussion focuses on the university and does not include the foundations.  

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which establishes standards for external financial 
reporting for public colleges and universities.  The financial statements are presented on a consolidated basis to focus 
on the university as a whole.  The full scope of the university’s activities is considered to be a single business-type 
activity and, accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial statements. 

The university’s financial report includes the statement of net position; the statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position; and the statement of cash flows.  Notes to the financial statements are also presented to provide 
additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the financial statements. 

The Statement of Net Position 

The statement of net position is a point-in-time financial statement.  The statement of net position presents the financial 
position of the university at the end of the fiscal year.  To aid the reader in determining the university’s ability to meet 
immediate and future obligations, the statement includes all assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, 
and net position of the university and segregates the assets and liabilities into current and noncurrent components.  
Current assets are those that are available to satisfy current liabilities, inclusive of assets that will be converted to cash 
within one year. Current liabilities are those that will be paid within one year. The statement of net position is prepared 
under the accrual basis of accounting; assets and liabilities are recognized when goods or services are provided or 
received, despite when cash is actually exchanged. 

From the data presented, readers of the statement are able to determine the assets available to continue the operations of 
the university. They are also able to determine how much the university owes vendors, lenders, and others. Net position 
represents the difference between the university’s assets and liabilities, along with the difference between deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows of resources, and is one indicator of the university’s current financial condition. 

The statement of net position also indicates the availability of net position for expenditure by the university.  Net 
position is divided into three major categories.  The first category, net investment in capital assets, represents the 
university’s total investment in property, plant, and equipment, net of outstanding debt obligations and deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources related to these capital assets.  To the extent debt or deferred inflows of resources has 
been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included.  The next category is restricted 
net position, which is subdivided into two categories, nonexpendable and expendable. Nonexpendable restricted net 
position includes endowment and similar resources whose use is limited by donors or other outside sources and, as a 
condition of the gift, the principal is to be maintained in perpetuity. Expendable restricted net position is available for 
expenditure by the university but must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities that 

9 

176
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Treasurer's Financial Report, FY 2017-18
 

6 

have placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of the resources.  The final category is unrestricted net position. 
Unrestricted net position is available to the university for any lawful purpose of the institution. 

The following table summarizes the university’s assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net 
position at June 30, 2018, and June 30, 2017: 

Summary of Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

2018 2017 
Assets: 
   Current assets  $       632,621  $       602,801 
   Capital assets, net        2,736,190        2,590,539 
   Other assets        1,920,145        1,818,149 
Total assets        5,288,956        5,011,489 

Deferred outflows: 
   Deferred outflows     154,520     146,591 

Liabilities: 
   Current liabilities  387,192       356,917 
   Noncurrent liabilities     1,883,455    1,675,109 
Total liabilities         2,270,647         2,032,026 

Deferred inflows: 
   Deferred inflows     47,691     12,838 

Net position: 
   Net investment in capital assets      1,669,360      1,621,977 
   Restricted – nonexpendable         513,178         522,110 
   Restricted – expendable   523,781   517,206 
   Unrestricted   418,819   451,923 
Total net position $   3,125,138      $   3,113,216 

Total net position increased by $12 million, or .4%, during the 2018 fiscal year. The increases were in net investment 
in capital assets and restricted – expendable. Restricted – nonexpendable and unrestricted both decreased due to new 
GASB standards. During 2018, the university implemented GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions, and GASB Statement 81, Irrevocable Split Interest Agreements.  
See Note 22 to the financial statements. Increased net position changes are the university’s objective and expectation. 
The discussion and analysis sections that follow address the university’s net increases.  

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the results of operations for the fiscal year.  
Revenues and expenses are recognized when earned or incurred, regardless of when cash is received.  The statement 
indicates whether the university’s financial condition has improved or deteriorated during the fiscal year.  

The statement presents the revenues received by the university, both operating and nonoperating; the expenses paid 
by the university, operating and nonoperating; and any other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses received or spent by 
the university.   

Generally speaking, operating revenues are received for providing goods and services to the various customers and 
constituencies of the university.  Operating expenses are those expenses paid to acquire or produce the goods and 
services provided in return for the operating revenues, and to carry out the mission of the university.  Nonoperating 
revenues are revenues received for which goods and services are not provided directly to the payor.  Although the 
University of Tennessee is dependent upon state appropriations and gifts to fund educational and general operations, 
under GASB standards these funding sources are reported as nonoperating revenues, as is investment income.  As a 
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result, the university has historically reported an excess of operating expenses over operating revenues, resulting in an 
operating loss.  Therefore, the “increase in net position” is more indicative of overall financial results for the year.  

A summary of the university’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2018, and 
the previous year follows: 

   Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
    (in thousands of dollars) 

 2018  2017 

Operating revenues  $   1,339,651  $   1,327,052 
Operating expenses              2,212,775 2,114,461 
   Operating loss  (873,124)  (787,409) 
Nonoperating revenues and expenses 882,101 835,337 
Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses     8,977     47,928 
Other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses 123,896 144,109 
   Increase in net position   132,873   192,037 
Net position, beginning of year 3,113,216 2,911,212 
Prior-period adjustment - 9,967
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principal  (120,951) - 
Net position, beginning of year, restated 2,992,265 2,921,179 

Net position at end of year  $   3,125,138 $   3,113,216 

Operating Revenues 

The following summarizes the operating revenues by source that were used to fund operating activities for the last 
two fiscal years: 
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Comparison of Fiscal Year 2018 to Fiscal Year 2017 

Tuition and fees increased by $15.5 million, or 3.2%, primarily due to a 2.2-3% increase in tuition rates coupled with 
increased enrollment. 

Operating grants and contracts experienced a decrease of $16.6 million, or 3.4%. This decrease follows a 5.3% 
decrease in fiscal year 2017. Operating grants and contracts in 2018 still exceed 2015 and 2014 levels.      

Auxiliaries increased $11.3 million, mainly due to the Residence Halls, Food Services and Knoxville Athletics 
department’s increased ticket sales and additional Southeastern Conference network revenues.  

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses may be reported by nature or function.  The university has chosen to report the expenses in their 
natural classification on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and has displayed the 
functional classification in the notes to the financial statements.  The following summarizes the operating expenses 
by natural classifications for the last two fiscal years: 

Comparison of Fiscal Year 2018 to Fiscal Year 2017 

The university had the following significant changes in expenses between fiscal years: 

The increase in salary and benefit expenses from 2017 to 2018 is due to a 3% increase pool that each campus/unit 
distributed in accordance with its compensation strategy and due to increased expense for pension benefits and OPEB 
benefits. 

Utilities, supplies, and other services increased $20.2 million or 3.9% due to increased supplies for grants and 
contracts, including supplies for construction. 

Scholarship and fellowship expenses increased $8.4 million. Federal Pell grants increased $4.4 million and Tennessee 
Student Assistance Scholarships increased $2.9 million. Departmental gift scholarships also increased.  
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Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 

Certain revenue sources that the university relies on to provide funding for operations, including state noncapital 
appropriations, certain gifts and grants, and investment income, are defined by the GASB as nonoperating. 
Nonoperating expenses include capital financing costs and other costs related to capital assets.  The following 
summarizes the university’s nonoperating revenues and expenses for the last two fiscal years: 

Comparison of Fiscal Year 2018 to Fiscal Year 2017 

In fiscal year 2018, state and local appropriations increased $45.7 million, mostly due to THEC formula outcomes, 
productivity gains, and increased salary funds for nonformula units.  

Gifts, grants, and contracts increased over $28.7 million because of increased nonoperating grants and contracts at the 
Health Science Center.  

Investment income decreased $20.4 million, due to flat capital markets, due to the university’s long-range bond 
investing approach, and an overall fair value decrease at June 30.  

Other Revenues 

This category is composed of state appropriations for capital purposes, capital grants and gifts, additions to permanent 
endowments, and other revenue.  These amounts were as follows for the last two fiscal years: 
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Capital appropriations decreased $11.5 million as we are finishing up some of our building projects.     

Additions to permanent endowments decreased $7.5 million as most new endowments are going to the foundation. 

Other revenue decreased $3.1 million in 2018 due to a decrease in one-time insurance recoveries.  

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

The University of Tennessee had $2,736,190,166.40 invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at June 
30, 2018; and $2,590,539,420.57 invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2017.  
Depreciation charges totaled $123,649,092.90 and $117,924,769.24 for the years ended June 30, 2018, and June 30, 
2017, respectively. 

Schedule of Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 2018  2017 

Land $       82,995 $    82,662 
Land improvements & infrastructure 146,108 101,471 
Buildings 1,928,399 1,692,308 
Works of art/historical treasures 4,415 4,415 
Equipment 113,659 117,175 
Software 730 770 
Library holdings 91,316 87,733 
Projects in progress 368,568 504,005 
   Total $  2,736,190 $  2,590,539 

Major capital additions to land and buildings during 2017-2018 included the $105.6 million Strong Hall, $92.3 million 
Stokely Hall, $26.4 million Volunteer Parking Garage, $3.8 million Tom Black Track Team Building and Press Box 
Addition, and the $1.1 million Jewell Building purchase in Knoxville; the $31.2 million Sim Center in Memphis and the 
$1.2 million Ridley 4-H Center for Profitable Agriculture in Columbia. 

At June 30, 2018, outstanding commitments under construction contracts totaled $103,244,665.34 for various 
renovations and repairs of buildings and infrastructure. Future state capital outlay appropriations will fund 
$30,929,063.91 of these costs.  
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More detailed information about the university’s capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements. 

Debt 

The university had $1,096,121,922.21 and $1,001,121,662.82 in debt outstanding at June 30, 2018, and June 30, 2017, 
respectively. The table below summarizes these amounts by type of debt instrument. 

Outstanding Debt Schedule 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 2018  2017 

Bonds-current portion $      39,472 $      37,632 
Bonds-noncurrent 914,825 768,723 
Unamortized bond premium 133,365 88,489 
Revolving credit facility-noncurrent 8,460 106,278 
    Total Debt $ 1,096,122 $ 1,001,122 

The Tennessee State School Bond Authority (TSSBA) issued bonds with interest rates ranging from .18% to 5.5% 
due serially to 2048 on behalf of the University of Tennessee.  The university is responsible for the debt service of 
these bonds.  The current portion of the $1,096,121,922.21 outstanding at June 30, 2018, is $39,471,997.82.  

The ratings on debt issued by the Tennessee State School Bond Authority at June 30, 2018, were as follows: 

Fitch AA+ 
Moody’s Investor Service Aa1 
Standard & Poor’s AA+ 

More detailed information about the university’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 9 to the financial statements. 

Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future 

For fiscal year 2019, the University of Tennessee Board of Trustees has authorized individual campus fee increases 
from zero to 3% that are expected to generate approximately $10.3 million in new funding, net of related scholarships, 
with a continued projected enrollment increase. State appropriations will increase $22.8 million with formula funding 
increases and increased operating funds for nonformula units. The university continues to be successful in competing 
for grants and contracts. The capital markets have shown little improvement and remain potentially unstable, which 
could affect the university’s investment income.  

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the university’s finances for all those with an interest 
in the university’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or requests for 
additional information should be directed to Mr. Ron Maples, Treasurer, 711C Andy Holt Tower, Knoxville, 
Tennessee, 37996-0100.  
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UNIVERSITY OF THE UNIVERSITY        THE UNIVERSITY OF
    THE UNIVERSITY  CHATTANOOGA OF TENNESSEE     TENNESSEE RESEARCH
       OF TENNESSEE FOUNDATION, INC. FOUNDATION, INC. FOUNDATION, INC.

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 3) $ 405,583,297.31 $ 26,439,442.00 $ 6,163,435.00 $ 8,392,407.00
Investments (Notes 2, 3, 23, 24, and 25) 135,845,002.13
Accounts, notes, and grants receivable (net) (Note 5) 62,861,978.48 8,580,137.00 15,314,186.86 8,625,595.00
Due from primary government 16,963,091.87
Due from the university 3,696,622.00
Inventories 6,960,306.39
Prepaid expenses 4,407,592.95 107,381.00 458,480.00
Assets held by the university 4,000,000.00

      Total current assets 632,621,269.13 35,126,960.00 25,477,621.86 21,173,104.00

Noncurrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 3) 872,371,551.27 588,995.80
Investments (Notes 2, 3, 23, 24, and 25) 883,518,403.11 134,778,397.00 12,499,468.39 2,209,003.00
Investment in UT - Battelle, LLC (Note 14) 4,280,873.00
Accounts, notes, and grants receivable (net) (Note 5) 92,180,398.75 30,396,975.00 109,504,255.72 880,202.00
Lease payments receivable (Note 19) 45,916,930.10
Due from primary government 15,375,425.02
Net pension asset (Note 11) 2,315,823.00
Capital assets (net) (Notes 6, 23, and 25) 2,736,190,166.40 44,616,404.00 4,769,163.00
Annuities held by others 4,185,917.61
Assets held by the university 628,309.00 307,125,397.49

Total noncurrent assets 4,656,335,488.26 210,420,085.00 429,718,117.40 7,858,368.00
    Total assets $ 5,288,956,757.39 $ 245,547,045.00 $ 455,195,739.26 $ 29,031,472.00

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on debt refunding 20,251,166.08
Deferred outflows related to pensions (Note 11) 120,103,139.00
Deferred outflows related to OPEB (Note 12) 14,165,373.00

Total deferred outflows of resources $ 154,519,678.08

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable (Note 8) $ 138,161,570.79 $ 1,674,306.00 $ 303,292.54 $ 7,989,243.00
Accrued liabilities 63,870,995.61
Unearned revenue (Note 9) 68,591,289.84 57,945.00 1,223,237.00
Due to component unit 281,389.88
Deposits payable 3,627,895.89
Annuities and life income payable (Note 9) 3,331,110.43 527,680.92
Total other postemployment benefits obligation (Note 12) 14,165,373.00
Long-term liabilities, current portion (Notes 9, 23, and 24) 87,796,832.18 3,232,147.00 873,100.99
Deposits held in custody for others 7,365,932.94 2,094,804.81
Due to the university 887,510.19         1,623.00

Total current liabilities 387,192,390.56 7,946,713.00 1,704,074.45 9,214,103.00

Noncurrent liabilities:
Unearned revenue (Note 9) 15,500,438.71 870,000.00
Net pension liability (Note 11) 230,290,800.00
Total other postemployment benefits obligation (Note 12) 199,605,758.00
Long-term liabilities, noncurrent portion (Notes 9, 23, and 24) 1,089,983,591.82 69,693,825.00 884,032.39
Due to grantors (Note 9) 20,430,788.96
Annuities and life income payable (Note 9) 16,517,716.00 3,670,772.39
Deposits held in custody for component units 311,125,397.49

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,883,454,490.98 69,693,825.00 4,554,804.78 870,000.00
            Total liabilities $ 2,270,646,881.54 $ 77,640,538.00 $ 6,258,879.23 $ 10,084,103.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions (Note 11) $ 9,614,860.00
Deferred inflows related to OPEB (Note 12) 8,214,500.00
Deferred inflows related to split-interest agreements 29,861,912.30

Total deferred inflows of resources $ 47,691,272.30

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $ 1,669,360,405.41 $ 4,769,163.00
Restricted: 

Nonexpendable:
Scholarships and fellowships 221,847,195.97 $ 22,681,526.00 $ 66,963,265.69
Libraries 15,029,472.56 635,383.95
Research 42,699,934.65 3,455,662.22
Instructional department uses 154,317,849.56 67,734,259.00 99,171,966.53
Academic support 32,320,578.47 733,819.00 59,218,628.24
Other 46,962,507.91 635,652.00 28,128,652.84

Expendable:
Scholarships and fellowships 119,668,998.43 1,484,641.00 10,094,166.24
Libraries 10,199,030.73 4,583.86
Research 76,503,685.08 11,771,770.81
Instructional department uses 126,398,015.78 6,822,404.00 13,078,533.65
Academic support 57,122,518.64 24,779.00 24,957,528.51
Loans 6,310,352.64
Capital projects 12,182,989.90 5,000,000.00 32,461,353.41
Debt service 1,262,975.87
Pensions 2,315,823.00

   Other 111,816,899.39 17,177,046.00 82,032,850.06 18,573,350.00
Unrestricted 418,819,047.64 45,612,381.00 16,962,514.02 (4,395,144.00)

Total net position $ 3,125,138,281.63 $ 167,906,507.00 $ 448,936,860.03 $ 18,947,369.00

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2018
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UNIVERSITY OF THE UNIVERSITY    THE UNIVERSITY OF
THE UNIVERSITY CHATTANOOGA OF TENNESSEE TENNESSEE RESEARCH   

OF TENNESSEE FOUNDATION, INC. FOUNDATION, INC. FOUNDATION, INC.

REVENUES
Operating revenues:
    Student tuition and fees (net of   $ 230,758,306.64      

of scholarship allowances) $ 501,431,489.75        

    Contributions $ 18,874,407.00      $ 95,040,715.90      $ 1,968,116.00       
    Investment return designated for operations 4,451,272.00        
    Federal appropriations 14,443,173.46          
    Governmental grants and contracts (Note 18) 272,410,555.64        27,641,761.00      
    Non-governmental grants and contracts 205,924,544.55        7,193,323.00       
    Sales and services of educational departments
        and other activities 67,544,224.27          
    Auxiliary enterprises:
       Residential life  (net of scholarship allowances of 

2,247,692.25$       ) 66,151,958.20          12,325,640.00      
       Food services 10,687,521.42          
       Bookstore 21,872,653.69          
       Parking 12,332,252.65          
       Athletics    (includes gifts of    $ 29,294,985.27      

  from component units) 141,723,907.67        
       Other auxiliaries 2,950,721.37            
    Interest earned on loans to students 18,478.02                 
    Other operating revenues 22,159,409.80          257,438.54           
       Total operating revenues $ 1,339,650,890.49     $ 35,651,319.00      $ 122,939,915.44    $ 9,161,439.00       

EXPENSES 
Operating expenses (Note 20):
    Salaries and wages $ 1,113,348,956.33     
    Fringe benefits 379,881,142.32        
    Utilities, supplies, and other services 531,456,264.54        $ 9,272,725.00        $ 30,956,252.38      $ 22,469,075.00     
    Scholarships and fellowships 64,439,069.53          
    Depreciation and amortization expense 123,649,092.90        3,194,336.00        1,215,139.00       
    Payments to or on behalf of 
      the university (Notes 23 and 24) 4,451,272.00        76,239,246.48      
       Total operating expenses 2,212,774,525.62     16,918,333.00      107,195,498.86    23,684,214.00     
           Operating income (loss) $ (873,123,635.13)       $ 18,732,986.00      $ 15,744,416.58      $ (14,522,775.00)   

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

    State and local appropriations $ 599,487,680.26        
    Gifts   (including gifts totaling   $ 30,744,305.36      

from component units) 45,344,527.17          
    Grants and contracts 219,796,343.39        $ 14,255,820.00     
    Investment income (loss)  (includes investment income of

7,900,111.13$       from component units) 63,580,655.72          $ 4,971,535.00        $ 12,299,731.57      (2,984,205.00)     
    Interest on capital asset - related debt (40,256,168.03)         (2,537,998.00)       
    Bond issuance costs
    Interest on noncapital debt
    Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (5,852,078.73)           (26,344.00)            7,406,762.00       
       Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 882,100,959.78        2,407,193.00        12,299,731.57      18,678,377.00     
          Income (loss) before other revenues, 
             expenses, gains, or losses 8,977,324.65            21,140,179.00      28,044,148.15      4,155,602.00       
   Capital appropriations 87,647,467.68          
   Capital grants and gifts (including gifts

from component units totaling 12,751,116.72$    ) 19,619,044.09          
   Additions to permanent endowments 13,180,867.97          24,790,106.00      30,054,966.36      
   Other  (including  $ 3,276,011.76 of insurance recoveries

related to prior years' property damages.) 3,448,161.78            1,966.00              
      Total other revenues 123,895,541.52        24,790,106.00      30,054,966.36      1,966.00              
         Increase (decrease) in net position $ 132,872,866.17        $ 45,930,285.00      $ 58,099,114.51      $ 4,157,568.00       

NET POSITION
  Net position at beginning of year 3,113,215,605.60     121,976,222.00    390,837,745.52    14,789,801.00     

(95,219,465.74)         

    principle for GASB 75 (Note 22)
(25,730,724.40)         

    principle for GASB 81 (Note 22)

  Net position at beginning of year, as restated 2,992,265,415.46     121,976,222.00    390,837,745.52    14,789,801.00     

  Net position at end of year $ 3,125,138,281.63     $ 167,906,507.00    $ 448,936,860.03    $ 18,947,369.00     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

  Cumulative effect of a change in accounting

  Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 

  Tuition and fees $ 503,782,772.40        PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

  Federal appropriations 14,443,173.46          Operating loss $ (873,123,635.13) 
  Grants and contracts 467,180,107.73     
  Sales and services of educational activities and other activities 70,803,725.68          Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 
  Payments to suppliers and vendors (522,168,186.12)         provided (used) by operating activities:
  Payments to employees (1,112,053,197.25)        Depreciation and amortization expense 123,649,092.90   
  Payments for benefits (388,257,451.15)         Changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows:
  Payments for scholarships and fellowships (64,439,069.53)             Receivables, net (5,288,315.00)     
  Loans issued to students (102,345.68)                  Inventories 1,159,687.11       
  Collection of loans from students 3,837,368.57                Prepaid expenses 248,486.32          
  Interest earned on loans to students 528,910.71                   Accrued interest receivable 510,432.69          
  Changes in deposits held in custody for component units 51,050,908.47              Accounts payable 7,886,267.19       
  Changes in deposits held in custody for others (411,415.37)                  Accrued liabilities 1,524,422.45       
  Auxiliary enterprise charges:        Unearned revenue (621,099.12)        
     Residence halls 66,151,958.20              Deposits held in custody for others (407,165.37)        
     Bookstore 23,817,628.34              Deposits held in custody for component units 51,050,908.47     
     Food service 10,687,521.42              Deposits 1,250,027.40       
     Parking 12,332,252.65              Net pension asset (1,312,633.00)     
     Athletics 141,392,066.85            Deferred outflows related to pensions 3,855,237.00       
     Other auxiliaries 3,037,456.14                Net pension obligation (9,239,766.00)     
   Other receipts (payments) 21,354,975.08              Deferred inflows related to pensions (3,223,624.00)     
      Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (697,030,839.40)           Deferred outflows related to OPEB (14,165,373.00)   

       OPEB obligation (6,220,233.00)     
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES        Deferred inflows related to OPEB 22,602,308.00     

  State appropriations 593,140,537.18     
  Local appropriations 6,347,143.08                Compensated absences (900,888.20)        
  Gifts and grants for other than capital or endowment purposes 253,171,742.54          Other additions (deductions):
  Private gifts for endowment purposes 13,180,867.97              Loans to students 3,735,022.89       
  Split-interest transactions receipts 1,421,495.69                   Net cash provided (used) by operations $ (697,030,839.40) 
  Split-interest transactions disbursements (3,751,008.69)        Noncash investing, capital, or financing transactions
  Federal student loan receipts 303,408,033.01     
  Federal student loan disbursements (302,272,031.00)    
  Net cash balance implicitly financed (repaid) 4,091,073.04         Gifts of capital assets $ 15,192,704.00     
  Other noncapital receipts (payments) 172,150.01            Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ (8,395,527.67)     
     Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities $ 868,910,002.83     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
    Proceeds from capital debt 200,465,645.63     

  Capital appropriations 86,382,473.36       
  Capital grants and gifts received 4,426,340.09         
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets 86,327.38              
  Purchase of capital assets and construction (256,311,296.65)    
  Principal paid on capital debt and leases (41,519,730.21)      
  Interest paid on capital debt and leases (65,241,429.26)      
  Other capital and related financing receipts (payments) (2,416,930.68)        
    Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities$ (74,128,600.34)      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 1,145,807,062.38  
  Income on investments 51,736,888.68       
  Purchase of investments (1,189,997,368.79) 
     Net cash provided (used) by investing activities $ 7,546,582.27         

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 105,297,145.36     
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,172,657,703.22  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,277,954,848.58  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
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Note 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
A.  Reporting Entity 
 
The university is a component unit of the State of Tennessee because the state appoints the majority of the 
university’s governing body and provides significant financial support. The university is discretely presented in the 
Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 
The University of Tennessee System is comprised of the University of Tennessee Knoxville, including the Space 
Institute at Tullahoma; the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga; the University of Tennessee at Martin; the 
University of Tennessee Health Science Center, including the Memphis campus, the Memorial Research Center at 
Knoxville, Clinical Education Centers at Chattanooga and Knoxville, and Family Practice Centers at Jackson, 
Knoxville, and Memphis; the University of Tennessee Institute of Agriculture, including the College of Agriculture 
at Knoxville, the Agricultural Experiment Stations, the Agricultural Extension Service, and the College of Veterinary 
Medicine at Knoxville; the University of Tennessee Institute for Public Service, which includes the County 
Technical Assistance Service and the Municipal Technical Advisory Service; and the University of Tennessee 
University-Wide Administration. The University of Tennessee’s Knoxville, Chattanooga, Martin, and Health Science 
Center campuses are each accredited by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS).  The university 
is governed by a board of 26 members, including one student and one faculty member, all either ex officio or 
appointed by the Governor, who also serves as chairman.  The president is the chief executive officer of the 
university system. 
 
The University of Chattanooga Foundation, Inc., and the University of Tennessee Foundation, Inc., are considered 
component units of the university. Although the university does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the 
foundations, the majority of resources, or income thereon that the foundations hold and invest are restricted to the 
activities of the university by the donors.  Because these restricted resources held by the foundations can only be 
used by, or for the benefit of, the university, the foundations are considered component units of the university and are 
discretely presented in the university’s financial statements. The University of Tennessee Research Foundation, Inc., 
is also considered a component unit of the university because the university’s board of trustees approves the 
foundation’s administrative budget and funds the foundation’s administrative costs. It is also discretely presented in 
the university’s financial statements. See notes 23, 24, and 25 for more detailed information about the component 
units and how to obtain their reports. 
 
B.  Basis of Presentation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) applicable to governmental colleges and universities engaged in business-type 
activities as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
C.  Basis of Accounting 
 
For financial statement purposes, the university is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in 
business-type activities.  Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.  All significant 
interfund transactions have been eliminated. 
 
Amounts reported as operating revenues include 1) tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances;    
2) federal appropriations; 3) certain federal, state, local, and private grants and contracts; 4) sales and services of 
educational departments and other activities; 5) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, net of scholarship 
discounts and allowances; and 6) other sources of revenue.  Operating expenses include 1) salaries and wages;        
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2) employee benefits; 3) scholarships and fellowships; 4) depreciation and amortization expense; and 5) utilities, 
supplies, and other services. 
 
All other activity is nonoperating in nature.  This activity includes: 1) state and local appropriations for operations; 
2) investment income; 3) interest on capital asset-related debt; 4) nonoperating grants and contracts; and 5) gifts. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the institution’s policy to use the 
restricted resources first. 
    
D.  Cash Equivalents 
 
This classification includes instruments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. 
 
E.  Inventories 
 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, based on the retail, specific identification, average cost, or first-in, 
first-out basis.  
 
F.  Investments 
 
All university investments are reported at fair value. 
 
The university holds investments in limited partnerships, limited companies, corporations, and limited liability 
corporations which are carried at estimated fair value provided by the management of these funds.  The purpose of this 
alternative investment class is to increase portfolio diversification and reduce risk due to the low correlation with other 
asset classes.   Methods for determining estimated fair values include discounted cash flows and estimates provided by 
general partners and fund managers.  Because these investments are not readily marketable, the estimated fair value is 
subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market for the 
investments existed, and such differences could be material.  The estimated fair values are reviewed and evaluated by the 
university. 
 
G.  Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, works of art, historical treasures/collections, software, and 
library holdings, are reported in the statement of net position at historical cost or at acquisition value at date of donation, 
less accumulated depreciation/amortization.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the assets or materially extend the assets’ useful lives are not capitalized. 
 
A capitalization threshold of $100,000 is used for buildings, land improvements, and infrastructure. Equipment and 
software are capitalized when the unit acquisition cost is $5,000 or greater and the estimated useful life is one year or 
more.  The capitalization threshold for additions and improvements to infrastructure and land improvements is also 
$100,000.  The capitalization threshold for additions and improvements to buildings is $100,000 provided that amount 
exceeds 20% of the book value of the building. 
 
These assets, with the exception of works of art and historical treasures/collections deemed inexhaustible and land, are 
depreciated/amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which range from 5 to 40 years. 
 
H.  Accounts Payable 
 
Included in accounts payable are checks payable in the amount of $7,172,638.03 as of June 30, 2018. These amounts 
represent the sum of checks written in excess of the university's checking account balance because of the use of a 
controlled disbursement account.  In this way, the university maximizes interest income by transferring from an 
investment account only funds necessary to cover the checks that clear the bank daily. 
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I.  Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan and the State  and Higher  Education 
Employee Retirement  Plan in the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) and additions 
to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the TCRS. For this purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the Closed State and Higher Education Employee 
Pension Plan and the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
J.  Compensated Absences 
 
The university’s employees accrue annual leave at varying rates, depending on length of service or classification.  Some 
employees also earn compensatory time. Generally, all permanent full-time employees and certain part-time employees 
are entitled to accrue and carry forward calendar year maximums of 42 days annual vacation leave, except nine-month 
faculty members who do not accrue annual leave.  The amount of these liabilities and their related benefits are reported 
in the statement of net position.  There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the university’s policy is to 
pay this only when an employee dies or is absent because of illness or injury. 
 
K. Net Position 
 
The institution’s net position is classified as follows: 
 
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS: This represents the institution’s total investment in capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and net of outstanding debt obligations and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
those capital assets.  To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not 
included as a component of net investment in capital assets. 
 
NONEXPENDABLE RESTRICTED NET POSITION: Nonexpendable restricted net position consists of endowment 
and similar type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that 
the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and future 
income, which may be expendable or added to principal. 
 
EXPENDABLE RESTRICTED NET POSITION: Expendable restricted net position includes resources in which the 
university is legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by external 
third parties. 
 
UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION:  Unrestricted net position represents resources derived from student tuition and 
fees, state appropriations, the sales and services of educational departments and other activities, and auxiliary 
enterprises. These resources are used for transactions relating to the educational and general operations of the institution, 
and may be used at the discretion of the institution to meet current expenses for any purpose.  
 
L.  Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
 
Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship discounts and 
allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  Scholarship discounts and allowances 
are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the university and the amount that is 
paid by the student and/or third parties making payments on the student’s behalf.  Certain governmental grants, such as 
Pell grants, and other federal, state, or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either operating or nonoperating 
revenues in the institution’s financial statements.  To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy 
tuition and fees and other student charges, the institution has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance. 
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M.  Income Taxes 
 
The university, as a public corporation and an instrumentality of the State of Tennessee, is exempt from federal income 
taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code.  Contributions to the university are deductible by donors as 
provided under Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
Note 2:  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Investment Policy 
 
Cash Management Investment Pool - The University of Tennessee maintains a cash management investment pool that 
is available for use by all fund groups.  State statutes and university investment policies authorize the university's cash 
management pool to invest in collateralized Tennessee bank or savings and loan association certificates of deposit, U.S. 
Treasury obligations, U.S. government agency obligations, repurchase agreements of those securities, highest quality 
commercial paper, prime bankers' acceptances, and money market mutual funds meeting certain criteria. 
 
University policy also requires that commercial paper not exceed 35% of the portfolio in total and that no more than 
10% of the portfolio’s value be in the commercial paper of a single issuer.  In addition, banker’s acceptances cannot 
exceed 20% of the portfolio’s value and no one banker’s acceptances may exceed 10%. Money market funds cannot 
exceed 10% of the portfolio’s total value. At June 30, 2018, the university’s cash management investment pool consisted 
of $25,000.00 of demand deposits yielding money market rates, $64,921,350.00 of commercial paper, and  
$1,176,240,021.79 of U.S. treasury and government agency obligations. 
 
Investments – The university’s assets subject to long-term investment (endowments and annuity and life income assets) 
use various external managers and funds consistent with investment objectives for those invested assets.  A significant 
part of these assets is the university’s Consolidated Investment Pool, which is a carefully crafted portfolio of broadly 
diversified asset classes. 
 
Deposits – University policy and state statute require that university funds be deposited into authorized commercial 
banks and savings and loan associations. State statutes also require that these financial institutions pledge securities as 
collateral to secure university time and demand deposits.  To facilitate the pledge requirement, financial institutions can 
elect to either participate in the State of Tennessee Collateral Pool for Public Deposits administered by the State 
Treasurer or pledge securities with a third party. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
In addition to petty cash and demand deposits, this classification includes instruments which are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash. 
 
At June 30, 2018, cash and cash equivalents consisted of $11,882,659.66 in bank accounts, $1,292,975.00 of petty cash 
on hand, and $1,241,186,371.79 in the university’s cash management investment pool. 
 
The carrying amount of the university’s deposits was $11,907,659.66, and the bank balance was $6,349,558.42. 
 
Additionally, the university maintains custodial accounts at First Tennessee Bank and BNY Mellon for funds 
contractually managed by independent investment counsel. In accordance with the custody agreements, First Tennessee 
Bank and BNY Mellon placed cash equivalents totaling $23,592,842.13 at June 30, 2018, in money market mutual 
funds.   
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 
The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the university’s deposits may not be 
recovered. As stated earlier, state statutes require that all university deposits be in a qualified depository and secured 
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through direct collateralization or participation in the State Collateral Pool.  As of June 30, 2018, all university deposits 
were adequately secured as required by state statute.   
 
Investments 
 
All investments are reported at fair value, including those securities with a maturity date of one year or less. Where 
applicable, maturities reported for pooled investment vehicles - bonds, represent a weighted average maturity of the 
individual bonds in the respective fund. As of June 30, 2018, the university had the following investments and 
maturities: 
 
 

Investment Maturities (In Years) 
 

                 

Investment Type 
 Fair  
Value  

Less 
Than  1  

 
1 to 5  

 
6 to 10 

 
10+ Unknown 

 
Cost 

Cash Management 
Pool 

           

Cash Equivalents            
Debt Securities            
Commercial Paper $      64,921,350.00  $    64,921,350.00        $       64,896,684.73 
U.S. Treasury 100,917,941.69        26,939,499.49  $  49,063,002.20  $     24,915,440.00           103,044,634.83 
U.S. Agencies 1,075,322,080.10  68,369,314.46  713,409,481.79   240,283,959.08  $    53,259,324.77    1,098,557,398.12 
 $ 1,241,161,371.79  $  160,230,163.95  $762,472,483.99  $   265,199,399.08  $    53,259,324.77  $  1,266,498,717.68 
 Investments            
 Debt Securities            
 U.S. Treasury $           208,876.30     $           3,187.50    $         205,688.80      $            199,387.66 
 U.S. Agencies 18,575.85          $            18,575.85    14,942.10  
 Corporate Bonds 441,352.60    182,588.30  101,726.30  157,038.00         444,360.20 
 Pooled Investment 
 Vehicles-Bonds 68,801,994.94    18,947,665.63  47,991,198.17  1,043,519.98 $            819,611.16 $       70,716,268.43 

 
 $    69,470,799.69    $   19,133,441.43  $     48,111,500.32  $      1,406,246.78 $            819,611.16 $       71,374,958.39  

 
 

  
$  160,230,163.95  $ 781,605,925.42  $   313,310,899.40  $    54,665,571.55 $            819,611.16  

 
Other Investments 

           

Corporate Stocks:            
   Domestic $     20,127,941.17          $       14,088,392.40 
   International 5,286,372.04          5,396,944.02 
Pooled Investment 
   Vehicles-Equity 343,388,825.79          294,530,311.49 
Alternative 
Investments: 

           

Pooled Investment 
   Vehicles-Real        
       Estate 56,839,300.24          43,293,729.36 

Private Capital       
Investments 282,400,326.09 

         
273,128,918.18 

Hedge Funds 231,554,042.66          188,855,083.57 
 Real Estate Gifts 2,975,796.87          3,264,797.47 
Assets With Trustees 7,311,638.28          6,987,420.73 
Other  8,362.41          16,303.56 
Total Investments & 
Cash Equivalents  

 
$2,260,524,777.03 

 
       

  
$  2,167,435,576.85 

    Less:  Cash            
    Equivalents 1,241,161,371.79         

 
1,266,498,717.68 

 
Total Investments 

   
$1,019,363,405.24         

 
$     900,936,859.17 
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Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of a debt investment.  The 
university does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The 
university’s debt investments as of June 30, 2018, were rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s, and 
/or Fitch Ratings and are reported below using Moody’s rating scale. 
 
The university is authorized by statute to invest funds in accordance with University of Tennessee investment policies.  
Funds, other than endowment and annuity and life income funds, may be invested in collateralized Tennessee bank or 
savings and loan association certificates of deposit, U. S. Treasury obligations, U.S. government agency obligations and 
repurchase agreements of those securities, highest quality commercial paper, prime bankers’ acceptances, and money 
market mutual funds meeting certain criteria.  Endowment and life income funds can be invested in equity securities and 
various other securities given prudent diversification.  The university has no investment policy limiting its investment 
choice based on ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies. As of June 30, 2018, the institution’s 
investments were rated as follows: 
 
Rated Debt Instruments Fair Value Aaa Aa1 Aa2 Aa3 A1 
Cash Management Pool:       
Commercial Paper $     64,921,350.00 $  64,921,350.00     

U.S. Agencies   1,075,322,080.10   557,271,063.04  $  42,637,326.00   
Investments: 
 U.S. Agencies $            18,575.85 $          18,575.85     
 Corporate Bonds 441,352.60            
 Pooled Investment 
Vehicles - Bonds 68,801,994.94  

 
    

Money Market Funds in 
Custodial Accounts 23,592,842.13               

    

 
Rated Debt 
Instruments (continued) 

 
A2 

 
A3 

 
Baa1 

 
Baa2 Baa3 B1 

Cash Management Pool       
Commercial Paper       
U.S. Agencies       

Investments: 
 U.S. Agencies       
 Corporate Bonds $        203,444.30        $       103,180.00 $       84,978.30 $          49,750.00 
Pooled Investment 
Vehicles - Bonds         
Money Market Funds in 
Custodial Accounts       
 
Rated Debt 
Instruments (continued) Unrated 
Cash Management Pool:  
Commercial Paper  
U.S. Agencies $475,413,691.06 

Investments:  

 U.S. Agencies  
Corporate Bonds  
Pooled Investment 
Vehicles - Bonds   68,801,994.94 
Money Market Funds in 
Custodial Accounts 23,592,842.13 
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Custodial Credit Risk – Investments 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the university will not be able to recover 
the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. At June 30, 2018, the 
university had $7,311,638.28 of uninsured and unregistered investments held by a counterparty but not in the school’s 
name. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the university’s investment in a single issuer. 
Other than the restrictions placed on the cash management investment pool described in the investment policies above, 
the university places no limit on the amount the university may invest in any one issuer.   
 
 
Foreign Currency Risk 
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of a deposit or 
investment.  The university has $5,286,372.04 invested in foreign corporate equities at June 30, 2018. 
 
Alternative Investments 
 
In its Consolidated Investment Pool, as part of its endowment assets, the university has investments in one hundred eight 
limited partnerships, limited companies, corporations, and limited liability corporations (LLCs).  
 
The estimated fair value of these assets is $570,793,668.99 at June 30, 2018.  
 
Total capital contributions less returns of capital equal $505,277,731.11 at June 30, 2018.  
 
The university believes that the carrying amount of its alternative investments is a reasonable estimate of fair value as of 
June 30, 2018.  Because these investments are not readily marketable, the estimated value is subject to uncertainty and, 
therefore, may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market for the investments existed, and such 
differences could be material. These investments are made in accordance with the university’s investment policy that 
approves the allocation of funds to various asset classes in order to ensure the proper level of diversification within the 
endowment pool. These investments (real estate assets, private capital investments, and hedge funds) are designed to 
enhance diversification and provide reductions in overall portfolio volatility. These fair values are estimated by the 
general partner of each limited partnership or manager of each corporate entity using various valuation techniques. 
   
The methods and assumptions used in estimating fair value vary based upon the asset class, but uniformly all start with 
the latest audited financial statements for the funds. Most funds issue audited financial statements on a calendar year 
basis.  Using those audited fair values as a beginning point, valuations are adjusted for net capital activity and 
marketplace considerations to ascertain the reasonableness of estimated fair values provided by the fund managers. 
Marketplace activity includes subsequent independent appraisals for real estate assets, subsequent rounds of capital 
financings that include new investors for private/venture equity, and asset confirmations from brokers and fund 
administrators for hedge funds. 
 
Note 3:  Fair Value Measurements 
 
The university categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
The university has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018: 
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Debt Securities 
 
The fair value of the Debt Securities category at June 30, 2018, was determined based on Level 2 inputs. The 
university utilizes third-party pricing services and guidance provided by custodians and trading counterparties for 
fair value estimates of these investments. In addition, it takes into account the nature of the securities, trading 
activity, and availability of comparable securities in the marketplace.  
 
Equity Securities and Pooled Investment Vehicles (Exchange – Traded or With Published Values) 
 
These investment categories are comprised of common stock, preferred stock, limited partnerships, and funds, all of 
which are exchange-traded or with published values.  The fair value of these assets at June 30, 2018, was primarily 
determined based on Level 1 inputs due to the transparent pricing provided by a securities exchange or published 
values. 
 
Other Assets 
 
With one exception, Level 3 inputs were utilized for the fair value calculations of this investment category, which 
contains real estate holdings of $2,975,796.86, separately invested portfolios of $7,267,865.72, and an annuity 
valued at $8,362.42.  Real estate was valued using various appraisal estimates, while the separately invested 
portfolios are managed externally for the benefit of the university. Pricing for the latter was provided by third parties. 
The annuity is priced by the sponsoring entity. This category additionally includes $43,772.56 of money market 
investments/cash equivalents held by a counterparty classified as Level 1 input. 
 
Private Capital Investments 
 
The fair value of the Private Capital category at June 30, 2018, was determined based on Level 3 inputs. Valuation 
methods such as the income method and/or multiple analysis are examples of those commonly utilized by managers 
to determine the fair value of these assets and are typically unobservable to the university. 
 
The university’s private capital investments have $188,674,487 of unfunded commitments at June 30, 2018. 
 
Investments Measured at Net Asset Value (NAV) 
 
The university holds shares or interests in investment companies or vehicles for which the fair value is measured on a 
recurring basis using net asset value per share (or its equivalent).  This category is a combination of open-end mutual 
funds and hedge funds.  The open-end fund holdings implement strategies that are primarily net long or long-only 
investments in a variety of markets including the global equity markets, foreign sovereign and corporate bonds, real 
estate, and energy. The hedge fund holdings are divided into three sub-categories.  The first is Long/Short Equity, a 
strategy that typically invests in common stock by both buying shares and selling shares short.  These strategies work 
across the global equity markets. The second category, entitled Credit, focuses almost exclusively on fixed income 
instruments, which can include various types of bonds, derivatives, and loans.  These strategies also invest in 
multiple jurisdictions around the world.  The final category, Diversified, is comprised of strategies that often overlap 
in approach and frequently employ more than one strategy within a single vehicle.  
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NAV Investments General Redemption Terms 
 
The table below provides a summary of the liquidity terms and conditions of those investments with values measured 
using net asset value. 
 
 
 

Fair Value Redemption Frequency 
Redemption Notice 

Required 
Hedge Funds, Credit $    50,242,336.45 Quarterly – Annually 45 days – 120 days 

Hedge Funds, Diversified      $  129,867,087.77 
Monthly, Quarterly, 

Annually 3 days – 90 days 
Hedge Funds, Long-short 
Equity $    51,444,618.44 Quarterly, Annually 30 days – 90 days 

Open-end Funds $   127,892,201.25 
Daily, Monthly, Quarterly, 

Semi-annually 1 day – 90 days 
 
As of fiscal year-end, $19.7 million of the investments measured at NAV were still within the initial lock-up period. 
 
 

Annuities and Life Income Payable 

The university's liability under split interest agreements (annuities and life income payable) is also reported at fair 
value. The valuation of the liability is based on unobservable inputs (level 3 of the fair value hierarchy). The 
university has split interest agreements that allow donors to make contributions that provide for certain payments to 
specified beneficiaries during their lifetime. The amount payable to the donors is recorded at the present value of the 
estimated future payments to be made under these agreements. 
 
 
Note 4:  Endowment, Annuity, and Life Income Agreements 
 
There are two categories of university assets which are subject to long-term investment: endowments and amounts held 
in trust under annuity and life income agreements.  The investment of these funds is governed by the gift instrument and 
the investment policies established by the Board of Trustees.   
 
Effective July 1, 1954, the university adopted the policy of investing endowment assets over which it had full investment 
discretion (and on which the donor or governing gift instrument does not require separate investment) in a Consolidated 
Investment Pool.  This pooling of investments affords closer supervision of the investment portfolio and provides, 
regardless of size, the advantages of participation in a well-diversified portfolio of domestic and international equities, 
private equity, bonds, real estate, and hedge funds. All contributing endowments participate in the income and capital 
appreciation of the Pool on a per-share basis commensurate with their contributions to the Pool.  New endowments 
purchase shares in the Pool at the end of each month at the then current fair value per share, determined by valuing the 
Pool at month end fair value and dividing by the number of pool units outstanding.   
 
If a donor has not provided specific instructions, state law permits the university to authorize for spending the net 
appreciation (realized and unrealized) of the investments of endowment funds.  When administering its power to spend 
net appreciation, the university is required to consider the university’s long-term and short-term needs, present and 
anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its investments, price-level trends, and general economic 
conditions.  Any net appreciation that is spent is required to be spent for the purposes for which the endowment was 
established. 
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The university chooses to spend only a portion of the investment income (including changes in the value of investments) 
each year.  Under the spending plan established by the university, four and a half percent of a six-year moving average 
of the fair value of endowment investments has been authorized for expenditure. In fiscal year 2016, the university 
began transitioning to a seven-year moving average, by adding one year’s value to the moving average calculation. This 
transition will be complete with fiscal year 2019. In addition, the board approved imposing both a maximum and 
minimum distribution rate on each year’s calculation. Beginning in fiscal year 2016, the maximum and minimum 
distribution rates are 6% and 3%, respectively, of the previous calendar year’s market value.  The remaining amount 
after distributions, if any, is retained to be used in future years when the amount computed using the spending plan 
exceeds the investment income.  At June 30, 2018, net appreciation of $149,226,613.68 is available to be spent, of 
which $146,119,565.34 is restricted for scholarships and fellowships, libraries, instructional department uses, academic 
support, research, and other purposes.  The per unit fair value for participating endowments was $3.4080660 at June 30, 
2018.  Income distributed was $0.15019 per share in 2018, or $41,534,972.31.  
 
The university’s Consolidated Investment Pool is invested to maximize total return rather than current income consistent 
with provisions of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act adopted by the State of Tennessee in 
2007. The total return for fiscal year 2018 and the three and five years then ended was 8.10%, 5.10%, and 6.60%, 
respectively.   
 
All endowments not invested as part of the Consolidated Investment Pool are separately invested to observe requirements 
or limitations imposed by donors. Income earned and distributed on separately invested endowments amounted to 
$180,215.92 for 2018.   
 
Annuity and life income amounts held in trust are separately invested entities requiring detailed accounting to reflect 
specific compliance with the terms of each trust and applicable federal regulations. The investment objectives as 
reflected in each agreement vary widely since they are affected by the age, income level, and needs of the beneficiaries 
as well as motives and objectives of the donors.  Interest, dividend, rent, and royalty income realized on these funds for 
2018 amounted to $1,289,470.01. 
 
Note 5:  Accounts, Notes, and Grants Receivable 
 
Accounts, notes, and grants receivable included the following at June 30, 2018: 
 

Student accounts receivable       $   21,316,995.35 
Grants receivable            86,152,176.97 
Notes receivable              2,625,312.57 
Pledges receivable              3,044,675.20 
Due from component units                  887,510.19 
Other receivables            37,282,156.48 
Subtotal        $ 151,308,826.76 
  Less allowance for doubtful accounts             (9,499,297.30) 
Total       $ 141,809,529.46      

 
 
Pledges receivable are promises of private donations that are reported as accounts receivable, and revenue, net of an 
estimated uncollectible allowance of $611,324.67. 
 
Federal Perkins Loan Program funds included the following at June 30, 2018: 
 

Perkins loans receivable        $  20,442,452.13 
  Less allowance for doubtful accounts               (7,209,604.36)      
Total 
 

  $  13,232,847.77 
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 Note 6:  Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows: 
 

 Beginning 
 Balance 

 
Additions 

 
Transfers 

 
Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Land $        82,662,512.46 $       332,622.95 $                            - $                            - $           82,995,135.41 
Land improvements 
 & infrastructure 

 
182,097,373.28 

 
10,280,220.38 

 
  42,415,292.16   

 
-   

 
234,792,885.82 

Buildings 2,716,553,362.19 32,341,038.34 278,770,934.79 (3,388,199.23)   3,024,277,136.09 
Works of Art/ 
Historical Treasures 

 
4,414,950.77 

 
-            

 
- - 

 
4,414,950.77 

Equipment 391,855,111.99 24,162,482.23 -    (16,089,859.68)    399,927,734.54 
Software 30,834,960.19 308,902.57 - (112,568.00) 31,031,294.76 
Library holdings 155,717,750.29 19,199,222.19 - (13,905,141.56) 161,011,830.92 
Projects in progress         504,005,461.72      187,731,420.64    (321,186,226.95)       (1,982,830.33)  

       
           368,567,825.08 

 
   Total  $   4,068,141,482.89 $   274,355,909.30 $                            -  $   (35,478,598.80) $      4,307,018,793.39 
      
Less accumulated  
  depreciation/amortization:  

     

Land improvements  
 & infrastructure 

 
(80,626,831.48) 

 
(8,057,570.72) 

 
        -  

 
- 

 
(88,684,402.20) 

Buildings (1,024,245,063.74) (73,204,978.77) - 1,571,796.81 (1,095,878,245.70) 
Equipment (274,680,335.73) (26,421,684.92) -      14,833,021.86 (286,268,998.79) 
Software (30,065,105.79) (348,966.12)               - 112,568.00 (30,301,503.91) 
Library holdings        (67,984,725.58)     (15,615,892.37)                             -  

                         
        13,905,141.56           (69,695,476.39) 

   Total  
 

$(1,477,602,062.32) 
 

$(123,649,092.90) 
 

$                          - 
 

$       30,422,528.23 
 

$   (1,570,828,626.99) 
      
Capital assets, net $   2,590,539,420.57 $  150,706,816.40  $                          - $       (5,056,070.57) $      2,736,190,166.40 

 
 
 
Note 7:  Operating Leases 
 
The university has entered into various operating leases for buildings and equipment.  It is expected that in the normal 
course of business, such leases will continue to be required.  Net expenses for rentals under leases were $12,726,790.68 
for the year ended June 30, 2018. All operating leases are cancelable at the lessee’s option. 
 
 
Note 8:  Accounts Payable 
 
Accounts payable included the following: 
                      June 30, 2018 
 
 Vendors payable        $ 106,796,852.33 
 Payroll deductions payable              24,813,183.40 
 Due to State of Tennessee              6,551,535.06 

                          Total       $ 138,161,570.79  
 
 
 

9 

197
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Treasurer's Financial Report, FY 2017-18
 

 THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE  
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 
  

 

27 
 

Note 9: Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows: 
 
 Beginning 

  Balance    
 

Additions 
 

Reductions 
Ending  
Balance 

Current 
  Portion   

Long-term liabilities:      
   Bonds $    806,354,896.64 $    307,206,912.90  $  159,264,615.13 $     954,297,194.41 $   39,471,997.82 
   Unamortized bond premium 88,488,799.78 57,215,923.72        12,340,219.62 133,364,503.88 - 
   Revolving credit facility      106,277,966.40         11,496,442.90     109,314,185.38            8,460,223.92                            - 
Total TSSBA indebtedness  $ 1,001,121,662.82 $    375,919,279.52  $  280,919,020.13 $  1,096,121,922.21 $   39,471,997.82 
   Compensated absences       82,559,389.99       47,423,946.16     48,324,834.36          81,658,501.79      48,324,834.36 
Total long-term liabilities $ 1,083,681,052.81 $    423,343,225.68 

 
 $  329,243,854.49 $  1,177,780,424.00 $   87,796,832.18 

Other long-term liabilities:       
   Unearned revenue $    84,712,827.67 $      67,970,190.72  $    68,591,289.84   $       84,091,728.55 $   68,591,289.84 
   Due to grantors 33,326,155.35         997,272.53 13,892,638.92 20,430,788.96 - 
   Annuities payable and life      
      income payable 19,235,598.83         963,704.85     350,477.25      19,848,826.43 3,331,110.43 
Total other long-term liabilities $    137,274,581.85 $      69,931,168.10 $    82,834,406.01 $     124,371,343.94 $   71,922,400.27 
 
TSSBA Debt – Bonds 
 
Bonds, with interest rates ranging from .18% to 5.50%, were issued by the Tennessee State School Bond Authority 
(TSSBA).  The bonds are due serially to 2048 and are secured by pledges of the facilities’ revenues to which they 
relate and certain other revenues and fees of the university, including state appropriations. (See Note 10 for further 
details.)  The bonded indebtedness with the Tennessee State School Bond Authority included in long-term liabilities 
on the statement of net position is shown net of assets held by the authority in the debt service reserve, capitalized 
interest, and unexpended debt proceeds. The total bonded indebtedness at June 30, 2018, was $982,656,400.58.  The 
unspent bond proceeds amount at June 30, 2018, was $28,359,206.17.   

 
The university’s debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds payable at June 30, 2018, are as follows: 

          
Year ending June 30:             Principal                              Interest 

2019 $   39,471,997.82 $   44,415,140.07 
2020  41,078,865.82   42,750,876.99 
2021 37,233,747.55 41,089,140.44 
2022 37,867,879.45    39,495,496.38 
2023 38,854,838.23    37,813,287.92 

2024-2028 193,595,559.67 162,995,014.54 
2029-2033 192,775,654.01   118,289,582.21 
2034-2038 176,557,491.15 74,992,159.39 
2039-2043 150,627,910.04    35,811,925.59 
2044-2048      74,592,456.84      7,408,379.40 

 $ 982,656,400.58 $ 605,061,002.93 
Less:   

Unspent bond proceeds           (28,359,206.17)  
TSSBA debt-bonds $ 954,297,194.41  
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TSSBA Debt - Revolving Credit Facility  
 
The Tennessee State School Bond Authority (TSSBA) receives loans from the revolving credit facility to finance the 
costs of various capital projects during the construction phase. When projects are placed in service, TSSBA issues 
long-term, fixed-rate debt to finance the project over its useful payback period and repays the revolving credit 
facility debt. The amount issued for projects at the university was $8,460,223.92 at June 30, 2018. 
 
More detailed information regarding the bonds and revolving credit facility can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements in the financial report for the Tennessee State School Bond Authority. That report is available on the 
state’s website at www.comptroller.tn.gov/tssba/cafr.asp. 
 
Refunding of Debt 
 
On September 13, 2017, the Tennessee State School Bond Authority issued two new series of bonds, 2017 
Refunding Series B and 2017 Refunding Series C (federally taxable).  The 2017B bonds consisted of 
$64,762,059.80 in revenue bonds with an average interest rate of 5% to advance refund $81,677,712.71 of 
outstanding 2007C, 2010A, 2012A, and 2013A Series bonds with an average interest rate of 4.4%. The net proceeds 
of $87,260,303.44 (after payment of $173,431.64 in underwriter’s fees and issuance costs) were deposited with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the bonds.  As a result, the 2007C, 2010A, 2012A, 
and 2013A Series bonds are considered to be defeased, and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the 
university’s long-term liabilities.  The 2017C bonds consisted of $13,607,679.00 in revenue bonds with an average 
interest rate of 3.3% to advance refund $13,281,344.40 of outstanding 2010B Series bonds with an average interest 
rate of 4.9%.  The net proceeds of $14,587,221.19 (after payment of $38,192.99 in underwriter’s fees and issuance 
costs) were deposited with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the bonds.  As a result, 
the 2010B bonds are considered to be defeased, and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the 
university’s long-term liabilities. 
 
The 2017 Series B advance refunding resulted in the recognition of a deferred gain of $2,023,755.33 to be amortized 
over the next 23 years.  The university in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $22,496,633.49 over 
the next 23 years and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt 
service payments) of $18,279,273.73.  The 2017 Series C advance refunding resulted in the recognition of a deferred 
loss of $1,305,876.79 to be amortized on the next 23 years.  The university in effect reduced its aggregate debt 
service payments by $2,973,119.26 over the next 23 years and obtained an economic gain (difference between the 
present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $2,008,269.09.   
 
 
Note 10:  Pledged Revenues 
 
The University of Tennessee has pledged certain revenues and fees, including state appropriations, to repay 
$954,297,194.41 in revenue bonds issued from January 2007 to September 2017. Proceeds from the bonds provided 
financing for construction and renovation projects.  The bonds are payable through 2048. (See Note 9 for further 
details.) Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require 5.34% of available revenues.  
The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $1,559,358,197.34.  Principal and interest paid 
for the current year and total available revenues were $81,863,478.91 and $1,534,433,848.68, respectively. The 
amount of principal and interest paid for the current year does not include debt of $94,959,057.11 defeased through a 
bond refunding in 2018. 
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NOTE 11: PENSION PLANS 
 
A.  Defined Benefit Plans 
 
1. Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System  

  
Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan 

 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description 
 
State employees and higher education employees with membership in the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement 
System (TCRS) before July 1, 2014, are provided with pensions through the Closed State and Higher Education 
Employee Pension Plan. This plan is a component of the Public Employee Retirement Plan, an agent, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan.  The Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan stopped 
accepting new membership on June 30, 2014 but will continue providing benefits to existing members and retirees. 
Beginning July 1, 2014, a new agent defined benefit retirement plan, the State and Higher Education Employee 
Retirement Plan, became effective for state employees and higher education employees hired on or after July 1, 2014.  
 
The TCRS was created by state statute under Title 8, Chapters 34-37, Tennessee Code Annotated. The TCRS Board 
of Trustees is responsible for the proper operation and administration of all employer pension plans in the TCRS.  
The Tennessee Treasury Department, an agency in the legislative branch of state government, administers the plans 
of the TCRS.  The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
www.treasury.state.tn.us/tcrs. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
Title 8, Chapters 34-37, Tennessee Code Annotated, establishes the benefit terms and can be amended only by the 
Tennessee General Assembly. Members of the Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan are 
eligible to retire with an unreduced benefit at age 60 with 5 years of service credit or after 30 years of service credit 
regardless of age. Benefits are determined using the following formula: 
 
 

Average of Member's Highest Compensation for 5 
Consecutive Years (up to Social Security Integration 
Level) 

x 1.50% x 
Years of 
Service 
Credit  

x 105% 

Plus:     
  

Average of Member's Highest Compensation for 5 
Consecutive Years (over the Social Security Integration 
Level) 

x 1.75% x 
Years of 
Service 
Credit  

x 105% 

 
A reduced early retirement benefit is available at age 55 and vested.  Members are vested with five years of service 
credit.  Service-related disability benefits are provided regardless of length of service.  Five years of service is 
required for non-service-related disability eligibility.  The service-related and non-service-related disability benefits 
are determined in the same manner as a service retirement benefit but are reduced 10 percent and include projected 
service credits.  A variety of death benefits are available under various eligibility criteria. Member and beneficiary 
annuitants are entitled to automatic cost of living adjustments (COLAs) after retirement.  A COLA is granted each 
July for annuitants retired prior to July 2 of the previous year.   The COLA is based on the change in the consumer 
price index (CPI) during the prior calendar year, capped at 3 percent, and applied to the current benefit.  No COLA 
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is granted if the change in the CPI is less than 0.5%.  A 1% COLA is granted if the CPI change is between 0.5% and 
1%.  A member who leaves employment may withdraw employee contributions, plus any accumulated interest. 
 
Contributions 
 
Contributions for state employees and higher education employees are established in the statutes governing the 
TCRS and may only be changed by the Tennessee General Assembly.  The university’s employees are non-
contributory, as are most members in the Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan.  State and 
higher education agencies make employer contributions at the rate set by the Board of Trustees as determined by an 
actuarial valuation.   By law, employer contributions for the Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension 
Plan are required to be paid. Employer contributions by the university for the year ended June 30, 2018, to the 
Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan were $55,639,354 which is 18.86 percent of covered 
payroll. The employer rate, when combined with member contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by members during the year and the cost of administration, as well as an amortized portion of any unfunded 
liability. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
 
Pension Liability 
 
At June 30, 2018, the university reported a liability of $230,290,800 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The university’s proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on a projection of the university’s contributions during the year ended June 30, 2017, 
to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating state and higher education agencies.  At the 
June 30, 2017, measurement date, the university’s proportion was 12.868287 percent. The proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2016, was 13.12809 percent.  
 
Pension Expense 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the university recognized a pension expense of $48,151,332.   
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the university reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
  

  
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 

 
Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 
     
Differences between expected and actual experience    $         18,226,800  $       6,721,085 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments  841,693 
 

 
Changes in assumptions  39,215,680   
Changes in proportion of Net Pension Liability   2,530,378  2,684,921 
The university’s contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date of June 30, 2017             55,639,354 
 

____________ 
     Total  $       116,453,905  $       9,406,006  

 
Deferred outflows of resources, resulting from the university’s employer contributions of $55,639,354 subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease in net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2019.  
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30:   
2019 $ 6,696,912 
2020   38,678,109 
2021  18,927,689 
2022  (12,894,165) 

 
In the table above, positive amounts will increase pension expense, while negative amounts will decrease pension 
expense.  
 
Actuarial Assumptions  
 
The total pension liability as of the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
Inflation 2.5 percent 
Salary increases Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.46 percent based on age, including 

inflation, averaging 4 percent 
Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses, including 

inflation 
Cost-of-living adjustment 2.25 percent 

 
Mortality rates were developed by the actuary using the results of the actuarial experience study performed for the 
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, and were adjusted for expected future improvements in life expectancy.  
Mortality assumptions utilize the RP-2014 industry standard base table adjusted for TCRS experience, with mortality 
improvement projected 6 years beyond each actuarial valuation date. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study performed for the period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016.  The demographic assumptions were 
adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future experience.   
 
Changes of Assumptions 
 
In 2017, the following assumptions were changed:  decreased inflation rate from 3 percent to 2.5 percent; decreased 
the investment rate of return from 7.5 percent to 7.25 percent; decreased the cost-of-living adjustment from 2.5 
percent to 2.25 percent; decreased salary growth graded ranges from an average of 4.25 percent to an average of 4 
percent; and modified mortality assumptions to reflect current experience and anticipated mortality improvements. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of Trustees 
in conjunction with the June 30, 2016, actuarial experience study. This return was selected from a range of values 
developed using historical market returns and future capital market projections.  The future capital market 
projections were produced using a building-block method in which a best-estimate of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) is developed for each major asset 
class.  These best-estimates are combined to produce the future capital market projection by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.5 percent.  
The best-estimates of geometric real rates of return and the TCRS investment policy target asset allocation for each 
major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
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Asset Class  
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return  Target Allocation 

U.S. equity  5.69%  31% 
Developed market international equity  5.29%  14% 
Emerging market international equity  6.36%    4% 
Private equity and strategic lending   5.79%  20% 
U.S. fixed income  2.01%  20% 
Real estate  4.32%  10% 
Short-term securities   0.00%    1% 
    100% 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of Trustees 
as 7.25 percent based on a comparison of historical market returns and future capital market projections. 
 
Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent.  The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current rate and that 
contributions from all state and higher education agencies will be made at the actuarially determined contribution 
rate in accordance with the funding policy of the TCRS Board of Trustees and as required to be paid by state statute. 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability.   
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.25 percent) or 1 percentage point higher 
(8.25 percent) than the current rate: 

 
 

1% Decrease 
(6.25%)  

Current 
Discount Rate    

  (7.25%)  
1% Increase 

(8.25%) 

University’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability   $    474,450,297       $    230,290,800  $  25,010,873 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position    
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately issued TCRS 
financial report at www.treasury.state.tn.us/tcrs. 
  
Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2018, the university reported a payable of $ 4,580,957.91 for the outstanding amount of legally required 
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan 
 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description  
 
State e m p l o y e e s  and higher education employees with membership in the Tennessee Consolidated 
Retirement System (TCRS) before July 1, 2014, are provided with pensions through the Closed State and Higher 
Education Employee Pension Plan, an agent plan within the Public Employee Retirement Plan administered by 
the TCRS. TCRS is a multiple-employer pension plan. The Closed State and Higher Education Pension Plan 
was closed effective June 30, 2014, and covers employees hired before July 1, 2014. Employees hired after June 
30, 2014, are provided with pensions through a legally separate plan referred to as the State and Higher 
Education Employee Retirement Plan, an agent plan within the Public Employee Retirement Plan administered 
by the TCRS. The TCRS was created by state statute under Title 8, Chapters 34-37, Tennessee Code Annotated.  
 
Benefits Provided  
 
Title 8, Chapters 34-37, Tennessee Code Annotated, establishes the benefit terms and can be amended only by 
the Tennessee General Assembly. Members of the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan are 
eligible to retire at age 65 with 5 years of service credit or pursuant to the rule of 90 in which the member’s age 
and service credit total 90. Members are entitled to receive unreduced service retirement benefits, which are 
determined by a formula multiplying the member’s highest five consecutive years’ average compensation by 1 
percent multiplied by the member’s years of service credit. A reduced early retirement is available at age 60 
with 5 years of service credit or pursuant to the rule of 80 in which a member’s age and service credit total 
80. Service-related disability benefits are provided regardless of length of service. Five years of service is 
required for non-service-related disability eligibility. The service-related and non-service-related disability benefits 
are determined in the same manner as a service retirement benefit but are reduced 10 percent and include projected 
service credits. A variety of death benefits are available under various eligibility criteria. 
 
Member and beneficiary annuitants are entitled to automatic cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) after 
retirement. A COLA is granted each July for annuitants retired prior to July 2 of the previous year. The COLA is 
based on the change in the consumer price index (CPI) during the prior calendar year, capped at 3 percent, and 
applied to the current benefit. No COLA is granted if the change in the CPI is less than 0.5%. A 1% COLA is 
granted if the CPI change is between 0.5% and 1%. A member who leaves employment may withdraw their 
employee contributions, plus any accumulated interest.  
 
Contributions 
  
Contributions for state and higher education employees are established in the statutes governing the TCRS 
and may only be changed by the Tennessee General Assembly. University employees contribute 5% of their 
salary to the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan. The higher education institutions make 
employer contributions at the rate set by the Board of Trustees as determined by an actuarial valuation. Per the 
statutory provisions governing the TCRS, the employer contribution rate cannot be less than 4% in aggregate for all 
employee groups, except in years when the maximum funded level, approved by the TCRS Board of Trustees, is 
reached. By law, employer contributions for the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan are 
required to be paid. Employer contributions by the university for the year ended June 30, 2018, to the State 
and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan were $ 3,336,552 which is 3.72 percent of covered payroll.  
The employer rate, when combined with member contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by members during the year and the cost of administration, as well as an amortized portion of any unfunded liability. 
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Pension Assets, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
 
Pension Asset 
 
At June 30, 2018, the university reported an asset of $2,315,823 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The university’s proportion of 
the net pension asset was based on a projection of the university’s contributions during the year ended June 30, 
2017, to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating state and higher education agencies. At 
the June 30, 2017, measurement date, the university’s proportion was 11.166788 percent. At the June 30, 2016, 
measurement date, the university’s proportion was 11.908035 percent. 
 
Pension Expense 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the university recognized a pension expense of $946,176. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the university reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources:  

  
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 

      Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

     
Differences between expected and actual experience  $              87,268  $           86,654 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments  - 

 

119,567 
Changes in assumptions  164,609  - 
Changes in proportion of Net Pension Asset  60,805                2,633 
The university’s contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date of June 30, 2017             3,336,552  
 
 - 

     Total  $         3,649,234  $            208,854  
 
Deferred outflows of resources, resulting from the university’s employer contributions of $3,336,552 
subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a decrease in net pension liability in the year 
ending June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30: 
 

    

 
2019 $ 197 
2020 197 
2021 (4,306) 
2022 (28,354) 
2023 21,825 
Thereafter 114,269 

 

In the table above, positive amounts will increase pension expense, while negative amounts will decrease 
pension expense. 
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Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension asset as of the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation 2.5 percent 
Salary increases Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.46 percent based on age, including 

inflation, averaging 4 percent 
Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation 
Cost-of-living adjustment 2.25 percent 

 

Mortality rates were developed by the actuary using the results of the actuarial experience study performed for the 
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, and were adjusted for expected future improvements in life expectancy.  
Mortality assumptions utilize the RP-2014 industry standard base table adjusted for TCRS experience, with 
generational mortality improvement. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study performed for the period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016. The demographic 
assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future experience. 
 
Changes of Assumptions 
 
In 2017, the following assumptions were changed:  decreased the inflation rate from 3 percent to 2.5 percent; 
decreased the investment rate of return from 7.5 percent to 7.25 percent; decreased the cost-of-living adjustment from 
2.5 percent to 2.25 percent; and decreased salary growth graded ranges from an average of 4.25 percent to an average 
of 4 percent; and modified mortality assumptions to reflect current experience and anticipated mortality improvements. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of Trustees 
in conjunction with the June 30, 2016 actuarial experience study. This return was selected from a range of values 
developed using historical market returns and future capital market projections.  The future capital market 
projections were produced using a building-block method in which a best-estimate of expected real rates of return  
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) is developed for each major asset class. 
These best-estimates are combined to produce the future capital market projection by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.5 percent.  The 
best-estimates of geometric real rates of return and the TCRS investment policy target asset allocation for each 
major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 
     Asset Class Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return Target Allocation 
U.S. equity 5.69% 31% 
Developed market international equity 5.29% 14% 
Emerging market international equity 6.36%   4% 
Private equity and strategic lending 5.79% 20% 
U.S. fixed income 2.01% 20% 
Real estate 4.32% 10% 
Short-term securities 0.00%   1% 
  100% 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees as 7.25 percent based on a comparison of historical market returns and future capital market projections. 
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Discount Rate 
 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current rate 
and that contributions from all state and higher education agencies will be made at the actuarially determined 
contribution rate in accordance with the funding policy of the TCRS Board of Trustees and as required to be 
paid by state statute. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate 
 

The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the university’s proportionate share of the net pension asset would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.25 percent) or 1 percentage point higher 
(8.25 percent) than the current rate: 
 

 
 

1% Decrease 
(6.25%)  

Current Discount 
Rate                  

(7.25%)  
1% Increase 

(8.25%) 

University’s proportionate share of the 
net pension asset  $ (289,624)  $ (2,315,823)  $ (3,827,068) 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately issued TCRS 
financial report at www.treasury.state.tn.us/tcrs. 
 
Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2018, the university reported a payable of $527,688 for the outstanding amount of legally required 
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
Total Defined Benefit Pension Expense  
 
The total pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, for all state government defined benefit pension plans 
was $49,097,508. 
 
2.  Federal Retirement Program 
 
Plan Description 
 
The University of Tennessee contributes to the Federal Retirement Program, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Civil Service Retirement System (CSRS) for participants employed 
prior to January 1, 1987, and the Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS) for participants employed after 
December 31, 1986.  U.S. Office of Personnel Management manages both systems. All regular full-time employees 
of the University of Tennessee Agricultural Extension Service who hold federal appointments for 51% or more of 
their time are required to participate in either one of the two Federal Retirement Programs. For both systems, benefit 
provisions are established in federal statutes.  Federal statutes are amended by the U.S. Congress. There were 146 
employees in Federal Retirement Programs in 2018, 24 in CSRS and 122 in FERS. Both systems provide retirement, 
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death, and disability benefits, as well as annual cost-of-living adjustments, to plan members and their beneficiaries.  
Benefits are based on high 3-year average salary and years of service. CSRS employees can retire with 5 years of 
service at age 62, at age 60 with 20 years of service, or at 55 with 30 years of service. FERS employees can retire 
with 10 years of service at a minimum retirement age from 55-57 depending on year of birth. For both plans, former 
employees who leave the job before becoming eligible for retirement can either ask that their retirement 
contributions be returned or wait until age requirements are met to receive monthly benefits, provided years of 
service requirements have been met. Benefit estimates are available at:  https://www.opm.gov/retirement-
services/fers-information/computation/. 
 
CSRS and FERS issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  These reports may be obtained by writing to the Office of Personnel Management, 
Retirement Information Office, P.O. Box 45, Boyers, PA 16017-0045, or by calling (202) 606-0500. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Participating employees, with some exceptions, are required by federal statute to contribute 7.0% of covered salaries 
to the CSRS plan. The university is currently required to contribute 7.0%. Contributions to CSRS for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, were $252,718.62 which consisted of $129,340.53 from the university and $123,378.09 from the 
employees. At June 30, 2018, the university reported a payable of $9,836.18 for the outstanding amount of legally 
required contributions to the CSRS pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
Federal statute requires employees participating in FERS to contribute 0.8% of their salaries to the Basic Benefit 
Plan.  The university is required to contribute 13.2%.  In addition, the university is required to contribute 1% of each 
participant’s salary to the Thrift Savings Plan plus up to an additional 4% depending upon employees’ contributions, 
which can range from 0 to 10% of their salaries.  Contributions to FERS for the year ended June 30, 2018, were 
$2,325,833.57, which consisted of $1,669,673.93 from the university and $656,159.64 from the employees. At June 
30, 2018, the university reported a payable of $100,331.20 for the outstanding amount of legally required 
contributions to the FERS pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
B.  Defined Contribution Plans 

 
1.  Optional Retirement Plans (ORP) 
 
Plan Description 
 
The university contributes to the Optional Retirement Plan (ORP).  The ORP, administered by the Tennessee 
Treasury Department, is a defined contribution plan.  The ORP was established by state statute in Title 8, Chapter 
25, Part 2, Tennessee Code Annotated. This statute also sets out the plan provisions.  The plan provisions are 
amended by the Tennessee General Assembly.  The ORP was designed to provide benefits at retirement to faculty 
and staff who are exempt from the overtime provision of the Fair Labor Standards Act and who waive membership in 
the TCRS. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment 
earnings.  
 
Funding Policy 
 
For employees employed prior to July 1, 2014, plan members are noncontributory.  The university contributes an 
amount equal to 10% of the employee’s base salary up to the social security wage base and 11% above the social 
security wage base.  For employees hired after June 30, 2014, plan members will contribute 5% to the ORP, and the 
university will contribute 9% of the employee’s base salary.  Pension expense equaled the required contributions 
made to the ORP and was $48,363,388.68 for the year ended June 30, 2018, and $47,664,353.97 for the year ended 
June 30, 2017.  Contributions met the requirements for each year. 
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Members are immediately 100% vested in the employer contributions made pursuant to the ORP. The Treasury 
Department has selected three investment vendors who offer a variety of investment products in which members are 
responsible for selecting how the contributions are invested.  Each member makes the decision when to reallocate 
future contributions or when to transfer funds from one investment product to another.  Funds are held by the 
investment vendor in the name of the member, not in the name of the State of Tennessee.  The State of Tennessee has 
no discretion over these funds other than to make the initial contributions.  Accordingly, the State of Tennessee is not 
acting in a trustee capacity, nor does it have a fiduciary responsibility for the funds held by the investment vendors. 
 
2.  Joint Contributory Retirement System Plan A (JCRS-A) 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Joint Contributory Retirement System Plan A (JCRS-A) is a defined contribution plan with minimum benefits 
and is administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System and TIAA-CREF. Employees who were 
enrolled in the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association-College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF) before 
July 1977 are members of JCRS-A.  Enrollment in this plan for new employees has been closed since July 1977.  
 
Although JCRS-A members participate in the optional retirement plans described above, they may also, under certain 
circumstances, receive a supplementary benefit from the State of Tennessee.  Plan provisions are established by Title 
8, Chapter 35, Part 4, Tennessee Code Annotated.  State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly.  
 
Funding Policy 
 

Plan members are noncontributory.  The university’s contributions for JCRS-A members were calculated using the 
base salary amounts of $6,249,578.35 for fiscal year 2018, and $7,642,103.59 for fiscal year 2017. Contribution 
requirements are established and amended by state statute.  The contributions are included in the ORP amounts.  
University contributions to fund the state supplemental benefit totaled $1,176,555.81 in fiscal year 2018, and 
$1,147,847.02 in fiscal year 2017.  Contributions met the requirements for each year. 
 
3.  Deferred Compensation Plans 
 

Employees are offered three deferred compensation plans.  The university, through the State of Tennessee, provides 
two plans, one established pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code (IRC), Section 457, and the other pursuant to IRC, 
Section 401(k).  The third plan is administered by the university and was established in accordance with IRC, 
Section 403(b).  The plans are outsourced to third party vendors, and the administrative costs assessed by the 
vendors of these plans are the responsibility of plan participants. Section 401(k), Section 403(b), and Section 457 
plan assets remain the property of the contributing employees; therefore, they are not presented in the accompanying 
financial statements. Sections 401(k), 403(b), and 457 establish participation, contribution, and withdrawal 
provisions for the plans.  Participation in the 403(b) and the 457 plans is voluntary for employees. The university 
provides up to a $50 monthly employer match for employees who participate in the state’s 401(k) plan.  Employees 
hired before July 1, 2014, voluntarily participate in the state’s 401(k) plan.  Pursuant to Chapter 259 of the Public 
Acts of 2013, employees hired after June 30, 2014, are automatically enrolled in the state’s 401(k) plan if they elect 
to be in the TCRS pension plan and contribute 2% of their salary, with the employer contributing an additional non-
matching 5%.  Employees may opt out of the 2% auto enrollment.  Such contribution rates may only be amended by 
the Tennessee General Assembly.  There are certain automatic cost controls and unfunded liability controls in the 
defined benefit plan where the employees participate that may impact the non-matching 5% employer contribution to 
the 401(k) plan.  

Employees are immediately vested in both the employee and employer contributions in all plans. The IRC 
establishes maximum limits that an employee can contribute to these plans. The employee may increase, decrease, or 
stop contributions at any time for all three plans.   

During the year ended June 30, 2018, contributions totaling $26,127,996.62 were made by employees participating 
in the 401(k) plan, and the university recognized pension expense of $10,550,333.36 for employer contributions.  
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During the year ended June 30, 2017, contributions totaling $24,293,328.80 were made by employees participating 
in the 401(k) plan, and the university recognized pension expense of $9,029,995.93 for employer contributions.  
 

Note 12: Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

Closed State Employee Group OPEB Plan 

General information about the OPEB plan 

Plan Description 
 
Employees of the university, who were hired prior to July 1, 2015, and choose coverage, are provided with pre-65 
retiree health insurance benefits through the closed State Employee Group OPEB Plan (EGOP) administered by the 
Tennessee Department of Finance and Administration. This plan is considered to be a single-employer defined 
benefit plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). This plan is closed to the 
employees of all participating employers that were hired on or after July 1, 2015. The employers participating in this 
plan includes the State of Tennessee (primary government), the Tennessee Student Assistance Corporation, the 
Tennessee Housing Development Agency, the University of Tennessee and the institutions that make up the State 
University and Community College System. 
 
Benefits Provided  
 
The EGOP is offered to provide health insurance coverage to eligible retired and disabled participants and is the only 
postemployment benefit provided to eligible pre-65 participants. Benefits are established and amended by an 
insurance committee created by Title 8, Chapter 27, Section 201, Tennessee Code Annotated.  All retirees and 
disabled employees of the primary government and certain component units, who are eligible and choose coverage, 
and who have not yet reached the age of 65 are enrolled in this plan. All members have the option of choosing 
between the partnership promise, no partnership promise, standard preferred provider organization (PPO) plan or the 
wellness health savings consumer-driven health plan (CDHP) for healthcare benefits.  Retired plan members receive 
the same plan benefits as active employees, at a blended premium rate that considers the cost of active employees.  
This creates an implicit subsidy for the retirees. The retirees’ cost is then directly subsidized, by the employers, 
based on years of service. Therefore, retirees with 30 years of service are subsidized 80%; 20 but less than 30 years, 
70%; and less than 20 years, 60%.  No subsidy is provided to retirees in the health savings CDHP plan.  This plan is 
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and there are no assets accumulating in a trust that meets the criteria of paragraph 4 
of GASB Statement No. 75. 
 
Annually, an insurance committee, created in accordance with Title 8, Chapter 27, Section 201, Tennessee Code 
Annotated, establishes the required payments to the plan by member employers and employees. Active members of 
the Employee Group Insurance Plan and pre-age 65 retired members of the EGOP pay the same rate. Claims 
liabilities of the plans are periodically computed using actuarial and statistical techniques to establish premium rates.  
 
 
Total OPEB Liability 
 

Proportionate Share  
 
The university’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability related to the EGOP was $213.77 million. 
At the June 30, 2017, measurement date, the university’s proportion of the collective total OPEB liability was 
15.922879%, representing the first-time presentation of the proportion.  The university’s proportion of the collective 
total OPEB liability was based on a projection of the long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to 
the projected share of contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The collective total OPEB 
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liability was determined by an actuarial valuation with a valuation date of June 30, 2017, and a measurement date of 
June 30, 2017. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions  
 
The collective total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

Inflation   2.25% 
   
Salary increases 

 
Graded salary ranges from 3.44% to 8.72%  based on 
age, including inflation, averaging 4% 

  
Healthcare cost trend rates 7.5% for 2018, decreasing annually to an ultimate rate 

of 3.83% for 2050 and later years. 

Retiree's share of benefit-related costs Members are required to make monthly contributions in 
order to maintain their coverage. For the purpose of this 
valuation, a weighted average has been used with 
weights derived from the current distribution of 
members among plans offered.    
    

 
Unless noted otherwise, the actuarial demographic assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuations were the same 
as those employed in the July 1, 2017, pension actuarial valuation of the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 
(TCRS). These assumptions were developed by TCRS based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016. The demographic assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect 
actual and expected future experience. Mortality tables are used to measure the probabilities of participants dying 
before and after retirement.  The mortality rates employed in this valuation are taken from the RP-2014 Healthy 
Participant Mortality Table for Annuitants for non-disabled post-retirement mortality, with mortality improvement 
projected to all future years using Scale MP-2016. Post-retirement tables are Blue Collar and adjusted with a 2% 
load for males and a -3% load for females. Mortality rates for impaired lives are the same as those used by TCRS 
and are taken from a gender-distinct table published in the IRS Ruling 96-7 for disabled lives with a 10% load. 
 

Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.56%.  This rate reflects the interest rate derived 
from yields on 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds, prevailing on the measurement date, with an 
average rating of AA/Aa as shown on the Fidelity 20-Year Municipal GO AA index.   
 
 
Changes in Assumptions 
 
The discount rate was changed from 2.92% as of the beginning of the measurement period to 3.56% as of June 30, 
2017.  This change in assumption decreased the total OPEB liability. 
 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Collective Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  
 
The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability of the EGOP, as 
well as what the proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
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discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.56%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.56%) than the current rate 
(expressed in thousands): 
 

   
1% Decrease 

(2.56%) 

     Current 
Discount Rate 
      (3.56%) 

1% Increase 
(4.56%) 

University’s proportionate share of the collective total 
OPEB liability $228,606 $213,771 $199,868 

 

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend 
rate  
 
The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability of the EGOP, as 
well as what the proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
healthcare cost trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5% decreasing to 2.83%) or 1 percentage point higher 
(8.5% decreasing to 4.83%) than the current rate (expressed in thousands): 
 
 

 

1% Decrease 
(6.5% 

decreasing to 
2.83%) 

Healthcare Cost Trend 
Rates 

(7.5% decreasing to 
3.83%) 

1% Increase 
(8.5% 

decreasing to 
4.83%) 

University’s proportionate share of the 
collective total OPEB liability $192,443 $213,771 $238,783 

 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

OPEB expense – For the year ended June 30, 2018, the university recognized OPEB expense of $16.38 million. 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources – For the year ended June 30, 2018, the university 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB paid by the EGOP from 
the following sources (expressed in thousands): 
 

      
Deferred Outflows 

of resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
resources 

   Changes in assumptions                            $        8,215  

   Payments subsequent to the measurement date      $        14,165    
 Total       $        14,165   $        8,215  

 
Deferred outflows of resources, resulting from the university’s employer payments of $14.16 million subsequent to 
the measurement date, will be recognized as a decrease in total OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2019.  
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows (expressed in thousands): 
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Year Ending June 30   
2019  $(1,174) 
2020  $(1,174) 
2021  $(1,174) 
2022  $(1,174) 
2023  $(1,174) 

Thereafter  $(2,345) 
 
 
In the table above, positive amounts will increase OPEB expense, while negative amounts will decrease OPEB 
expense. 
 
 
Closed Tennessee OPEB Plan 
 
General Information about the OPEB plan 
 
Plan Description  
 
Employees of the university who were hired prior to July 1, 2015, and choose coverage, are provided with post-65 
retiree health insurance benefits through the closed Tennessee OPEB Plan (TNP) administered by the Tennessee 
Department of Finance and Administration. This plan is considered to be a multiple-employer defined benefit plan 
that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). However, for accounting purposes, this 
plan will be treated as a single-employer plan.  This plan is closed to the employees of all participating employers 
that were hired on or after July 1, 2015. The State of Tennessee (primary government), as well as the Tennessee 
Student Assistance Corporation, the Tennessee Housing Development Agency, the University of Tennessee, and the 
other institutions that make up the State University and Community College System also participate in this plan.  
This plan also serves eligible post-65 retirees of employers who participate in the state-administered Teacher Group 
Insurance and Local Government Insurance Plans.  
 
Benefits Provided 
 
The TNP is offered to help fill most of the coverage gaps created by Medicare and is the only postemployment 
benefit provided to eligible post-65 retired and disabled employees of participating employers. This plan does not 
include pharmacy.  In accordance with Title 8, Chapter 27, Section 209, Tennessee Code Annotated, benefits are 
established and amended by cooperation of insurance committees created by Sections 8-27-201, 301, and 701 
Tennessee Code Annotated.  Retirees and disabled employees of the state, component units, local education 
agencies, and certain local governments who have reached the age of 65, are Medicare-eligible, and also receive a 
benefit from the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System may participate in this plan. All plan members receive 
the same plan benefits at the same premium rates.  Many retirees receive direct subsidies toward their premium cost; 
however, participating employers determine their own policy in this regard. The primary government contributes to 
the premiums of component unit retirees based on years of service. Therefore, retirees with 30 years of service 
receive $50 per month; 20 but less than 30 years, $37.50; and 15 but less than 20 years, $25. The university does not 
provide any subsidies for retirees in the TNP. The primary government paid $1.08 million for OPEB as the benefits 
came due during the reporting period. This plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and there are no assets 
accumulating in a trust that meets the criteria of paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 
 
In accordance with Title 8, Chapter 27, Part 209, Tennessee Code Annotated, the state insurance committees 
established by Sections 8-27-201, 301, and 701 Tennessee Code Annotated, determine the required payments to the 
plan by member employers and employees. Claims liabilities of the plan are periodically computed using actuarial 
and statistical techniques to establish premium rates.  Administrative costs are allocated to plan participants.    
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Total OPEB Liability and OPEB Expense 
 
Proportionate Share 
 
The primary government is entirely responsible for the TNP OPEB liability associated with the university’s 
employees.  The primary government’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability associated with the university 
was $31.3 million.  At the June 30, 2017, measurement date, the proportion of the collective total OPEB liability 
associated with the university was 17.67%, representing the first-time presentation of this proportion.  The 
proportion of the collective total OPEB liability associated with the university was based on a projection of the long-
term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected share of contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. The collective total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation with 
a valuation date of June 30, 2017, and a measurement date of June 30, 2017. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 
 

Inflation   2.25% 
   
Salary increases 

 
Graded salary ranges from 3.44% to 8.72% based on age, including 
inflation, averaging 4% 

  
Healthcare cost trend rates The premium subsidies provided to retirees in the Closed Tennessee 

OPEB Plan are assumed to remain unchanged for the entire projection; 
therefore, trend rates are not applicable. 

 
Unless noted otherwise, the actuarial demographic assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuations were the same 
as those employed in the July 1, 2017, pension actuarial valuation of the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 
(TCRS). These assumptions were developed by TCRS based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 
period July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016. The demographic assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect 
actual and expected future experience. Mortality tables are used to measure the probabilities of participants dying 
before and after retirement.  The mortality rates employed in this valuation are taken from the RP-2014 Healthy 
Participant Mortality Table for Annuitants for non-disabled post-retirement mortality, with mortality improvement 
projected to all future years using Scale MP-2016. Post-retirement tables are Blue Collar and adjusted with a 2% 
load for males and a -3% load for females. Mortality rates for impaired lives are the same as those used by TCRS 
and are taken from a gender-distinct table published in IRS Ruling 96-7 for disabled lives with a 10% load. 
 
Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.56%.  This rate reflects the interest rate derived 
from yields on 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds, prevailing on the measurement date, with an 
average rating of AA/Aa as shown on the Fidelity 20-Year Municipal GO AA index.  
 
Changes in Assumptions 
 
The discount rate was changed from 2.92% as of the beginning of the measurement period to 3.56% as of June 30, 
2017.   This change in assumption decreased the total OPEB liability. 
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Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 
 
The following presents the primary government’s proportionate share of the university’s related collective total 
OPEB liability, as well as what the proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.56%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.56%) than 
the current rate (expressed in thousands).  The university does not report a proportionate share of the OPEB liability 
for employees in the TNP. 
 

1% Decrease 
(2.56%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(3.56%) 
1% Increase 

(4.56%) 
 
Primary government’s proportionate share  
of the collective total OPEB liability   $ 35,456      $  31,316              $  27,798  
       
 
OPEB expense - For the year ended June 30, 2018, the primary government recognized OPEB expense of $1.34 
million for employees of the university participating in the TNP. 
 
Total OPEB Expense 

The total OPEB expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, was $17.72 million, which consisted of OPEB expense of 
$16.38 million for the EGOP and $1.34 million paid by the primary government for the TNP. 
 
Note 13:  Chairs of Excellence 
 
Since fiscal year 1985, the Tennessee General Assembly has appropriated $22 million to a Chairs of Excellence 
Endowment for the University of Tennessee. The appropriations provided that the Chairs of Excellence Endowment be 
established as an irrevocable trust with the State Treasurer and required the university to match the appropriation on a 
dollar-for-dollar basis. The university has fully matched 50 chairs as of June 30, 2018. The financial statements of the 
university include as expenses the amounts expended in the current year to match the state appropriations. The 
university's statement of net position does not include the amounts held in trust by the State Treasurer. At June 30, 2018, 
the amounts held in trust totaled $160,711,748.62 at fair value. 
 
Note 14:  Joint Ventures 
 
UT-Battelle 
 
The university is a participant in a joint venture with Battelle Memorial Institute for the sole purpose of management 
and operation of the Oak Ridge National Laboratory (ORNL) for the U. S. Department of Energy.  Each entity has a 
50% interest in the venture, each having provided an initial investment of $125,000.00.  The university’s equity 
interest was $4,280,873 at June 30, 2018.  The university and Battelle each receive a 50% distribution of the ORNL 
management fee after shared expenses are deducted. The fee distribution to the university for the year ended 
September 30, 2017, was $4,031,217.76.   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the university had expenses of $26,961,127.14 under contracts with UT-
Battelle.    Amounts receivable from UT-Battelle under these contracts totaled $3,717,461.40 at June 30, 2018. To 
review the audit report of UT-Battelle, please contact the Controller’s Office, The University of Tennessee, 201 Andy 
Holt Tower, Knoxville, Tennessee 37996-0100. 
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UT Le Bonheur Pediatric Specialists 
 
The university is a participant in a joint venture with Methodist Healthcare – Memphis Hospitals, Le Bonheur 
Children’s Hospital, for the sole purpose of governance, management, and support of the UT Le Bonheur Pediatric 
Specialists, Inc. (ULPS), a nonprofit faculty group practice comprised of pediatric physicians holding hospital 
privileges at Le Bonheur who are employed as UT Health Science Center faculty members.  The practice group was 
incorporated on September 9, 2010, and began operations in January 2011. 
 
Both the university and Methodist Healthcare provided an advance to the joint venture in the 2011 fiscal year so that 
the faculty practice group could begin its operations.  In addition, the university and Methodist Healthcare have 
agreed to guarantee the losses of ULPS equally and provide cash on a monthly basis to meet the operating needs of 
ULPS.  During the 2018 fiscal year, the university remitted another $16,041,596.00 for these purposes. 
 
To review the audit report of UT Le Bonheur Pediatric Specialists, Inc., please contact the Controller’s Office, The 
University of Tennessee, 201 Andy Holt Tower, Knoxville, Tennessee 37996-0100. 
 
 
Note 15:  Insurance-Related Activities 
 
It is the policy of the state not to purchase commercial insurance for the risks associated with casualty losses for general 
liability, automobile liability, professional medical malpractice liability, and workers’ compensation.  By statute, the 
maximum liability for general liability, automobile liability, and professional medical malpractice liability is $300,000 
per person and $1,000,000 per occurrence.  The state’s management believes it is more economical to manage these 
risks internally and set aside assets for claim settlement in its internal service fund, the Risk Management Fund (RMF).  
The state purchases commercial insurance for real property, crime and fidelity coverage on the state’s officials and 
employees, and cyber liability coverage.  For property coverage, the deductible for an individual state agency is the first 
$25,000 of losses.  The RMF is responsible for property losses for the annual aggregate deductible of $7.5 million for 
perils other than earthquake and flood.  Purchased insurance coverage is responsible for losses exceeding the $7.5 
million annual aggregate deductible.  For earthquake and flood, there is a deductible of $10 million per occurrence.  The 
maximum insurance coverage is $750 million per year for perils other than earthquake and flood.  The maximum flood 
insurance coverage is $50 million per occurrence, except there is only $25 million of coverage in flood zones A and V.  
The maximum earthquake insurance coverage is $50 million per occurrence.  The amounts of settlements have not 
exceeded insurance coverage for each of the three past fiscal years  
 
The university participates in the RMF.  The fund allocates the cost of providing claims servicing and claims payment by 
charging a premium to the university based on a percentage of the university’s expected loss costs, which include both 
experience and exposures.  This charge considers recent trends in actual claims experience of the state as a whole.  
Information regarding the determination of the claims liabilities and the changes in the balances of the claims liabilities 
for the year ended June 30, 2018, is presented in the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The 
CAFR is available on the state’s website at www.tn.gov/finance/fa/fa-accounting-financial/fa-accfin-cafr.html.  At 
June 30, 2018, the RMF held $189 million in cash designated for payment of claims.  
 
At June 30, 2018, the scheduled coverage for the university was $6,859,580,488 for buildings and $1,313,778,662 for 
contents.  
 
The university also carries commercial insurance policies for losses related to catastrophic auto, cyber, crime, aviation, 
and fine arts.   
 
The state has also set aside assets in the Employee Group Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, to provide a 
program of health insurance coverage for the employees of the state, with the risk retained by the state.  The 
university participates in the Employee Group Insurance Fund.  The fund allocates the cost of providing claims 
servicing and claims payment by charging a premium to the university based on estimates of the ultimate cost of 
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claims, including the cost of claims that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but 
not reported.  Employees and providers have 13 months to file medical claims.  
 
 
Note 16:  Commitments and Contingencies 
 
A.  Construction Commitment 
  
 The university has contractual obligations for the construction of new buildings and additions to and renovations of 

existing buildings. The outstanding commitments under such contracts at June 30, 2018, were $103,244,665.34, of 
which $30,929,063.91 of these costs will be funded with future state capital outlay appropriations. 

 
B.  Sick Leave 
 
 The university records the cost of sick leave when paid.  The dollar amount of unused sick leave was 

$352,658,672.85 at June 30, 2018. 
 
C.  Grants and Contracts 
 

The university receives grants and contracts from various federal and state agencies to fund research and other 
activities.  The costs, both direct and indirect, charged to these grants and contracts are subject to audit and 
disallowance by the granting agency. The university administration believes that any disallowance or adjustments 
would not have a material effect on the university's financial position. 

 
D.  Nonvested Equipment 
 
 Equipment in the possession of the university valued at $3,632,044.88 as of June 30, 2018, is not reflected in the 

financial statements.  This equipment was purchased with restricted grant and contract funds and other funds, and 
title has not yet transferred to the university. 

 
E.  Litigation 
  

The university is involved in several existing lawsuits and the possibility exists of additional litigation.  It is not 
possible to estimate the extent of any losses resulting from these lawsuits 
 

F.  Mold Remediation 
 

After fiscal year end, mold was discovered in several university dormitories on the Knoxville campus.  The 
amount of associated liabilities is believed to be between $6 and $9 million. 

 
 
Note 17: Lease and Transfer of UT Memorial Research Center and Hospital 
 
On July 29, 1999, the university transferred ownership and control of its hospital located in Knoxville to University 
Health Systems, Inc., (UHS), an independent, private, not-for-profit organization operating under its own Internal 
Revenue Code, Section 501(c)(3) designation. The lease and transfer of the hospital from the university to UHS was 
accomplished through three main agreements: the Lease and Transfer Agreement, the Employee Services 
Agreement, and the Affiliation Agreement. Each of these agreements is summarized below. 
 
Lease and Transfer Agreement – pursuant to the enabling legislation, Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 49-9-112 
and Section 49-9-1301 et seq., UHS leased from the university the real property of the existing hospital and the 
Graduate School of Medicine. (See also Note 19.) The term of the lease is 50 years. The university also transferred 
to UHS all operating assets of the hospital. The consideration for the lease of the real property and transfer of the 
operating assets was payment by UHS of a) a sum sufficient to economically defease all of the debt issued by the 
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Tennessee State School Bond Authority in the amount of $149,080,353.69, b) $25,000,000.00 paid to the university 
at closing, and c) a variable lease obligation of $50,000,000.00 to be paid to the university over twenty years. UHS 
assumed all prior hospital liabilities, known or unknown. In 2019, the university and UHS have agreed to negotiate 
an annual lease payment for the remaining 30 years of the lease. 
 
Employee Services Agreement – UHS has leased from the university all hospital employees as of the date of closing. 
UHS has paid to the university the amounts incurred by the university to pay the direct expenses relating to the 
hospital employees, including wages, salaries, and fringe benefits. These payroll expenses on behalf of UHS, totaling 
$41,171,696.05 in 2018, are reported as operating expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position.  An equal amount of operating revenue is reported in the nongovernmental grants and contracts 
category. The term of the Employee Services Agreement is 50 years. All persons who began service at the hospital 
after the date the Employee Service Agreement was signed are employees of UHS and not university employees. 
 
Affiliation Agreement – the university and UHS agreed that UHS will continue to support the Graduate School of 
Medicine by providing appropriate facilities and resources of the hospital to the faculty and students at the Graduate 
School of Medicine.  UHS agreed to pay the university $1,500,000 at closing for the benefit of the Graduate School 
of Medicine. In addition, UHS must pay monthly to the university, for the benefit of the Graduate School of 
Medicine, the government funding, direct and indirect medical education funds, TennCare medical education funds, 
and other medical education funds received by UHS for the benefit of the Graduate School of Medicine. The amount 
payable by UHS shall be reduced by a) the fair market rental value of the space provided to the Graduate School of 
Medicine; b) the fair market value of the information system, telecommunication, network infrastructure, and human 
resource services provided by UHS to the Graduate School of Medicine; and c) retroactive adjustments made by 
payers to the graduate medical education payments. 
 
 
Note 18:  Transfer  of  Development  Operations to the  University of  Tennessee Foundation 
 
On July 1, 2011, the university transferred its Development and Alumni Affairs operations to the University of 
Tennessee Foundation, Inc., a not-for-profit component unit created to support the University of Tennessee. The 
foundation supports the university’s educational, research, and public activities by securing and administering private 
funds to support programs beyond the scope of the university’s general budget. (See also Note 24.) Pursuant to the 
University of Tennessee Board of Trustees’ approval and the enabling legislation, Tennessee Code Annotated, 
Section 49-9-113, the university and the foundation signed an Affiliation and Services Agreement and an Employee 
Services Agreement to effect the transfer.   
 
Affiliation and Services Agreements – the university and the foundation agreed that all gifts, unless directed 
otherwise by the donor or given in support of the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga, be deposited into the 
foundation bank account and that the university pay the foundation direct support and a 100 basis point endowment 
assessment fee as compensation for performing the fundraising function. The direct support amount is to be reviewed 
annually, and the foundation President and Chief Executive Officer, who is also the university’s Vice President for 
Development and Alumni Affairs, coordinates fundraising goals and objectives of the foundation with the university. 
For fiscal year 2018, the university provided the foundation direct support of $19,948,429.00 and endowment 
assessment fees of $7,693,332.00.  
 
A separate affiliation agreement provides that the University of Chattanooga Foundation receives all private gifts in 
support of the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga unless otherwise directed by the donor.  
 
Employee Services Agreement – the foundation has paid to the university the amounts incurred by the university to 
pay the direct expenses relating to the Development and Alumni Affairs employees, including wages, salaries, and 
fringe benefits. These payroll expenses on behalf of the foundation, totaling $21,709,757.79 in fiscal year 2018, are 
reported as operating expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  An equal amount 
of operating revenue is reported in the nongovernmental grants and contracts category. 
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Note 19: Capital Leases of Real Property 

Capital Lease of Real Property to University Health Systems, Inc. 

The university has leased the real property of the UT Memorial Research Center and Hospital to UHS for a term of 
50 years. This lease is pursuant to the Lease and Transfer Agreement described in Note 17.  This lease is classified 
as a direct financing lease.  The guaranteed lease payment of $50 million will be paid by UHS in annual payments 
through 2020.  The amount of the annual payments will equal the lesser of 1) 20% of the hospital’s net operating 
profit for the applicable calendar year; or 2) $3 million or the greater amount resulting from the application of an 
index, as specified in the agreement.  The payment of $50 million is guaranteed by March 15, 2021.  In 2019, the 
university and UHS have agreed to negotiate an annual lease payment for the remaining 30 years of the lease. There 
was no annual lease payment made to the university during the year ended June 30, 2018. 

The university recorded a lease payment receivable in the amount of $36,650,624.97 at June 30, 2018, which 
represents the net present value of the guaranteed $50 million discounted at 5.75%.  The minimum lease payments to 
be received amount has been adjusted upward to reflect a contractually required adjustment to the final required 
lease payment.  

 June 30, 2018 

Total minimum lease payments to be received         $ 40,772,932.87  
Less:  unearned income   (4,122,307.90)  
Net investment in direct financing lease       $ 36,650,624.97 

Capital Lease of Real Property to Memphis Mental Health Institute 

On November 5, 2005, the university entered into a facility lease agreement with the Tennessee Department of 
Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services (TDMHSAS) to provide a new building to house the Memphis Mental 
Health Institute.  The building is a joint project of the university, Methodist Healthcare, Shelby County Health Care 
Authority (The MED), the State of Tennessee, and Shelby County. This lease is classified as a direct financing lease. 
The guaranteed lease payments will be paid by TDMHSAS in semiannual payments through 2027.   

The amount of the semiannual payments will equal the amount to retire the debt from the construction project and 
any other project costs incurred by the university in excess of the funds contributed by Methodist Healthcare and the 
MED.  During the term of the lease, TDMHSAS will be responsible for all operational and maintenance costs 
associated with the facility.  

The university recorded a lease payment receivable in the amount of $9,266,305.13 at June 30, 2018: 

Total minimum lease payments to be received     $ 11,287,529.56   
 Less:  unearned income      (2,021,224.43) 
Net investment in direct financing lease      $   9,266,305.13 
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Year Ended 
June 30 

Minimum Lease Payments to 
be received Interest Principal 

2019 $  1,365,645.82 $   414,787.83 $     950,857.99  
2020  1,367,560.68     372,224.55   995,336.13 
2021     1,369,559.64   327,670.29  1,041,889.35 
2022     1,371,646.46    281,032.18  1,090,614.28 
2023     1,373,827.24    232,212.99   1,141,614.25 
2024-2027     4,439,289.72     393,296.59  4,045,993.13 

$11,287,529.56 $2,021,224.43 $  9,266,305.13 
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Note 21:  On-Behalf Payments 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the State of Tennessee made payments of $ 1,077,650.11 on behalf of the 
university for retirees participating in the Closed Tennessee OPEB Plan. The Closed Tennessee OPEB Plan is a 
postemployment benefit healthcare plan and is discussed further in Note 12.   

Note 22:  Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle 

During fiscal year 2018, the university implemented GASB Statement 81, Irrevocable Split Interest Agreements.  This 
statement established standards for the measurement and recognition of assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources related to irrevocable split interest agreements.  The implementation of GASB Statement 81 resulted in a 
cumulative adjustment to beginning net position of $25,730,724.40.   

During fiscal year 2018, the university implemented GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions.  This statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, 
and display of the total OPEB liability and related expenses, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, note disclosures, and 
required supplementary information.  The implementation of GASB Statement 75 resulted in a cumulative adjustment 
to beginning net position of $95,219,465.74.   

Note 23:  Component Unit – University of Chattanooga Foundation 

The University of Chattanooga Foundation, Inc., is a private nonprofit organization that reports under Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation 
features are different from revenue recognition criteria and presentation features as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial statements of this foundation have been reformatted into a 
GASB format and are reported in a separate column to the right of the university’s statements.  

The University of Chattanooga Foundation, Inc., is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization supporting the 
University of Tennessee at Chattanooga. The foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to supplement 
the resources that are available to the university in support of the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga. The 49-
member board of trustees of the foundation is self-perpetuating and consists of friends of the University of 
Tennessee at Chattanooga.  Although the university does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the 
foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon that the foundation holds and invests are restricted to the 
activities of the university by the donors. Because these restricted resources held by the foundation can only be used 
by, or for the benefit of, the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga, the foundation is considered a component unit 
of the university and is discretely presented in the university’s financial statements. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the foundation expended $4,451,272.00 to or on behalf of the university for 
both restricted and unrestricted purposes. Complete financial statements for the foundation can be obtained from the 
University of Chattanooga Foundation, Development Office, Department 6806, 615 McCallie Avenue, 
Chattanooga, TN 37403-2598. 

Organization and Nature of Activities 

The foundation is a tax-exempt organization under the provisions of Section 509(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue 
Code, dedicated to supporting excellence in higher education through special projects for the University of 
Tennessee at Chattanooga.  Proposals for special projects are submitted by the chancellor of the university and 
approved by the foundation’s board of trustees and the University of Tennessee board of trustees. 
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Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements of the foundation include the accounts of the foundation and its subsidiaries, 
Campus Development Foundation, Inc. (CDFI) and CDFI Phase I, LLC (the LLC).  All material intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.   

CDFI was formed by the foundation to engage in charitable, scientific, and educational projects within the meaning 
of Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The projects include, but are not limited to, the acquisition of 
real property and the construction, management, and operation of dormitories for students of the university. The 
directors of CDFI are appointed by the executive committee of the foundation. 

CDFI is the sole member of its subsidiary, the LLC.  The LLC was formed to own and develop an elementary 
school in downtown Chattanooga and student housing at the university.  The student housing consists of 1,685 
bedrooms in 456 units and 666 parking spaces.   

Investments 

A summary of foundation investments at June 30, 2018, is as follows: 

Mutual funds   $ 54,548,737 
Limited partnerships  68,449,250 
 

   Total $122,997,987 

The foundation also has investments restricted by the terms of the revenue bonds described below, totaling 
$11,780,410. 

Property and Equipment 

A summary of foundation property and equipment at June 30, 2018, is as follows: 

Land $   8,241,032 
Buildings  76,213,552 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment  7,841,414 

 92,295,998 
   Accumulated depreciation   (47,679,594) 
   Total $ 44,616,404 

Revenue Bonds Payable 

During November 2015, the Health, Educational, and Housing Facility Board of the City of Chattanooga issued 
series 2015 tax-exempt revenue refunding bonds totaling $65,895,000.  The LLC is the borrower on the Series 2015 
bonds. The proceeds of the refunding bonds were primarily used to retire early the two series of tax-exempt revenue 
bonds issued in 2005. The two series of tax-exempt revenue bonds issued during May 2005 totaling $91,510,000 
were primarily used to retire early the three series of tax-exempt revenue bonds issued in 2000 and 2001.  The 2000 
and 2001 bonds were used to acquire land, fund construction of the student housing, and develop an elementary 
school near the student housing. 

Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2018, consist of the following: 

Series 2015 revenue refunding bonds, 
  interest rates fixed at 3.0% to 5.0% 
  payable semi-annually, annual redemption 
  payments due through October 1, 2035 $ 61,565,000 
  

Plus: unamortized premium    4,834,374 
Less:  unamortized bond issuance costs    (723,402) 

$ 65,675,972 
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Sinking fund requirements for scheduled redemptions of the revenue bonds for the next five years and thereafter are 
as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30, 2019     $  2,305,000 
June 30, 2020    2,370,000 
June 30, 2021    2,460,000 
June 30, 2022  2,580,000 
June 30, 2023  2,710,000 
Thereafter  49,140,000 
 

$  61,565,000 

Loan Payable 

In January 2018, the foundation entered into a $7,250,000 non-revolving line of credit with a bank.  The line of 
credit expired on June 1, 2018, and converted to a term loan at that time.  The loan bears interest at 3.61%, and is 
payable beginning on July 1, 2018, in monthly installments of $97,803.  All unpaid principal and interest is due at 
maturity of May 31, 2025.  The outstanding balance at June 30, 2018, was $7,250,000.  Principal payments for the 
next five years and thereafter are as follows: 

June 30, 2019 $     927,147 
June 30, 2020 961,176 
June 30, 2021 996,455 
June 30, 2022 1,117,444 
June 30, 2023 1,158,458 
Thereafter 2,089,320 

$ 7,250,000 

Fair Value Measurements 

The foundation reports under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, which defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value under accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States, and prescribes disclosures about fair value measurements.  

FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the 
assumptions (inputs) used to value the assets or liabilities. Level 1 provides the most reliable measure of fair 
value, whereas Level 3 generally requires significant management judgment. The three levels are defined as follows: 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the foundation has the 
ability to access.  

Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or 
can be corroborated by observable market data. 

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect management’s own assumptions about the assumptions that 
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

The table below presents the recorded amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 
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Balance as of 
June 30, 2018 

 

Quoted Prices  in 
Active Markets 

For Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Other 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3) 
Mutual funds:     
  International funds $     32,706,271      $     32,706,271  $                  - $                     -   
  Index funds 20,679,434 20,679,434                             -               -  
  Fixed income      151,884 151,884                             -       - 
  Short-term bond funds         1,011,148         1,011,148                     -                        - 
     Total mutual funds $     54,548,737 $     54,548,737 $                  - $                    - 
     U.S. Treasury money market fund        11,780,410        11,780,410                     -                      -  
Total assets at fair value        66,329,147        66,329,147                     -                      - 
Investments measured at net asset 
  value (1) (2)        68,449,250                        -                     - 

                       
                      - 

      Total assets $   134,778,397  $    66,329,147 $                  - $                    -  
Liabilities:     
  Deposits received for the benefit 

of others $       2,407,898 $       2,407,898 $                  - $                    - 
   Total liabilities $       2,407,898 $       2,407,898 $                  - $                    - 
      

(1) In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, the limited partnerships that were measured at net asset value per 
share (or its equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.  The fair value amount 
presented in this table is intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the line items 
presented in the statements of financial position. 
 

(2) Limited partnership investments have investment strategies which include investments in private debt 
financing, emerging and global equity markets, long and short positions primarily in residential and 
commercial mortgage backed securities, senior secured debt, public and private oil and gas companies, 
direct origination and secondary market first and second mortgage liens, commercial real estate, equity 
based partnerships, and transportation and infrastructure.  These investments also include certain 
restrictions on the foundation’s contributed capital.  These restrictions include lock ups and withdrawal 
restrictions.  Lock up restrictions range from 12-36 months.  Withdrawal restrictions range from no 
withdrawals being allowed until termination of partnership to monthly and quarterly withdrawals with 30-
90 days’ notice.  At June 30, 2018, the foundation had outstanding commitments of $15,856,212. 

 
 
Endowments 

 
The foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 300 individual funds established for a variety of purposes. 
Its endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the board of trustees to 
function as endowments.  As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP), net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the board of trustees to 
function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  
 
Interpretation of Relevant Law - The board of trustees of the foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift 
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a 
result of this interpretation, the foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of 
gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, 
and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor 
gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted 
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endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net 
assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a manner consistent with the 
standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the organization considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: 

 
(1) The duration and preservation of the fund. 

 

 (2) The purposes of the foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund.        

 (3) General economic conditions. 
 

 (4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation. 
 

 (5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments. 
 

(6) Other resources of the foundation. 
 

      (7) The investment policies of the foundation. 
 
Endowment net assets by type of fund consist of the following at June 30, 2018.  Due to GASB reformatting, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reported as expendable restricted net position, and permanently restricted net 
assets are reported as nonexpendable restricted net position on the statement of net position. 
 
  

Unrestricted 
 Temporarily 

Restricted 
 Permanently 

Restricted 
 

Total 

Donor-restricted funds 
 

    $        (21,059) 
 

$ 1,791,056 
 

$ 91,785,256 
 

$    93,555,253 
Board-designated funds      59,843,581                     -                      -        59,843,581 
  $   59,822,522  $ 1,791,056  $ 91,785,256   $  153,398,834 

 
Changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are as follows: 
 

 
 

 
Unrestricted 

 Temporarily 
Restricted 

 Permanently 
Restricted 

 
Total 

Endowment net assets, beginning      
   of year  

  
  $  58,068,566    $ 1,229,706    $ 64,010,300    $ 123,308,572 

Investment income           646,755          632,835                   -  1,279,590 
Net realized and unrealized gains       3,741,018               -        4,302,049       8,043,067 
Contributions               50,620               -         24,790,106      24,840,726 
Appropriations         (920,066)      (1,315,686)               -        (2,235,752) 
Transfers         (1,764,371)       1,244,201        (1,317,199)        (1,837,369) 
Endowment net assets,   end of year    $  59,822,522    $ 1,791,056    $ 91,785,256  $ 153,398,834 

 
 
At June 30, 2018, permanently restricted net assets consist of the portion of perpetual endowment funds that is 
required to be retained permanently either by explicit donor stipulation or by UPMIFA.  Temporarily restricted net 
assets consist of the portion of perpetual endowment funds subject to a time restriction under UPMIFA.  The 
temporarily restricted net assets also have purpose restrictions. 
 
Funds with Deficiencies - From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted 
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the foundation to retain as a fund of 
perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature that are reported in unrestricted net assets 
were $45,750 as of June 30, 2018. These deficiencies resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred 
shortly after the investment of new permanently restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain 
programs that was deemed prudent by the board of trustees. 
 
Return Objectives and Risk Parameters - The foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for 
endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment 
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while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. 
 
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the foundation must hold in perpetuity or for 
donor-specified periods as well as board-designated funds. Under this policy, as approved by the board of trustees, 
the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield 
results of the consumer price index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. The foundation expects its 
endowment funds, over time, to provide an average annual rate of return of approximately 6 percent above the rate 
of inflation.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. 

 
Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives - To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the foundation 
relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized 
and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that 
places a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk 
constraints. 
 
The foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year 4.5 percent of each endowment fund’s 
average balance for the last 12 quarters.  In establishing this policy, the foundation considered the long-term 
expected return on its endowment. Accordingly, over the long term, the foundation expects the current spending 
policy to allow its endowment to grow. This is consistent with the foundation’s objective to maintain the purchasing 
power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real growth 
through new gifts and investment return. 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
CDFI, the LLC, and the university have executed a management agreement which allows the university to assume 
management responsibilities related to the LLC’s student housing. The LLC paid management fees of $225,000 to 
the university during the LLC’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. As a matter of convenience, cash balances needed 
for student housing operations are held at the university, and operating expenses are paid from these funds.  At 
June 30, 2018, deposits held at the university on behalf of the LLC were $628,309. 
 
Contingencies  
 
From time to time the foundation’s subsidiaries may be involved in certain claims arising from normal business 
activities. Management believes that the financial position of CDFI will not be materially affected by the outcome 
of these proceedings. 
 
Note 24:  Component Unit – University of Tennessee Foundation 
 
The University of Tennessee Foundation, Inc., is a private nonprofit organization that reports under Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation 
features are different from revenue recognition criteria and presentation features as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial statements of this foundation have been reformatted into a 
GASB format and are reported in a separate column to the right of the university’s statements. 
 
The University of Tennessee Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization supporting the University of 
Tennessee.  The foundation acts as a fund-raising organization to supplement the resources that are available to the 
university in support of its programs.  The foundation has 22 active board members and four ex-officio members.  
The board of the foundation is self-perpetuating and consists of graduates and friends of the university. Although 
the university does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the foundation, the majority of resources, or 
income thereon that the foundation holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the university by the donors.  
Because these restricted resources held by the foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the university, 
the foundation is considered a component unit of the university and is discretely presented in the university’s 
financial statements.   
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the foundation expended $76,239,246.48 to or on behalf of the university for 
both restricted and unrestricted purposes. Complete financial statements for the foundation can be obtained from the 
University of  Tennessee  Foundation, 1525 University Avenue, Knoxville, TN 37921-4848.  
 
Organization and Nature of Activities 
 
The University of Tennessee Foundation, Inc., is a not-for-profit organization exempt from federal income tax 
under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The foundation was formed to support the University of 
Tennessee. The foundation was established to provide fund raising support for the university in carrying out its 
mission of teaching, research, and public service.  The foundation receives contributions from individuals, 
corporations, alumni, and other donors. The foundation also conducts the development and alumni affairs 
operations for the university. See also Note 18. 
 
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 
 
Pledges receivable (reported as accounts, notes, and grants receivable on the statement of net position) are 
summarized below net of the allowance for doubtful accounts: 
 

  Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently 
Restricted 

 
Current pledges  $   11,036,587.21 $      4,272,926.99      
Pledges due in one to five years  60,519,417.85 38,830,590.53 
Pledges due after five years       9,374,414.48      10,759,759.82 
  80,930,419.54 53,863,277.34 
Less discounts to net present value                 (5,532,432.96)     (4,447,494.00)   
 

Total pledges receivable, net  $  75,397,986.58  $  49,415,783.34 
    

 
The allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2018, was $894,109.92. 
 

 
 
NOTE RECEIVABLE 
 
The Note Receivable executed in February 2017, in order to provide seller financing to the buyer of a warehouse 
facility in Edgefield County, South Carolina, was paid in full on January 31, 2018. 
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INVESTMENTS AND ASSETS HELD BY THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE 
 
Investments held at June 30, 2018, were as follows: 
 

             Fair Value         Cost 
    

Endowment assets held by the University of Tennessee:    
Debt Securities $     12,107,934.96  $   14,009,688.25 

    Corporate Stock – Domestic 3,723,768.24  2,736,044.96 
    Corporate Stock – International 515,505.84  548,458.92 
    Pooled Investment Vehicles – Equity 68,590,601.19  66,184,424.56 

Alternative Investments:    
Pooled Investment Vehicles – Real Estate 12,263,841.70  10,526,397.75 
Private Capital Investments 60,839,182.44  66,304,104.82 

        Hedge funds    49,960,891.69      45,918,052.26 
        Total endowment assets held by University of Tennessee   208,001,726.06    206,227,171.52 
    

Endowment assets held by the foundation    
Cash              268,196.15              268,196.15 
Equities       1,844,401.43         1,627,082.98  

Total endowment assets held by the foundation       2,112,597.58         1,895,279.13 
Total endowment funds   210,114,323.64      208,122,450.65 

    

Other investments:    
Liquid investments held by the University    

Cash Management Pool 99,123,671.43  99,123,671.43 
Other liquid investments       4,000,000.00         4,000,000.00 
Total liquid investments held by the University   103,123,671.43     103,123,671.43 

Liquid investments at financial institution                     5.00                       5.00 
    
Gift annuity program:    

      Cash       11,684.85         11,684.85 
Equities      4,952,320.94       4,454,843.03 
Fixed Income       4,092,880.02        4,176,985.87 
Total gift annuity program       9,056,885.81        8,643,513.75 

     

Total investments $ 322,294,885.88  $ 319,889,640.83       
 
Also reported as investments on the statement of net position are other gift assets totaling $1,329,980.00. 
 
At June 30, 2018, the fair values of alternative investments are based on valuations for which a readily determinable 
fair value does not exist.  These investments are not listed on national exchanges or over-the-counter markets, and 
quoted market prices are not available.  The fair value of these investments is estimated based on a review of all 
available information provided by fund managers and general partners.  These estimates are evaluated on a regular 
basis and are susceptible to revisions as more information becomes available.   
 
Endowments 
 
The foundation’s endowment funds consist of investments held by the university, investments held by the 
foundation, permanently restricted unconditional promises to give, and other assets.  The majority of the 
foundation’s invested endowment funds are invested in the University of Tennessee Consolidated Investment Pool.  
These funds are invested according to the policies of the university.  A portion of the earnings from these funds are 
provided to the university to be used as stipulated in the endowment agreements. The cost and fair value for these 
endowments invested were $206,227,171.52 and $208,001,726.06, which resulted in a cumulative unrealized gain 
of $1,774,554.54. Three endowments are separately invested by the foundation.  The cost and fair value for these 
endowments was $1,895,279.13 and $2,112,597.58, which resulted in a cumulative unrealized gain of $217,318.45. 
All endowments at the foundation are donor restricted.  Endowment earnings transferred to the university were 
$7,900,111.13 for fiscal year 2018. 
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The foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring 
the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds 
absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result, the foundation classifies permanently restricted net 
assets as (1) the original value of gifts to the endowment, (2) the original value of subsequent gifts to the 
endowment, and (3) accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the gift instrument until the 
endowment is vested in the university’s Consolidated Investment Pool. Below is a schedule of endowments by fund 
type. Due to the GASB reformatting, temporarily restricted net assets are reported as expendable restricted net 
position, and permanently restricted net assets are reported as nonexpendable restricted net position on the statement 
of net position. 
 
   Temporarily  Permanently   
    Unrestricted  Restricted  Restricted  Total 
Beginning balance $                        -  $         873,075.37  $ 227,020,709.36   $ 227,893,784.73 
Contributions received           -       -      241,994.02     241,994.02 
Transfers to endowments -       -  30,054,966.36  30,054,966.36 
Investment earnings -   7,937,596.02  256,036.64         8,193,632.66 
Fair value adjustment -  1,223,687.25       (146.91)  1,223,540.34 
Disbursements                             -      (7,900,111.13)                              -        (7,900,111.13) 
Ending balance $                          -     $    2,134,247.51  $ 257,573,559.47     $ 259,707,806.98 
 
From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds may fall 
below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In 
accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. 
   
The foundation uses the university’s spending policy. Historically, the university has calculated its spending policy 
distributions by taking 4.5% of a three-year fair value average each December 31. In fiscal year 2016, the university 
began transitioning to a seven-year moving average, by adding one year’s value to the moving average calculation. This 
transition will be complete beginning with fiscal year 2019. 
 
The assets are to be managed in a manner that will meet the long-term investment objective, while at the same time 
attempting to limit the volatility in year-to-year spending. 
 
The university’s Investment Advisory Committee believes that investing in securities with higher return expectations 
outweighs their short-term volatility risk.  As a result, the majority of assets will be invested in equity or equity-like 
securities.  Fixed income securities and other low volatility strategies (e.g., absolute return hedge funds) will be used to 
lower the short-term volatility of the portfolio and to provide stability, especially during periods of negative equity 
markets.   Cash is not a strategic asset of the portfolio, but is a residual to the investment process and used to meet 
short-term liquidity needs.    
 
Disciplined management of the asset allocation is necessary and desirable. Diversification of investments among assets 
that are not similarly affected by economic, political, or social developments is highly desirable. The general policy 
shall be to diversify investments so as to provide a balance that will enhance total return, while avoiding undue risk 
concentrations in any single asset or investment category.    
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
The foundation reports under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, which defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value under accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States, and prescribes disclosures about fair value measurements.   
 

FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the 
assumptions (inputs) used to value the assets or liabilities. Level 1 provides the most reliable measure of fair 
value, whereas Level 3 generally requires significant management judgment. The three levels are defined as follows: 
 

9 

230
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Treasurer's Financial Report, FY 2017-18
 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE  
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 
 
 

 
 
 

60  

Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the foundation has the 
ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or 
can be corroborated by observable market data. 
 
Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs that reflect management’s own assumptions about the assumptions that 
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.  

 
The table below presents the recorded amount of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:   

 
Investments: Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
        

University $ 72,997,874.11  $   99,732,990.77  $ 138,394,532.60  $ 311,125,397.48 
Foundation      7,076,608.37         4,092,880.03                            -       11,169,488.40 
Total Investments $ 80,074,482.48  $ 103,825,870.80  $ 138,394,532.60  $ 322,294,885.88 
 
 

The foundation does not hold any Level 3 investments directly; therefore, the schedule of annual financial activities 
for Level 3 investments represents investments held by the university measured at their fair value on a recurring 
basis from reliance on Level 3 inputs for determining their fair value. 

 
Beginning balance  $  107,362,506.22 
Total realized and unrealized gains and losses included in earnings          4,506,306.22 
Purchases, issuances, and settlements        26,525,720.16 
Ending balance  $   138,394,532.60 

 

 
NOTES PAYABLE 
 
The foundation was gifted property in Weakley and Obion counties in Tennessee. The property and its contents 
were appraised at $376,000.00 with an attached mortgage note of $259,330.41.  The property will be used and 
overseen by the University of Tennessee at Martin.  Payment on the note, which began in January 2006, is 
$2,000.00 per month. The note has a 4.68% interest rate.  The balance of the note payable at June 30, 2018, was 
$54,739.55.  Future maturities of this note are as follows: 
 
Year ended June 30:  

          
2019                $ 21,904.07 
2020      22,951.46 
2021                               9,884.02 
 

Total                $ 54,739.55 
 

The foundation purchased a warehouse facility in Edgefield County, South Carolina at an appraised value of 
$11,000,000 on April 29, 2016, with a loan of $7,500,000 at 3.77%, with interest only payments until maturity on 
November 15, 2017. The note was restated in February 2017. The foundation issued another note payable in 
February 2017. The note payable totaled $205,000 and bore interest at 4% payable monthly.  Both notes were paid 
in full on January 31, 2018. 
 
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 
 
The foundation has concentrated its credit risk for cash and liquid, temporary investments by maintaining deposits 
at a financial institution, which may at times exceed amounts covered by insurance provided by the U.S. Federal 
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Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
 
The foundation has a master repurchase agreement with the financial institution where at the end of each day cash is 
invested in overnight securities and the securities are repurchased by the bank the next day. The foundation 
purchases the securities in its name. The Repurchase Agreement Account is not insured by FDIC insurance, but 
rather the financial institution provides the securities purchased as the underlying security for the Repurchase 
Agreement Account. The Repurchase Agreement Account as of June 30, 2018, totaled $5,607,574.15, and is 
reported in cash and cash equivalents on the statement of net position. 
 
 
Note 25:  Component Unit – University of Tennessee Research Foundation 
 
The University of Tennessee Research Foundation, Inc., is a private nonprofit organization that reports under 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and 
presentation features are different from revenue recognition criteria and presentation features as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial statements of this foundation have been 
reformatted into a GASB format and are reported in a separate column to the right of the university’s statements. 
 
The University of Tennessee Research Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization supporting the 
University of Tennessee.  The foundation was created as the UT Research Corporation (UTRC) in 1934 and 
incorporated in January 1935. The foundation’s stated purpose is, in conjunction with the university, to grow the 
University of Tennessee research enterprise; harvest, manage, and market University of Tennessee intellectual 
property; encourage and support entrepreneurial education and ventures by faculty, staff, students, and commercial 
partners/affiliates of the University of Tennessee; and to contribute to the well being of the State of Tennessee 
through economic development. In April 2003, UTRC was renamed and reorganized to the University of Tennessee 
Research Foundation (UTRF). Roles were redefined and the scope was expanded to include a new emphasis on 
entrepreneurship and economic development for technology transfer activities. A new set of bylaws and board of 
directors were established. The foundation has 7 voting directors and 3 nonvoting directors. Because the 
university’s board of trustees approves and funds the foundation’s administrative budget, the foundation is 
considered fiscally dependent on the university, and there is a financial benefit/ burden relationship between the two 
entities. Therefore, the research foundation is considered a component unit of the university and is discretely 
presented in the university’s financial statements.  
 
Complete financial statements for the research foundation can be obtained from the University of Tennessee 
Research Foundation, Suite 211, UT Conference Center Building, 600 Henley Street, Knoxville, TN 37996-4122.  
 
Organization and Nature of Activities 
 
The University of Tennessee Research Foundation, Inc., is a not-for-profit organization exempt from federal 
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The foundation was formed to promote research 
and hold and manage the university’s intellectual property. The foundation was established to protect, manage, and 
commercialize university inventions and intellectual property; grow the university research enterprise; develop and 
support an entrepreneurial culture; and contribute to state and regional economic development. 
 
TennEra, LLC, a wholly owned for-profit subsidiary of the University of Tennessee Research Foundation, was formed 
in 2008. The subsidiary provides a vehicle to leverage state and federal funding with private research and development 
investments, strategic partnerships and collaborations to further research, economic development, and clean energy 
objectives. The subsidiary owns a demonstration scale cellulosic ethanol biorefinery in Vonore, Tennessee that is being 
leased to Genera Energy, Inc., to produce high quality agricultural fibers and compostable products. 
 
Space Institute Research Corporation (SIRC), a wholly owned non-profit subsidiary of the University of Tennessee 
Research Foundation, was formed in 2011 and renamed as SIRC on June 2, 2017. The management of the property, 
activities, and affairs of SIRC shall be vested in its board of directors. The board is composed of seven voting directors. 
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As of June 30, 2018, SIRC had total assets of $71,323 and no revenue for the year then ended. 
 
Cherokee Farm Development Corporation (CFDC), a wholly owned non-profit subsidiary of the University of 
Tennessee Research Foundation, was formed on October 19, 2011. The management of the property, activities, and 
affairs of CFDC will be vested in its board of directors. The board is composed of five voting directors. As of June 30, 
2018, CFDC had total assets of $1,345,406 and total revenue of $761,624 for the year then ended. 
 
Cherokee Farm Properties, Inc. (CFPI), a wholly owned for-profit subsidiary of Cherokee Farm Development 
Corporation (CFDC), was formed on May 28, 2014. The management of the property, activities, and affairs of CFPI 
will be vested in its board of directors. The board is composed of three voting directors. As of June 30, 2018, CFPI had 
total assets of $1,253,296 and total revenue of $53,261 for the year then ended. 
 
Collaborative Composite Solutions Corporation (CCS), a non-profit subsidiary of the University of Tennessee 
Research Foundation, CCS’s sole corporate member, was formed on August 1, 2014 and renamed as CCS on July 28, 
2015. The subsidiary’s primary purpose is coordinating and supporting all activities proposed to meet the intent and 
requirements of the Department of Energy’s funding opportunity announcement DE-FOA-000977. These activities 
include, selecting, sponsoring, and auditing research and development projects that increase energy efficiency, decrease 
greenhouse gas emissions, and aid economic development in the United States. The management of the property, 
activities, and affairs of CCS will be vested in its board of directors. The board is composed of fourteen voting 
directors, one of whom is a representative of UTRF, and another representing the University of Tennessee. As of June 
30, 2018, CCS had total assets of $11,480,751 and total revenue of $14,132,463 for the year then ended. 
 
Clinical Trials Network of Tennessee (CTN2), a wholly owned non-profit subsidiary of the University of Tennessee 
Research Foundation, was formed on December 8, 2017. The management of the property, activities, and affairs of 
CTN2 will be vested in its board of directors. The board is composed of ten voting directors. As of June 30, 2018, 
CTN2 had total assets of $171,926 and no revenue for the year then ended. 
 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
 
The foundation’s consolidated financial statements include the foundation’s accounts and the accounts of its wholly 
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation, and the 
increase in net assets is reduced by the portion of earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests. 
 
Investment in Subsidiaries 
 
Subsidiaries are consolidated until the company ceases to have control. TennEra ceased to have control of Genera 
Energy Inc., and Prisma Renewable Composites, LLC. When the company loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss 
is recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between the aggregate of the fair value of the 
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest at the date when control is lost and the previous 
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any noncontrolling interest. The fair value of any 
investment retained in the former subsidiaries at the date when control is lost is regarded as the cost on initial 
recognition of an investment in the subsidiaries. Genera and Prisma were deconsolidated as of July 1, 2017. 
 
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
 
During the prior year, TennEra determined the biorefinery to be impaired by $28,389,725. In December 2017, TennEra 
sold equipment in the biorefinery to Genera Energy Inc., for $112,500. This resulted in a reduction of $1,510,158 in the 
original impairment. The remaining impairment of $26,879,567 is considered as part of accumulated depreciation at 
June 30, 2018. A loss of $3,330,530 was recorded on the sale of equipment during the year ended June 30, 2018. 
Management reevaluated this impairment in 2018 and determined no additional impairment was necessary. 
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Property and Equipment 
 

Property and equipment consist of the following major classifications at June 30, 2018: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Depreciation expense for the foundation and its subsidiaries totaled $1,215,139 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

 
 
Note Receivable from Sale of Biomass Innovation Park 

 
In May 2016, TennEra sold its Biomass Innovation Park to Genera Energy, Inc. for $1,850,000. A promissory note for 
$1,600,000 was issued and payable in quarterly installments beginning in August 2016 with the note maturing in May 
2021. Interest accrues on the unpaid balance at 5% per year. The note is secured by a pledge of 89,000 shares of Class 
M stock of Genera Energy, Inc. No payments were paid to TennEra during the year ended June 30, 2018. The balance of 
the note receivable including accrued interest is $880,202 at June 30, 2018. 
 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
The foundation reports under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, which defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, 
and prescribes disclosures about fair value measurements. 
 
FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the assumptions 
(inputs) used to value the assets or liabilities. Level 1 provides the most reliable measure of fair value, whereas Level 
3 generally requires significant management judgment. The three levels are defined as follows: 
 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the foundation has the ability to access. 

 
Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs other than Level I prices, such as quoted 

Office furniture and equipment $     140,226 
Less accumulated depreciation       (135,346) 
   Total            4,880  
  

TennEra  
Land          64,044 
Buildings   36,979,029 
Machinery and equipment        921,439 
Furniture and fixtures          43,587 
Less accumulated depreciation  (33,836,557) 
   Total TennEra     4,171,542 
  

Cherokee Farm  
Office furniture and equipment            1,739 
Less accumulated depreciation           (1,739) 
   Total Cherokee Farm                    - 
Collaborative Composite Solutions Corporation 

 

Equipment       402,072 
Software– member portal       263,735 
Less accumulated depreciation         (73,066) 
    Total Collaborative Composite Solutions Corporation        592,741 
  

Total  $   4,769,163 
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prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in markets that are 
not active, and other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable 
market data. 

 
Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect management's own assumptions 
about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

 
Registered Investment Companies 
 
The fair value of registered investment companies (mutual funds) is based on quoted net asset values of the shares 
held by the foundation at June 30, 2018. 
 
Marketable Equity Securities 
 
The fair value of marketable equity securities is based on quoted prices times the number of the shares held by the 
foundation at June 30, 2018. 
 
Investments in Genera Energy, Inc. and Prisma Renewable Composites, LLC 
 

Investments which consist of TennEra’s remaining noncontrolling investment in the deconsolidated subsidiaries is 
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis based primarily on fair value measurements provided by management utilizing 
Level 3 inputs in accordance with GAAP. There is no current active market for these investments such that the 
determination of fair value requires significant judgment and estimation. The investments are measured at fair value 
using an internal enterprise valuation prepared by management. The valuation resulted in a loss on investments of 
$3,023,621. 
 
The following table provides the assets carried at fair value measured on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2018: 
 

 
The foundation also has $9,945 of investments (equity securities) for which there is no readily determinable fair value 
and has invested $1,200,000 in Cherokee Farm Properties, Inc.  These investments are valued at cost, as management 
believes that any variance in valuation from historical cost would not be material to the operations of the foundation. 
 
Deconsolidation of Subsidiaries 
 
Genera Energy, Inc. was deconsolidated as of July 1, 2017. Due to various transactions with a third party investor, 
TennEra effectively lost control and ultimately retained 1.5% ownership in Genera at June 30, 2018. Accordingly, 
TennEra derecognized related assets, liabilities, and other interests in Genera. TennEra did not receive any consideration 
in conjunction with the deconsolidation. 
 
Prisma Renewable Composites, LLC was deconsolidated as of July 1, 2017. On June 18, 2018, Prisma issued ownership 
units representing 81.2987% on a fully diluted basis to other investors. This reduced Prisma’s ownership to 18.7013%. 
Accordingly, TennEra, LLC has deconsolidated the related assets, liabilities, and other interests in Prisma as of July 1, 
2017, as the related assets and liabilities of Prisma from July 1, 2017, through June 18, 2018, were determined to be 
immaterial to TennEra. TennEra did not receive any consideration in the deconsolidation of Prisma. 

 

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
      

Registered investment companies  $   11,816 $                - $               - $       11,816 
Marketable equity securities     110,181                   -                  -     110,181 
Genera Energy, Inc.  - -            27,000         27,000 
Prisma Renewable Composites, LLC                -                   -          850,061       850,061  
  $121,997 $                - $       877,061 $    999,058 
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A gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries totaling $7,294,288.00 is reported as other nonoperating revenue. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries for the year ended June 30, 2018: 

  

 
  Genera Prisma  

Fair value of interest retained $ 27,000 $ 850,061 
Less: Net assets deconsolidated   (6,424,132)   6,905 

Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries $ 6,451,132 $ 843,156 
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The University of Tennessee 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the University of Tennessee’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan within TCRS 

 

 2018 2017 2016 2015 
 

University’s proportion of the net pension 
liability 12.868287% 13.12809% 12.930334% 12.764631% 

University’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability $230,290,800 $239,530,566 $166,708,520   $88,069,402 

University’s covered payroll $308,432,979 $320,282,715 $337,276,466 $348,719,634 
University’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability as a percentage of its 
covered payroll 74.66% 74.78% 49.43% 25.26% 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 

the total pension liability 88.88% 87.96% 91.26% 95.11% 
 

1) To correspond with the measurement date, the amounts presented were determined as of June 30 of the prior 
fiscal year. 

 
2) This is a 10-year schedule; however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 

retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future years until 10 years of information is available. 
 

Schedule of University of Tennessee’s 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset 

State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan within TCRS 
 

 2018        2017        2016 
    
University’s proportion of the net pension asset 11.166788% 11.908035% 11.730576% 
University’s proportionate share of the net pension asset $2,315,823 $ 1,003,190 $ 326,224 
University’s covered payroll $62,718,322 $36,688,424 $13,241,214 
University’s proportionate share of the net pension asset 

as a percentage of its covered payroll    3.69% 2.73% 2.46% 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 

pension asset 131.51% 130.56% 142.55% 
 

1) To correspond with the measurement date, the amounts presented were determined as of June 30 of the prior 
fiscal year. 
 

2) This is a 10-year schedule; however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of information is 
available. 
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The University of Tennessee 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of University of Tennessee’s Contributions 
Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan Within TCRS 

 
 
 

 

Contractually 
Determined 

Contributions 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractually 
Determined  
Contribution 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) Covered Payroll 

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 

2018 $ 55,639,354 $ 55,639,354  $                    -  $ 295,027,604 18.86% 
2017 46,326,637 46,326,637                   -  308,432,979 15.02% 
2016 48,138,492 48,138,492   - 320,282,715 15.03% 
2015 50,692,652 50,692,652 - 337,276,466 15.03% 
2014 52,412,536 52,412,536 - 348,719,634 15.03% 
2013 47,508,571 47,508,571 - 316,091,623 15.03% 
2012 44,814,906 44,814,906 - 300,569,457 14.91% 
2011 43,343,861 43,343,861 - 290,703,293 14.91% 
2010 37,266,850 37,266,850 - 286,227,727 13.02% 
2009 37,963,758 37,963,758 - 291,580,323 13.02% 

 
 

To correspond with the reporting date, the amounts presented were determined as of June 30 of the stated fiscal year. 

 

Schedule of University of Tennessee’s Contributions 
State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan within TCRS 

 
 

 2018 2017     2016         2015 
 

Contractually determined contribution $3,336,552 $  2,283,615  $   1,419,842 $      512,435 
Contributions in relation to the  
  contractually determined 
contribution   3,336,552    2,283,615  1,419,842 512,435 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $              - $                 - $                  - $                 - 

   
   

Covered payroll $89,602,479 $ 62,718,322 $ 36,688,424 $13,241,214 
Contributions as a percentage of  
  covered payroll         3.72% 3.64% 3.87%        3.87% 

 

1) This is a 10-year schedule; however, contributions to this plan began in 2015.  Years will be added to this 
schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of information is available. 

2) To correspond with the reporting date, the amounts presented were determined as of June 30 of the stated 
fiscal year. 
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The University of Tennessee 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of University of Tennessee’s Contributions 
Federal Retirement Plans Administered by the U.S. Office of Personnel Management 

 
 

Civil Service Retirement System 

2018 $ 129,341 
2017 169,500 
2016 196,496 
2015 230,096 
2014 282,875 
2013 302,616 
2012 321,989 
2011 339,588 
2010 411,179 
2009 540,494 

 
Federal Employees Retirement System 
 

2018 $1,669,674 
2017 1,639,831 
2016 1,586,644 
2015 1,492,262 
2014 1,455,815 
2013 1,478,574 
2012 1,439,573 
2011 1,380,360 
2010 1,360,281 
2009 1,392,006 
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The University of Tennessee 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the University of Tennessee’s Proportionate Share of the Collective Total 
OPEB Liability  

Closed State Employee Group OPEB Plan 
 (dollar amount in thousands) 

 
 

 

 

 

    
2018 

     
University’s proportion of the collective total OPEB liability 15.922879% 

University’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability $   213,771 

     
University’s covered-employee payroll 

   
 $   707,387  

     
University’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 30.22% 

     
     

 

 

 

1) There are no assets accumulating, in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 
related to this OPEB plan. 

2) This is a 10-year schedule; however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of information is 
available. 

3) The amounts reported for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year-end. 
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The University of Tennessee 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the University of Tennessee’s Proportionate Share of the Collective Total 
OPEB Liability 

Closed Tennessee OPEB Plan 
 (dollar amount in thousands) 

 
 

 

    
2018 

     
University’s proportion of the collective total OPEB liability 0.00% 

University’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability                 -   

Primary government’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability  $      31,316  

Total OPEB liability associated with the university  $      31,316  

University’s covered-employee payroll 
   

 $    800,789  

     
University’s proportionate share of the collective total OPEB liability as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 0.00% 

 

 
1) There are no assets accumulating, in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 

related to this OPEB plan. 
2) This is a 10-year schedule; however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 

retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of information is 
available. 

3) The amounts reported for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year-end. 
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Knoxville Chattanooga Martin Health Science Center Other Units Total University
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 167,684,672.98    $ 24,269,979.20   $ 13,002,620.33   $ 30,885,053.42   $ 169,740,971.38 $ 405,583,297.31     
Investments 74,334,596.01      1,647,245.61     5,930,830.95     26,301,535.61   27,630,793.95   135,845,002.13     
Accounts, notes, and grants receivable (net) 31,389,431.13      8,919,344.49     3,094,782.80     12,630,559.94   23,790,951.99   79,825,070.35       
Inventories 4,987,786.80        77,861.90          525,630.66        1,162,058.73     206,968.30        6,960,306.39         
Prepaid expenses 3,660,824.29        158,982.49        215,401.33        450,671.21        (78,286.37)         4,407,592.95         

Total current assets 282,057,311.21    35,073,413.69   22,769,266.07   71,429,878.91   221,291,399.25 632,621,269.13     

Noncurrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 563,711,171.11    69,763,988.68   30,925,019.49   107,484,909.89 100,486,462.10 872,371,551.27     
Investments 435,506,250.08    20,942,937.36   26,109,788.51   158,170,293.88 251,255,923.89 891,985,193.72     
Accounts, notes, and grants receivable (net) 57,497,231.75      5,685,739.85     4,788,826.63     46,930,352.40   38,570,603.24   153,472,753.87     
Capital assets (net) 1,963,905,497.69 302,797,694.79 135,326,493.13 289,620,895.01 44,539,585.78   2,736,190,166.40 
Net pension asset 1,186,523.00        216,144.00        93,634.00          675,111.00        144,411.00        2,315,823.00         

Total noncurrent assets 3,021,806,673.63 399,406,504.68 197,243,761.76 602,881,562.18 434,996,986.01 4,656,335,488.26 
    Total assets $ 3,303,863,984.84 $ 434,479,918.37 $ 220,013,027.83 $ 674,311,441.09 $ 656,288,385.26 $ 5,288,956,757.39 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on debt refunding $ 8,947,153.80        $ 2,873,312.83     $ 5,106,835.44     $ 2,616,806.32     $ 707,057.69        $ 20,251,166.08       
Deferred outflows related to pensions 60,495,421.70 9,988,100.97 6,241,144.84 25,270,598.50 18,107,872.99 120,103,139.00     
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 7,031,941.00 1,283,088.00 863,001.00 3,702,449.00 1,284,894.00 14,165,373.00       

Total deferred outflows of resources $ 76,474,516.50 $ 14,144,501.80 $ 12,210,981.28 $ 31,589,853.82 $ 20,099,824.68 $ 154,519,678.08     

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 51,017,314.53      $ 6,641,615.92     $ 2,166,159.68     $ 16,305,161.54   $ 62,031,319.12   $ 138,161,570.79     
Accrued liabilities 27,252,329.93      5,950,036.44     3,807,418.81     3,123,428.46     23,737,781.97   63,870,995.61       
Unearned revenue 50,609,220.39      8,169,372.49     1,958,040.39     7,694,994.57     159,662.00        68,591,289.84       
Due to component unit -                        -                     -                     -                     281,389.88 281,389.88            
Deposits payable 1,022,403.11        1,556,273.18     376,511.49        541,914.78        130,793.33        3,627,895.89         
Annuities and life income payable -                        -                     -                     -                     3,331,110.43     3,331,110.43         
Total other postemployment benefits obligation (Note 12) 7,031,941.00        1,283,088.00     863,001.00        3,702,449.00     1,284,894.00     14,165,373.00       
Long-term liabilities, current portion 51,523,752.89      7,061,601.86     4,088,363.17     21,049,646.85   4,073,467.41     87,796,832.18       
Deposits held in custody for others 5,205,528.29        62,041.05          18,044.36          205,066.87        1,875,252.37     7,365,932.94         

Total current liabilities 193,662,490.14    30,724,028.94   13,277,538.90   52,622,662.07   96,905,670.51   387,192,390.56     

Noncurrent liabilities:
Unearned revenue -                        -                     -                     -                     15,500,438.71   15,500,438.71       
Net pension obligation 101,203,139.19    18,209,292.00   12,233,008.00   46,734,527.00   51,910,833.81   230,290,800.00     
Total other postemployment benefits obligation 99,099,437.00      18,073,866.00   12,159,579.00   52,149,805.00   18,123,071.00   199,605,758.00     
Long-term liabilities, noncurrent portion 806,123,779.63    115,826,356.88 67,833,765.90   86,908,602.07   13,291,087.34   1,089,983,591.82 
Due to grantors 10,378,665.97      1,430,575.00     2,043,529.46     6,578,018.53     -                     20,430,788.96       
Annuities and life income payable -                        -                     -                     -                     16,517,716.00   16,517,716.00       
Deposits held in custody for component units -                        -                     -                     -                     311,125,397.49 311,125,397.49     

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,016,805,021.79 153,540,089.88 94,269,882.36   192,370,952.60 426,468,544.35 1,883,454,490.98 
            Total liabilities $ 1,210,467,511.93 $ 184,264,118.82 $ 107,547,421.26 $ 244,993,614.67 $ 523,374,214.86 $ 2,270,646,881.54 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions $ 3,224,585.86        $ 1,287,734.00     $ 862,489.00        $ 2,436,930.00     $ 1,803,121.14     $ 9,614,860.00         
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 4,043,998.00        762,306.00        503,549.00        2,210,522.00     694,125.00        8,214,500.00         
Deferred inflows related to split-interest agreements -                        -                     -                     -                     29,861,912.30   29,861,912.30       

Total deferred inflows of resources $ 7,268,583.86        $ 2,050,040.00     $ 1,366,038.00     $ 4,647,452.00     $ 32,359,158.44   $ 47,691,272.30       

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $ 1,152,301,643.39 $ 188,886,128.09 $ 71,628,186.62   $ 212,004,862.03 $ 44,539,585.28   $ 1,669,360,405.41 
Restricted: 

Nonexpendable (permanent endowments) 339,986,756.86    18,134,974.27   20,472,011.91   130,307,407.22 4,276,388.86     513,177,539.12     
Expendable for other 252,949,699.46    9,101,672.69     15,354,358.75   188,111,273.29 36,192,143.87   501,709,148.05     
Expendable for pensions 1,186,523.00        216,144.00        93,634.00          675,111.00        144,411.00        2,315,823.00         
Expendable for loans 2,457,260.98        1,089,438.09     740,971.19        2,022,682.38     -                     6,310,352.64         
Expendable for capital projects 11,805,274.26      16,712.45          223,773.46        134,870.65        2,359.07            12,182,989.90       
Expendable for debt service 1,095,301.30        -                     167,674.57        -                     -                     1,262,975.87         

Unrestricted 400,819,946.30    44,865,191.76   14,629,939.35   (76,995,978.33) 35,499,948.56   418,819,047.64     
Total net position $ 2,162,602,405.55 $ 262,310,261.35 $ 123,310,549.85 $ 456,260,228.24 $ 120,654,836.64 $ 3,125,138,281.63 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE

June 30, 2018
SUPPLEMENTARY COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION

     71

9 

242
 



Finance and Administration Committee - Treasurer's Financial Report, FY 2017-18
 

Knoxville Chattanooga Martin Health Science Center Other Units Total University
REVENUES

Operating revenues:
    Gross tuition and fees $ 469,976,850.13        $ 113,557,113.91     $ 59,353,000.37     $ 89,199,151.48                    $ 103,680.50           $ 732,189,796.39       

Less: tuition discount and allowances (146,078,154.12)      (47,346,970.47)     (29,152,545.05)   (8,180,637.00)                     ‐                            (230,758,306.64)     

    Net student tuition and fees 323,898,696.01        66,210,143.44       30,200,455.32     81,018,514.48                    103,680.50           501,431,489.75       
    Federal appropriations 14,443,173.46          -                        -                      -                                     -                       14,443,173.46        
    Governmental grants and contracts 170,870,408.08        5,625,035.05        4,008,172.65       84,567,385.95                    7,339,553.91        272,410,555.64       
    Non-governmental grants and contracts 49,291,004.97          1,264,650.96        1,409,663.55       109,248,736.67                  44,710,488.40      205,924,544.55       
    Sales and services of educational departments
        and other activities 32,492,552.71          5,059,738.44        4,041,214.26       25,950,718.86                    -                       67,544,224.27        
    Auxiliary enterprises:
       Residential life 49,084,910.77          10,146,038.32       6,920,409.11       600.00                                -                       66,151,958.20        
       Food services 9,095,548.57           1,077,495.92        434,239.29         80,237.64                           -                       10,687,521.42        
       Bookstore 20,661,881.45          710,979.56           499,792.68         -                                     -                       21,872,653.69        
       Parking 7,646,261.07           2,767,204.43        581,037.97         1,337,749.18                      -                       12,332,252.65        
       Athletics 141,288,966.78        434,940.89           -                      -                                     -                       141,723,907.67       
       Other auxiliaries 2,329,696.41           298,508.71           34,985.89           287,530.36                         -                       2,950,721.37          
    Interest earned on loans to students 14,958.38                6.00                      -                      3,513.64                             -                       18,478.02               
    Other operating revenues 13,472,160.65          337,584.57           844,777.87         902,450.11                         6,602,436.60        22,159,409.80        
       Total operating revenues $ 834,590,219.31        $ 93,932,326.29       $ 48,974,748.59     $ 303,397,436.89                  $ 58,756,159.41      $ 1,339,650,890.49    

EXPENSES 

Operating expenses:
    Salaries and wages $ 583,136,612.78        $ 90,872,578.61       $ 52,059,665.71     $ 315,891,072.74                  $ 71,389,026.49      $ 1,113,348,956.33    
    Fringe benefits 209,729,937.95        32,928,708.16       19,836,689.89     91,846,432.39                    25,539,373.93      379,881,142.32       
    Utilities, supplies, and other services 295,487,650.58        45,681,467.00       29,682,845.84     146,615,851.32                  13,988,449.80      531,456,264.54       
    Scholarships and fellowships 40,429,206.57          9,459,546.66        9,868,228.68       4,558,930.62                      123,157.00           64,439,069.53        
    Depreciation and amortization expense 82,755,939.87          9,827,354.37        6,798,498.23       21,319,999.95                    2,947,300.48        123,649,092.90       
       Total operating expenses 1,211,539,347.75     188,769,654.80     118,245,928.35   580,232,287.02                  113,987,307.70    2,212,774,525.62    
           Operating income (loss) $ (376,949,128.44)      $ (94,837,328.51)     $ (69,271,179.76)   $ (276,834,850.13)                 $ (55,231,148.29)    $ (873,123,635.13)     

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

    State and local appropriations $ 332,462,337.69        $ 52,706,390.00       $ 33,644,813.00     $ 156,363,318.96                  $ 24,310,820.61      $ 599,487,680.26       
    Gifts 10,945,445.58          1,389,125.50        1,985,300.15       28,780,642.86                    2,244,013.08        45,344,527.17        
    Grants and contracts 88,634,832.06          39,869,591.20       26,736,391.42     64,555,528.71                    -                       219,796,343.39       
    Investment income (loss) 31,379,748.42          4,612,495.15        2,507,827.01       12,559,609.82                    12,520,975.32      63,580,655.72        
    Interest on capital asset - related debt (29,484,007.45)        (4,865,782.07)       (2,656,230.98)     (2,892,697.75)                     (357,449.78)         (40,256,168.03)       
    Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (3,073,451.94)          (176,353.44)          (190,273.16)        (2,363,940.03)                     (48,060.16)           (5,852,078.73)         
       Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 430,864,904.36        93,535,466.34       62,027,827.44     257,002,462.57                  38,670,299.07      882,100,959.78       
          Income (loss) before other revenues, 
             expenses, gains, or losses 53,915,775.92          (1,301,862.17)       (7,243,352.32)     (19,832,387.56)                   (16,560,849.22)    8,977,324.65          
   Capital appropriations 53,253,070.12          11,676,972.60       4,897,126.19       16,418,445.31                    1,401,853.46        87,647,467.68        
   Capital grants and gifts 19,282,102.76          136,753.86           200,187.47         -                                     -                       19,619,044.09        
   Additions to permanent endowments 8,876,019.36           2,869,060.31        419,641.72         970,964.63                         45,181.95            13,180,867.97        
   Other (17,937.96)               6,500.00               108,873.69         203,778.97                         3,146,947.08        3,448,161.78          
      Total other revenues 81,393,254.28          14,689,286.77       5,625,829.07       17,593,188.91                    4,593,982.49        123,895,541.52       
         Increase (decrease) in net position $ 135,309,030.20        $ 13,387,424.60       $ (1,617,523.25)     $ (2,239,198.65)                     $ (11,966,866.73)    $ 132,872,866.17       

NET POSITION

  Net position at beginning of year 2,074,555,941.11     257,551,007.13     130,729,711.81   483,398,614.38                  166,980,331.17    3,113,215,605.60    
(47,262,565.76)        (8,628,170.38)       (5,801,638.71)     (24,899,187.49)                   (8,627,903.40)      (95,219,465.74)       

    principle for GASB 75

-                           -                        -                      -                                     (25,730,724.40)    (25,730,724.40)       
    principle for GASB 81

  Net position at beginning of year, as restated 2,027,293,375.35     248,922,836.75     124,928,073.10   458,499,426.89                  132,621,703.37    2,992,265,415.46    
  Net position at end of year $ 2,162,602,405.55     $ 262,310,261.35     $ 123,310,549.85   $ 456,260,228.24                  $ 120,654,836.64    $ 3,125,138,281.63    

  Cumulative effect of a change in accounting

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

SUPPLEMENTARY COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

  Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
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The University of Tennessee 
 Supplementary Schedule of Unrestricted Net Position 

June 30, 2018 
 
 
 

 June 30, 2018 
Working capital $          29,104,516.00 
Revolving funds 24,571,945.17 
Encumbrances 3,436,957.48 
Auxiliaries 10,324,634.68 
Unallocated E & G 56,306,803.85 
Reappropriations 11,890,693.33 
Quasi-endowments 14,107,006.45 
Plant construction 138,317,754.57 
Renewal and replacement funds 513,791,711.09 
Debt service             45,609,602.88 
 847,461,625.50 
  
  
Investment in plant, interest payable (8,381,080.19) 
Undesignated deficit        (420,261,497.67) 
 $       418,819,047.64 
  

 
 
Unrestricted net position includes funds that have been designed for specific purposes. 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE FIVE YEAR SUMMARY     ( Dollars Are Expressed in Thousands of Dollars Except on Student Fees) 

For the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Operating revenues

     Net tuition and fees $ 501,431      $ 485,931      $ 467,020      $ 435,928      $ 398,555      

     Net auxiliary 255,719      244,374      235,415      221,233      197,426      

     Grants and contracts 478,335      494,948      522,376      465,439      469,872      

     Other (federal appropriations, sales and services,etc.) 104,165      101,799      100,907      101,610      90,635        

Total operating revenues $ 1,339,650   $ 1,327,052   $ 1,325,718   $ 1,224,210   $ 1,156,488   

Operating expenses 

     Salaries and wages $ 1,113,349   $ 1,066,643   $ 1,030,271   $ 1,000,703   $ 986,831      

     Fringe benefits 379,881      362,602      328,711      311,226      344,307      

     Utilities, supplies, and other services 531,456      511,271      481,949      458,076      463,481      

     Scholarships and fellowships 64,439        56,019        58,368        60,792        57,025        

     Depreciation expense 123,649      117,925      112,169      107,315      107,888      

Total operating expenses $ 2,212,774   $ 2,114,460   $ 2,011,468   $ 1,938,112   $ 1,959,532   

Operating income (loss) $ (873,124)    $ (787,408)    $ (685,750)    $ (713,902)    $ (803,044)    

Non operating revenues and expenses 

     State and local appropriations $ 559,488      $ 553,770      $ 524,871      $ 505,978      $ 492,784      

     Gifts 45,344        34,451        32,291        33,091        25,930        

     Investment income, gains, (losses) 63,581        83,959        35,748        31,528        138,913      

     Other 173,688      163,156      136,776      151,659      138,185      

Total non operating revenues $ 882,101      $ 835,336      $ 729,686      $ 722,256      $ 795,812      

Other revenues, expenses, gains or losses

     Capital appropriations $ 87,647        $ 99,140        $ 97,052        $ 48,283        $ 54,964        

     Capital grants and gifts 19,619        17,685        19,347        18,899        35,209        

     Additions to permanent endowments 13,181        20,751        20,217        18,277        22,702        

     Other 3,448          6,533          19,938        11,026        5,022          

Total other revenues, expenses, gains or losses $ 123,895      $ 144,109      $ 156,554      $ 96,485        $ 117,897      

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 132,873      $ 192,037      $ 200,490      $ 104,839      $ 110,665      

      Cash $ 1,277,955   $ 1,172,658   $ 1,156,285   $ 959,250      $ 884,903      

Net assets:

      Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,669,360   $ 1,621,977   $ 1,560,889   $ 1,468,677   $ 1,431,939   

      Restricted expendable 523,781      517,206      448,636      457,605      481,693      

      Restricted nonexpendable 513,178      522,110      507,911      486,451      470,815      

      Unrestricted 418,819      451,923      393,776      303,062      428,352      

      Total net assets $ 3,125,138   $ 3,113,216   $ 2,911,212   $ 2,715,795   $ 2,812,799   

Student loans

     Notes receivable $ 15,366        $ 26,326        $ 29,413        $ 31,015        $ 31,466        

     Loans issued (by year) 305             1,124          1,905          2,256          2,492          

Endowments

     Market value $ 778,322      $ 754,617      $ 698,057      $ 727,341      $ 732,094      

Life income funds 

     Market value $ 25,676        $ 25,731        $ 22,708        $ 21,554        $ 25,493        

Capital asset and debt administration

     Capital assets, net of depreciation $ 2,736,190   $ 2,590,539   $ 2,426,955   $ 2,216,173   $ 2,104,873   

     Total debt $ 1,096,122   $ 1,001,122   $ 901,488      $ 785,801      $ 691,579      

General data

     Total enrollment 50,810        49,879        49,136        49,098        49,127        

         Knoxville 28,894        28,321        27,845        27,410        27,171        

         Chattanooga 11,588        11,587        11,388        11,670        11,674        

         Martin 7,048          6,772          6,827          7,042          7,423          

         Memphis 3,280          3,199          3,076          2,976          2,859          

     Degrees granted 11,805        11,741        11,565        11,285        11,152        

     Full-time employees 13,006        12,835        12,541        12,068        11,853        

     Full-time faculty 3,826          3,794          3,716          3,218          3,132          

          % tenured (based on those eligible for tenure) 41.7% 41.7% 43.9% 50% 52%

     Total private gifts $ 397,895      $ 221,158      $ 240,261      $ 303,347      $ 179,788      

     Academic year student fees (Knoxville)

          Instate $ 12,970        $ 12,498        $ 12,436        $ 10,276        $ 9,684          

          Out of state (additional) $ 18,190        $ 18,190        $ 18,190        $ 18,190        $ 18,190        

Instruction $ 676,378      $ 695,899      $ 659,968      $ 643,466      $ 649,389      

Research 301,848      245,369      237,816      236,243      244,974      

Public service 142,767      139,162      135,316      121,884      122,635      

Academic support 194,636      184,988      168,777      156,135      149,830      

Student services 96,160        94,067        88,775        85,695        82,885        

Institutional support 150,018      137,057      139,062      126,582      128,095      

Op/maint physical plant 175,551      171,656      145,852      151,777      166,730      

Scholarships/fellowships 102,262      94,055        95,020        95,717        89,942        

Auxiliary enterprises 187,268      167,966      162,160      145,094      142,278      

Independent operations 62,238        66,316        66,553        68,206        74,886        

Depreciation 123,649      117,925      112,169      107,313      107,888      

Total $ 2,212,775   $ 2,114,460   $ 2,011,468   $ 1,938,112   $ 1,959,532   
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Administration of The University of Tennessee from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 

The Board of Trustees governs the University of Tennessee.  The governor, who also serves as chair of the board, appoints board members.  The board meets at least 
three times a year, and its sessions are open to the public. 

Board of Trustees 

Governor William E. Haslam, Chair, Ex officio 
voting as governor of the State of Tennessee 

Catherine S. Mizell, Non-voting Secretary 

Raja J. Jubran, Vice Chair, Knox County 

Charles C. Anderson, Jr., Knox County 

Shannon A. Brown, Shelby County 

George E. Cates, Ninth District 

Terrance G. Cooper (UTHSC) Non-voting faculty 
trustee 

Susan C. Davidson (UTC), Voting faculty trustee  

Joseph A. DiPietro, Ex officio voting as president of 
The University of Tennessee 

Spruell Driver, Jr., Davidson County 

William E. Evans, Shelby County 

John N. Foy, Hamilton County 

D. Crawford Gallimore, Weakley County 

Vicky B. Gregg, Third District 

Mike Krause, Ex officio non-voting as executive 
director of the Tennessee Higher Education 
Commission 

Brad A. Lampley, Seventh District 

Andrew McBride (UTHSC), Non-voting student 
trustee    

Sharon J. Miller Pryse, Second District 

Candice McQueen, Ex officio voting as 
Commissioner of Education of the State of 
Tennessee 

David A. Shepard, Fifth District 

Rachel M. Smith (UTC) Voting student trustee 

Jai Templeton, Ex officio voting as Commissioner 
of Agriculture of the State of Tennessee 

John D. Tickle, First District  

Charles E. Wharton, Franklin County 

Julia T. Wells, Eighth District  

Tommy G. Whittaker, Sixth District 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICERS 

Joseph A. DiPietro, President 

Herb Byrd, Vice President of Public Service 

Tiffany Carpenter, Associate Vice President of 
Communications and Marketing 

David A. Golden, Executive Assistant to the 
President 

Anthony Haynes, Vice President for Government 
Relations and Advocacy 

Sandy Jansen, Executive Director of Audit and 
Compliance 

Tonja Johnson, Executive Vice President and Chief 
Operating Officer 

Linda Martin, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
and Student Success 

David Miller, Chief Financial Officer 

Stacey Patterson, Vice President for Research, 
Outreach and Economic Development 

Matthew Scoggins, General Counsel 

Kerry Witcher, Interim Vice President for 
Development & Alumni Affairs & Programs, 
President and CEO of the UT Foundation, Inc  

CHANCELLORS 

Steve Angle, University of Tennessee, Chattanooga 

Tim Cross, University of Tennessee Institute of 
Agriculture 

Wayne Davis, Interim, University of Tennessee, 
Knoxville 

Steve J. Schwab, University of Tennessee Health 
Science Center 

Keith S. Carver, Jr., Chancellor, University of 
Tennessee at Martin 

FINANCIAL STAFF, UNIVERSITY 
ADMINISTRATION 

David Miller, Chief Financial Officer 

Ron Maples, Treasurer 

Robert C. Chance, Director of Payrolls 

Sandy Jansen, Executive Director of Audit and 
Consulting Services 

Pam Jeffreys, Director of Risk Management 

Timothy F. Mapes, Associate Treasurer 

Les Mathews, Chief Information Officer 

Rip Mecherle, Chief Investment Officer 

Mark Paganelli, Executive Director  

Aldena Phillips, Controller 

Blake Reagan, Director of Procurement Services 

Jim Sauceman, Director of IRIS 

Gayle Stetler, Director of Accounts Payable 

FINANCIAL STAFF, CAMPUSES 
AND UNITS 

Richard L. Brown, Jr., Vice Chancellor of Finance 
and Operations, Chattanooga 

Chris Cimino, Vice Chancellor of Finance and 
Administration, Knoxville 

Tim Fawver, Budget Director, Institute of 
Agriculture 

Anthony Ferrara, Vice Chancellor of Finance and 
Operations, Health Science Center 

Ron Loewen, Budget Director, University Wide 
Administration 

Gail White, Budget Director, Institute for Public 
Service 

Petra Rencher McPhearson, Vice Chancellor, 
Finance and Administration 
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Aldena Cox Phillips, CPA, faithfully served The University of Tennessee for twenty-two years and 
became the first female Controller of The University of Tennessee, serving in this role from 2017 
through 2018.  Aldena passed away on December 18, 2018. 
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All qualified applicants will receive equal consideration for employment without regard to race, color, national origin, religion, sex, pregnancy, marital status, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, age, physical or mental disability, or covered veteran status. Eligibility and other terms and conditions of employment benefits at the University of Tennessee are governed by laws 
and regulations of the State of Tennessee, and this non-discrimination statement is intended to be consistent with those laws and regulations. In accordance with the requirements of Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, The University 
of Tennessee affirmatively states that it does not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, or disability in its education programs and activities, and this policy extends to employment by the 
university. Inquiries and charges of violation of Title VI (race, color, national origin), Title IX (sex), Section 504 (disability), ADA (disability), Age Discrimination in Employment Act (age), 
sexual orientation, or veteran status should be directed to the Office of Equity and Diversity (OED), 1840 Melrose Avenue, Knoxville, TN 37996-3560, telephone 865- 974-2498 (V/TTY 
available) or 865-974-2440. Requests for accommodation of a disability should be directed to the ADA Coordinator at the Office of Equity and Diversity.

A project of the University of Tennessee Office of the Treasurer, with design and editorial assistance from UT System Office of Communications and Marketing, 865-974-8184
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Finance and Administration Committee - Update on the Task Force on Effective Administration and Management (TEAM) 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 1, 2019

Committee: Finance and Administration

Item: Update on the Task Force on Effective Administration and Management

Type: Information 

Presenter: David L. Miller, Chief Financial Officer

In an effort to clarify the roles and responsibilities between the University of Tennessee System 
administration and the campuses and institutes it serves, Interim President Randy Boyd directed 
the creation of a Task Force on Effective Administration and Management (TEAM). The task 
force is led by David Miller, Chief Financial Officer, and co-chair Richard Brown, Executive Vice 
Chancellor for Administration at UT Chattanooga. 

One of the core responsibilities of the UT System administration is to perform operations on 
behalf of the campuses and institutes that would otherwise create duplication and additional 
costs if each entity performed the work independently. This approach saves the institutions, 
taxpayers and students significant costs.

In creating TEAM, Interim President Boyd said his goal was to determine if there are additional 
opportunities to share best practices, streamline processes, identify practical ways to do our jobs 
better, and ultimately reduce costs.

The task force has begun its work and its executive members are:
∑ David Miller, UT System, Chief Financial Officer (chair)
∑ Richard Brown, UT Chattanooga, Executive Vice Chancellor (co-chair)
∑ Tonja Johnson, UT System, Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer
∑ Chris Cimino, UT Knoxville, Senior Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration
∑ Petra McPhearson, UT Martin, Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration
∑ Tony Ferrara, UT Health Science Center, Vice Chancellor for Finance
∑ Tim Fawver, UT Institute of Agriculture, Chief Business Officer
∑ Gail White, UT Institute for Public Service, Budget Director

UT has engaged in periodic reviews of roles and efficiency projects since the 1980s. In this initial 
work, the task force will explore five departments within institutional support:

∑ Human Resources
∑ Capital Projects
∑ Procurement and Contracting 
∑ Information Technology
∑ Communications and Marketing
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The task force is supported by working groups of content experts in each functional area 
representing each UT institution and the System office.

The primary goal of the working groups is to clarify the roles and responsibilities of the System 
Administration, Campus, and Institute staff in five core management areas. From accomplishing 
the primary goal we anticipate several positive results:

A. Streamlining workflow 
B. Eliminating redundant efforts
C. Determining the adequacy of resources to ensure quality and effectiveness
D. Differentiating System and institutional responsibilities and activities
E. Finding cost savings

The task force has engaged Deloitte Consulting to lead the working groups through the 
evaluation process and offer advice on the industry’s best practices.  

A general project schedule follows:

Jan. - Feb. Phase I Assessment – conducted working groups
Feb. – April Phase II Evaluation – led by Deloitte Consulting
April - May Phase III - Recommendations reviewed by the task force
May - June Implementation - Goals and Strategies

Recommendations will be made to Interim President Boyd and reported to the Finance and 
Administration Committee in June 2019.  The levels of implementation will follow the law or 
policy that controls the activity.  University policies and procedures would be the least difficult 
to amend; statutory or other state rules would take longer.
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CALENDAR OF EVENTS

1 | P a g e

RESPONSIBILITIES TIMEFRAME

1. Guidelines to govern the administration’s submission of a proposed annual operating budget and 
appropriations request to state agencies and officials.

Each Fall Meeting

2. The University’s final operating and capital outlay budgets for the fiscal year (after the General 
Assembly has enacted annual appropriations for the University).

Annual Meeting, June 21, 2019 - Operating

3. Student tuition and fees for which Board approval is required by Board policy and any proposal for 
waiver or discount of student tuition and fees unless mandated by state law.

Winter Meeting, March 1, 2019 for UT Health 
Science Center
Annual Meeting, June 21, 2019

4. The process through which each campus advisory board must provide a recommendation to the 
President on the proposed annual operating budget, including tuition and fees, as it relates to the 
respective campus.

Winter Meeting, March 1, 2019

5. Any policies to improve the availability of financial aid deemed necessary and in the best interest of 
students, the University, and the state following a periodic evaluation of student financial aid in 
relation to the cost of attendance.

Not Routine.  Brought to the Finance & 
Administration Committee as needed.

6. The University’s compensation plan and any benefit programs requiring Board approval. Annual Meeting, June 21, 2019

7. The University’s proposed annual capital outlay budget and appropriation request, prior to their 
submission to other state agencies and officials.

Annual Meeting, June 21, 2019
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CALENDAR OF EVENTS

2 | P a g e

8. Construction of specific buildings and other capital improvements to be funded by revenues or other 
institutional funds not specifically appropriated for capital outlay; provided that the Board may
authorize the President to approve additional projects identified during the fiscal year, and these 
additional projects shall be reported to the Board at a subsequent meeting.

Annual Meeting, June 21, 2019

9. With the approval of the Tennessee State School Bond Authority, issuance of debt to erect buildings, 
purchase real estate, or cooperate with agencies of the United States.

Annual Meeting, June 21, 2019

10. A facilities master plan for each campus. Interim revisions and amendments are 
requested on an as needed basis, but THEC 
requires a new master plan be completed at 
least once every ten years.

¸ The UT-Knoxville/UTIA Knoxville 
Campus Master Plan was updated in 
2016; the UT Martin Master Plan in 
2015/2016; the UT Chattanooga 
Master Plan in 2012; and the UT
Health Science Center (UTHSC) Master 
Plan in 2015. An update to the UTHSC 
Master Plan is scheduled to kick-off in 
February 2019.

11. Acquisition of any interest in real property, including acquisition by gift or devise if the acquisition 
obligates the University or the State of Tennessee to expend state funds for capital improvements or 
continuing operating expenditures.

Not Routine.  Brought to the Finance & 
Administration Committee as needed.

12. Sale or other disposal of real property owned by the University, including but not limited to sale in fee, 
grant of an easement, or grant of a right-of-way.

Not Routine.  Brought to the Finance & 
Administration Committee as needed.

13. Naming of buildings and other assets of the University, including colleges, schools, and programs, 
except as may be delegated to the administration from time to time by Board policy.

Not Routine.  Brought to the Finance & 
Administration Committee as needed.
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CALENDAR OF EVENTS

3 | P a g e

14. Creation of legal entities that will bear the University’s name and the governance structure of such 
entities.

Not routine.  Brought to the Finance & 
Administration Committee as needed.

15. Proposals to implement voluntary retirement incentive plan for a campus or institute or for a particular 
unit within a campus or institute.

Not routine. Brought to the Finance & 
Administration Committee as needed.

16. Policies relating to the University’s finances, operations, and facilities for which Board approval is 
necessary or deemed appropriate by the committee, including without limitation policies governing 
approval of student tuition and fees, cash management, debt management, investment of University 
funds, and operation of University aircraft.

Not routine.  Brought to the Finance & 
Administration Committee as needed.

17. University rules required to be promulgated under the Uniform Administrative Procedures Act, except 
rules governing student conduct, rights, and responsibilities, which shall be recommended by the 
Education, Research and Service Committee.

Not routine.  A general Board role and 
responsibility that comes before the Board as 
needed.

OTHER RESPONSBILITIES TIMEFRAME

1. The Committee shall review the University’s debt obligations annually. Annual Meeting – June  21, 2019

2. The Committee chair, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer, shall review the committee 
charter prior to each Annual Meeting of the Board to determine whether the committee is carrying out 
its responsibilities effectively and whether any revisions to the charter should be submitted to the 
committee for recommendation to the Board.

June 2019
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